FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JUNE 21, 2011

NEW ISSUES Moody’s Rated “Aa1”
Bank Qualified

In the opinion of Foley & Lardner LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming continued compliance with
the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 71986, as amended (the “Code”), interest on the Securities is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes
of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Securities will be taken into
account in determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on
certain corporations. The City will designate the Securities as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. See “TAX EXEMPTION” herein for a more detailed discussion of some of the federal
income tax consequences of owning the Securities. Interest on the Securities is not exempt from current State of
Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
$4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A
$950,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2011B

Dated: July 12, 2011 Due: April 1, as shown herein

The $4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A (the “Bonds”) and the $950,000
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2011B (the “Notes”) (collectively, the “Securities”) will be issued by
the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the “City” or “Issuer”), dated July 12, 2011, and will be in the denomination of
$5,000 each or any multiple thereof. Term Bonds will mature on April 1, 2013 and 2015 (the “Term Bonds”) and
the Bonds will mature serially on April 1 of the years 2016 through 2026. The Notes will mature serially on April 1
of the years 2013 through 2016. Interest on the Securities shall be payable commencing on April 1, 2012 and
semiannually thereafter on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Associated Trust Company, National Association,
located in Green Bay, Wisconsin, will serve as paying agent for the Securities.

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Notes will be issued pursuant
to Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Securities will be general obligations of the City, for which
its full faith and credit and taxing powers are pledged, which taxes may, under current law, be levied without
limitation as to rate or amount. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to finance projects
undertaken for public purposes, including, financing street improvements and street improvement funding;
sewerage improvements, including, but not limited to, sanitary sewer improvements; parking lots or other parking
facilities; buildings for the housing of machinery and equipment; and additions and improvements to parks and
public grounds. The proceeds from the sale of the Notes will be used for public purposes, including, but not
limited to, financing improvements to municipal buildings and the purchase of replacement financial software.
(See “THE FINANCING PLAN” herein)

The Bonds maturing on April 1, 2022 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity on April 1, 2021
and on any date thereafter, in whole or in part, from maturities selected by the City and by lot within each maturity
at par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. The Bonds maturing April 1, 2013 and 2015 are subject to
mandatory redemption as described herein. (See “REDEMPTION PROVISIONS” herein)

The Notes are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
The Financial Advisor to the City is: BAIRD

The Securities will be issued only as fully registered Securities and will be registered in the name of Cede & Co.,
as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC will act as the securities
depository of the Securities. Individual purchases will be made in book-entry form only in denominations of
$5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of the Securities will not receive certificates
representing their interest in the Securities purchased. (See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM” herein.)

The Securities are offered when, as and if issued, subject to approval of legality by Foley & Lardner LLP, Bond

Counsel. The anticipated settlement date for the Securities is on or about July 12, 2011.

Underwriter for the Bonds: Underwriter for the Notes:
Morgan Keegan & Co., Inc. UMB Bank N.A.



MATURITY SCHEDULES

$4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A
Dated: July 12, 2011
Due: April 1, as shown below

cusip®
Base
392641
$120,000 Term Bonds due April 1, 2013 - Rate: 1.00% Yield 1.00% VAl
$140,000 Term Bonds due April 1, 2015 - Rate: 1.25% Yield 1.30% VB9
cusip® cusip®
Base Base
(April 1) Amount Rate Yield 392641 (April 1) Amount Rate Yield 392641
2016 $200,000 2.00% 1.45% VC7 2022 $430,000 3.00% 3.00% VJ2
2017 360,000 3.00 1.80 VD5 2023 450,000 3.00 3.10 VK9
2018 370,000 3.00 2.15 VE3 2024 470,000 3.125 3.25 VL7
2019 385,000 3.00 2.45 VFO 2025 495,000 3.25 3.35 VM5
2020 395,000 3.00 2.60 VG8 2026 520,000 3.50 3.50 VN3

2021 415,000 3.00 2.75 VH6

$950,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2011B
Dated: July 12, 2011
Due: April 1, 2013-2016

cusip®
Base
(April 1) Amount Rate Yield 392641
2013 $260,000 0.60% 0.60% uw4

2014 265,000 0.80 0.80 ux2
2015 275,000 1.15 1.15 uYo
2016 150,000 2.10 1.50 uz7

& CUSIP data herein provided by Standard & Poor’'s CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. Copyright 2011.
American Bankers Association.



CITY OF GREEN BAY
Brown County, Wisconsin

COMMON COUNCIL

Thomas De Wane, President
Amy Kocha, Vice President

Patrick Buckley, Alderperson Andy Nicholson, Alderperson

Brian Danzinger, Alderperson Anthony R. Theisen, Alderperson
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ADMINISTRATION
James J. Schmitt, Mayor

Lynn Boland, Human Resources Director
Dawn M. Foeller, Finance Director/Comptroller
Lauri Marenger, Clerk
Angela J. Oleson, Treasurer
Mike Hronek, Information Technology
Tony Wachewicz, City Attorney
Jerry Hanson, Municipal Court Judge
Dawne Cramer, Interim Director, Parks, Recreation & Forestry
William F. Nabak, General Manager, Water Utility
Jeff Roemer, Fire Chief
P. Robert Strong, Planning Director
James Arts, Police Chief
Edward Wiesner, Director of Public Works
Vacant, Director of Economic Development
Jim Andrew, Interim Director of Transit

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Financial Advisor: Robert W. Baird & Co., Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Bond Counsel: Foley & Lardner LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Paying Agent: Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin



REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT

No dealer, broker, salesperson, or other person has been authorized by the City or by Robert W. Baird & Co., the
Financial Advisor, to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained herein, and
if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by
any of the foregoing. Under no circumstances shall this Official Statement constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy the Securities, nor shall there be any sale of the Securities, in any jurisdiction in
which such offer, solicitation, or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities
laws of any such jurisdiction.

Robert W. Baird & Co., in its role as Financial Advisor, assisted the Issuer in preparing the Official Statement.
Baird obtained information from the City and other sources that it believed was reliable, but cannot guarantee the
accuracy or completeness of the information in this Official Statement.

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in the Official Statement. The Underwriters
have reviewed the information in this official statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to
investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the
Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of
this Official Statement nor any other sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication
that there has been no change in the affairs of the City.
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SUMMARY-BONDS

City:
Issue:
Dated Date:

Interest Due:

Principal Due:

Redemption Provision:

Security:

Purpose:

Tax Status:

Bank Qualified:

Credit Rating:

Bond Years:
Average Life:

Record Date:

City of Green Bay, Wisconsin.
$4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A.
July 12, 2011.

Commencing April 1, 2012 and on each October 1 and April 1 thereafter. Interest
shall be computed on the basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day year.

Term Bonds due April 1, 2013 and 2015. Serially on April 1, 2016 through 2026.

The Bonds maturing on and after April 1, 2022 shall be subject to redemption
prior to maturity on April 1, 2021 and on any date thereafter at par plus accrued
interest. The amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be
selected by the City. If less than the entire principal amount of any maturity is to
be redeemed, the Bonds of that maturity which are to be redeemed shall be
selected by lot. Notice of such redemption shall be given by sending a notice
thereof by first class mail, at least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for
redemption, to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address
shown on the registration books of the Paying Agent. The Bonds maturing April
1, 2013 and 2015 are subject to mandatory redemption as described herein. (See
“REDEMPTION PROVISIONS” herein.)

The full faith, credit and resources of the City are pledged to the payment of the
principal of and the interest on the Bonds as the same become due, and for said
purposes, there are levied without limitation on all the taxable property in the City,
direct, annual, irrepealable taxes in each year and in such amounts which will be
sufficient to meet such principal and interest payments when due. Under current
law, such taxes may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to finance projects
undertaken for public purposes, including financing street improvements and
street improvement funding; sewerage improvements, including, but not limited to,
sanitary sewer improvements; parking lots or other parking facilities; buildings for
the housing of machinery and equipment; and additions and improvements to
parks and public grounds. (See “THE FINANCING PLAN” herein.)

Interest on the Bonds will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. (See “TAX EXEMPTION” herein.)

The City will designate the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations."

This issue has been assigned a “Aal” rating by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
(See “RATING” herein.)

46,847.36 years.
9.863 years.

The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date.

Information set forth on this page is qualified by the entire Official Statement. A full review of the entire Official Statement
should be made by potential investors.




SUMMARY-NOTES

City:
Issue:
Dated Date:

Interest Due:

Principal Due:
Redemption Provision:

Security:

Purpose:

Tax Status:

Bank Qualified:

Credit Rating:

Bond Years:
Average Life:

Record Date:

City of Green Bay, Wisconsin.
$950,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2011B.
July 12, 2011.

Commencing April 1, 2012 and on each October 1 and April 1 thereafter. Interest
shall be computed on the basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day year.

April 1, 2013 through 2016.
The Notes are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

The full faith, credit and resources of the City are pledged to the payment of the
principal of and the interest on the Notes as the same become due, and for said
purposes, there are levied without limitation on all the taxable property in the City,
direct, annual, irrepealable taxes in each year and in such amounts which will be
sufficient to meet such principal and interest payments when due. Under current
law, such taxes may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.

The proceeds from the sale of the Notes will be used for public purposes,
including, but not limited to, of financing the cost of improvements to municipal

buildings and the purchase of replacement financial software. (See “THE
FINANCING PLAN” herein.)

Interest on the Notes will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. (See “TAX EXEMPTION” herein.)

The City will designate the Notes as "qualified tax-exempt obligations."

This issue has been assigned a “Aal” rating by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
(See “RATING” herein.)

2,898.47 years.
3.051 years.

The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date.

Information set forth on this page is qualified by the entire Official Statement. A full review of the entire Official Statement
should be made by potential investors.




INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Official Statement presents certain information relating to the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the “City” or
“Issuer” and the “State”, respectively) in connection with the sale of the $4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A (the “Bonds”) and the $950,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series
2011B (the “Notes”) (collectively, the “Securities”). The Securities are issued pursuant to the Constitution and
laws of the State and a separate award resolution to be adopted by the Common Council of the City on June 21,
2011 (the "Bond Award Resolution”, the “Note Award Resolution”, and collectively the “Award Resolutions”) and
other proceedings and determinations related thereto.

All summaries of statutes, documents, and the Award Resolutions contained in this Official Statement are subject
to all the provisions of, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, such statutes, documents, and the Award
Resolutions and references herein to the Securities are qualified in their entirety by reference to the form thereof
included in the Award Resolutions. Copies of the Award Resolutions may be obtained from the Financial Advisor
upon request.

If in any year there shall be insufficient funds from the respective tax levies to pay the principal of or interest on
the Securities when due, the principal and interest will be paid from other funds of the City on hand, said amounts
to be returned when the taxes levied have been collected. Each Award Resolution will require that the City keep
the proceeds of the taxes levied for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Securities in its debt
service fund, and that the City must maintain its debt service fund in accordance with Section 67.11 of the
Wisconsin Statutes.

THE FINANCING PLAN

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for the following public purposes and in the following
amounts: $2,645,000 for street improvements and street improvement funding; $1,200,000 for sewerage
improvements, including but not limited to, sanitary sewer improvements; $375,000 for parking lots or other
parking facilities; $180,000 for buildings for the housing of machinery and equipment; and $350,000 for additions
and improvements to parks and public grounds (collectively, the "Bond Projects").

The proceeds from the sale of the Notes will be used for public purposes, including, but not limited to, financing
improvements to municipal buildings and the purchase of replacement financial software (the "Note Projects").

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS

Optional Redemption

The Bonds maturing on April 1, 2022 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity on April 1, 2021
and any date thereafter, in whole or in part, from maturities selected by the City, and by lot within each maturity at
par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

The Notes are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

Mandatory Redemption

The Bonds maturing April 1, 2013 and 2015 (the "Term Bonds") are also subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption on April 1 of each of the years and in the amounts set forth below at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date. As and for a sinking fund for
the redemption of the Term Bonds, the City shall cause to be deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account a sum
which is sufficient to redeem the following principal amounts of such Term Bonds plus accrued interest to the
redemption date:

2013 Term Bonds 2015 Term Bonds
Year Amount Year Amount
2012 $55,000 2014 $70,000
2013 (maturity) 65,000 2015 (maturity) 70,000

The City will call the Term Bonds for redemption on the dates and in the amounts set forth above and direct its
officers and agents to take the necessary steps to select the Term Bonds to be redeemed on the dates and
amounts set forth above and give appropriate notice of said redemption to the registered holders of the Bonds so
redeemed.

7



CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND LIMITATIONS
CONCERNING THE CITY'S POWER TO INCUR INDEBTEDNESS

The Constitution and laws of the State limit the power of the City (and other municipalities of the State) to issue
obligations and to contract indebtedness. Such constitutional and legislative limitations include the following, in
summary form and as generally applicable to the City.

Purpose

The City may not borrow money or issue notes or bonds therefor for any purpose except those specified by
statute, which include among others the purposes for which the Securities are being issued.

General Obligation Bonds

The principal amount of every sum borrowed by the City and secured by an issue of bonds may be payable at one
time in a single payment or at several times in two or more installments; however, no installment may be made
payable later than the termination of twenty years immediately following the date of the bonds. The Common
Council is required to levy a direct, annual, irrepealable tax sufficient in amount to pay the interest on such bonds
as it falls due and also to pay and discharge the principal thereof at maturity. Bonds issued by the City to
refinance or refund outstanding notes or bonds issued by the City may be payable no later than twenty years
following the original date of such notes or bonds.

Refunding Bonds

In addition to being authorized to issue bonds, the City is authorized to borrow money using bonds for refunding
existing debt. To evidence such indebtedness, the City must issue to the lender its refunding bonds (with interest)
payable within a period not exceeding twenty years following the initial date of the debt to be refunded. Such
refunding bonds constitute a general obligation of the City. Refunding bonds are not subject to referendum.

Bond or Note Anticipation Notes

In anticipation of issuing general obligation bonds or notes, the City is authorized to borrow money using bond or
note anticipation notes. The bond or note anticipation notes shall in no event be general obligations of the City
and do not constitute an indebtedness of the City, or a charge against its general credit or taxing power. The bond
or note anticipation notes are payable only from (a) proceeds of the bond anticipation notes set aside for payment
of interest on the bond or note anticipation notes as they become due and (b) proceeds to be derived from the
issuance and sale of general obligation bonds or notes which proceeds are pledged for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the bond or note anticipation notes. The maximum term of any bond anticipation notes
(including any refunding) is five years.

Promissory Notes

In addition to being authorized to issue bonds, the City is authorized to borrow money using promissory notes for
any public purpose. To evidence such indebtedness, the City must issue its promissory notes (with interest)
payable within a period not exceeding ten years following the date of said notes. Such notes constitute a general
obligation of the City. Notes may be issued to refinance or refund outstanding notes or bonds. However, such
notes must be payable not later than twenty years following the original date of such notes.

Debt Limit

The City has the power to contract indebtedness for purposes specified by statute so long as the principal amount
thereof does not exceed five percent of the equalized value of taxable property within the City. For information with
respect to the City's percent of legal debt incurred, see the caption "INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY-Debt Limit,"
herein.



THE RESOLUTIONS

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Resolutions pursuant to the procedures prescribed by the
Wisconsin Statutes. Reference is made to the Resolutions for a complete recital of their terms.

Initial Resolutions

By way of resolutions adopted on May 3, 2011 (collectively, the “Bond Initial Resolutions”), the Common Council
authorized the issuance of general obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $4,750,000 to finance the Bond
Projects. The Bond Initial Resolutions are subject to referendum if, within 30 days after the adoption of the Bond
Initial Resolutions, a sufficient petition requesting a referendum on the issuance of the Bonds is filed by the
electors of the City. The petition period for the Bond Initial Resolutions for the Bonds expired on June 2, 2011.

By way of a resolution adopted on May 3, 2011, the Common Council authorized the issuance of general
obligation promissory notes in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $950,000 for the public purpose of
financing the Note Projects. Wisconsin Statutes permit general obligation promissory notes such as the Notes to
be issued without a referendum.

The Bond Award Resolution

By way of the Bond Award Resolution, the Common Council will accept the best qualifying bid (or reject all bids)
for the purchase of the Bonds, set forth in the Notice of Sale, provided the details and form of the Bonds, and set
out certain covenants with respect thereto. The City will pledge its full faith, credit and resources to payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds. Pursuant to the Bond Award Resolution, direct, annual, irrepealable
taxes will be levied for collection in the years 2012 to 2026 in amounts which will be sufficient to meet the principal
and interest payments on the Bonds when due (or monies will otherwise be appropriated). The Bond Award
Resolution requires that the City keep the proceeds of taxes levied for the payment of the principal of and interest
on the Bonds in its debt service fund and that the City maintain its debt service fund in accordance with Section
67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

The Note Award Resolution

By way of the Note Award Resolution, the Common Council will accept the best qualifying bid (or reject all bids)
for the purchase of the Notes, set forth in the Notice of Sale, provided the details and form of the Notes, and set
out certain covenants with respect thereto. The City will pledge its full faith, credit and resources to payment of
the principal of and interest on the Notes. Pursuant to the Note Award Resolution, direct, annual, irrepealable
taxes will be levied for collection in the years 2012 to 2016 in amounts which will be sufficient to meet the principal
of and interest payments on the Notes when due (or monies will otherwise be appropriated). The Note Award
Resolution requires that the City keep the proceeds of taxes levied for the payment of the principal of and interest
on the Notes in its debt service fund and that the City maintain its debt service fund in accordance with Section
67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes.



THE CITY
Common Council

The Common Council is the legislative and policy-making body of the City and consists of twelve council
members who are elected from each of the City's aldermanic districts for two-year terms. A Council President
and Vice President are elected from among the twelve council members at an organizational meeting held on the
third Tuesday in April of each year, following the April municipal election. The current term expires April 2012.
The Mayor is elected for a four-year term, which expires April 2015. The present members and their aldermanic
districts are as follows.

James J. Schmitt, Mayor

Aldermanic
Common Council District
Jerry Wiezbiskie, Alderperson 1

Thomas De Wane, President

Andy Nicholson, Alderperson 3
Anthony R. Theisen, Alderperson 4
Amy Kocha, Vice President 5
Dan Haefs, Alderperson 6
Ned Dorff, Alderperson 7
Christopher Wery, Alderperson 8

Guy Zima, Alderperson 9
Steven Deneys, Alderperson 10
Brian Danzinger, Alderperson 11
Patrick Buckley, Alderperson 12

Administration

The day-to-day administration of the City is handled through the various department heads that are responsible
for the everyday functions. Members of the administration and their years of service are listed below.

Years of
Name Title Service
Lynn Boland Human Resources Director 1.5*%
Dawn M. Foeller Finance Director/Comptroller 11.0
Lauri Marenger Clerk 5*
Angela J. Oleson Treasurer 1.5*
Mike Hronek Information Technology 2.0*
Tony Wachewicz City Attorney Less than one
Jerry Hanson Municipal Court Judge 21.0
Dawn Cramer Interim Director, Parks, Recreation & Forestry 33.0
William F. Nabak General Manager, Water Utility 37.0
Jeff Roemer Fire Chief 3.0
P. Robert Strong Planning Director 30.0
James Arts Police Chief 24.0
Edward Wiesner Director of Public Works 2.0*
Vacant Director of Economic Development --
Jim Andrew Interim Director of Transit Less than one

* Prior to their current positions Ms. Boland served as the Executive Director of Human Resource for the University of
California, Ms. Marenger served as Deputy Clerk for the Brown County Clerk, Ms. Oleson worked for Integrys, as a staff
accountant, Mr. Hronek served as the City’s GIS Coordinator, Mr. Wachewicz served as the Assistant City Attorney and Mr.
Wiesner served as the City’s Director of Engineering and Assistant Director of Public Works.
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Employment Relations

Department Employees*
Police Department 252.20
Fire Department 185.00
Transit Department 77.70
Information Services 7.00
Mayor's Office 3.50
Law Department 5.50
Finance Department 22.20
Park, Recreation & Forestry 90.50
Planning Department 41.50
Public Works Department 227.50
Personnel 9.00
Municipal Court 5.15
Economic Development 3.50
Total 930.25

* Full-time equivalent of positions within the organization; not all positions are currently filled.

The City has the following labor agreements with various employee groups. None of these groups are legally
allowed to strike. All Unions and Associations have agreements with their respective expirations dates shown

below.
Contract

Union/Association Group Represented Expiration

Police Department Non-Supervisory Non-supervisory, sworn police personnel 12/31/11
Bargaining Unit

International Association of Fire Fighters, Non-managerial fire fighters 12/31/11
Local 141

Police Department Supervisory Bargaining Unit Police Captains and Lieutenants 12/31/11

Amalgamated Transit Department, Local 857 Transit drivers 12/31/13

Operating Engineers, Local 310 Transit mechanical employees 12/31/13

AFSCME Local 1889, City clerical, custodial and maintenance 12/31/13
Bay Area Municipal Employees Association, employees, parking utility employees,

City Hall Bargaining Unit and transit clerical

Teamsters Local 75, Crossing Guards Crossing Guards of the Green Bay 12/31/11
Bargaining Unit Police Department

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Public Works electricians 12/31/13
Local 158

Teamsters’ Local 75, Inspection Bargaining Public Works building, plumbing, 12/31/13

Unit and electrical inspectors

AFSCME Local 1672, Non-supervisory park and 12/31/13
Park Department Bargaining Unit forestry maintenance personnel

AFSCME Local 1672-A, Bridge tenders 12/31/11
Bridgetenders Bargaining Unit

Department of Public Works Association Department of Public Works laborers, 12/31/13

drivers, and equipment operators
Teamsters Local 75, Assessors Bargaining Unit Assessors 12/31/11
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All eligible City personnel are covered by the Municipal Employment Relations Act (MERA) of the Wisconsin
Statutes. Pursuant to that law, employees have limited rights to organize and collectively bargain with the
municipal employers. MERA was amended by 2011 Wisconsin Act 10 (the "Act") adopted on March 11, 2011,
which altered the collective bargaining rights of public employees in Wisconsin.

Certain legal challenges have been brought with respect to the Act. On May 26, 2011, the Dane County Circuit
Court (the "Circuit Court") issued a decision which voided the legislative action taken with respect to the Act due
to violations of the State's Open Meetings Law. However, on June 14, 2011, the Supreme Court of Wisconsin
overturned the Circuit Court's decision by vacating and declaring all orders and judgments of the Circuit Court
with respect to the Act to be void. As a result, the Act will take effect the day after it is published in accordance
with State statutes. Publication of the Act is expected to take place on June 28, 2011. On June 15, 2011, a
number of labor unions filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin
asking, among other things, that a declaratory judgment be entered on the basis that the Act violates the First and
Fourteenth Amendments and that preliminary and permanent orders be entered to enjoin the implementation and
enforcement of the Act.

The Act prohibits the City from bargaining collectively with municipal employees, other than fire or law
enforcement personnel, with respect to any factor or condition of employment except total base wages. Under
the Act, the City or employee union has the option to pursue mediation and grievance arbitration. The Act repeals
voluntary impasse resolution procedures for municipal employees, other than fire or law enforcement personnel,
including binding interest arbitration. The Act further provides that strikes by any municipal employee or labor
organization are expressly prohibited. As a practical matter, it is anticipated that strikes will be rare. Furthermore,
if strikes do occur, they may be enjoined by the courts. Impasse resolution for firefighters and law enforcement
personnel is subject to final and binding arbitration procedures, which do not include a right to strike

Pension Plan

All eligible City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System established under Chapter 40 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. The total required retirement plan contributions for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 were $6,592,394 and $6,074,474, respectively. The amounts of such contributions are determined by the
Wisconsin Retirement Fund and were in accordance with the actuarially determined requirement.

Other Post Employment Benefits

For information on the City’s post-employment health care benefits, please refer to Appendix A — Basic Financial
Statements and Related Notes.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Location

The City is the county seat of Brown County, located in Northeastern Wisconsin. The City lies on the southern
shore of Green Bay, an inland extension of Lake Michigan. The City is 212 miles north of Chicago, 115 miles
north of Milwaukee, and 285 miles east of Minneapolis-St. Paul.

History

French voyager Jean Nicolet founded Green Bay, the City by the Bay, in 1694. Located in Brown County, the
City was formerly established as part of the Michigan Territory in 1818 and encompassed most of the eastern half
of the present land area of the State of Wisconsin. The City itself was chartered in 1854 and consolidated with
Old Fort Howard in 1895. Today, the City is a thriving Great Lakes seaport connected to international shipping
lanes, rail lines and interstate highways.
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Education

The Green Bay Area Public School District provides a comprehensive education program for students through its
four high schools, four middle schools, two kindergarten through g™ grade alternative schools, and twenty-five
elementary schools. The fourth largest district in Wisconsin, the School District offers one of Wisconsin’s most
complete programs for students. Twenty-four parochial elementary schools and two parochial high schools also
provide comprehensive education programs for students.

The City also provides opportunities for post-secondary education. The University of Wisconsin-Green Bay is a
four-year institution that offers various degrees with an emphasis on Environmental Science, as well as, both
undergraduate and graduate programs in Education. St. Norbert College, located in nearby DePere, is a Catholic
liberal arts school. Northeast Wisconsin Technical College (“NWTC”) provides vocational, technical and adult
education programs.

Services and Facilities

The City provides its residents with services including police and fire departments, garbage and refuse collection,
a downtown system of on-street and off-street parking, a municipal transit system and a water system. The
Green Bay Metropolitan Sewerage District treats waste for the City and surrounding areas.

Transportation

U.S. highways 41 and 141 serve the Green Bay area as well as State highways 29, 32, 54 and 57. Interstate
Highway 43 is a direct route to Milwaukee. Greyhound and Seymour Transfer Lines provide bus service, and
Austin Straubel International Airport provides air service via five carriers with over 40 scheduled flights daily. The
24-foot deep Port of Green Bay channel is an international port for domestic and foreign trade, with a navigation
season lasting from approximately April 2 to December 31.

Community Life

The City is the home to the four-time Super Bowl Champion Green Bay Packers. Lambeau Field, the Packer’s
home stadium, completed a $295 million renovation and expansion in 2001. The Weidner Center for the
Performing Arts, located on the University of Wisconsin—Green Bay campus, is a state-of-the-art facility known for
its impeccable acoustics. It has received international acclaim as one of the best performing halls in the United
States. Heritage Hill State Park offers visitors an opportunity to experience life as it was in the Green Bay area
from 1672 through 1905. Oneida Bingo and Casino provides bingo as well as twenty-four hour access to
blackjack and slot machines.

Lambeau Field, along with the Resch Center and Brown County Veterans Memorial Arena, create a sports
entertainment district along Lombardi Avenue. The Meyer Theatre provides a downtown venue for the performing
arts as well. The Kl Conference Center provides a downtown destination for large groups coming to the Green
Bay area for conferences.

Health Care

Four major hospitals serve the Green Bay community: St. Vincent Hospital, St. Mary’s Hospital, Bellin Memorial
Hospital and Aurora BayCare. St. Vincent Hospital is a full service, general, acute care facility specializing in
trauma, cancer care, rehabilitation, specialty surgery, and neonatal intensive care. St. Mary’s Hospital is an acute
care, short-term facility, and is fully equipped to handle a broad range of surgical and pediatric problems. Bellin is
a regional cardiovascular center for northeast Wisconsin. Bellin has established a Cardiac Emergency Network in
which it serves as the receiving hospital for referrals from fourteen member hospitals in northeastern Wisconsin
and the Upper Peninsula of Michigan. Aurora BayCare is a tertiary hospital that features all private rooms, a full-
service, 24-hour emergency department, Vince Lombardi Cancer Clinic, the latest diagnostic and treatment
technology, abundant surface parking, rooms for overnight stays by family members of patients, and offices for
primary care physicians and specialists.
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Population

Brown City of
County Green Bay
Census, 2010 248,007 104,057
Estimate, 2009 245,426 103,500
Estimate, 2008 245,168 103,950
Estimate, 2007 244,764 104,020
Estimate, 2006 242,733 104,230
Source: Wisconsin Department of Administration, Demographic Services Center.
Per Return Adjusted Gross Income
State of Brown City of
Wisconsin County Green Bay
2009 $45,372 $49,849 $43,324
2008 47,046 51,821 44,028
2007 48,985 50,773 41,438
2006 48,107 50,658 41,202
2005 45,357 47,855 39,514
Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Division of Research and Analysis.
Unemployment Rate
State of Green Bay,
Wisconsin MSA
April, 2011 7.4% 7.0%
April, 2010 8.7 8.1
Average, 2010 8.3% 7.7%
Average, 2009 8.7 8.3
Average, 2008 4.9 4.8
Average, 2007 4.8 4.7
Average, 2006 4.7 4.7
Source: Wisconsin Department of Workplace Development.
Building Permits
Valuation
2011~ $18,110,972
2010 131,142,438
2009 61,776,230
2008 138,655,315
2007 98,643,849

*As of May 16, 2011.

Source: City of Green Bay.
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Largest Emplovyers in the Green Bay Metropolitan Area

Number of

Employer Type of Business Employees

Humana Health insurance and related services 3,169

Schneider National, Inc. Truck load carrier organization 2,994

Oneida Tribe of Indians Tribal enterprises and government 2,916

Green Bay Area Public Schools District  Education 2,818

Georgia-Pacific Corporation Mfr. of paper/plastic disposable products 2,400

Bellin Health Acute care hospital 2,203

BayCare Aurora LLC Health care 1,703

St. Vincent Hospital Acute care hospital 1,556

Brown County Government 1,554

UnitedHealth Group Administers health and life insurance plans 1,538

American Foods Group Meat distributors - wholesale and retail 1,523

Wisconsin Public Service Electric and natural gas utility 1,438

JBS Green Bay Meat processing 1,300

ShopKo Stores Discount mass-merchandiser retail 1,278

Associated Banc-Corp. Financial products and services 1,091

@ Full Time Equivalent Employees

Source: Green Bay Area Chamber of Commerce (private employers only) as of August 2010.

Largest Taxpayers

2010 2010
Assessed Equalized

Taxpayer Name Type of Business Valuation Valuation
BayCare Aurora LLC Health care $176,011,400 $177,076,887
Georgia-Pacific Corporation Mfr. of paper/plastic/foam disposable products 105,997,500 106,639,157
Procter & Gamble Paper Products  Mfr. of paper products 89,475,700 90,017,342
Oneida Tribe of Indians Indian tribe 29,001,800 29,177,363
KOS Hatcheries/Moski Corporation Commercial/apartments/construction 24,697,100 24,846,604
St. Mary's Hospital Medical Center  Health care 23,195,700 23,336,115
Packerland Packing Manufacturing 21,186,900 21,315,155
Green Bay Packaging Manufacturing/Papermaking 19,989,300 20,110,305
T. Futures LLC/Robert Toonen Commercial/apartments 19,683,800 19,802,956
Bays Tundra Hospitality Tundra lodge 19,599,600 19,718,246
RHS Family Limited Partnership Apartments 17,500,000 17,605,936
Green Bay Converting Paper Products 16,002,300 16,099,170
Green Bay Plaza LLC Retail 15,522,500 15,616,466
Bayland Properties Manufacturing 14,650,200 14,738,885
RGL Real Estate Trucking/Warehousing 14,399,700 14,486,869

Source: City of Green Bay.
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TAX LEVIES, RATES AND COLLECTIONS

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid to the town, city or
village treasurer in full by January 31. Real property taxes may be paid in full by January 31 or in two equal
installments payable by January 31 and July 31. Municipalities also have the option of adopting payment plans
which allow taxpayers to pay their real property taxes and special assessments in three or more installments,
provided that the first installment is paid by January 31, one-half of the taxes are paid by April 30 and the
remainder is paid by July 31. Amounts paid on or before January 31 are paid to the town, city or village treasurer.
Amounts paid after January 31 are paid to the county treasurer unless the municipality has authorized payment in
three or more installments in which case payment is made to the town, city or village treasurer. Any amounts paid
after July 31 are paid to the county treasurer. For municipalities which have not adopted an installment payment
plan, the town, city or village treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for collections through the preceding
month on January 15 and February 20. For municipalities which have adopted an installment payment plan, the
town, city or village treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for collections through the preceding month on
January 15, February 15 and the 15th day of each month following a month in which an installment payment is
due. On or before August 20, the county treasurer must settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all real
property taxes and special taxes. The County Board may authorize its County Treasurer to also settle in full with
the underlying taxing districts for all special assessments and special charges. The county may then recover any
tax delinquencies by enforcing the lien on the property and retain any penalties or interest on the delinquencies
for which it has settled. Since, in practice, all delinquent real estate taxes are withheld from the county's share of
taxes, the City receives 100 percent of the real estate taxes it levies.

See "Wisconsin State Budget Legislation” on page 27 herein for information on proposed additional limitations on
city tax levies.

Set forth below are the taxes levied, the tax rate per $1,000 assessed value and the collections on all taxable
property within the City. The rates set forth are for the levy years 2006 through 2010:

Uncollected Personal
Property Taxes

Levy Collection City City as of August 20th Percent of
Year Year Tax Rate Levy of each Year Levy Collected
2010 2011 $8.86 $52,987,516 -In Process of Collection-

2009 2010 8.86 52,577,314 -0- 100%
2008 2009 8.67 50,953,170 -0- 100

2007 2008 8.42 47,656,940 -0- 100

2006 2007 8.09 45,602,660 -0- 100

ASSESSED TAX RATES

Levy/Collection Years

2010/2011 2009/2010 2008/2009 2007/2008 2006/2007

City $8.86 $8.86 $8.67 $8.42 $8.09
School District 9.73 9.52 9.32 9.11 8.85
Technical College District 1.62 1.62 1.60 1.58 1.56
County and State 4.62 4.83 4.94 4.82 4.72
Gross Tax Rate 24.83 24.83 24.53 23.93 23.22
State Tax Credit (1.54) (1.60) (1.68) (1.59) (1.45)
Net Tax Rate 23.29 23.23 22.85 22.34 21.77
Ratio of Assessed to Equalized

Valuation 99.40% 95.19% 92.27% 93.00% 93.59%
Equalized Tax Rate $23.15 $22.12 $21.08 $20.68 $20.37
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ASSESSED AND EQUALIZED VALUATIONS

All equalized valuations of property in the State of Wisconsin are determined by the State of Wisconsin,
Department of Revenue, and Supervisor of Assessments Office. Equalized valuations are the State's estimate of
full market value. The State determines assessed valuations of all manufacturing property in the State.
Assessed valuations of residential and commercial property are determined by local assessors.

Set forth in the table below are equalized valuations of property located within the City for the years 2006 through
2010. The City’s Equalized Valuation (TID IN) has decreased by 2.04 percent since 2006. The average annual
percentage change is -0.51 percent.

Assessed Equalized Valuation Equalized Valuation
Year Valuation (TID IN) (TID OUT)
2010 $5,982,240,200 $6,019,338,000 $5,861,951,300
2009 5,936,017,500 6,234,597,300 6,050,471,200
2008 5,873,975,900 6,365,769,700 6,196,089,700
2007 5,813,611,600 6,283,453,300 6,115,661,800
2006 5,759,227,500 6,144,755,300 6,010,731,200

EQUALIZED VALUE BY PROPERTY CLASS

Equalized Value by class of property for 2010 is as follows:

2010 Percent of
Equalized Value Equalized Value
Real Estate
Residential $3,796,500,700 63.07%
Commercial 1,592,103,000 26.45
Manufacturing 333,351,100 5.54
Agricultural 426,700 0.01
Undeveloped 385,000 0.01
Forest 1,547,000 0.03
Other 63,100 0.00
Total Real Estate 5,724,376,600 95.10%
Total Personal Property 294,961,400 4.90
Total $6,019,338,000 100.00%
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Tax Increment Districts

The City has Tax Incremental Districts created under Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105. TID valuations totaling
$157,386,700 have been excluded from the City’s tax base for 2010.

City of Green Bay Creation Date Base Value 2010 Value Increment
04 1998 $26,954,000 $45,818,800 $18,864,800
05 2000 60,076,800 112,785,600 52,708,800
06 2001 15,984,300 20,005,200 4,020,900
07 2002 14,369,500 43,952,800 29,583,300
08 2002 6,338,700 16,675,900 10,337,200
09 2004 3,792,300 8,697,300 4,905,000
10 2004 24,402,500 27,653,200 3,250,700
11 2005 41,558,200 40,078,800 *

12 2005 196,376,400 227,968,700 31,592,300

13 2005 21,945,200 20,968,900 *

14 2006 6,102,200 8,113,100 2,010,900

15 2007 27,836,300 25,281,100 *

16 2007 95,240,600 88,210,200 *

17 2008 183,900 296,700 112,800
TOTAL $157,386,700

*Per the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, this District has zero or negative increment.
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INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY
Direct Indebtedness

Set forth below is the direct indebtedness of City, including principal and interest payments due on existing debt as well as debt service on the new issues of
Bonds and Notes. Interest on the Bonds has been calculated using an average effective rate of 3.09 percent. The average life of the Bonds is 9.863 years
and the bond years are 46,847.36 years. Interest on the Notes has been calculated using an average effective rate of 1.21 percent. The average life of the
Notes is 3.051 years and the bond years are 2,898.47 years.

Total Debt Total Projected

Outstanding Debt New Issue - Bonds New Issue - Notes Service Less: Projected Net Debt Service
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements Offsetting Revenues* Requirements
2011 $13,468,799 $6,588,388 $20,057,187 ($6,152,130) $13,905,057
2012 13,063,144 5,932,497 $55,000 $170,539 $12,185 19,233,365 (6,387,063) 12,846,302
2013 11,314,326 5,412,616 65,000 139,200 $260,000 9,213 17,200,354 (6,287,213) 10,913,142
2014 9,462,124 4,996,228 70,000 138,438 265,000 7,373 14,939,162 (6,196,059) 8,743,102
2015 11,878,928 4,543,878 70,000 137,563 275,000 4,731 16,910,100 (8,901,701) 8,008,399
2016 8,123,175 4,113,184 200,000 135,125 150,000 1,575 12,723,059 (5,704,893) 7,018,167
2017 7,765,670 3,760,539 360,000 127,725 - - 12,013,933 (5,697,981) 6,315,953
2018 7,779,596 3,404,601 370,000 116,775 - - 11,670,973 (5,701,882) 5,969,091
2019 7,664,804 3,038,708 385,000 105,450 - - 11,193,962 (5,506,374) 5,687,588
2020 6,930,110 2,689,168 395,000 93,750 - - 10,108,028 (4,667,524) 5,440,504
2021 6,849,333 2,349,997 415,000 81,600 - - 9,695,930 (4,369,235) 5,326,696
2022 7,197,473 2,007,618 430,000 68,925 - - 9,704,016 (4,345,430) 5,358,586
2023 6,286,824 1,681,117 450,000 55,725 - - 8,473,666 (4,337,236) 4,136,430
2024 6,351,332 1,373,697 470,000 41,631 - - 8,236,661 (4,176,156) 4,060,505
2025 6,235,140 1,059,168 495,000 26,244 - - 7,815,553 (3,808,387) 4,007,165
2026 5,472,759 766,534 520,000 9,100 - - 6,768,392 (3,293,211) 3,475,182
2027 4,091,676 509,453 - - - - 4,601,129 (2,022,497) 2,578,631
2028 3,498,762 309,970 - - - - 3,808,732 (1,717,232) 2,091,500
2029 2,069,255 136,250 - - - - 2,205,505 (1,217,364) 988,141
2030 1,229,332 42,863 - - - - 1,272,195 (978,884) 293,311
146,732,561 54,716,476 4,750,000 1,447,789 950,000 35,077 208,631,902 (91,468,450) 117,163,452

Less 2011

Sinking Funds (13,468,799) (6,588,388) 0 0 0 0 (20,057,187) 6,152,130 (13,905,057)
TOTAL $133,263,762 $48,128,088 $4,750,000 $1,447,789 $950,000 $35,077 $188,574,715 ($85,316,320) $103,258,395

*The above outstanding debt was issued as general obligations of the City; however, tax increment revenues and revenues from the City’s parks and public grounds, sanitary
and storm sewer utilities are projected to partially offset the total debt service. Included also are assumed direct payment interest credits from the United States Treasury in
connection with the $8,680,000 Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2009A (Build America Bonds-Direct Payment), $820,000 State Trust Fund
Loan dated October 6, 2009 (Build America Bonds-Direct Payment), $15,320,000 Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds (Build America Bonds-Direct
Payment), $785,000 State Trust Fund Loan dated October 7, 2010 (Build America Bonds-Direct Payment) and $350,000 State Trust Fund Loan dated October 7, 2010 (Build
American Bonds-Direct Payment) . Receipt of the credits is expected but not assured. The actual amount of these offsetting revenues is not guaranteed.
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Other Debt
The following issues are not general obligations of the City:
= One Taxable Lease Revenue Bond issue dated 2002, totaling $2,860,000 of principal due 2012 through 2016.

= Two Water System Revenue Refunding Bond issues dated 2004 and 2006, totaling $70,945,000 of principal due
2012 through 2029.

= One (tax-exempt) Lease Revenue Bond issue dated 2006, totaling $11,560,000 of principal due 2012 through
2029.

= One (tax-exempt) Lease Revenue Refunding Bond issue dated 2010, totaling $3,685,000 of principal due 2012
through 2020.

Future Financing

The City does not anticipate any additional general obligation borrowings in the next six months.

Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness

Set forth below is information relating to the outstanding overlapping and underlying indebtedness of the City.

Amount of Debt Percent Outstanding Debt

(Net of 2011 Chargeable Chargeable
Name of Entity Principal Payments) to City to City
Northeast Wisconsin Technical College District $29,400,000 16.10% $4,733,400
Brown County 131,800,000 34.08 44,917,440
Green Bay Area Public School District 61,480,000 72.03 44,284,044
Green Bay Metropolitan Sewerage District 51,431,784 35.53 18,273,713

$274,111,784 $112,208,597
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Statistical Summary

The table below reflects direct, overlapping and underlying bonded indebtedness net of all 2011 principal

payments.

2010 Equalized Valuation
Population of City (2010 Census)
Direct Bonded Indebtedness Including These Issues

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness Including These
Issues

Direct Bonded Indebtedness as a Percentage of Equalized Valuation

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness
as a Percentage of Equalized Valuation

Direct Bonded Indebtedness Per Capita

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness Per Capita

Total

Net of Self-
Supporting
G.O. Debt*

$138,963,762

$251,172,359

2.31%

4.17%
$1,335.46

$2,413.80

$6,019,338,000
104,057

$79,240,307

$191,448,904

1.32%

3.18%
$761.51

$1,839.85

*Although the outstanding debt was issued as general obligation of the City, it is expected that tax increment revenues and
revenues from the City’s parks and public grounds, sanitary and storm sewer utilities will pay $59,723,455 of principal, plus

interest.

Debt Limit

The total indebtedness of the City may not exceed five percent of the equalized value of property in the City. Set
forth in the table below is a comparison of the outstanding indebtedness of the City, net of 2011 principal

payments as a percentage of the applicable debt limit.

Equalized Valuation (2010) as certified by Wisconsin Department of Revenue

Legal Debt Percentage Allowed

Legal Debt Limit

Direct Bonded Indebtedness Including These Issues
Unused Margin of Indebtedness

Percent of Legal Debt Incurred

Percentage of Legal Debt Available
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5.00%

$300,966,900

$138,963,762

$162,003,138
46.17%
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial operations of the City are conducted primarily through its general fund. Most taxes and non-tax
revenues (such as license fees, fines and costs and user's fees) are paid into the general fund and current
operating expenditures are made from the general fund pursuant to appropriations made by the Common Council.
Taxes levied for debt service are paid directly into the debt service fund and debt service expenditures are made
from that fund.

Budgeting Process

The City is required by State law to annually formulate a budget and to hold public hearings thereon prior to the
determination of the amounts to be financed, in whole or in part, by general property taxes, funds on hand or
estimated revenues from other sources. The budget must list all existing indebtedness of the City and all
anticipated revenues from all sources during the ensuing year and must also list all proposed appropriations for
each department, activity and reserve account of the City during the ensuing year. The budget must show actual
revenues and expenditures for the preceding year.

As part of the budgeting process, public hearings are held on the proposed budget, at which time any resident or
taxpayer in the City may be heard. At an annual meeting in November or December of each year, the Common
Council adopts the final budget for the succeeding year and levies taxes based on assessed valuations of
property less any increment attributable to Tax Incremental Districts. The amount of taxes so levied and the
amounts of the various appropriations in the final budget (after any alterations made pursuant to public hearings)
may not be changed unless authorized by a vote of two-thirds of the entire membership of the Common Council.
Failure to publish notice of any such alteration within ten days thereafter shall preclude any change in the budget.

Financial Records

The City maintains its financial records on a calendar year basis. Appendix A hereto sets forth the General Fund
financial statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 2009, which have been examined by Schenck
Government & Not-For-Profit Solutions, Green Bay, Wisconsin. The City did not ask Schenck to perform any
additional review in connection with this Official Statement.
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GENERAL FUND SUMMARY
For Years Ended December 31

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services

Interdepartmental charges for
services
Fines and forfeits

Interest
Miscellaneous

Expenditures
General Government

Public Safety
Highway and street

Culture and
recreation
Conservation and Development

Total Expenditures
Revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other Financing sources (uses)
Operating Transfer In
Operating Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses

Fund Balance - beginning of year
Ending Fund Balance Summary
Reserved
Unreserved - Designated

Unreserved - Undesignated

Fund balances - end of year

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Budget Estimated Actual Actual Actual
$37,230,220 $34,596,414 $33,569,909 $33,040,552 $31,022,294
1,967,000 2,016,152 1,840,238 2,089,692 2,086,644
26,727,050 29,174,582 29,734,977 29,303,807 28,860,447
8,429,770 5,532,989 5,548,598 5,423,264 5,045,865
- 2,534,349 2,250,039 1,867,532 1,853,276
1,375,700 1,229,548 1,381,691 1,511,500 1,442,879
575,210 417,017 540,109 1,163,422 1,507,546
3,284,850 1,363,043 1,080,162 1,831,980 3,427,623
$79,589.800 76,864,094 75,945,723 76,231,749 75,246,574
4,391,990 7,400,738 7,794,942 7,636,761 7,165,681
46,709,380 44,246,698 43,895,400 44,350,235 43,288,596
18,189,260 16,457,941 16,246,081 16,867,619 15,888,920
9,221,390 8,481,219 8,384,490 8,293,981 8,139,712
1,077,780 1,017,262 982,112 889,685 959,063
$79,589,800 77,603,858 77,303,025 78,038,281 75,441,971
(739,764) (1,357,302) (1,806,532) (195,398)
2,306,254 2,027,751 2,115,434 2,188,676
(1,395,287) (1,560,644) (1,081,312) (251,334)
910,967 467,107 1,034,122 1,937,342
171,203 (890,195) (772,410) 1,741,944
13,080,135 13,970,330 14,742,740 13,000,796
1,733,571 1,142,594 3,388,444 4,658,358
4,377,767 4,797,541 3,581,886 3,084,382
7,140,000 7,140,000 7,000,000 7,000,000
$13,251,338 $13,080,135 $13,970,330 $14,742,740

The amounts shown for the years ended December 31, 2007 through 2009 are excerpts from the audit reports that have been
examined by Schenck Government & Not-For-Profit Solutions, Green Bay, Wisconsin. The amounts shown for the year ended
December 31, 2010 are estimated and the amounts shown for the year ended December 31, 2011 are shown on a budgetary
basis. The comparative statement of revenues, expenditures and encumbrances should be read in conjunction with the other
financial statements and notes thereto appearing at Appendix A to this Official Statement. The Auditor was not asked to perform
any additional review in connection with this Official Statement.
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UNDERWRITING

The Bonds have been purchased at a public sale by a group of Underwriters for whom Morgan Keegan & Co.,
Inc., Memphis, Tennessee is acting as Managing Underwriter. The Notes have been purchased at a public sale
by a group of Underwriters for whom UMB Bank N.A., Kansas City, Missouri is acting as Managing Underwriter.
Each Underwriter intends to offer the Securities that it purchased to the public initially at the prices which produce
the yields set forth on the inside cover of this Official Statement plus accrued interest from July 12, 2011, if any,
which prices may subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice. The Underwriters reserve the
right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the Securities to the public. The Underwriters may
offer and sell the Securities to certain dealers (including dealers depositing the Securities into investment trusts)
at prices lower than the public offering prices. In connection with this offering, the Underwriters may over allocate
or effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Securities at a level above that which
might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The reoffering yields shown on the inside cover of this Official Statement have been provided by the Underwriters,
and not by the City.

RATING

These issues have been assigned a “Aal” rating by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Any such rating reflects only
the views of such organization and explanations of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the rating
agency furnishing the same. There is no assurance that any such rating will continue for any given period of time
or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency, if in the judgment of such
rating agency circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an
adverse effect on the market price of the Securities.

TAX EXEMPTION

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Securities is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Securities will be taken into account in
determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain
corporations.

As to questions of fact material to Bond Counsel’s opinion, Bond Counsel has relied upon certifications of public
officials without independently undertaking to verify them. Moreover, the opinions set forth in the preceding
paragraph are subject to the condition that the City comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied after the Securities are issued for interest on the Securities
to be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City has agreed to
comply with those requirements. |Its failure to comply with certain of those requirements may cause interest on
the Securities to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, in some cases retroactively to the
date the Securities were issued. The City will designate the Securities as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

Ownership of the Securities may result in certain collateral federal, state, and local tax consequences to certain
taxpayers. Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisors about the specific federal, state, and
local tax consequences to them of owning the Securities.

Original Issue Discount

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, the original issue discount in the selling price of each Bond
maturing in the years 2015, 2023, 2024 and 2025 (each a “Discount Bond”), to the extent properly allocable to the
owner of the Discount Bond, is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes to the same extent
that any interest payable on the Discount Bond is or would be excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. The original issue discount is the excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of the Discount
Bond over the initial offering price to the public, excluding underwriters or other intermediaries, at which price a
substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of that maturity were sold (the “issue price”).
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Under Section 1288 of the Code, original issue discount on tax-exempt bonds accrues on a compound interest
basis. The amount of original issue discount that accrues to an owner of a Discount Bond during any accrual
period generally equals (i) the issue price of the Discount Bond plus the amount of original issue discount accrued
in all prior accrual periods multiplied by (ii) the yield to maturity of the Discount Bond (determined on the basis of
compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of each accrual period), less
(ii) any interest payable on the Discount Bond during the accrual period.

The amount of original issue discount so accrued in a particular accrual period will be considered to be received
ratably on each day of the accrual period and will increase the owner’s tax basis in the Discount Bond. The
adjusted tax basis in a Discount Bond will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (for
example, upon a sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity) of the Discount Bond.

Owners of Discount Bonds who did not purchase their Discount Bonds in the initial offering at the issue price
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning those Discount Bonds.

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax
consequences of owning Discount Bonds. It is possible that under the applicable provisions governing the
determination of state and local income taxes, accrued original issue discount on the Discount Bonds may be
deemed to be received in the year of accrual, even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment until a
later year.

Bond Premium

Each Bond maturing in the years 2016 through 2021 (each a “Premium Bond”) and each Note maturing in the
year 2016 (a “Premium Note”) (collectively, “Premium Securities”) has an issue price that is greater than the
amount payable at the maturity of the Securities. Any Premium Securities purchased in the initial offering at the
issue price will have “amortizable bond premium” within the meaning of Section 171 of the Code. An owner of a
Premium Securities that has amortizable bond premium is not allowed any deduction for the amortizable bond
premium. During each taxable year, the owner must reduce his or her tax basis in the Premium Securities by the
amount of the amortizable bond premium that is allocable to the portion of the taxable year during which the
owner held the Premium Securities. The adjusted tax basis in a Premium Securities will be used to determine
taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (for example, upon a sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity)
of the Premium Securities.

Owners of Premium Securities who did not purchase their Premium Securities in the initial offering at the issue
price should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning Premium Securities.

Owners of Premium Securities should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax
consequences of owning Premium Securities.
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QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The City will designate the Securities as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3)
of the Code, relating to the ability of certain financial institutions (within the meaning of Section 265(b)(5) of the
Code) to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, 80% of the interest expense that is allocable to
carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the underwriters in complying with Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule") with respect to the Securities, the City
shall covenant, pursuant to each Award Resolution, to enter into a seperate agreement for the benefit of each of
the owners of the Securities, including beneficial owners of the Securities, to provide certain financial information
and operating data relating to the City annually to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB") and
to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events set forth in the Rule to the MSRB. The details and terms of
each agreement as well as information to be contained in the annual financial information and the notices of
material events are set forth in each Continuing Disclosure Agreement, to be executed by the City and delivered
at the closing for the Securities (collectively, the "Agreements"). Each Agreement will be in substantially the forms
attached hereto as Appendix B. The City has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous
agreements under the Rule to provide annual financial information or notices of material events. A failure by the
City to comply with the Agreements will not constitute an event of default on the Securities (although owners of
the Securities will have any available remedy at law to compel performance). Nevertheless, such a failure must
be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Securities in the secondary market. Consequently, such
a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Securities and their market price.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Securities. The
Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership
nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered
Security certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Securities, each in the aggregate principal amount of
such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable
to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be
found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.
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Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for the Securities on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers
of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and
Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates
representing their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the
Securities is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. Beneficial Owners of the Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial
Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar
and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed,
DTC'’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to City as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Securities are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit
Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from City or Agent,
on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants
to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or City, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of City or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility
of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and
Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving
reasonable notice to City or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not
obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.
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The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources
that City believes to be reliable, but City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Robert W. Baird & Co., Milwaukee, Wisconsin has acted as Financial Advisor to the City in connection with the
issuance of the Securities.

LITIGATION
There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending or, to the knowledge of the City, threatened,
restraining or enjoining the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Securities, or in any way contesting or
affecting the validity of the Securities or any proceedings of the City taken with respect to the issuance or sale
thereof.
LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Securities are subject to the unqualified approving
legal opinions of Foley & Lardner LLP, Bond Counsel. Copies of such opinions will be available at the time of the
delivery of the Securities.

WISCONSIN STATE BUDGET LEGISLATION
General
On June 26, 2011, Governor Scott Walker signed the biennial budget bill, 2011 Assembly Bill 40, with partial
vetoes (the “Budget Act”). The provisions of the Budget Act take effect on the later of July 1, 2011 or the day after

publication of the Budget Act in accordance with State statutes, except as otherwise provided in the Budget Act.

The Budget Act contains a number of provisions that affect school districts, technical college districts, and other
municipalities in Wisconsin. This section contains a summary of a portion of such provisions.

Political Subdivision Property Tax Levy Limit

Under current law, local levy limits for cities, villages, towns, and counties are applied to the property tax levies
that were imposed in December 2010. The Budget Act extends the levy limit with certain changes described
below. The Budget Act also removes the sunset provisions related to levy limits, making the levy limits
permanent.

Current law prohibits any political subdivision from increasing its levy by a percentage that exceeds its "valuation
factor,” which is defined as the greater of either three percent or the percentage change in the political
subdivision's equalized value due to new construction less improvements removed between the previous year
and the current year. The Budget Act changes the limit to the greater of zero percent or the percentage change in
the political subdivision's equalized value due to new construction less improvements removed between the
previous year and the current year.

Under current law, the base amount of a political subdivision's levy in any year is the maximum allowable levy for
the immediately preceding year. The Budget Act changes the base amount to the actual levy for the immediately
preceding year. The Budget Act allows a political subdivision that did not levy its full maximum allowable levy in
the prior year to carry forward a portion of the unused amount and apply it to the current year's base amount. The
amount of carryforward is limited to a maximum of 0.5% of the prior year's actual levy. In addition, for property tax
levies imposed in 2011 and 2012 the use of the carryforward levy adjustment needs to be approved by a
supermajority vote of the political subdivision's governing body (a three-quarters majority vote if the governing
body consists of five or more members, a two-thirds majority vote if the governing body consists of fewer than five
members, and for towns, a majority vote of the annual town meeting or special town meeting after the town board
has adopted a resolution in favor of the adjustment by a two-thirds majority vote).
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Under the Budget Act, if a political subdivision's levy for the payment of general obligation debt service, including
debt service on debt issued or reissued to fund outstanding obligations of the political subdivision and interest on
outstanding obligations of the political subdivision, on debt originally issued before July 1, 2005, is less in the
current year than in the previous year, the political subdivision would be required to reduce its levy limit in the
current year by the amount of the difference between the previous year's levy and the current year's levy. Under
the Budget Act, this required adjustment is suspended for property tax levies that will be imposed in 2011 for
municipalities that did not claim the carryforward adjustment described in the prior paragraph.

The Budget Act maintains the provisions of current law which (a) increase the levy limit by the amount of any
increase in debt service on debt authorized before July 1, 2005, and (b) provide that the levy limit does not apply
to amounts levied for the payment of general obligation debt service on obligations authorized on or after July 1,
2005.

County and Municipal Aid Payments

The Budget Act reduces the amount of county and municipal aid payments beginning in 2012. The aggregate
amount of the reduction for all counties is $29,086,600, and the aggregate amount of the reduction for all
municipalities is $47,663,400. The reductions are generally allocated based on population with a limit on the
reduction for each individual county and municipality equal to the lesser of a certain percentage of the county or
municipality's property value or 15 percent of the county or municipality's aid payment in 2011.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statement made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not so
expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any
of the estimates will be realized.

Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and will not pass on its accuracy,
completeness or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined or attempted to examine or verify any of the
financial or statistical statements or data contained in this Official Statement, and will express no opinion with
respect thereto. The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Clerk has been duly authorized by the
City.

In accordance with the Rule, the Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final except for the omission of certain
information described in the Rule.

AUTHORIZATION

This Official Statement has been approved for distribution to prospective bidders and the respective Underwriters
of the Bonds and Notes. The City will provide to each Underwriter at the time of delivery of the Securities, a
certificate confirming to each Underwriter that, to the best of its knowledge, information, and belief, the Official
Statement with respect to the Securities, together with any supplements thereto, at the time of the adoption of the
Award Resolutions and at the time of delivery of the Securities, was true and correct in all material respects and
did not at any time contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be
stated, where necessary to make the statements in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

By /s/ Lauri Marenger
Clerk
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APPENDIX A

CITY OF GREEN BAY
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED NOTES

CITY OF GREEN BAY
BROWN COUNTY, WISCONSIN

For year ended December 31, 2009

Schenck SC
Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin

The Auditor was not asked to perform any additional review in connection with this Official Statement.



Olfice 6t1his City findhce Dapartmant PHETTERBYTHE BAY"

June 28, 2010

To the Honorabie Mayer, Members ofithe
City Council and Citizens of the Sity of Green Bay.

Tha Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Clty. of Green: Bay, Wisconsin, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009, is subrilted herewith. This report-was prepared by the City's Finance Department.
Rasponsibility for both the. acecuracy of the presented data -and the’. completzness and fairmess: of the
presentafion, including. all disclosures, rest with the City. | befisve the data, as presented, is accuraiz in alt
material aspects; that it is. presented in-a mannar designad to fairly set forth the financial position and results of

aperations.of the Citly as measured by the finangial acfivity of ifs various funds; and that alf disclasures necessary
to enablé the reader-t& gain the maximum understanding of tha City's financial activities have been includad.
This letter of transmittal is désigned to.complement {tie Management's Discussion and Analysis and should be
read in conjunction with it The Clty ‘of Green Bay’s MD & A can be found imrmediataly following the repori of the
independent auditors; -

Backg roind Informatioh.

Grean Bay isithe major city in e northeast section.of the State. It is siluated at the base of the Bay of Green
Bay, which is an infaid éxtension of Lakg Michigan. The Cityis 212 inilés north of ‘Chicags, 115 miles from
Idilwaukee, and 285 mifes east of Minheapolis-St. Paul. -Green Bay is the.counly seat-of Brawn County:

Green Bay is-the:third migst pogulous city in the Staté and has experiented substantial growthiin population-and
tax basé aver the past two detades. The Cily has-betome one of the Staté's predominant manufacturing areas
with particular emphasis an non-durable goods indusitries. It is the-home. of the Green Bay Packers fosiball
{eam.

With-an. sstimated populanon 103,500 the population of Green Bay has increased 7% since the 2000 Census
report :of 102,767. Singe 1960, through' annexation and censolidation, the -Cily .of Green Bay has ‘grown
piysically from. apptoximately 156.5.square miles'to a present-area covering some 46.1, sgiiare miles. The mest
récent annexation fook place in-2002 when: 1,100 dcres were annexad from.the Town:of Scott. The-population
-angd: square wile: statistics combine to produce: a populalion density: of 2,245 persons. per square mile. This
indicates ample land forfuture growth: and ordarly developmeant.

Accounting Svstem ahd Budgetary Control

The City's accounting records for .general governmental operations are-maintaingd. on & modified accrual basis,
wilh the revenues being recorded whien available;and imeasurable -and expendiiurgs being fecorded when the
services-or goads are received and the liabilities arg incurred. Accounting records for the City's ufilities and other
‘epterprises are maintained on-the. accrual basis.

In developing and altering the. Cily's accounting system, consideration is given to ths adeguacy of internal
accounting ‘controls. Internal accpunting conirols are designed o provide reasonabls, bui not absolute,
assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from. unautnorizad. use or disposition; ané (2}
the relighilily of financial records for prepar'mg financial slatements and mainiaining accountabifity for asssis.
The coricept of reasonable’ assurance racogrizes that: {1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be -derived; and (2). the evaluation. of costs and benefits requires estimates. and judgments by
management,

depth- Jatterson Shaed % Rosnu Jas - Gigas Boye Wi, Sa30 18000 = QI ARG e Rl BAEAAE 3050
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Al internal contrdl evaluations occur within the above framework: | believe that the City's internal accounting
controls .adequately safeguard’ assets and, provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial

‘transactions.

Budgetary:contro! is-maintained at the-function level by the encumbrance of estimated ptrchase amounts prior to
the-refezse of purchase orders to vendars. A function can be:a department, division, fund, or other activity.

‘Pdrchase orders whichi result in-an overrun of function balances: are not released until additional appropriations
‘are made avaifable, Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balance at December 31, 2009.

The Reporting Entity and its Services

The Cily's goverhment consistsof a Mayor who is eiected at large to & four-year term; .and Council of 12
members elected to 1erms of two years on the basis of district representations.

The City.provides a-full range of municipal services contemplated by stafute or charter, including public safety,
highway and streets, ‘sanitation, parks-recreanon«!oreslrv public improvements, planning and zoning, transit and
water systems, and generat adminisirative servicss,

Total full-time municipal employment numbars 987.9. The Green Bay Fire Depariment has 200 employess and
the Palice Department personnel total is'235.5, Because of the Fire Department's. effactiveness and proficiency,
Grean Bay enjoys a very low "Class: 2" fire insurance protection rating. A-below national crime rate speaks for
the policies and efficiency of the Police Department,

Department Employess Depariment Enipicyess
Police Department 2355 Park, Racrealion & Forestry 80.5
Planning

Fire Diepartment 200.0 Depariment 40.0
Transit Department 77 Public Warks Dapartment 2235
Inforniation Servicas 7.0 Personnel 8.0
Mayor's Office. 35 Municipal Coyr 5.2
Internat Services. 5.5 Economic-Development 4.5
Finance Department 28.2 Watér Department 57.0

: 987.1

This repart neludes all of the funds. for the Clty. included. in the Tity's operations (the primary.government) are
the Cify's- Waler Utility and Transit Commission’managed- by. Separaté ‘commissions:-appointed by the City

€ouncil. In.accordance with genarally acceptet actounting principles, the govérnment-wide financial statements
. a@re requirkd to include the City and any. Separate compon:nt units that have & significant operational er finangial

refationship-with the City.. The Cuy has the ‘Green Bay Redaveloprment Adthority identified as a dlscretﬂly
oresented .cdmpongnt -0nit ihat. is requ(red 10 be ingluded in' the' government-wide financial statements in
accordance With standards established.in-Gavernmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14.

In otir opinion, this:report was prapared in.conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on‘a
basis' consistent with that of the preceding year. ‘The répor mests all 1ggal reporing requirements and. is
intended fo preseni @ comprehensive summary of significant financial data in a readable format;

The- Stalistical Section includes:general information and major city departments and refated activities ajong with
flirther information on selectéd financial and demographic inforimation preserited on 3 multi-year basis.

The Single Audit Saction includes the schedules on federal and state financial assistance, and findings -and

questionsd.costs, the independent auditor's reporis on the schedule of financial assistance, infernal controls, and
compliance with applicable jaws and ragulatians,

Risk Management

The City of Green Bay established s seli-iunded health and dental program effective January 1. 1983, In an
atlempf lo control the rising: tosts of health care, -tha Cily formed the Laber Managemenl Commitiee (LMCj in
2001. The LMC, represeming unions ‘and management, was charged with the task of reviewing the current
haalth insurance policy in place-at the fime and recommending possible changas that could be mate to contain
escalating costs. The committee reports to the Mayor and Common Council and acts as a liaison to 2ach of the




‘City’s fabor groups. The LMC has been meetmg contiiyously since 2001 fo analyze the City’s health care needs
fo determing how best to rneel the needs of the employces a5 well a5 contain escalating Healthcare costs, In
August of 2001, the group recommended moving from. a {raditional indemnity plan io-a preferied provider.
organization, The new preferred prowder organization plan fook - effect Febfuary 2002 with Wausau Benéfits
administering the-plan.and Prevea was chosen as the preferrsd: providar organizaition. In Ottober, 2007, the City
choose Arise. Haalth as'its thu’d pariy admm\sirator to be effeciive January 1, 2008 in order fo capture additional
discounting:that was unique with the partnigrship with Arise and Prevea

The :City -also- self-funds s worker's .conipensation .and general: flability. insurdnce ‘programs. -Additionat
information on the Cily of Greeén Bay's.risk managerment activity can bs feund in Note'E (2).

2009 General Governmentat Functions

Revenues for gengral fund: govemmental functions totaled $75,845,723 in 2009, a décraase of .4% from 2008,
There are two significant variances when reveriues. are-comparad from. 2008 to 2009. The-first being interest
income which derives jts sources from investment of the-City's available cash. 2008 saw-.a dramatic ‘decling-in
interest rates in the overall market, The federal funds rate stid frony 3.5%;, which was in effect January 22, 2008,
100 -.25% effective Dacember 16, 2008 and did not rebound during 2009. The second significant value is in the
other revenue fine which is where the sale of fand and sale of scrap-are included, The City had land 'sales
valued at $5:080in'2008 or 5432,870 less than the 2008 actualline item and the sale of recycled paper to focal
paper milfs dropped $268,730. from 2008's value of $328,236, The. amount of revenues from various solices
and the changé from last year aré showri‘in the following table:

Increase

Percent (Decrease)

Revanue Source Amount of Total from 2008
Taxes § 33,568,908 442%.  § 529,357
Licenses.and.permits 1,840,238 24% 5 (248.454)

Intergovernmental revenue 29,734,977 39.2% 5 431470

Public charges for services 5,548,598 73% & 125334

interdeparmentat service.charges 2,250,039 3.0% & 382507
Fines and foreits ) 1,381,691 1.8% & {129,809)
Interest 540,108 0% § (623.313)
Other réveriue 1,080.162 14% _$ (751.818)}
Total 575,945,723 . 100.0% & ([285025)

The 2009 Assessed’ Valueof $5,938,017,500 represerited:95:2% .of full market value: Beginning-in 1988,
Wisconsin Stale Statite 70.05 requires assassed valuations fo be.within. 10%-of fill value at least once during &
4-year period:consisling of the-current year and the 3 precading ‘years. In‘Otlober 2004, 2 total revaluation of
the' entire cily ‘was | xmplemented and completion was acuomphshed by Dacember 2004, Thie revaluation
incredsed the assessed to full marketvalue ralib fram 79:1% in"2003 fo0.98.1% for 2004,

Clrrent tax ‘collections: were 98.3% of the tax levy. and have averaged 98.6% from 2000 through 2008,
Aliotations of properyitax lsvy by purpose for 2008 and the precading two fiscal yeats are‘as follows:

Purpose . 2009 2008 2007
“General Fund 6.48 6.35 T B2
Debt Sefvice Fund 2.38 2.33 217
Tosal 5.85° 8.87 8.:42

Expenditures for general fund governmental purposes lotaled. $77,303,025 in-2009. a decrease of .9% from
2008, There i§ not much-of a change. il percant.aliocation of the City resources by category when compared. o
2008. There is however, a greater doflar decrease over 2008 in the public safety and public warks which
reprassnts hoiding positions opsn throughout the ysar due- to Jabor n..gohalmns Changss in lsvels: of
expendiiuras for major functions of the City over the precedmg yearare-shown in the following” tab!e

Increase
) Percent: (Decrease)
Function Amount of Total fiom 2008
General Government $7,784,942 10:1% § 158,181
Public Safety 43,895,400 56.8% S (454,835)
‘Public Works 16,246,081 21:0% §  (621,538)
Gulfure and Recrealion 8,384,400 10.8% $ 90,509
Conservation:and development: 982,112 1,3%- [ 92:427
Total $ 77,303,025 100.0% $. (735:258)

The target for undesignated_fund:balance in the General Fund. 8% of géneral fund révenues. The 2009
_balanee of $7,140,000 is 9.4% of revenues.

Debt Ad ministra tion

The ratio of net bonded debt to assessad valuation ard the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful
indicators of the City's.debt position, This data for the City at theend of the 2009 fiscal year were as follows:

Ratio of Debt:
To Assessed.  Ratio of
Value {95.2% Debtto Debt
Net Direct Bonded:  Of Presenit Présent Per
Debt Amount (Market) Market Value Capita
137,200,615 2.31% 2.20% $1,325,61

Incliuded in general obligation debt December 31, 2009, was: $5,910,898 for- Sanitary Sewers,. $3;220,000 for
Storm Sewers, $39; 144,592 for Tax Irigremental, F“mance Districts, and $B8,925,025 for General Purpdses..

On: June 9, 2009, the City: sold:$8,680, 000 of Build Arerica generdl:ohligation corporate purpose bonds at an
effective rate. of 3.44%, On Novembar 24, 2009, the Cily-advanced refunded $3,445,000: of corporate putpdse
bonds and replaced them with-$3,600,000.0f genaral obligation debt-at an. effective rate-of 2.41%, There wers S
draws :against the state: trust Tund. totaling $3,934,760, of which $735,000 Has an intérést rate of 4:5%,
2,379,760 has an-effective interest rate of 4,75%. and fhe balance of $820,000 had &n:interest rate of.5.5%. Of
the. State Trust Fund draws, $820,000.were issued as Build America Bonds and thus fhe City will tie eligible-to
receivea 35% rebiate toward the interest paidion that:debt.

The followingis a summary of the notes and bends issued in'the pastfive years:

Average Life Effective-

Date:of Issue Amount In.Years Interest Rate
January 11, 2006 2,250,000 20.0 4.75
March-10, 2005 283,000 20.0 5.0
March 15, 2008 §,160,000 5.4 3.6
May 19; 2005 2,670,000 20.0 5.0
June 1, 2008 9,455,000 12.5 4.3
September 15, 2005 ‘417,000 20.0 5.0
September 20, 2005 250,000 20.0 4. 75
Decembier 15; 2005 3,530,000 2.0 5.1
April 20, 2008 800,000 20.0 50
Aprit 21, 2008 9,937,280 20.0 4.5
May. 6, 2008 .9,225,000 20.0 4.55
May'6, 2006 1,840,000 20,0 5.58
June. 5, 2007 7,380,000 20.0 4.31
September 27, 2007 354,000 . 200 5.5
Septeimber:27, 2007 1,400,000 20.0 5.5
October 1,2007 3,845,000 5.5 3,99
Cctober 1,2007 3,145,000 7.3 5.61
Nevember 27, 2007 231.90C 20.0 5.5
January 4, 2008 10,650,006 3.2 3.64



February 5, 2008 164,100 20.0 55

June 5, 2008 1,400,000 20.0 4.5
June 5, 2008 300,000 20.0 4.75
Augustd, 2008 5,240,000 145 4.49
August'28, 2008 370,240 20.0 4.76
October 20, 2008 750,000 20.0 4.75
Decamber 30, 2008 6,970,975 20,0 5.5

January 26, 2009 1,229,760 20.0 475
January 26, 2000 550,000 20:0 475
March 17,2009 160,000 20.0 4.75
‘May 29, 2008 0,000 20:0 476
Juna 6, 2009 £,680.000 200 3.44
September 11, 2009 125,000 200 4.75
October 6, 2009 '820,000 20.0 550
October-8, 2009 735,000 100 4.50
Qetober 6, 2008 86,000 20.0 4.75
November 24, 2009 3,800,000 4.3 241

The Cily continuss to have an exgéelient financial rating. The 2008 general abligation bond rating from Moody's
{nvestors Sarvice was Aa2:

Cash Management

To accommodate active cash managament strategies, the Cily ulifizes the combinalion of & general swaep
accouni and six zero balance accounts. The general actount is interest bearing and provides for operating
liquidity. The Parknng utility, Park &-Recreation and Transit Commission deposit into thres, zera balance
accounts ‘and the ofher accounts are mairtained for Health Insurance, Dental Insurancé and Workers
Gompensation disbursements. Balances of these accounts-are poolad into ths ‘general account at the end of
gach day and excess cash is-jnvested overnight in the Federal Funds market. interest is accried daily and
posted monthly.

investment Portfolio

The Cammon Councit adopted a revised investment policy on- October 1, 2002. Accordingly, availabls cash was
invested in Cerlificates. of Daposit; Money iMarket Accounts, Repurchese Agreements, and the Stafe Investment
Pool. The rate of returp.for any ane segurity ranged from 3.25 to .45% interest revenue credited to the Gensral
Fund from investmenits for 2009 was $474,744.

Capita} Projects -Funds

Proceeds of genera] ¢bligation bond issugs are accountad for in Capital Projects Funds until improvemant
projects aré completed,, At the end of the fiscal year-completed projects are capitalized and are reported-as a
capital asset. Durinig 2008, projedts, costing $20,588,886 weare completed,

The Capital Projects Funds balances on hand ‘December 31, 2009: were represented primarily in cash and
investrnents,

Ca ital. Assets

The -capital assets of the City are those assets lhat are used in the performance of general governmental
finctions and exclude the capital assets of Enterprise Funds. ‘As of December 31, 2009, the general capltal
assets of the City amounted fo $352,175,352 which inclides $8.049,55% of construction in progress and is net
accumuiated depreciation of $233,032,187.

Water Utility

The City's Water Ulllity maintained operating results similar {o prior years. Cemparafive data for the past two
fiscal years are-presented in-the following tabulations:

2009 2008 2007
Gross Revenugs K 7.737.287 S 17,908,528 § 18,392,117
‘Net Ihcome 881,237 1.147,435 2,449,604
Income available for .debt service 6,006,372 4,440,154 10,472:012
Average.annual debt service 5,519,597 4,938,088 4,433,902
Coverage {Income availabile for debl service
divided by average annual debt sarvice) 183 1.91 2.36

Denartmental Activities
Major Deparimentalinifiatives, projacts, and activities are related ingreater datail in the Statistical Section,
Economics

The Gresn Bay Mstro Area, comprised of the City of Gresn Bay and the remainder of Brown County, is
experiencing steady growth. Following @ 10 percent population increase during the 1980’s, the metro area has.
grown at 3 rate almpst double thaf of ine slate. Recorded at 194,594 persons in 1890, the 2000 matro area
population accarding fo the 2000 census is 226,778 persons, @ 18.5% increase, Much of lnhis growth is
attributable to Green Bay's stabls ecoromy based on- paparmaking, printing and publishing, food prosessing,
heakh insurance companies, the health care industry, and tourism. This growih and stable economy placed the
City of Green Bay as INC, magazing's number one city of medium metropolitan size cities for doing busingss in
the United States (March 2004},

The stable economy plus:the city’s advantages of an excelient educaiional sysiem, low ¢rime ratas, and thriving
cenirat business district have long made the city a draw for recent high school and college graduates, as well as
skilled workers from olher areas, in addition fo being fhe ratail, commercial, educalional, media and medical
center of noriheastern Wisconsin -ant the upper pemnsuta of WMichigan, -the City of Green Bay is the
transportation hub.of the region, with-excellent highway. air, rail, and port cannegtions.

The city is located at the. base of Lake Michigan's Green Bay in northeastern Wisconsin, inferstate 43, US
Highway 41/141, and Slate Highway 20 provide efficignt sccess o Miwaukee, Chicago, Minneapolis and
beyond. NorfhwssticLid, United Express, American Eagle, and SkywayiMidweast Express Airlinss serve Austin
Straukel Intarnational Airport, the third largest airport in Wisconsin. Rail service, including TOFCfintermodat
facilitizs, is avatlable in the city. The Ponrt of Green Bay, offering ocean shipping via the St Lawrence Seaway,
waterborne cemmerce in 2009 resulted in 144 vessels visiting the Por{ of Green Bay, moving over 1.8 millicn

metric tons of cargo.

The core of the metre area is Green Bay's central business district (CBD). in addition o being the home of the
counfy, stats and city governmant office buildings, tha CBD is a major financial and service center for the area.

seording to the 2010 Claritas Business Facts, ltere were B92 retail business located in and around the Gily of
Green Bay employing 11,538 peopls and genarated sales of over $1.2 billion dollars.

Prospacis for the Fulure

Davelopmeni of the fax base along with the prudzani use of TIF financing remains the top priority of the current
administration, miaking Green Bay's prospacts for the future very favorable,

Through proactive. business retenticn, aggressive business recruilment, and the creation of an environment that
encourages and supports enireprenetrs, the City of Grezn Bay i3 in an axczflent position o build on past
successes and prosper well into the future.

The Interstate 43 Business Center is an example of what the City.of Green Bay can do with strong leadership
and a pro-business development climate,. Over the past 20 years, the 1-43 Business Center has gong from
nearly 800 acres of open space to over 3300 million of invesiment in over 100 busingsses thai currently
amployee clese 10 3,500 amployees. As this park nears capacily, the Cily is already capluring new development
in thz City's newes! husiness park, the Unv'ersny Heighis Commerce Center. This 1,100 acre park is modeled
after the successful I-43 Business Center and is expected o provide apportunilies for new businesses and job
creation for the next three decades.




Thare.is currenily 14 acfive lax incremant districts {T10s) localed throughout the City. These redevelopmant
districts are located downtoln, alohg. busy commerciatl cormidors, and in industiial developmant areas. Tax
increment financing (TIF) fias enabled the City to financially suppori catalyst projacts that have cfeated new jobs,
new iax bass, and new deéwelopimenl. Nowhare are the impadis of TIF more evidsnt that in dur downtawn, TIF
has supparied pnvafe davelopment projects along the waterfront, public: facilities ‘including a new 800 stal
parking garage,. 1,400 foot Urban boardwalk ‘call:the CityDeck, and blight efimination and public infrastructiurz
improvemenis in )usl the past few years. These efforts have grown our downtown employmént to over 51,000
people and crealed venues. that host over 100 .downtown events. every year and awract saveral hundn.d
thousand -visitors.{o our clty:center. The.same model for success that is being used downtown is now being
uséd inaging comniercial corridors andsin older industriaf areas; By providing the private sector reasonabla
incentives; neighbarhobds throughou! the City are seeing new investment that would ol have heen possible
withobt mu‘hicip'al SUppon. ’

The City of Green Bay is-ulilizing saveral tools lo attract new ,businesses and {alentzd employees io Grean Bay.
The Betfer By the an branding-initiative is one program that is aimed ai making: ihe rest of the world aware of
how great Green Bay is for, businesses and forfamilies. This §1 milion public:private parinership was launched
in- 2008 and is.already having an-impact on the. xmage of cur mmmun1*y The Business Cenler located on the
Norihedst Wiscorisin Technital College campus is hame to:the ares’s busingss incubater. This incubator has
seen an increase In the rnumber of tenanis who ulilize. the: many resources of the facility to help grow trsir
bosiness. The incubiatar as graduated some very sucgessful businesses i manufacturing, computsr gaming,
marketing, and other industrizs. The City's fowsinterast loan program has also helped suppori new businessas
cragle jobs during lough economic imes. Sincethis nrogram was. created in 1994, it has created over 500 jobs
‘in.the, City and leveraged over $18 miflion in new Investment. I{'s programs, policies, and initiafives like these that
vill cantinue to-grow Green Bay well info.the fulurs and provide meaningful job opporiunitizs for rasidenis of cur
growing.commurity.

The City remains commitied to neighborhoods surreunding the downtown by utilizing various programs. that the
City has zccass 1o including but pot fimited to, WHEDA, Federal Community Devalopment. Biock Grani and
HOME funds. The funds are used to largal.central city neighbarhoods, resulting in removal of blighted properiies
and reinvestmentin private properly as well as city infrastructure.

lpdegendent Audit

City Ordinance. requires an annual audit of the books of account, financial records, and-transactions of ‘all
administrative depariments of the City by independent cerified public accountants selected by the Common
Courigil. An gudit is degrhed to be in the public.interest o ascertain that local, state and fedaral contributed
assets arg'properly accounted-for and that the statemenits of the-City “present fairly its finaacial position and the
resills of is.operations”,

The City must-also comply with the-requitements of the OMB Cireular A-133. The cognizant audit agencies are
the Departmient of Housing and Urban Development at the faderal Jevst and the Deparfmeni of Ravenus-at the
stale lavel.

All-audit requirements have been .complied with and the auditor’s opinions have baen included in this report, The
unqualiied opinfon expressed by the audiior, on the City's. financial stalements, is an assertion that there have
bean no iresolvabie restrictions.onithe scope of {he auditor's examination and the auditors have no s:gnwant
exceptions a5 to the aceounting principles refiscted in the financial statements, the sonsistancy of application of
ascounting principles, and the-adequacy.of information disciosuras-in the financial stalements,

Cedtificate of Achievement

The Governiment Finance Officers Association of fhe United Siates and Canada (GFOA) awarded 2 Certificais
of Achievement for Exceliznce in Financial chortmg to tha Cliy of Green Bay. Wisconsin, for its camp'eh-nswe
annual nnancual repori {CAFR] for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, The Certificate of Achievement i isa
prestiginus national award-recognizing-conformance-with Ihe highest standards for preparation of state and focal
government financial reports:

I -order ta be awarded a Cerlificate: of Achisvament, a govarnmental unit rhust publish an casxly readable and
eliiciently ‘organized comprehenstve annuat financial réporl, whosa contents conforni to program standaids.
Such CAFRs must satisly both generally accepted accounting fringiples and applicable legal requirements.

A Cerlificate of Achiaverment is valid for & period of one year only. The City of Greeti Bay has reteivad tha
Cariificate of Athievemint for the las{ 27 canseculive yéars (fiscal years ended 1982-2008}. | belisve our

current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and | am
submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowlgdgements

The preparauon of {his report on a timely basis could not have-been actomplishad without the efficiant and
dedicaled services 'of all Finarice Department staff. | would Jike 10 express- my appreciation to all depariment

staff fhat assistad and contribuied fo its. praparatlon 1 would also fike to thank the City:Council for their interest
ang! suppoet in planning and conducting the financial operalions of the City in a responsitile and. progressive
‘manner;

Respectfully submifted.
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DEPARTMENT HEADS/APPOINTED OFFICIALS

ELECTED OFFICIALS Length of Tengih of
time in this. | Employmeni with
o A position City of Graen Bay
Length of Service Term Expires: Asgessor Russ L. Schwandt 11 years 11 years
Mayor James L. Schoitt 4 years: April, 2011 Attcmgy Allisan Swanson Lgez,s?;an 9 years
City Human Resources Director Lynn Baland one * Less than one
City Counail ) Clerk . Chad Weininger 1year” 3.5 years
District 1 Jerry Wiezbiskie B aars April. 2010 Direstor of Zeonomic Development | Derek Lord 2 yeas 3 year
“Distiol 2 Thomas De wWang Jyears April, 2010 Finance Diraclor / Compiroller Drawn WM. Foellar 1 yaar 10 years
District 3 Andy Nicholson & vears April, 2010 Treasurer Dawn 4. Foellar 4 years 18years
District 4 Anthony R, Theisen 28 years April, 2010 fire Ghiet Jeff Roemer 2 yedrs 2 yeary
District 5 Amy-Kocha 1 years Aprit 2010 nformation Services Administrator. | Mike Hronek Syears* 12 years
District 8§ Dan Piton years Aporil, 2010 Park Director William J, Landvaiter 18.years 18 years
District 7 Celesting Jefirays 2 years April, 2010 _Planning Directar P Robert Strong 11years: 30-years
District 8 Chrislopher Wery 8 years April, 2010 | Police Chisf, James A, Ads Jyears 24 years
District' @ Guy Ziena 32 ygars Aprit, 2010 | Public Works Director Edward Wissner .5 years ~ 29 years
District 10 Steven Densys 2 years April, 2010 : Sealer Daniel E. Kryzanek 26 years 31 years
District 11 John Vanderl eest 5 vears Aptil_2010 Transit Dirsglor Chris Phelps 3year* 3years
District 12 Toim Weber 4 years Apsil 2010 Watsr Utility Mangsger William F. Nsbak 28 yedrs 38 years
? Weed Commissioner Thiomas Stefigl 4 yenr 32 years
J.Munictoal Court Judge - Jderiy Hanson 2 years Agril, 2010 I * Prior to their curreni positions; Ms. Swansan was Assistant Cily Aftorney fof five years and Director of

Economic Development for two yéars, Ms. Boland served as the Execulive: Diracior of Human Resouree for the
University of California; Mr. Weinihger was:Chief of Staff, Assistant 18 the Mayor, Ms. Foslier served as Assistan:
Finance Dirgcior for 9 years-and Comptroller for 4 years, Mr, Hronek seived as the Cify's GIS Coordinator, Mr.
VWiesner served as Assistant Director of Public Works. The City has eontracted with First Transit to il the
position of Transit Director.

“*Served as Assistant City Attorney 15 years.and City Atlorney for 3 years prior to baing efecied judge:

. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Schenck SC, Graen Bay, Wistonsin
BOND CONSEL
Foley & Lardner, Madison, Wisconsin
FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS

Robert W, Baird & Co., Inc., Milwaukee, Wiseonsin
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS! REPORT'ON BASIG FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
AND:SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND:STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE -

To the Mayor and City. Council
City of Green, Bay, Wisconsin

We tiave audited the acdompanying financial staterments: of. thie governmental activities, the. business-type
acliities, the. discretely presented: component ‘unit, gadh major fund; and the aggregate femaining fund
information: of the City of Green Bay, ‘Wisconsin (" \he Gity") -as of and: for the-year ended December 31, 2009,
ich-c ly-comprise the City's biasic fi nancial stalements as fisted in-the table of contents. Thesefinancial
.statemenls are the: respcnsibmty of the. City's m. agement Gur: responslblmy is to- axpress opinions-on these:
sed on our: audli The: prlor year summarizad comparatlve infon'n'mon has been denved

‘opifions on the respecnve f‘nanma) statcmcnts of the: governﬂ ntal achvmes, the: busnness 1ype achvxhc. the
discretaly presented component unit, each’ fnajor fund, and thé aggregate remaining fund information.
‘We conducted our-audit i accordarnice with duditing standards “generally accepted in the: United States of Amnerica
‘and theé: standards applicable to i nancial ‘audits -cantained in Government Auditing Standards; issued by the.
‘Coimplrofier General of thix United Stales: These-standards. Tequirg thal we plan-and perform the-audit {o obtain
reasonablé assurance abolt whether the basic finanicial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
‘includes examtnmg. on-a test basis,: evidence supporting the amounts and-disclosures. in the ﬁnanclal slédternents.
Anaudii alstyincludes assessing the accaunting principles used and significant.estimates made by management,
‘as. well as avaluating the overall financial statement praséntation. -We: believe: iHat. our ‘audit provides. a
‘reasonable basis for our opinions.

In-olir opinion, the financial statements referred-to abové present. Tairly, in all material respedts, the respectwe
financial posilion of the governmantal aclivities, the business-lype aclivities, he discrelely presented component
‘unif, each m'anfund arid th. agaregate remaining fund.informtion of-itie Cily as.of December 37, 2009, and the
respeclive chiariges in financial pasition and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary coniparisors
for. the-general-furd and the saniifary sewer special revenive fund for the yeéar then ended in canformily with
acgounting prinéiples generally acéepted in the Unitéd Siates-of Amierica,

In acdordanice with Governmint Auditing Standards, we ' have also issued our report dated June 24, 2010, on-our
consideration of the City's internal. controt over financial reporting ‘and our’ lests of its comphance with certain
provisions-of laws, régulations, .contracts and grant agreermants and other malters, The, purpose of that report is
to descritie’ the scope of aur testing of-infernal control over financial-reporting: and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opifion on the intermal tontcol over financial repornng or on comphance That
reportis an integral part of an-audit: performgd in.accordance with Gavernment Auditing S(andards and should be
consideréd in assessing the-restills of our-audit:

The NManagément's ‘Disqussion and Analysis s not a required pari the- basic financial staternents bt is
supplemental information requiced by the. Governmenial Accounhng Standards-Board. We have applied certain
fimited- procedures; which consisted principalty of inquities of rmnagemenl regarding the Tethods of
‘measurement and preséntation ‘of the sapplemental mlarmﬂ,han, Howeéver, we, did riol-audit the-information -and
éxpréss no-opinion on'il.

Appleion. f-‘m;ﬁ.‘d_u Lag - Geoen Boy + Manineoe - Mibwauien Osidsosh - Sheboygan--Steveas Paint
B00436.2246 - sehunzksc.coin

Sehvngk sg

Our audit was conducted for the.purpose of forrning opinions. ar the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City's basic financial stalements. The financial information listed in the table of conlents as. other
supplemenlal |nformahon and {he accompanying schedule of expandilures of federal awards and state-finsricial
assisiance, as required by .8, Office of Managernent and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local
Governments, ahd NonsProfil Organizations, and the State. Single Audit Guidslinss issued by the Wisconsin
Depariment of Administration, are presented for purpases of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial stalements, Suchrinformation has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial ‘statements and, in our opinjon, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in refation to the basic
financial statements taken a3 a whole.

The infofmation identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical Sections is presented for
purposes of-additional-anatysis and is not & required part of the basie financial statements of City of Green Bay,
Wisconsin, Such information has not been subjecied lo the auditing procedures applied in the audit-of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Sl sC

Certified Public Accoumants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
June 24, 2010
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CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008

The ménagement of the City: of Green Bay, Wisconsin, offers readers of ils financial statements this
narrative -overview and analysis for the fiscal year ended;December 31, 2008. Readers are encouraged
{0 consider the information presented here in-¢onjunction-with additional information furnished in the letter
of transimittal, found on pages 5 - 12.

Financial Highlights

o The asseis of file City exceeded its fiabilities at the close.of the most recent year by $369,876,000
(net assets). Of this.amaunt, $37,741,000:is unrestricted het assets' and may be used to' meet the
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and craditors,

» The City's lotat.nel assets increased by-$14,993,000.. The: following factors coniribiited to the overall
ingrease;

«  Theyearclosed with-an increase in:net assets of $11,783,000 for Governmental activities, The
increase is a:combination of capitalized assets excesding depreciation expense in the current
penod of 35,500,000, increase in deferred-ravenug inthe amount of $3,600,000, and reallocation
of profitfrom ihe internal service funds in the amount of $1,500,000.

» The Business-type activities of the Water Department.and.the Transit Department had increases
in et asséts of $3,211,000. The Water Deparliment recorded total operating and non-operating
feventies. (including ¢apital contributions) ‘of $17,749,000- and expenses and ftransfers of
£16,868,000, The Utifity's net assels .increased by 5B81,000 to $89,800,000. The Transit

Depaitmant's net.assets increased in the amount of 2,329,000 to $10,712,000. This increass is.

a cornbination: of an increase in capital contributions of $3,05.1,000 less depreciation expense
chirged against thielr assets.of $722,000.

-+ As of the closgof the current year, the Cily's governmental funds reported cambined ending fund
balances of 842,670,000, Approximately. 74% .of this jotal amount, 531,735,000, is available for
spending at the City's discrefion (Unreserved fiind balanicé).

+ At the end.of the cufrent year, the. General Fund balance was §13,080,000, The. decrease of
$B90:000 over-the, prior. year is comprised of two glements: §1,100,000 in planhed spend: down for
capital, equipment’ purchases and a transfer ‘fo sick leave escrow, Operations had a $210,000
favorable revenue over expenditures whish:included an accrual of $443,000 for vacation and sick
leave. The general fund unreserved fund balance ended the year at $11,427,000, which equates to
15% of general fund expenditures for 2009,

-+ The intersst rate. enviranment for municipal deb! in 2009 confinued to remain low, ‘providing a
favorable environment for the City to refinance $3,445.000 in general purpose bonds, resufting in an
ecanomic gain {difference between the prasent value ot tha debt service of the refunded bonds and
{he refunding new debt) of $119,700.

This discusslon and analysis is, designed to be. an introduction to- the basic: financial statements of the
City. These statements are. comprised of three componenis; 1) the govemmentwide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements. and 3) netes fo the financial statzments. This report also
contains other:supplementary. information ity addition to tha basic financial statements themseives.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Mansgament's Discussion and Analysis
Decernber 31, 2009

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The govérnmentwide financial statoments are designed to
pravide readers with.a broat overview of ‘the Clty's finances, in @ manner similar to a private-sector
business. The government-wikie stalaments are made up of the statement of net assels and the
slatement of activities.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and labifities, with the
differance between the two being reportad as nat asseis. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assels will serve as 2 useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is impraving ar
deieriorating.

Tha statement of activities presents information regarding the: thange in the City's net assets during the
most recent fiscal year. ‘Al changes in net dsssts are rsportad as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to {he change otcurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows, This means, some revenues
and expenses are raportad in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in futura
fiscat periods {e.g., tncollected faxes and sarned buf unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide-financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supponted by takes-and infergovernmental revenues irom those functions that are intendad to recover alf
or a significant poniion of their costs theough user fees and charges, The Governmental Activities {those
supportad by taxes and intergovernmental revenues) of the City include general government; public
safety; publicworks; sanitation; culfure and recreation, conservation and devalopmant, The husiness-type
activiies {those supporiad by user fees} are the Transit Commission and the VWater Utility.

The governmeni-wide. financial. statements include not only the Cily ifself (known as the primary
government), but ‘also. a legally separale -componeni unit-known as the Redevelopment Authority.
Financial information for this: component unit is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary-govermment ifself,

Tha government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 33 - 35 of this repor.
Fund Financlal Statements. A fund is 2 grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain. control

aver resources that have been segregated {or specific activities -or objectives. The City uses fund
ascounting lo. ensurz and demonstrate: compliance with finance-related iegal requiremeants. Al of the

funds of the City can be divided info.two categories: governmental funds and praprietary funds.

Governmental Funds, Governmental funds are used to-account jor essentially the same funciions as
Governmental Activiligs in the government-wide financial stalements; however, the governmenial fund
financial statements focus on hearderm inflows and outilows of spendable: resources, as well as on
batances of-spendable resources available at the end-of the fiscal year, Such information may be useful
in evaluating a governmant’s pear-lgrm financing reguiremsnis,

Because the- focus of -governmental funds is namrower than that of the government-wide financial
siatemants, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with simiiar
infarmation presented for Goverpniental Aclivitias in the governmientwide financial statemenis. This
comparison may help raadars betier understand the long-term impact of a -government's nzar-term
financing decisions. Bollv the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and :Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation. to facifitate this
comparison:betwaen governmental funds and Governmental Activities,
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The City maintained 69 individual governmental.funds during 2008, Information is presented separately Government-Wide Financial Analysis
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in he governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures; -and Ghanges in Fund Balance for the Gengral Fund, Sanitary Sewer Special Révenue As npted vear_ﬁz'axj. net assets may. serve as a useful indicater of the change in a: government's financlal
Fund and Debt Service Fund, each.of which are considered major-funds. Data freny the other 66 funds position over time, The assels of the City exceaded Jiabilities by $368,878,000 at the close of 2009
arg gombined into- a single, aggregated presentation. Individual-fund data for sach of these non-major versys $354,885,000 at the close of 2008, an increase of $14,993,000.
funds is provided in the sambining statements found sisewherg.in this raport.
N ) City of Gragn-Bay Net Assets
The City adopts annual appropriation budgets for the General Fund, Sanitary Sewer, Communily All amounis in 1,000's
Development and Parking Uivision Spscial Ravenue Funds, and the: Debt Service Fund, Budgstary
comparison stalements have been provided for these funds jo demonstrate compliancs with these
budgefs. Govornmental Activities _Business-Type Activities Total
The financial statements for the basic governmantal funds can be found on pages 36 - 40. ' 2009 [ zo08 ] [ 2008 | 2008 | [_2009 2008
Proprietary Funds. “The Cily maintains two different types of propristary funds. Enterprise Funds are Current and other e e .
used to repod the functions of the Water Depariment and the Transit Commission and are prasented as assels $ 252,745 5241974 3 27,809 $ 29,744 $280.844 $271.718
busingss-type dctivilies in the govarnment-wide financial statements, Intarnal Service Furds are used to .
accumulate. and allecats costs internally amaong various funclions, The City uses Internal Service Funds Capital assats 362,175 357,267 153,917 150,855 §16.082 507,822
{o-aicchunt for its self-funded programs for heaith and dental insurance, workers compansation, general
liability, and the fraisfer of sick pay to &scrow for retiving employees. Bevause all of these services Total assets 514,920 589,241 181,818 180.399 796,738 779.540
predominantly banaiit governdiental cather than businsss-type functions; thay have been included within
Governmental Activities in the government-wide financial statements. Al internal Service Furids ars Other Liabilities 178,737 174,832 1,750 1,275 180487 175,807
combined info a single, aggregated présentation in the proprielary fund financial statements, individual !
'fﬁ.nd Idal::t for the Internal Service Funds are provided in' the form of combining statements elsewhere in Long-term tiabilities .
this-report. outstanding 166,617 186,826 78,754 82:022 246,371 248,848
i inancial stétements-can. be found ages 41 -48, e o .
The basic proprietary funds financial statements nd o pag Totalliabilities 345354 341458 81,604 s3on7 46858 424,755
Fiduclary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to-account for tesources held for the bensfit of parties ) )
outside the gavémment Al this time, the City doss not have any fidugiary funds fer which it is Netassels:
responsible: o
Investad in capiial assets,
Noies to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is-essential to-a Tull netof related debt 243,285 239,441 83,987, 78,667 327,252 318,108
undesstanding of the.data provided in-the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statéments ¢an ba found on pagas 49 - 80-of this report. " |Restricted 992 1,368 3,823 3,943 4,885 5311
Other information, Tiie combining statemants refeired to in-connection with non-major gevernmental Unrestricied 25309 -
funds and lnternal Service funds aré ‘prasentzd immediately follolving the reguired . supplementary ee 25, 16,974 12,432 14,492 1,741 31,486
! . . Foniy N o St
information. Combining-and individual fund statarhents and schedules ean be found on pages 81 - 123 of Total netassets § 269,566 $257.783 s 100312 S 97:102 S$359.878  $354.985

{his report.

By far, the largest portion of the City's nel asseis (88%) is reflected in its investment in capital assais
{e.g., land, buildings, improvements, squipmeni, and infrastructure), Jess any related outstanding
indebiednass used o acquire those assais. The City usas thase capiial assels to provide services to
citizens; consequantly, these assels are not avaiiable for future spending.  Although the investment in
capital assets is-reporfed nel of refated debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capilal assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities:

An a‘dqitiqnalrporlibn' of the Cily's net assets (1.3%) represents resources that are subject fo exiernal
resirictions. on how they may be used, The rémaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($37,741,000)
may be used to:meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and craditors.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in al) three categories of
riet assels, both for the government as-a whalg, as well:as for its separate governimental and business-

type activities.

City of Green Bay Changas in Net Assets

Govornmentnt Activities

Businpss-type Activitigs

Totaf Activities

2009 2008 2008 2008 2009 2008

Revemios:
Projram Revanuss:
Charges for services 41868834 34,888 577 18,613,129 18,335,845, 60484,793 53,314,572
Operating grants and 7,185,087 8,127,000 65,102,983 582,756 12,268,070 15,788,766
Capitat grants and contributions 3,535,894 A11688¢ 3,098,148 322,282 6.634,042 3438944
Gonoral Revenues; - -
Propesty laxes: £2,308:80t 50,498,089 - 52,308,501 50,498.008
Grants. and coninibutions pot . -

resivicted to specific progtams 22,835,916 22.39€:243 - . 22835878 22,398,243
4 i interest 1.516,375 2576578 403,838 §73.048 1816214 3248827,

Total Revenues

|General Government
Pubiliz Sufety

Public Works

Sanialion

Cuitiste & Recreation

o 3 Devatag
trtarest on Jongtamy debt
WWater Dopartfeent
Firansit Commission

'Total Exponses

Insrgase{decreasa} in N0y aseols
pefory transtors

Gainon dispasal of capiial aasols

Translers

inczeast (dasregsa) in net dssets

14t gusefs - Janyary 1

Net azsate - Decambar 31

128,080,588 § 122704359

(2]

$

28,216,088 & 25384057

$ 158.255.6498

7,785,886 5,249,317 - - 7,785,855 8240317
45,273,210 44,732,643 - . 45,373,210 44,732,843
25180446 30,521,621 . 26.108,446 30,5341,821°
12,273908 12058346 - . 12,2373.505 12,055,345
10,722,208 8971330 - . 10:723.208 i
983188 14989437 - - 0613108

5,786,538 6,207,520 « 5788,598
- 15580058 15146354 15,188,128
. 4,142,012 £.713:501 6142114

117,046,432 125,730.843 2333242 23650085 WL2FT.6Th  140.500493

10,104,186 {3,046,288) 1684855 2124207 14,559,022 {02,077y
- . 4,30% - 4.30% .
1,678,586 1,631,310 (L678,555) {163,350 - .

11,783,722 {1.364.874)

257,783,343 259,176.219

2.210,501 AB2.857

$2.101.874

14953323

354,884 819

5 264508067 § 257,783 3%

5

WA31378 & BF101,574

$ 389.878.24%

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Pecember 31, 2008

Governmental.Activities. Governmental Activiies increased the. Cily's net assets by $14,783.000. Key
elements of this increase are.as follows:

Reporting daferred revenue at'$3,600,000 in 200¢.
Allocation of profit frotivthe internat service funds in the amount of $1,500.000
Capiialization of assets in the amount of £5,500,000.

Thousands

Expenses and Revenues -
Governmental Activities

Expenses
® Revenues
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Revenues by Source - Governmental.
Activities
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Business-Type Activities. Business-lype aclivities increased {he City's net assels by $3,210,000. The
kizy slements of this nel indrease in assets.are as follows:

The Water Depariment incraased nat assels by $881,000 due to operating ingome of $5,651,000
plus‘interest revenue af $374,000 and custemer contributions of $47.000 fess interest, fiscal and
other charaes of $3,512,000 and tranisfers autof $1,679,000.

The Transit Commission net assets increased S2328,000 primadily due to current ysar
depraciation in the anmount.of 8722,000 and capital santributions of $3,051,000.

Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

The City uses fund. accounting io ensure and demonstrate complince with finance-related tegal
requirements,

Governmantal Funds. The focus on tha Cily’s governmental funds is to provide.information on near-
tarer inflows, outfiows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financial reguirements. Unresesved tund balance may serve as & useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spanding at the end of the fiscal yaar,

As af Degember 31, 2008, the City's governmental funds reported combinad ending fund balances of*
£42,670,000, an increase of $1,383,000 in comparison with the prior year. Of the total fund balance,
$31,735,000 constitutes unreseived fund balance, which [s available for spending at the government’s
discrelion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved fo indicale that it Is not available for new spending
bazause it has dlready bsen conmitied as follows:

1) End of the-year encumbrances aqualed $1,905,000 wilth the bulk.of this amount reserved for
construction contracts still undarway at year-end,

2} ‘Inventorizs squalad $638,000.

3} Interiund receivable of 85,448,000,

4} Delinguent parsonal properiies taxes were $76.000.

5) Delinquent special assessments ware $834,000.

8) Prepaid items thal benefit periods beyond {he end of the year were §10,000.
7) The resarve for debt service was $§992,000.

General Fund: The Ganeral Fung i5 the-main opgrating flind of the City. Al the end of the current fiscal
year, unresarvad fund halance of the General Fund was $11,.427,000, while fota) fund balance wes
$13,080,000. | may be useful to compare both reserved fuhd balance and (ol fund balance to
expendifures. as a measure of the General Fund's liquidity. Unreserved fund balance represents 16% of
total Gereral Fund expenditures; while total fund- balance represents 7% of total General Fund
experditures. The fund balance dacreasad by $890,000 which is comprisad of $1,100,000.0f anticipated
use for equipment and sick pay escrow, and $210,000 income from operation. Net income from
operations included $413,000 of accruals for vacalion and sick leave. Revenues were hit by interest
ncome, building permiits, and land szles due to the downturn in the economy, however, depariment
heads were abl to-control their costs to overcems thass lasses 0 ravenuss.

Special Revenue Funds: Significant changes were se2en in Sanilary Sewer, Storm Water, any Transit
Funcs. The sanitary sewer funds had a favorable net change in fund balance of §1,B30,000. Ths
Inrease in the fund balance was due to managing expenses in ralzfion o the amount budgeted. Slorm
Water hagd an increase in fund balance from the prior year of $317,030 dug to increased revenues or
puiblic service charges. The unfavorable net change of $324,000 in the Transit Capital Fund came from
the City's match to purchase five buses in the summer of 2009 Transit Opefation Fund had a favorable
net change of $358,000.due to management controlling expenditures, - particularly toming under budget
for fuel. In 2008, the American Recovery and Reinvestment At allowed the. trangit authorily 1o pursue
some much needed upgrades on equipment. This grant is ona hundrad percent reirbursable from the
federal government.

Bebt Service Funds: The debt servive fund finished iheyear by reducing its nst assels by $375,000 in g,
plannad spend dov n frony cash received in the previous year from a long term note’ receivable being paid

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Management's Discussion-and Analysis
Decamber 31, 2008.

off.comptately ih 2007 by the Regency Center instead of it recéiving payments until 2029, The beginning
fund batance as-of January 1, 2008 was $1,368,000, with.planned spend dawn, the fund balance for dept
service stillremains ata healthy balance of $992,000;

Capital Project Funds: Highlighted funds for capital projects include Streat, Sanitary, Right of Way,
Storm Sewer, Storm Sewer Management, and Storm Sewer Consiruction Fonds, Park Acquisition,
Intormation Services, Parking Division Capital and some af the Tax Incremental Financing along with City
Deck. The change in the Street and Sanitary Sewer capital project funds relates io contracts which were
tat in 2008 but the work had not been completed. untit 2000, Park Acquisition's unfavorable balance
resylied from projects that had not golten underway in 2008 and were insiead completed in 2009,
Increases “in the Right of Way fund resulied from iransfer of dollars. from- the . Pavement fund for
acquisitions along the Velp Avenue corridor in order fo prepare for the revitalization of that road way-in
2011/2012. The Sanitary Sevar Replacement Fund accounts for future purchase of capital equipment,
the net inorease in this fund relates fo the transfer of dollars from the Sanitary Sewer Operating fund to
this capital’ fund in ouder 1o segregaie these doflars for those future purchases. Significant changes
oczurrad in the various TIF funds, primarily for the instaffation of infrastructure and payment of debt
sapvice obligations. The increase in fund balance in TIF 12 resuis from its roadway expansion out Mason
Street from Eric to Northview. This project just got: underway in 2008, and will continue into 2010. The
downtum of the ecanomy has put a sirain on TIF 13 {o-gel a-large development underway. Plans are'in
place forground breaking 1o take place i the third quarter of 2010.. The CityDeck continued construction
for the waterfront boardwalk along the cify riverfronf. Many 2008 ouistanding contracts were comipleted in
2009,

Proprietary Funds, The Cily's propristary ftinds provide the same type of information found in the

-governmant-wide financial statements, -but In more detail.

Unrestricted net assets for these funds can be seen inthe following table.

Transit Water
Unrestricted Net Assets - 2008 - 12,432,239
Unrestricted Nel Assets - 2008 - 14,482,080
Total Growih (decling) in Net Assets ~ (2,059:821}

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Ulility decreased $2,060,000: primarily due o investing in
infrasiructire thus moving unrestricted net assels o investment in capital assets. - Other faclors
concerning the finances of lhese funds have alrgady been addressed as part of the discussion of the
City's business-type. activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differenices between the original expenditure budget and ihe final amended expendilure budgst
amounied fo-an increase in appropriations of $849,000 and can be briefly summarized as fallows:

» Carry-over requests from 2008 for projects thal were unfinished at the end of the year or for
expenditures that ware budgeted but naver requisitioned were $178.000.

« Purchase orders carriad over from 2008 totaled £72,000.

+ Equipment replacement funds of $671,000 thal weren't budgeted for.
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Revenues were less than budgetary estimates ~ explanation:
‘During this year, revenues fell short of budget by $685,000. ‘The primary reasons for:this are:

» .Intergovernmental revenue was favorable to budget by-$198,000 because additional doltars were
recgived for stale aids and grants than. what 'was :anticipated. These include state payrments for
repairs on-the bridges received in2009 for work-done in 2008 and receipt of additional dolfars for
poiice granits.

» Public charges for services were favorable to budget by $487,000. Three factors, which
cantributed 1o this surplus were excess ticket sales and congessions from Bay Beach Amusement
Park in. the amourit of $323,000. rescue squad fees of $100,000 and additional: payment that was
resceivad for charging out employee services than what was budgated by $122,000.

« Building and heating permits fell short of budgst by $354,000.
« Interdeparimental insurance charges fell short of thé budget by §125,000.
» Interest revenues fell short of the budget by $40885,000,

« Miscellaneous revenue was unfavorable in the amount of S487,000. Two different factars
contributed to the shortfall including lack of land salés for an-unfavorable $445,000 -and the sale
of:scrap-which came jn unfavorable in the amount of $54,000;

Expenditures were less than budgetary estimates ~ explanation:
Actual operating expendiiures wera less:than budget by §1,835.000; The primary reasons for this are:

+ The City realized -savings on two projects that were funded. in- 2009 but delayed until. 2010 which
included the purchase of training roam furnifure valued at $44.000 and the dalay in complziing
the remadeling of the poiice firing range valued at $21,000.

»  Open purchase orders assounted for $58.000 of unexpended appropriations,

« Unfilled vacancies in the Police Department, Park, Recreaiion and Forestry, and DPW savad
$400,000, $193,000 and $425.000 respectfully.

« Ofper departments had vacancies that were unable to be filled quickly, which also contributed to
additional savings.

‘Capital Assets and Debt Administration

‘Capital assets, The Cily's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of Dacembier 31, 2008, Increased a net of $3,262,000 for 2 total value of $516,092,000 {rounded and
net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes fand, buildings, machinery
and equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure ‘including roads, sewers, water lines, and bridges,
improvertents other than: buildings, parking lot improvements and lighting. The City uses a $5,000
threshold for capitafizing new capital assets.

The2009 increase in the goveriiment's investment in capital assets before depreciation.was $13,000,000.
This represents a 2. 2% Increase for governmental activities. For business-type activities there was an
increase in Invesiment in capital assets before depreciation of §8,494,000 or 4.2%. The change in
aceumulated depreciation was an-increase. of $12;733,000 broken down between governmental funds of

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Management's Discussion and ‘Analysis
December31, 2009

$7,500,000 and business type funds amount.of $5,233,000. ‘Combining the additions and accumulated
depreciation, the nat, result-on capital assets was a-net increase of $8,76%,000. Disposals of fixed assets
net of accumulated deprecuatlon amounted {0 $590,950 for governmental funds. As for the business type
of funds, the fixed assets disppsed:of were fully depreciated with a value of $1,640,000,

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included tite following:
Govemmental Activities;

¢ Numerous contracls for the expansion of infrastruciure, namely pavement, sanitary and storm
sewers increased the value-of Gity infrastructure:by $1,500,000.

¢ The first phase of the: CityDeck, & public downtown gathering place along the east shore of the
Fox.River was very-close to-completion at the end of 2008. The-capital outlay of $6.624,000 for
this project is. part of the balarice in wark in progress below.

o Other changes fo: the capital asset schedule include routine equipment replacement in
accordance with the City's equipment replacement policy.

Business-Type Activities;

» The increase in gross. assets for busingss-lype of activities is attributable to water of $4,914,000
and transit of$1,914,000. Part of the water increase of $2.260,000 was for new ‘water mains,
servioss hydrants and meters and capital equipment purchases. Transit's increase includes the
purchase of five buses as well:as three hybrid cars.

City 8f Greeh Ray Capital Aspets
{niet of depreciation)
Goveromantat Busjntas-Typo
Activitles Activilles Totat
2009 200 £009 2048 2009 2008

Land S 675780 & 30.865.08y & 1457120 TRE7 424 8 40,733,913 § 40,347,213
Bukdings 56,804,232 §5,703.832 29010752 88,953,287 18.714.554
imsirenments other - 134,311,954 136,283,354 134.317,05¢
than buitdingy - . - .
Mashinery anid squipment AE364,166 39,457,726 33,934,565 75,521,804 2
Infrastrusture 51,532,185 - 151.€32,195
[Tonstiction in progress. B,039.855 3,320,563 728492 71,375,248

Len ansum depr 233,032,187 36,376,250 54,783,060 208,408 405
Total S 352176382 5 % 153,917,084 § SGEEE3T § 518.007 440

Additional information on the Gity's capital assets can be found in the fooinotes on pages 62 - 63 of this
report.




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
: Management's Discussion and Analysis

Management’s Discussion anrd Analysis
Degember 31,2009 Decemnber 31, 2009

All of these fagiors were considered in preparing the City's budgst for the 2010 fiscal year.

Long-term Debt. Atihe end of the current fiscal ysar, the. City had tolal bonded indebladness of
$138,190,000; which is basked by thie full faith and eredit of the City, Moody's rating on the genersl
obhgatmn débt is AG2, The Clty's Water Utifity had total revenue bended indebtedness of $75.475,000,

Requests for information

This financlal report is designed 1o-provide @ general overview of the-finances of the:City of Green Bay for

which i rated as AT by Mooty's,
. inlerested parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests. for
&
City of Green Bay Outstanding Dabt additional financial information should be addressed to the City of Green Bay Finance Office, 100 N.
N . Jefierson St..- Roorm 105, Green Bay, WI:54301,
Genaral- Obligation and Rovanye Bonds
Govarnmontol Busingas-Typy
Aclivitios Activities Total
2008 2008 2003 2008 2608 2008
JGahoral chligation bonds 398,515,000  $100,720.000 $98515,000  S100,720,000
General cbfigation notes 3530000 2,530,000 3,530,000 X,530,000]
tate Trust Fund 35,148,153 33,289,583 36,348,162 33,284,663

Ravenut Sonds 75475000 77633000 75475000 77.836,000
Total | 5138193,362  $137E38893  S75475.000  S$77,330000  SRU3ER8162  %215,166.693

During the fiscal yaar the Cily's total general-obligation debt increased by §653.000 or 5%, The City
refinanced a portion of one corporate purpase honds during 2008 io take advaniage of lower interest
rates. Approximaiely $16,261,000 of principal was paig off- dunnc 2008 which includes the refinanced
bonds.

State Statuleslimit the amount.of genera! obligation debt.a Cily may issue to 5% ofits jotal equalized
value. The Cily's.current dabt leve! Is 44% of ifs limitation of $311,730,000, The City's outstanding
general obiigation-debt ts $137;201,000, net of the Debt Service Reserve Fund of 5992 000. .

Additionalinformation on the City's lang-term debt can befound in the footnotes on pages 65 - 73 of this
reporl.

EconomicFactors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

« The unemployment rate for the Gy of Green Bay MSA for January 2010 was 9%, which is very
comparable to' Marcly 2008.of 9.2%. The ratg of unemployment for the State of Wiseonsin was
9.6%. it January 2010 compared108.4% in Mafch 2008. Asihe Unemployment raes indicate,
the City along with.the State of Wisconsin and-the entice United Siates is baing impacted by the
downiirn in the econamy.

« Al municipalitiss in the Staté of Wisconsin compossd 2010 budgets undar the restrictions of the
statutory-limits-on levy increases, The levy fimit far the Clty was 3.0% plus the incraase in debt
service pliss the unused portion of févy capacity notused in 2008, The sum of which resulted in a
total it of 5,47% levy increase:

s The City continues to-experience growth intax base thraugh the prudent use of TIF financing.

»  The City is most nofed for.a stalle industrialized base that centers on papermaking, printing.
publishing, food processing, health insurance companies, the health care indusiry and tourism,




THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Nef Assels
Decérmber 31,2009

Caomponent
Primary Government . Unit
Governmental’ | Business-lype Radaveloprient
Aclivities Activities Tolal Authority
ASSETS )
Cash and investments § 75118512 5 12836829 § 88,056,341 §
Recubrables
Tases 138,558,083 - 138,558,083 -
Accounts 4,146,518 4,487,563 8,634,081 -
Leases - - - 14,650,000
Motes and loans 20,112,945 - 20,112,945 -
Special assessments 3,482,033 - 3,482,033 «
interest 378,207 - 378,207 110,481
Internat balanses 4,321,560 (4,321,560} - -
invantories 635,797 658,207 1,294,004 -
Prepaid items 10,483 119.792 130,278 - g .v ,
Deferred chiarges 1,167 466 7,357,451 8,524,917 - (THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
Resiricted cash and investmanis - 6,660,545 8,560,545 -
Deposit with CYMIC 4,812,360 - 4,812,360 -
Capltal Assels
Capifal assets-not depreciated
Land 39,275,789 1,457,124 40,732,913 -
Censtruction in progress 8,049,555 3,325,683 11,376,248 -
Capital assets, being deprecisted
Buildings 59,984,832 29,068,455 86,853,287 -
improvements other than buildings B 136,283,304 136,283,394 -
-Machinery and equipmant 36,364,168 39,157,726 75,521,894 -
Infrastructure 451,633,195 - 451,633,196 -
Accumulated depreciation {233,032,187) (55,376,298 (288,408.485) -
TOTAL ASSETS 514,920,318 181,815,921 796,736,237 $8,760.481
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabls: 4,663,263 871,779 5,535,042 -
Contracts.payable - 81,8958 81454 B
Insurance claims pdyable 2,159,552 - 2,159,552 -
Due {o siher goverimenis 108,797 375 - 108.797.375 -
Acerued payroll iabilities 1,898,484 204,082 2,102,566 -
Accruad inlerest 2,556,563 552,441 3,109,004 110,481
Déposils 5,126,578 - 5,126,578 -
Unearned revenue 55,535,293 38,731 65,675,024 -
Norgurrentdighilijes
Due within one year 14,494,949 2,401,920 16,806,879 65,000
i in mors han ong year 152,122,182 77,351,825 229.474,017 18.985.000
‘TOTAL LIABILITIES 345,354,249 81,503,746 426,857,985 18.760.481
NET ASSETS
Ivested i capital assels, netof
relatad debt 243,254,837 83,586,832 327,251,669 -
Rastricled for debt servica: 992,547 3,893,104 4,885,651 -
Unrestricted 25:308,683 12,432,239 37.740,922 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5269566067 % 100312175 % 369878242 § -

The noles 1 the basic inancial statemeanis are an integral:part of this statemeant




Functions/Pragrams
Primary Governmant _
Gavernmental Aclivities

Genetal gavernment
Fisblic $afety’
Public works:
Sanitatien.
Culture and recreation
Gonservatlon and development
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Governmental Activities

Business-lype Activities
Water
Transit
Total Business-type Activities

Totzal Primary Government

Gomponent Unit
Redevetopment Authorily

General ReVenues:
Property faxes, levied for:
‘Geriegral purposes
Debt service
Spedial reveriue funds
Capital projects funds
Qther taxes

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Prograni Revenues

Nel (Expense} Revenlus and Changes in Net Assets

Oparating Capital
Charges for Grants.and Grants-and
Expenses’ Services Gantributions { Canleibutions

§ 7785865 % 5224083 3 - $ 48,534
45,273,210 5,020,465 336,229 242,212
25,188,445 8,896,566 5,017,898 1,462,292
12,273,908 14,765,498 - 28,234
10,723,208 2,652,423 18,000 246,062
9,813,199 5,360,628 629,565 1,508,560

6,768,598 - 183:395 -
117,946,432 41,868,664 6,185,087 3,535,894
15,189,128 17,328,531 - 46,663
8142114 1,284:508 6,102,983 3,051,485
23,331,242 18,613,129 6,102,983 3.008,148
$ 141,277,874 _§ 050,481,783 & 12288070 5  6.634.042

S 1665606 § 1.665606 8 - . § -

‘Granhts and confributions not réstricted 1o specific programs

Unrastricledinterest earniiigs
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Transfers
Total General Ravenues and Transfers
Changs'in Net Assets
Net Assets - January 1

Met Agsits - December 31

The notes la the basie financlal stalements are an integral part of this statement.

Primiary Governmant Componerit Unit
Governmental | Business-lype Redevelopment

Aclivities Aclivities: Tolal, Authorily
$ ) {2.513,249) § - $ (2,513,248} S -
{39,665,304) - {39,665,304} -
(9.871,690) - {9,871,690) -
2,519,828 i - 2,519,828 E
(7,806,723) - {7.806,723) -
{2:414,446) - (2,:414,446) -
{6,£05,203) - {6,605,203) -
{66.356,787) - {66,356,787) -
- 2,186,066, 2,186,066 -
- 2,298,852 2.286.952 -
- 4,483,018 4,483,018 -
{66.356.787) 4,483.018 {61,873.769) =
32,771,418 - 32,771,418 B
13,304,300 - 13,304,300 -
1,408,450 - 1,408,450 .
/4,025,943 B 4,025,943 -
788,498 - 798,490 -
22,635976. - 22,635,976 -
1,516,376 401 838 1,918,214 -

< 4,301 4,301

1,678,556 1,678,550} - -
78,139,509 (1.272.817) 76,867.092 -
11,782,722 3,210,601 14,093,323 “
257,783,345 87,101,574 354,884,919 -

5 209,566,067

§ 100,312,175 & 369.878.242 § -




GITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

_ Balance Sheet Statement of Revenues, Expendituras and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds Govemmantal Funds
Dacernber 31, 2009 Year Ended Dasembir 31, 2009
Other Totat Other Ttal
Sanitary. Dabt’ Governmental | ‘Govemmental, i .| P
General Sawer Service. Funds Funds Ganeral S;g\l,l,i? SE;?:G Gov;lr)r:;;:ntal Gov?gm;enhal
ASSETS : ue o S unds
Cash and investmants. $ 34,329,108 $ 2348,155 § 3,180,327 § 27,756,053 $ 67,645,643 Revenuas
Recaivables Taxes , $ 33,569,909 § <5 13304300 § 5434303 $ 52,308,602

Taxes 120,402,938 - 11,489,982 5,029,453 136,832,373 Special assassments - - - 762,372 782,372

Accounts 3,086,719 947,364 12,621 74,463 4,121,167 Licenses and permiits, 1,840,238 - - - 1,840,248

Noles and foans - - 631,000 19,481,945 20,112,945 Intergavernmental 29,734,977 - - 2,908,866 32,543,843

lsr‘;ljeegzi assessments g%%g : : 2,618.'?23 3;%33575 Public charges for services 5,548,598 14,826,727 . 7.689.678 28,065 203

Du from clher funds 3,260,280 1,980,385 . 9,055,221 14.296.088 }gxerdepar(menial charges for services z.?so.oas - - 2,497,141 4,747,180
invaniories 312,895 B - 22,802 635,797 ines and forfelts 1,381,691 - - - 1,281,691
Prapaid ems 10.483 . - R 10,483 Interest 540,109 34,133 587,630 182,258 1,344,130
i Miscellaneous 1,080,162 - 175.548 2,911,703 4,187,413
TOTAL ASSETS 8162036740 5 5016,104 8 15323030 8 B4.087.000 8 247004754, Total Revenues 75945723 14.860.860  14.067478 __ 22,406011 127,280,672
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE Expenditures
Liabliities = N . Gurrent

Aotbunts payatle $ 1023858 § 118550 8 1,013 §  1,223933 § 4,234,809 Genacal govemment 7.794.942 . i 76,963 7.871.908

Aceruad.payroll liabilities 2,548,856 74613 - - 2,623,469 Public safet 43,895 s .

L G aeod safaty 3,895,400 - - 911,585 44,806,985

Due {o ether funds -« - - 8,974,526 8,974,526 Publl ) o 170 . = o

Due 1o-olhar taxing units 106,787,375 - - - 106,797,375 ublic works 16,246,081 - - G.??JJ?J 12.31:;.2‘_:6

Deferrad rovenus 33,719,105 - 14,330,370 28,138,527 76,188,002 Sanitation ! - V162,524 - 277,751 12,160,275

Deposits held in trist 4867410 - - 150,168 5,126,578 Gullure and recreatian 8,384,490 . B 2,902,728 10,487,219

Tatal Liabifities 142,856,605 1,260,117 14,331.383 39,496,154 205,944,259 Conservation and development aB2,112 - - 9,735,238 10,717,380

. Capital outlay

F“E‘ég;:g:es Genoral government - - - 1,451,993 1,451,993
Encumbririces 86,726 44,627 . 1,773,169 1,804,522 Public safety - . - 1,620,655 1,620,655
inveniorias 612,995 - - 22,802 635,797 Fublic works. - . - 8.484.058 8,484,058
Bue fram other funds . - 6,449,153 6,449,153 Sanilation B - - 390,405 390,405
Dalinguent faxes. 78,842 - - - 78842 Culturey and recreation - . - 295,048 295,048
gz}a;:é »’e:{s;;esssmen!s 8%%3 - - - 8%'2;3 Conservation and development - - - 757,500 757,500

‘ " N s - 5 Debt service

Debt service: - - 892,547 - 992,547 g N .

Unresaved, reporled.in P'.'r!c‘ip é calirement b " 12,1 5’591 - 12,116,201
Gerneral fund 11,427,079 - - . 11,427,079 Inigrest - . 5,740,512 - 5,740,512
Spacial revenue funds - 4,011,360 - 4,561,149 8.:572,509 Leage payment - - 658,464 - 568,464
Caplial projectsfunds - - - 11,736,533 41,735.633 _Deb( Issuance costs - - 56,341 70,193 126,534

Total Fuid Balances 13,080,135 4,055,987 992,547 24,541.806: 42.670.475 Total Expenditures 77,303,025 11,882,524 18,581,608 32,243,293 140,010,450

TOTAL L!'AB!LJT’IES”- AND , ) ] Exeasy of Ravenués Over (Under)
FUND BALANCES S is2095.740 5 5316104 § 15323930 & G4,037960 § 247 614 234 Expeiiclititras 1,357,302} 2,978,336 (4,514,130} {9,836,682) (12.729.778)
Regoneilialion io the. Stalemant of Net Assels Other Financing Saurces (Uses)
Tofal Funid Balances as-shown above $ 42670475 Cenaral obligation bonds issued - - - 8,680,000 8,680,000
» o y Ganeral obliggation refunding bonds
Amounts:reportad for governmental sctivities in the stalement of net assels are difierant because: isstied . . 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
Capltal assols usad in govarnmental activilies-are not financial resources and,therefore o Stals frust find foan lssued . - ~ 3,034,760 2,934,760
arg not repared in the funds. 362,175,352 Payment to refunding bond escrow
Othr fong-tarm assels-are nof avallable to.pay for currant period axpenditures and, thersfore, agent N - (3:600,000) - {3.600.000)
are deferred In the funds. 23,845,650 Transiars in 2,027,761 50,197 4,138,608 8,460,981 14,877,625
b E Transfars out (1,560,644} {1,198,169) - {10.440,258) {13,19.089)
tntemal service funds are used by managament to.charge the costs of insurance progeams Totai Other Financing Sources (Uses) 467107 {1,147.972 4,138,690 10,635,485 14,003,316
faindividuat funds. The assats and fiabilities of the internal sérvice furids-ara incliided:in » . -
gavemmental activilies in the $talement ofnot assels. 9,223,309 Net:Change in Fund-Balances (890,195) 1,830,164 (375,434} 708.803 1,363,538
‘Lorig-tenn Nablities, including. bonds and:notes-payable, are notdue. and payable in'the current Furid Balances - January 1 13,970,330 2,225,823 1.367.981 23.743.003 41,306,937
period and, therafor, are not reporiad in the funds 168,448,719 Fifrig Billaises - Dederbir 31 5 12080135 § 4055907 § 092547 § 24541805 § 42,670,475
Net-Assats of Governmanial Activities a8 Repatted on this Staterment of Net Assets ,
{soe paga 34) - $ 769,568,087 The ootes fo the basle financist statements:are an infegral part of this statement.
{Confinued)

“Tha ntites 16 tho basic financlal statemants are an integral part:df Wiis statémant.




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Stateman! of Revenues, Expendittires.and Ghangesiin Fund Balances (Conlinued} Géneral Fund
Governmentdl Funds, Stalement of Reveniss, Expenditures-and Changss in Fund Balange - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December.31, 2009 ! p\b’ear Endet! Decemger :;1 2009 get and Actusa
Reconciliation 1o the Statement of Activities ;
Variance
Nel Change In Fund Balances from previous pags § 1,353,538 WélhdF '”ta'
udge
Amounts reported for govammantal activities in the statement of activitles are Original Final Positive
different because: Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Governmental funds report capital outlays a$ expenditures. However, in the Taxes $ 33,586,390 § 32,586,390 § 33,560,908 $ (16,481}
- stalemant of activitles the-cost of these assels are allocaled over their Licenses and permits 2,160,570 2,160,570 1,840,238 {320,332}
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Thisis Intergavernmental 28,508,940 26,537,286 20,734,977 197.691
the amount by which capital outiays exceeded depreciation in the Public charges for services 5,043,670 5,061,254 5,548,598 487,344
current perod. 5,499,176 Irterdeparimental charges for services 2,278,870 2,278,670 2,250,039 {28,631)
ines & its 5 & 44
The nel effect of varioys miscellaneous transactions involving capital sssets ]:I ?e‘::lnd forfeit 1‘;;32?3 1';2(25'3?3 1'?38‘?{’8; (;;3';’(;1‘)
(i.e.. sales, trade-ins, and.donallons} is:to decrease nel assets. (590,950) y ' v VaY, (382, - )
Miscellaneous 1,546,378 1,567,381 1.080,162 (487.229)
Revenues In the.statement of activities that do not provide cuirrent financial Total Revenues 76,524,820 76,610,206  75.945,723 (664,483}
respurces are not ngported as revenues in the funds: 3.612,107
Expenditures
The issuance of long-term debt {e.g., bors, ldases) provides current financial Gengral government 7,807,500 7,795,094 7,794,942 152
resources lo the'governmental funds, while the repayment of ihe principaf of Public safety : 44,957,470 44,738,722 43,895,400 843,322
“tang-lerm debt consumes (he curent financial resources of governmental Public warks 16,894,380 16,865,540 16,246,081 719,459
{urids. Neither trarisaction, however, has any affect 6n net assels. Also, Cullure and recreation 3,534'010 8,573,912 8,384,490 189,422
governmental funds report the effect of issiiance costs, pramiums, discounts, Goniservation and developiient 1,064 440 1,064,471 982,112 82 350
and similar i{emis' when dabt Is first issued, wiiergas these ainaunls die deferied - o g b T : S
and amortized in the stafement of activities. This:amount is the nel effect of Fotal Expendiures 79,257,800 79,137,739 77.303.025 1,834,714
se diffe s atment of long-4 debt-and relaled items. 71,32 .
these differsnicssIn thef reatrfiéntiof lang-ferm debiisrd related items. 671,328 Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (2,732,980} (2,527,533)  (1,357.302) 1,170,231
Scmie expenses réparied in the statement of activilie’s do not requite the use of . .
currentfinancial resources and, therefore, are not reported as.expenditures in Olhe( Financing-Sources {Uses)
govammental funds: (287,376} Translers in 1,982,980 1,991,328 2,027,751 36,423
Transfers out 354,000 {1,322,644)  (1,560,644) (238,000}
Internal service funds are Uséd by management to charge the costs of insurance Total Other Finaricing Sources (Uses) 2,336,980 668,684 467,107 (201,577)
programs to individugl funds. The nat tevenue (expense)-of certain activities
of intérnal seriice funds isireportied. with goverhmantal aclivilies. 1,514,889 Net Ghange in Fund Balance (396,000) (1,858,849} (890,195) 968,654
Change fin Net Assets of Governmental Aclivitia$ as Reported o the  a . ;
Statemant of Adtivities (sea panes 35 - 36) & 11.782.722 Fund Balance - January 1 13,870,330 13,870,330 13,970,330
Fund Balance - Decembier 31 $ 13,574,330 8 12,111,481 § 13,080,136 § 968,654

The rictas 1o the basic financial statements are an integral part.of this statameant.

The nolss to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




F.CITY-OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Sanitary-Sewer Special Revenue Fund
Statemant of Revanuas, Expenditures and Shanges in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues
Putlic charges for services
Interest
Total Revenues

Expanditures
Sanitation

Excess of Ravenuas Over (Under) Expendilures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in

Transfars Gut

Total Othér Financing Sdurces (Wses)
Met Chiange in Fund Balanca

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - Deceﬁ'nbarm

Qriginaland Variance
Final Positive
Budgst Actual {Neégativel
$ 12,969,500 § 14,826,727 § 1,857,137
8,000 34,133 26,133
12,977,530 14,860,860 1,883,270
12,829,537 11,882,524 947.013
148,053 2,978,336 2,830,283
50,197 50,197 -
(1,198,250} (1,198,169} 81
{1,148,053) {1,147.972) 81
(1,000,000} 1.830,364 2,830,384
2,225,623 2,225,623 -

3

1,225623 5 4085987 5

2,830.364

The notes to the basic financial stalements are. an integral part of this statemient,

[THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Assets
Proprigtary Fumis
Dscembar 31, 2008
{With Comparativa Information for Decembes 31, 2008)

Govemmental
Water Ulility Activities -
Currant Faor Transit Commisston Total intemal
Yoar Year "~ Cypeent Prior Curraot Service
ASSETS . Year Year Year Funds
Curant Assels
Cash and invesiménts $ 10592480 § 12338912
Racaivables § 2344340 § 1.915498 § 12,936,628 § 7,473,669
Taxes - -
Actounts 4,067,021 4013918 - - - 1,661,061
Dut from-other funds. . 53,040 430,542 284,097 4,487,563 .
invontories 386,608 420,654 - - - -
Prapald itoms 119,792 111,174 271,598 222,299 558,207 .
Rasirictod cash and investments 87B:118 876.017 - - 118,792 -
Total Current Assets 16034.078 17,815,712 d - 878,118 -
Nancumant Asssls 3,046,490 2.421.895 19.080.509 9.124.930
Rastricied ash and investmeots 5,782,427 5,784,212
Nepogit with CVMIC . . - - 5,782,427 -
Delarred charges 7,357,451 7,863,398 - - N 4,812,260
Lang 517,481 517,481 r - 7.357.451 -
Buildings 20,657,745 22,500,062 939,643 439,643 1,457,124 .
Iraprovernents othar than buildings 135,681,530 133.809,19a 6,410,710 6,410,710 29,068,455 -
Machingry and equipmant 26,362,105 28,079,534 401,855 401,855  136,283.304 .
Censtruction in progress 3,326,693 725,402 10,795,621 8,855,031 39,157,726 -
Aocumudated dapreciation (47540.716)  [43.559.8D4) - - 3,326,603 -
Tolal Moncurent Asspts 156,444,725 155,819,664 (7.835.082) {8.224.356) _(55.376,298) -
10,712,247 8,382,883 167.066.972 4,814,360
TOTALASSETS 172,378,744 173,735,576 =
13,758,737 10,804 778 186,137,481 13.937.290
LIASILITIES
Gurrent Liabitiies
Accounts payabiln 474,400 436,439 i
Conimcts payable 71,958 492,072 397,373 99,892 871,779 428,954
fogurance claims payable - . - - a1,958 -
Acerued Gabilities 28,764 N - M 2,159,552
Due o oiher funds 2,966,744 176,334 9518 204,082 -
Compensated absances payalis 375,965 *-‘%}”1 1,174,232 4,321,560 -
Ungatmed rovanue R 404.095 484,391 797 724 -
Payible from restricled cash and Invesimants 39,754 46,561 39731 2,125,475
Curtent potiian ofong-tarm debit 2,185,000 .
Accrued interest 552,431 - - 2,215,000 -
Tatal Current Liabliities. 6,617,495 . - . - 562,441 -
Noneurrent Ligbilities. 2.301.564 1.814.504 9,084,275 4.713.981
Advancas ffom municipalities - - ., s e
Post-employmant beneht Hability 110,310 71,125 512,031 512,031 512031 -
Unsmorizad debtpremium 2.715,785 2,852,715 142,905 95,270 25:}-21:’ -
Revanye bonds payable TA260.000  75.475.600 - - 7:‘:%8;3; -
A hifiticis = T 400, A4 ' hd O A hs
Tolal Nancurrent Liabifities 76,086,085 78,399,440 FEA G 57301 75 79T 03 -
wip o op SR8 3OS QNS
TOTAL LIABILITIES 82,778,816 BEUIGA85 3,046,490 2,421,805 85,025,306 471,081
NET ASSETS- 0283
Iovestod in eapital assets, net of rolateif debt 73.274,585 70,283,833 y .
Restricted for debt retiremant 893,104 3.942,798 10712247 8,382,863 8;33??33 -
xshiinte g R a7 R - - 348,104 -
Unrestricted 12,432,239 14,492,080 i . 12.432.239 0.223.308
§ ETS. L5..00.509928 & B&7IBAEAT. e
TOTAL NET ASSETS A-£0599928 .5 BL7I1B001, $_ 10712247 5 8382803 § 100312475 S 9223108

Tha neles to-Whe basie financial stalemants aro an integral part of this staterment.




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
‘Statemant of Revanues, Expanses and Changes in Nat Assels
Pruprietary Funds
) Year Ended Decembar 31, 2009
(With-=Comparative, Information for Year Ended December 31, 2008}):

Gavernmental
At T . Activilies.-
Waler Utiily _ Transit Commission Tolal Hitérnal
Gurrent Prior Current Prior Chirrant Servics
Year Year Year Year Year Funds
Operaling Revenues '
Charges for services. § 17150963 § 16,847,006 € 1284598 § 1,286,556 $ 18435561 § 17,673.799
‘Oiher‘ - 165,934 169,123 . . 165,034 .
Total Operating Revenues 17,316,897 17,016,129 1,264,598 1,286,550 18,601,495 17,673,799
Operaling Expelises
Salaries, wages and employse fringe benafits 3,712,599, 3,744,591 4,385,832 " 4,720,294 8,098,431 .
Irsurance ¢laims and premiums N - - . - 16,188,120
Contraztual services 250,564 250,433 521,727 434,135 772,291 442215
Materials and supplies 2,887,978 2,622,287 801,780 1,235,268 3,689,765 -
Heal, fight and power . 689,570 684,508 112,423 123,434 801,793 -
Dopreciation.and amoriization 4,036,605 4,168:949 722121 705,764 4,758,726 -
Insurance and taxes 88,463 108,654 164,818 166,008 253,281 -
Maintenance and ofier bl hd 1,440,610 1,300,887 1440610 -
Total Operating Expenses 11,888,777 11,579.512 8,149,121 8,708,878 19,814,858 16,330,335
Qperating income {Loss) 5,851,120 5A36.617 (6,864,693) (7.422,322) {1,213,403) 1,043,464

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Operating grants - - 5,102,983 6,662,766 6,102,983 -
Interest revenus 3727 521,373 28,111 51,675 401,838 172,245
Debt reimbursements fram CVYMIC . - . . - 49,149
Gain on.disposal of capital dssely “ . - 4,301 - 4301 -
Iméresl.expense and fiscal charges {3.523,351) (3.568842): . . (3 5;3'3‘351) -
Cther 11,634 16,570 7,007 2,317 18,841 -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,137,890) (2.928:899) B.440.402 5.716,558 3,004,412 271,434
Income-{Loss) Befara Conlributions and Transfars 2,513,130 2,507,718 (722.121) (705,764) 1,791,009 1,314,898
Capital contributions 46,663 271,027 3,061,485 51,226 3,008,148 -
Translars 1,678,558) (1.631,310) . - {1,678,556) 200,000
Change in Net Assels 881,237 1,147,435 2,329,554 (654,538) 3,210,601 1,514,808
Mt Assels - January 1 8,718,891 87,571,256 8,382,883 9,037.421 97,101,574 7.708.411
Nat Assets - Denember 31 $_ 89500926 5 88718093 S 10712247 5 3382883 S 100312175 S 0.223,309

Thiz notes 1o the basic finangial statements are an integral part of this statement,




GITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2009

(With Comparative Information for Year Ended December 31, 2008}

Cash Flows from Operaling Activities
Cagsh recelved from cuslomsrs
Cash from Inlerlund senvices provided
Cash paid.to suppliers
Cash paid to amployees
et Cash Provided {Used) by Oparating Activities

Cash Flows from ' Nenicapital Financing Aclivitles
Oparaling granis from federal, state and local govemments
Transfers from other funds
Paid 1o-municipality for propery {ax equivalent
Cash-feceivad from CVMIC
Nat Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Casty Flows from-Caplital and Retated Financing Activitles
Acyuisition of capital assgls
Proceeds from sale of églipment
Erincipal paid on revénue bonds
Grants from fadéral and stale govemments
Contrdbutioris Trom proparly ownérs
Contributions from munfcipatities
Interest and fiseal charges on capltal firancing
det Cashy Provided {Used) for Capital and Related
Financing Activilies

Cash Flows fram Invesling Agliviies
‘Purchase of investments
Pruceeds from maturity of investments
Interest recelved
Nat Cash Provided (Usedyby. Investing:Aclivitias

Net increase’ (Dacrease)-ln Cash-and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Decernber 31

Water WUlility

Curent Prior
Year Year
$§ 17381937 5§ 16.889.321
(3,659,885) {3.306,917}
{3.093.591} {3,128,018)
10.628.461 10,454,386
(1,678,558} {1,631,310)

{1,678,556) (1,631,310}
{5,626,650) {3,285,409)
39.827 24,207
{2.155.000) {1,530,000)
47,467 332,648
{3,374.588) (3,414,788

(11,068,944}

(7.873.341}

Cashznd cash squivalénts on December-31 are reconciled to the statement of nat assels as lollows:

Gash and Invesimanis
Unresifctad
Resiricied
Less amoufils nof considered cash and cash equivalents

{Continued)

(27.538,682) (21,639,206}
28,507,164 19,682,843
383313 §39.940
1,351,795 (1,316,418}
(767.244) {366.683)
65,164,674 6,531,357

S 5487430 & 51646874
$ 10592480 § 12;338.912
5,782,427 5,784,242
(10.977.477) ___ (11.958:450)

$...5397430 8

£,184.574

Governmental
Activilies -
Transit Commission Total Intemal
Cugrant Prior Cuirent Senvice
Year: Year Ysar Funds
S 1262535 S 1281139 § 18,644,522 § -
- - - 17,828,170
(2,527.253) (3:551,671) {6,187,138) (16,400,833}
{4.370.837} {4.667.562) {7,464.428) -
(5.635,505) (6,938,094} 4,992,956 1,425,237
6,156,375 6.076,265 6,156,375 -
~ w - 200,000
- - {1,678,556) -
. - - 99,189
6,156,375 6,076,265 4,477,818 299,188
{3.051,485) {81,226) (8,678,135} -
4,30 - 43,128 -
. - (2,158,000) “
2,603,071 20,000 2,803,071 B
- - 47,467 «
323,882 4,127 323,982
- - {3,374,588)
{120,131} {27.099) (11.189.075) -
~ - (27,538,682) -
- - 28,507,164 -
28117 51,675 411,424 172,245
28,111 51,675 1,379,906 172,245
428.850 (837:253) (338,334) 1.896.671
1.915,489 2752752 -8.080.173 §,577.198
v_‘ﬁ 2344349 3 1915499 & 7761778 S 7,473,869
5 2344249 S 1915499 § 12,936,820 § 7.473.869
- - 5,752,427 -
- - {10.877.477) -
5 2344349 5 1815489 § 7041779 % 7.473.869.




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows {Conlingd).
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2008
{Wiih: Comparafive Infermalion for Year Ended Decermber 31, 2008)

: Govermmental
Water Utiiily ) Activitles -
Carrent: | Pror Transit Commissian . Tolal fritemal
Year Year Current - Prior Current Service
Reconciliation of Operating Income (loss) to Net Sash Provided (Used) by : Year Year Year Furids
Operating Activitias
Operating incoms {loss) $  50651,120 S 5435617
Adjustments to-fetoncile oparaling inceme {loss) to § {6.8B4523) § (422322) S {1.213403) § 1043464
net cash provided {used) by operating acfivilies
Dapreciation and amortization 4,038,605 4,168,948
Depreciation chargad direslly to.operaling expanses 433,726 425475 722421 705,784 4,758,726 -
Amoriization of non-utliity plant 131,453 131.453 - v 433,726 -
Amorlization of pansion expense 78810 78,810 - - 131,453 -
Miscellaneous alher intome 11,654 16,570 - - 78810 -
Cash provided {used) by'chiinges in-assets and Habilifes - - 11,8234 -
Aceounis racelvable 11,937 {290,310) )
Inventories 34,046 32,363 (22,013} (5:417) {10,078} 4,169
Prepaid ifems {8,5213 {4,802} (49.300) (5.869) (15,264) -
Accounls payable 37.967 146,342 - - {8.621) 3.226
Acenied lisbilifias (14,282} 23,067 297,481 (160.807) 335,448 3882
-Duye to other funds 185,491 252,484 64,381 88,541 50,089 .
Insurance claims payable . - 265,557 (135,0286) 453,048 -
Compensaltid abssnces . . L - - 222,194
Defettod revenue . : @s3me) | {35809 (49,365) -
Past employment benefit fiabillty 35,585 36,358 {6:830) 25,913 {6,830) 148,202
Not Casti Provided.(Used) by Operaling Activities S 10628461 5 10454285 - : - 38,585 -
S [5h42.512) 8 :(6.938.004) 8 4985940 8 1425237
Narkcash investing Aclivities
increase in falr valie of ihwestmenis held at vear end $ 10018 S 19,604
- 5 - 8 - 5 10018 § -

The noles 1o the basit financial staleriients are-an integral parl-of ihis slatement,




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes o Basic Finangial Statements
December 31, 2009

NOTE A~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic. financial slatements’ of the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (“the’ Cily") have been prepared ‘in
conformity:with accounting principles. generally accepled:in. the United States of America:{GAAP) as applied
to government units.. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASBY) is the. accepted standard-
setling body for -establishing governmental accouniing and financial reporling principles. The. significant
accounting principles and policies utilized by the City are described below:

1.

The.Financial Renorting Enfity .

The City of Green Bay is a munlicipal corporation governed. by an .elected twelve-member council,
Included in the Cily's :operafions (the primary government) is the City's: Water Ulility and Transit
Commission which ate City departments mianaged by separate eommissions appainted by the City
Council. [n accordance. with GAAP, the basic financial statements are required {0 include the City and
any separate. component units that have a significant aperational or financlal relationship: with the City.
The City's Redevelopment Authority (RDA) is governed hy a board: appointed by the City Council. It is
legally separate from {heCity and therefore-is discreetly presented in the altached financial statemerits.

Individual Component Unit Disclosures .

Component units -are legally’ separate arganizations. for which ihe elected officials of the primary
government are fisiancially accountabile, The primary.government is financially aceountable if it appoints
& voling ‘majority of th& -organization’s governing body and (a) it is. able: {o Impose ifs will on ihat
organization; .or (b) lhere is a potential for the organizalion to provide specific financial benefils (o or
burdens o the primary government. The primary gavernment may be financially ‘accountable if an
organization'is fistally:deépendent on.the primary government,

Inéluded wilhin ihe:reporting entity:

Green Bay Redevelopment Authority {RDA)

The RDA'is a discretely presented component unit-with.a separale board appointed by the mayar.
The RDA has ils own independént budgetary-authiorily and borrowing capabilities, However, the
City can impose-its will on the RDA as:tho Clty must approve the RDA projecis. The City has no
responsibility for fund deficits of the RDA. The RDA information for the fiscal year ended
December 31,.2009 is included in the basic financial statements ds a discrefely presented
component unit..Separats financial statements are not issued by the RDA.

Related Oraanization

The City Council is responsible for appointing the hoard members of the Green Bay Housing Authority,
but the City's: accountabiity. for this. organization does nol extend beyond making (he appointmenis.
Therafore this organization is not incllided in the City's reporting entity.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmeht-wide financial slatements {i.e., the statement of net assets and the' slatement of
aclivilies) report.thformation on all of thie activilies of the Clly and its component unit. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmantal aclivities, which
are primarily-supporled by taxés and inlargovernmental reveriues, are reported separately fram businass-
lype activities; which rely lo a significant extenl oni fees and charges for services. Likewise, tha primary
govermmient is reporfed saparately from cerlaln legally separate component units for which the primary
govermment is financially accountatile.

The statement of aclvities.demonsirales the degree to which the direct expenses of a given-funclion are
offset by program revenues, Direct expenses are those: that are clearly idenlifiable wilh a specific
function or segment.. Program revenuos include 1) charges. to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from. goods, services, or privifeges provided by a given function or segment and
2)-grarts and contributions that are restiicled to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
parlicular function. Taxes aid other Nams nat properly included ampng program revenues are reporied
instead as general revenues.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statemeants
Decernber 31, 2009

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING: POLICIES (Continued)

Separale financlal stalements are providéd for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Governmental
funds include general, special revenus, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds. Proprietary
funds inglude enterprise-funds and internal service funds. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds aré reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

GENERAL Funn

This s the Cily’s main operating fund. It accounts for aif financial resources of {he general government,
except these required to be accounted for in another fund.

SANITARY SEWER SPECIAL REVENUE FURD

This fund.accounts for the pravision of wastewater collestion services for city residents, public authorities,
ard business entities.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

This: fund: accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest-on tong-
term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The City reports the following major propristary funds:
WATER UTILITY FUnD:

This fund accounts for the provision of water services o city residents, public authorities, and business
entities.

TRANSIT COMMISSION FUND

This fund accounts for the provision of bus transil services to tha residents of the Citles of Green Bay and
De Pere, the Villages of Allouez, Ashwaubenon, and Bellevue, and 1o the Oneida Triba of Indiang.

Additionally, the government reports the joflowing fund types:

Special revenue funds account for ihe proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than capital projects,
that are legally rastricled to expendilures for specific purposes.,

Capital projects funds account for the acquisition or construction of major cagital faciities cther than (hose
finariced by propristary fund types,

internal servige funds account for heailth, sick leave, workers’ compensation, and hahility insurance
sarvices provided 1o other departments or agencies of the Cily, o to othgr governments, on & cost
reimbursement basis.




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notas toBasic Financial Statements
Decamber 31, 2009

NOTE A -'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad}

. Measurement Fosus:and Basis:of Accounting

The -government-wide -financial “siatements are: reported using the econamic' fesources - measurement
focus-and the accrual basis of.accoupting, as are the proprietary fund financial statemenls. Revenues
are recorded. when. earnedd and expenses. are recorded when a liability is incurred, ragardiess. of the
timing of related cash flows. Properly. laxes are recognized as. revenues in-the year for which they are
levied. ‘Grants ‘and similar #iems are recognized as_revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed bythe provider have beén met.

Governmental fund financial stateéments. are-reported using the. current findriciat résotirces measurgment
focus-and the madified accrual basis of acoaunting. Revenuss are recognized as soen as they are-bioth
meéasurable and available: Revenues are considered lo be ‘available when they are collectible within ihe
currernit period or'soon enough thereafter to pay Rabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be.avallable if they are collected wilhin 60 days: of he end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures: ganerally are recorded whien a lidbility is incurred, ‘a& under accrual accounting.
However, -debt service. expenditures, as well -as expenditurés: related lo .compensaled absences and
claims-and judgments, are recarded only when payments due.

Revenues susceplible 1o’ acerual includs intergoverniigntal grants, inlergovernmental charges for
services, public charges for services and interest. Othér revenues such as licenses and permits, other
fines and forfeits and miscellangous revenues are.recognized when réceived in cash or whén measurable
and avallable,

Privale-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued priar 1o December 1, 1989,
genarally are followad:in both the.governtieni-wide and proprigtary furid findncial statements to the extent
that Uiose standards do :-ndt éonfliel With or contradict guidance of the Govérnifiental Accounting
Standards Board. Governmgnts also:have the option of following subsequent private-séctor guidance for
iheir business«ype aclivilies and enterprisé funds, subjest 16 this-same: limitation. ' The City has elected
fot to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a-gerieral fule the &fféct of interfund activity has been efiminated from the government-widé financial
statemants, Exteptions to: thvis general rulé are paymentssinlieu. of taxes-and. olher.charges belween the
City's waler and-sewer function and.variols other functions of the City. Elimination of lhese. charges
wotild disfort-the dirgcl cosls énd program revenues repartodfor the various functioris' concarnid.

Amounts reporled as program révenues include T)charges to .customers or applicants for goads,
services, or priviléges: provided, 2)operaling granfs and conlribuions; and 3)capital grants and
contributions. ‘(nternally dédicated resources are repoited as genarvl reverises.rather than as program
revenues. leewxae ‘general révenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating fevenues-and -expenses’ from nonoperaling items. Operating
revenues and expenses: generallyl result from providing services and producing 'and delivering godds in
cofinectionwith a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Gity's enterprise funds zre charges {o customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, ddminisirative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All raveénues
and éxpenses rol meeting this-definilion -are reported as nonoperating fevenues and expenses,

When beth restricted and unresiricted resourcas are available for use, i s the Cily's policy to use
restricted resources firs{, then uniestiicled resatirces, as they are needed:

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2009

NOTE A~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Assets. Liabilities and Net Assels or Eauity

a.

Cash and investments

Cash and investmanis are combined in the financial statements, Cash deposits consist of demand
and time:deposits with financial institutions and are carrled at cost. Investments are stated at fair
value, Fair valug i§: the amount at which a financial .instrument could be exchanged in a curreni
transaction between willing, parties, other than in-a forced -or liquiation sale. Far.purposes: of the
statement. of cash flews, all cash deposits and Highty llquid investments (including restricted assets)
with a'maturity of three months or less from date of dequisition are considered {o-be cash equivalents.

Accounls Receivable

Accounts réceivable are recorded at gross amsunt with uncollectible amounts recognized under the
direct.write<off method. N6 allowance for uncollectible .accounts -has been provided since it is
believed that the amount-of such allowance would rot he matérial to the basic linancial statements.

Interfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, ‘numerous transactions dccur between individual funds far: goods

provided:or services rendered. These receivables and payables-are classified ‘as "due from".other
funds™and ‘due 1o other funds” in the fund financial statenents.

The amount repor{ed on-ihe statament of net assets for internal balances represents. the residual
balanee-outstanding ligtween the governniental activilies and business-type-activities.

Invéntories

Inventories afe -recorded at cosl, which approximates market, using the firsl-in, first-out melhod.
Inventories consist: of expendable supplies held far consumption. The .cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories of governméntal fund types in the fund financial statements are offsel by fund balance
reserve accounts to indicate that they do not reprasent spendable available financial resources.

Prepaid llems
Payments made fo vendors that will benefit periods bieyond the end of the current fiscal year are
recorded under the consumption method as prepaid itemns.

Prepaid iteims of governmental fund types in the fund financial statements are offset by fund balance
reservi accounls 10 indicate thal they de.not represent spandable.available financial resources.




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Slatemants
December 31, 2009

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

f.

Capilal Assels

Capital assets, which include properly, plant, equipment, and infraslructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-lype .activilies columns in the government-wide. financial
statements. Capital assels are defined by fhe City-as assels with an initial, Individual. cost of at least

§5,000 for-property, plant and equipment and $250,000 for. infrastruciure assets and. an estimated

useful fife‘in excess of 3 years. Such assets are recorded at hislorical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed, Donated capital assels are recorded at estimated fair market value
at the date of donation. :

The costs, of normal. maintenange and repairs that do nol add: o the value of the asset or materially
exlend asset lives are:nol capitalized.

Capital assets.af the City ‘are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Governmenial | Business-lype

Aclivities Aclivilies
Years
Assels
Bulldings 25-50 31-35
fmprovemints othor than buildings 15 - 100 25 - 50
Machinery and equipment 3-20 2-30
Infrastruciure 5075 N

Compensaled Absences
It-is the City's policy-to permil employees to accumulate eamned but unusad vacation-and sick leave

benefifs in accordance-with bargaining unit agreements, All vacation-and-sick feave Is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and- proprielary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amaunts is reported in the govarnmental funds in the fund financlal statements only if they have
maiured, for-example, as a resull of employee resignalions or retirements. The governmental fund
thal has typically been used fo liquidate the compensated absences liabifily is the general fund.

Deferred Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in conneclion will receivables for revenuss that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period or for resources that have heen
received, bul not yet sarmed.

Long-term Obligations )
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial

statéments, long-lermi debt.and other leng-ierm obligations arz reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental aclivilies, business-lype aclivities, or proprietaty fund lype siatement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts, as'well as issuange costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds., Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Band
issuance costs are reporled as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

in the:fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported -as other financing sources, Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing. sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported'as other financing uses. fssuance
costs, whether or not withheld from. the aclual debl proceeds received, are reporied as debt service
expenditures.

CiTY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES-{Continuad)

8

Fund Eouity

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental -funds report reservations -of fund balance for amounts that are not avaifable for

appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties. for use for a specific purpose. Designations

of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENTS

Equity is classified as net assels and displayed in three components:

¢ inyested In capital ‘assels, net of related debt - Amount of capital assels, net of accumulated
depreciation; less outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or-other borrowings that
are attributable to the acqulsition, construction, or improvement of those assels.

» Reslricted net assels - Amount of net assets that are subject to restrictions. that are imposed by
1) éxternal groups, ‘such as creditors, grantors;, contribulors or laws or regulations of other
governments ‘or. 2) law through constitutionat provisions or enaliling legisfation.

s Untestricted net assets - Net assels thal are neither classified as restricted nor as investad in
capital dssels, net of related debt.

7. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in-conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United. States.of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions- that affect the
amounts reported in the finantial statements and accompanying nofes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

8. Summarized Comparative Information
The basic financial statements include certain prior-year sunmarized comparalive information in total but
not at thé level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally- accepted .accounting
principles.  Accordingly, such informalion should be read in conjunction with the government's financial
stalements for the year ended December 31, 2008, from which the summarized information was derived.
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NOTE B - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Explanation of Cenlain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balanca Sheet-and the Government-
Wida Statement of Net Assels:

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balances - tolal governmenial
funds and net assels. - governmental activities as reporled in the Governmeni-wide statement of net
assets, One element of that reconcilfation explains that:'long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes
payable, are nol due and payable in the current period and therefore are nol reported in the funds.” The
.details of this: $168,448,713 difierence are as follows:

Bonds and nolas payabile 5 138,193,162
Leases payable 8,103,728
Compensated absences 13,641,347
tess amount that has been accrued in the financial statemants (724,985)
Other post-emiployment benefits 788,841
GBMSD annexatlon.costs §,8480,063
Accrued intérest on long-térm obligations 2,558,563

Net adjustment i reduce
fund balances - lotal.governmental funds.to.

arrive at nof assels - governmental aclivilies S 168,448,719

Expenditures, and Changes.in Fund Balances and {he Government-Wide Statement of Aclivities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
raconciliation: helween net changes n fund bafances - tofal governmental funds. and changes in net
assets of govarnmantal aclivities -as reported in the Government-wide statement of activities. ‘One
element of that reconglfiation explains that *Governmantal funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets-is allocated over their estimated useful
fives-and reporied. as depreciation expense.” The details of this $5,499,176 difference are as follows:

Gapital Outiay % 12,999,659
Depreciation expense {7.500,483)

Net ddjustment o increase
aet ¢hangas infund balbnces - total governmental funds lo
arrive at changes in nat assels of governmantal activitis 8§ 5499176

Another slement of that recanciliation states that “The net:effect of various miscelianeous: ransactions
involving .capital assetsi{i.e., sales, Irade-ins; and donations) is to decrease nat assels.” The details. of
this $590,850 difference are:as follows:

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
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NOTE B - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

In.the statement of activilles, only the loss on the sale of capital assets

is reported. However, In the governniental funds. tho proceeds from the

sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in nef assels

differs from tha change in fund balanse by the cost of the capital

assels sold, 3 (79.943)

The statement of activities reports losses arising from tha disposal of
exiting capital assets. Conversaly, governmantal funds do not reparl

any gain or foss unt & disposal of capilal assels. 511,007}
Net adjusiment 10 decreass

nel changes in fund balances - tofal government funds lo

arrive at changes in nel assets of governmenlal aclivities § {590,950)

Ancther elament of that reconciiation states thal “the issuance of long-term deht {(e.g., honds, lzases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumas the durrent financial resources of governmental funds, Maither transactions,
however, ‘has any effect on net agsels. Also, governmental funds repont the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is Tirsl issued, whereas thigse amounts are cdeferred
and amortized:in the statement of aclivities.” The details of this $671,328 difference are as follows:

Debt igsued or incurred

General obligation debt issued 5 (16,214,768)
Principal repayments

General obligafion detit 12,116,291

GBMSD arinexation 566,714

Payments-on lease 717,624

Refunded debt 3,445,000
Debt issuance cosis 40,459

Net adjustment to decrease.
nat changes infund balances - total goverimental funds to
arrive at cliangss innét assels of goverfiment activities 3 671,328

Another glement of that reconciliation states thal “Some expenses reported in the statement of activilies
do pot require the.use of curtent financial resources and therefors are not reporied as. expendituras in
governmental funds.” The details of this §287 376 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences 3 788,062
Accrued interest (443,472)
Amgrtization of issuance costs (147,423}
Post-employmant benéfit-acerual (482,533}

Nel adjustment to decrease
nat changes in kind balances - lotal governmen? funds to
arrive at changes in net assals of governmental aclivities

5 (287,378)
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NOTEC - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE NOTE.C - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE (Continued)
1. Budgets and Budgetary Acgounting 2. Excessof Expenditures Qver Budael Appropriations

The Cily follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial The “following: expenditure accounts of the budgeted governmental funds had actual expenditures In

statemenls: excess of budget appropriations for the year ended December 31, 2009 as follows:

a. Prior'to November, City management submits to the Gily Council a proposed operating budget for the Excess
calendar year commencing -the: following -January 1.. The operafing budget includes proposed Fund Function/Activity/Department Expondilures
expendilures and- the means of financing them. After submission to the governing body, public General Fund
hearings are held lo.obtaln-taxpayer comments. Following the public hearings, the proposed budgel, General govetnment Purchasing S 1,658
including.authorized atdltions and deletions, is legally enacted by Cily Council-action. Gaiveral government Inférmation technalogy 39,278

b. Budgets are adopled: o a basis consistent with accounting principles . generally accepted in. the ge:era:go:z;:zgg : m(;rg;;g i‘;‘ﬂ";t 45;,'232
United: Stales of America for tha general fund, sanliary sewer, communlly development and parking enerar 90 F'I d ; )
division spogial revenue funds, and the debt service fund. Budget. is defined as the ong]nally Public safgty. ire department it 52'022
approved budget plus or minus approved amendments. Individual amendments of $848,583 in Public safety ) Palice and Fire Commission 5,353
additional expenditires were made to the ofiginal budgel. Budget appropriations not expended Cullure and recreation  Park and recreation adminisiration 57,545
during the yaar are closed- to:fund balance unless aulhorlzed by the governing body to be forwarded Culture and.reéreation  Triangle sports area 7,794
into the succeading year's budgat. Cuiture and-Recraation  Bay Beach 59,908

Special Revenus Funds

6. - During the year, formal ‘budgetary integration is-employed.as.a management control device for the " Parking division Public warks 143,227
general fund, sanitary sewer, community-develepment; and parking Jdivision special revenue funds. Comimunity development Conservalion and development 1,275,042
and debi service fund. Management control for the capital projects funds Is achieved {lrough project Debt Service: Fund Deblissuaricé cosis and fiscal charges 46,341

authorizations Included in debt issue resolutions.
The . above ‘excess: expenditures were funded using. budget transfers from olher departments -and

d. Expend(tures may ‘nol exceed appropriations provided in detalied budget.accounis rnaintained for ‘avaitable fond balance in the governmental funds.
each activity ‘ar depadment of the Cily, Amendments to the budget during the year require initial
approvalby management-and are subsequently autharized by the City Courcll, 3. Daficit Fund Equity

The following funds had deficit fund:-equity as-of December 31, 2009:
@ Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, confracts, and other commitments for the

expandifure of resources are recorded:in order lo-reserve: that portion of: the apphceble appropnauon Deficit.
is ufilized ‘in- the -genwral. and special.revenue funds. Encumbrances -outslanding at year end are Fund Fund Equity
reported.as reservations. of fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitmenits. will be horiored daring the subsequent year. Special Revenue Funds
C i g o N - EECBG ] 1,650
The City did nat Wave any material vialation-of legal or contractual provisions for-the fiscal year ended . Police i 6
J grants 63,700
Decermber 31, 2008. Capital Projects Funds
’ Fire capital improvements 1,122
TaxIncrement District No. 9 634,008
TaxIngrement District No. 13 6,476,529
Tax Increment District No. 14 134,759
Tax ingrement District No. 15 70,084
Tax Increment District Mo. 16 40,606
Tax Increment District No, 17 59,074
City:Deck - 2,006,924
Internal Seivice Fund
Workers compensation 76,407

The City anticipates funding the above deficits from futire révenues and tax levies of the funds.
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NOTE D - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1,

Cash and lnvestments

The: City maintains varlous cash and: investment accounts, including pooled funds that are :avalilable for
use by all funds. Each.fund's portion of these:aecounts are displayed in ihe finangial statemiants as “Cash
and investiments.”

Investad cash consists of deposils and. investments that are restricled by Wiséonsin Statutes to the
following:

Time deposits; repurchase. agreemerits; securilies issued by federal, ‘stale and focal governmenial
entities; :statutorily aulhorized commercial paper and corporate secuiilies; and the Wiscensin local
government investment pool.

The carrying. amount df-the City's cash and investiiients lotaled $94,716,886 on December 31, 2009 as
sumimarized below:

Peétly cash funds 5 15,895

Deposits with financial institutians 76,761,100

Investments.
Federal Home L.oan Morigage Corp. 1,500,000
Municipal bonds. 750,000
Repurchase-agreements 9,100,000
Commercial paper 5,642,530
Money market mutiial funds 727,574
MBIA Class poal 385917
Wisconsin' local:goverimant investment:gool 823,870
Total $94,716.886

Recancifiation To the basic findncial statements
‘Basic finangial statements
Cash and invesimenis $88,056,341
Restricted:cash and investments 5,660,545
594,716,886

Deposits and investments of the Cily are subject Lo various risks.  Presented belowls a discussion of the

-specific risks and the City's policy related to the risk,

Custodial Credit Risk
Cusledial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in he eveat of-the failure of a deposiloty financial
institution; .2 government will not be able to recover its déposits of will not bie-ablé to recovér collateral

-seeurities. that are:in.the possession of an oulside party. The custodial credit risk for investmenis. is ihe

risk that, in the event of the failure of the-counterparty (e:g., broker-dealer) {o:a transaction;-a govarnmant
will not be-able to recover the valde of its-investment or.éollateral securities that are in the possession of
anotherparty. 'Wisconsin' stallites. fequire repurchase agreements 1o be Tully collateralized by bonds. or
sccurilies issued-or guaranteed by the federal government or its-instrumentalities. The Cily does: not have
an additional custodial credit risk policy.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2009

NOTE D - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Deposits with financial institutions are insured by the Faderal Deposit insurance Corporation (FDIC).inv the
amount of $250,000 per offictal custodian through Decamber 31, 2013, In addition.. the City's non-interest
bearing transaction accelints are fully insured under the Temporary Liguidity Guarantee. program through
December 31, 2010, On January 1, 2014, the caverage.limit for all accounts will returm to $100,000 for
interssi ‘bearing accounts dnd $100,000 for non-inlerest bearing accounis, In addition, the State of
Wisconisin has & State Guarantse Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public. depository
above the amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Government. -Howevar, due to the relatively small
size of the Stale Guarantee Fund in relation to the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of insured losses
may not be availablé.

As.of December 31, 2009, $53,680,338 of the Cily's daposits with financial instilutions were it excess of
federal depository insurance fimits and-uncollateralized. -

On December 31, 2009; the City held repurchase agreement investments of $9,700,000 of which: the
underlying securities are held by the investiment's counterparly, not in the name of the City.

Credit Risk.

Ganarally, credit risk:is tre risk thatan issuer of aninvestment will not fulfilt its obligation to the holder of
the investmert. This is measured by the assignment of a raling by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Wisconsin stalutes limit investments in securities:to the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recogniZed sialistical rating organizations. The City does not have an addifional eredit risk
policy, Presenied below is the actual rating‘as of yaar end for each investiment fype.

Exernpt
From Moody's Raiing Mot
jrvastmant Type Apriount Disclosure AMA. ] e Rated

‘Commaercial papar § 5642630 5 B $ - 5 H642,520 B -
Monay foarket mutual faods 727.674 - ~ - 727574
Foddorat Hbm;‘: Loan Morlgage Camp. 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 - ’ -
Municipal bands 750,000 . - . 750.000
NBlA Blass.podl 386917 - - - 595,017
Wiscansin local government )

invesinign puot 823,870 - - - 823.870
Totals 9. 4,839,891 5 - $ 1,500,000 § 5,642,530 S 2,647,361

Canceniration of Credit Risk
The invéstment policy of the City contains no Jlimitalions on the amount tha{ can be invested in any one

issuer, Investments in any one issuer: {othar than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and. externat
investiment popls} that represent 5% ormore of total City investments are as follows:

Parcent
Raported of Tatat
Issuer Investrant Typa Amount Invastmants
targan Stanlay Cammereial paper § 5642530 30%

Federal Home Loan Morlgage: Carp. Morlgage sceurilies 1;600,000 5%
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NOTE D - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continuad)

intarest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is-the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair valye of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in. market interest rates. in accordance with ils investment pollcy, the City manages its
exposure to.interest rate risk is by purchasing 4 combination of shorler term and longer term investments
and hy timing cash flows from maturities 'so that'a partion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to
maturity evenly ovar time'as necessary lo provide the cash'flow and liquidity heéded for operations.

information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments to marketl interest rate
fluctuations is providéd by the following table that shows lhe distribution of the City's investments by
maturity?

Remaining Maturity (in Months

12 Months 13024 2510 60 Mora Than

Invesiment Type Anount or LBss Months Months 60.Months
Commarcial paper $ 5,642,530 § 5642530 $ - 8 - 3 -
Worisy harket mutual funds 721,574 727,574 - B -
Repurchaseg-agrasmants 9,100,000 9,100,000 - - -
Federdl Homa Loan Mortgdage Corp. 1,500.000 1,500,000 - - -
Muricipal bonds. 750,000 - 750,000 - -
tBIA Class poot 395,017 395917 - - -
Wisconsin local govarnment

invesiment pool 823,870: 823:870: - - -
Totals $ 18,830,891 § 18,189,801 §. 750,000 $ - S -

Investmerit in Wisgonsin Local Government Investment Pool
The Gily has investments in the Wiscensin jocal govemmen! investmant poel of $823,870 at year-end.

The Wisconsin local government lnvestment pool (LGIP) is part-of the Stale Invesimant Fund (SIF), and s
managed by the State of Wisconsin. frivestmerit Board. The SIF is.hol registered-with ifie Seturitiss and
Exchange Commission, but-operates under the- statutory authorily of Wisconsin. Chapter 25. Ttie SIF
reports the fairvalia of iis-underlying assets annually. Farlicipants inthe LGIP have the right o wilhidraw
their funds In tolal on one-day's notice: At December 31, 2009, the fair vajue of the Cily'’s share of the
LGIP's assets was sulistantially equal to the carrying value..

Restrictad Assats
Restricted assets on.December 31, 2008 totaled §6,660,545 and consisted of cash and investments held
for the following purposes:

Water Ulifity debt reserve § 5,782,427
Water Utility bond redemplion 878,118

Total Rastricted Asséls $ 6,680,545

3.
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Property Taxes
Property taxes consist of taxes on real estate and personal properly. They are levied during December of

the prior-year and bacome an enforceable lien on properly the following January 1. Property taxes ars
payahle in various options depending oa the lype and amount. Personal property laxes are payadle on or
before January 31 in full. Real estate taxes are payable in full by January 31 or in two equal instaliments
on or before January 31 and July 31. Real eslale taxes not paid by January 31 are purchased by the
County as part of her Fabruary tax setilement. Delinquent personal property taxas remain the collection
rasponsibility of the City,

The County bills and collects taxes on behall of the City, Collections are turned over weekly by the County
frorm mid-December through the first part of Fabruary, “The City receives and remils levies for the Green
Bay Area Public School District. Brown County, Northeast Wisconsin Technicsl College District and the
State of Wisconsin,

Capital /
Capital asset activity for the year ended Detember 31, 2009 was as {ollows:

’ Beginning l Ending
Balange Increusus l Decraases Batance ]

Govornmentat activitias:

Capila} assots, ool being depreriated:
Lt $ 35890089 S BGG.500 § 420800 § 30275780
Consirizlion in prograss 807,602 7,241,953 - 5 :
Tolal cuphal-assats, not heing depreci 39,697,691 8,048,453 420,800 47,325,344

Capital asseis, being depreciated:

Buidings 59,703,652 181.000 ~ 59,884,852
Machinery and equipment 25 824 3,073,271 24,085,927 26,364,168
Infrastrugtdre. 450,129,503 1,696,935 193,243 451,833,195
Sutxolals 545,210,159 4,951,206 2,279,170 547,882,195
Leas acturmulated depreciation fon
Buiidings 26,388,959 1,181,768 . IBATLTET
Machinary and aguipment 21,116,523 2,625,620 1,915,777 21,225,566
Infrastrutture 179,534,242 4,203,005 193,243 183,654,094
Subiatals 227640724 7,500,483 2,108,020 233,052,187
Total capital assels, being depraciated, net 317,569,435 {2,549,277) 170,150 314,850,008
Geversmental activitivs capitel sssats, et $ 367267186 & 5489375 S 690,950 § 362,175,252
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NOTE D.~ DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

l Boginning ’ Ending l
Balanca, ncreases Decranses Balanca
‘Business-lyps activities:
Caplial assuts, not being dopreciated:
Land $ 1487124 § - -8 457,14
Caristiuclion in peégrass 725,402 2,601,201 ~ 3,326,603
Total capital assels, not being depreciated 2,182,610 2,601,201 - 4,783,817
Gapital. assols, being deprecialed:
Bulldings: 29.010,762 46,469 38,776 29,068,455
Impmvémen!s otier than bulldings 124,311,054 2,264,678 288,236 136,263,304
Machinery-and equipingnt 36,934,565 2;534,990 1,311,829 19,157,726
Subitpials 200,256,381 5,893,035 1,639,841 204,508,575
Less acoumsiiatest depraciation for
Bulidings 1,556,373 694,579 34,778 11,412,276
‘Improvements:other than bulisings 21,842,884 3044817 LA00,131 23,587,570
Machingry and equipment 19,284,603 1,202,783 200,034, 20375452
Subtotals 5%, 784,860 5,232,270 1,538,841 55,376,298
Total capital assets, baing depreciated, ret 148,472,521 660,750 - 148,133,277
Busingsatype activithes capital assets, et S 150855137 % 3281487 ~ $. 153.917.094
Depreciafion expense was charged fo functions of the'Cily as follows:
Governmenial activilies
General‘-go_vemment $ 110,039
Public:safaly 678,110
Public.works 5,285,506
Sanitation 745,507
Culture and recreation 614,819
Conssnvation and development 55,902

Total depreciation expense ~ governmental activities

Businass-type activities

Depreciation expense on Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes.in Net Assets

Dapreciation oxpense reimbursed by City
Depreciation expense allocated to other operaling accouris
Total depreciation expiénse - business-type activities
Salvage value recéived:on capital assets retired
Total-adtitions to accumulated depreciation

54,758,726
157839
216187
§,192,452
39,827

%,

279
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NOTE D - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continucd)

5. Interfund Receivable, Payables, and Transfers
Interfund receivables and payables between individual funds of the City, as reported in the fund financial
statements, as of December 31, 2009 are delalled below:

interfund
Receivables

Interfund
Payables

Operating Accounts Batwaen Funds
General Fund
Sanitary Sewer special revenue fund
Enterprise-Fund

$ 3,260,280 § -
1,980,685 -

Watar Utility - 2,878,449
Transit Commission “ 1,343,111
Nonmajor governmental funds 9,055:221 9.974,526
Totals $14.206.086 S 14.296,086

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from- the lime lag between the dales that
{1)interfind goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are
recorded i thg accolniing system, and (3) payments belween funds are made.

interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2009 were @s follows;

Transfors

General I Sanitary | Debt Service Nonmiajor I interpal
Fund Sewer Fund ‘Govenniental | Service Funds [ Total
Trangfers Gt

Genaral fund’ 3 -8 ~ 5 - § 4360644 § 200000 S 1580644
Sanitary, Seiver special

revenua fund - - 721.339 476,330 - 1,188,189
Majar eriterprisa fund

Water Utllity- 1,676,556 < - - - 1,678,558
Nonmrajar gavernmental finds

Special revenue funds 340,847 B 288,971 1.873,540 - 2501358

Capital projects funds 8,348 50.167 3,130,386 4,748,857 - 7,938,682
Tolals $ 2,007,751 S 50187 S 4130606 S BA60.981 5 200,000 S 14,877.625

Transfers are.used lo: {1) move unrestricted revenues coliected tn the general fund to finance various
programs gccounted for in other funds in accordange with budgetary authorizations: (2) move revenues
from the funid that is required.to collest them ta the fund thal is. required or allowed to expend fhem; and
(3). move receipts restricted to-or aflowed for-debt service framvthe funds collecting the receipts to the debt
service: funds as debt service payinients become due,
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6.. Deferred Revenues

Governmental activities- and governmental funds defer revénue recognition in connection with resources
that have ‘been received, but not yel earned. Govemmental funds also. report deferred revenue in
connection with seceivabiles for resources that are not considéred to be availatdd to liquidale liabilities of
the current period., At the end of the current fiscal year, the various camponents of deferred revenue and
unearned revenue were as follows:

[ Unavailable | Unearned |

Current year tax.Jevy réceivable

Gengral fund- S - % 3TN0
Debt service fund - 13,699,370
Nonmajar governmanial funds - 5,991,343
Interrial service funds - 1,936,630
Special assessients
Nonmajor governmentat funds 2,618,023 -
Notes -and loans receivable
Community-development 0,898,728 “
Debt Service fund 631,000 -
Nonhajor govemmental funds 9,530,433 “
Revenues received in advance
General fund - 1,935

- 188,845
§ 22778184 5 555357

Heallh ingurance premivins
Total Deferrad Revente
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7.

Long-erm Obligations
The following is @ summary of changes in long-term obligations of the City for the year ended

December 31, 2008;

Ouistanding
1108

Outstanding Buo Within
issoed Retired 12131/ O Yeor

Governmental activitles:
General Oltigation Dab{

Bonds $ 100,720,000 § 12280000 § 144B3040 3 98515000 S 11,175,000
Maotes 25,819,693 3934760 1,076,291 39,578,162 1,385,314
‘Total General Obligation Dabt 137,539,693 16,214,760 15,561,281 138,193,162 12,560,314
GBMSD snnexstion costs 6,458,777 - 666,714 5,890,063
Laases payable 8,821,352 - 717,624 8,103,728
Gompanaatad absences 13,702.424 713,589 77A,648 13,641,347
Clhsr post employment benafits EE6,.308 482,533 ~ 788,641
Total govermmental activities
Long-turin pbligations S 106,826,554 5 17410882 § 17620275 $ 18B.617,141 §  14.494.949
Busincss-type activilies:
Revenug borgds $ 77630000 § § 2388000 S 75475030 %
P um ars debt issued 2,852,715 136,930 2,715,785
Campansated absances 450,368 . 82,662 797.724
Other. post.empldyement benelits 185,005 88,220 - 263,215
Working canpital svances 512,031 . - 512,031 -
Tolat businessype activitias
Long-letm-atsligations. 02022127 & 85,220 S 2384.502 § 79.753.755 % 2401030

Total interest paid during the yaar on loag-term debt totaled §9,071,139.
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Gengral Obligation Deb}
General-abligation debtcurrently outstanding is: detailed as follaws:

Bands

$11,560,000 issued 4/1/96; $1,080,000 {o $1,100,000 due annually through 2012;
effeclive interest 5.249%

86,515,000 issued 5/1/00; $690,000 due in 2010; effective interest 5.349%

§5,945;000 issued 5/1/01; $550,000 1o $900,000 due annually through 2016;
effeciive interest 4.959%

$5,855;000 issued 6/1/02;-$420,000 to $780,000 due annually through 2017;
efiectiverinterast 4.444%

$7,605,000 issued 1/1/03; $190,000 to $1,035,000 due annually through 2013;
effective-interest 3.501%

$11,715,000 issuéd 3/17/03; $420,000 to §1,200,000 due annually through

| 2022; effective interest 5.409%

$8,060,000 issued #/03; $515,000 to $720,000 due annually. through 2018;
effective interest 3.912%

-36,210,000 issued 1/04; $640,000 to $1,060,000 due annually throagh 2012;
effective interest 3.165%

%5:725,000 issued 5/04; $335,000 o $635,000 due annuaily through 2019;
effective interest 4.079%

$4,270,0004issued 11/04;-$305,000 to $750;000 due annually throuph 2012;
effective interest 3.055%

$5,160,000 issued 3/05; $770,000 to 5785,000 due annually through 2013;
effectiveinterest 3.578%

£0,455,000'iss0ed '6/05; $385,000 to $750,000 due annually thratigh 2025;
effective-interast 4.260%

$9,225,000 issued 5/06; $340,000 to $720,000 due anhually through 2026:
effective interest 4.5474%

81,840,000 issved 5/06; $105,000 to $175,000 due annually through 2026;
effsctiverinterest 5.5796%

-$7,390,000ssued 6/07; $265,000, to $570,000 due annually through 2027;
effective interest-4.3079%:

§3,845,000 Tssued 10/07;$30,000 to §815,000 due annually through 2015;
offective interest 3.99%

$3.145,000 issued 10/07; $190,000 1o $425,000 due annually through 2019;
effectiva interest 5.6094%

‘840,730,000 issued 1/08; $650,000 {6 $2,510,000 due annually through 2014
affective interest 3.6406%

§5,240,000 issuad 8/08; $50,000 lo %580,000 due annually through 2028
effective interest 4.4945%

58,680,000 issued G/09; $65,000 o $790.000 due annually 2010 through 2029
eflective interast 3.444%

$3,600,000issued 11/09; $550,000 o §815,000 due annually 2012 through 2016
effective interast 2.4107%

Total Gerveral Obligatiort Bonds

3,270,000
690,000

1,450,000

4,320,000

1.635,000.

8,875,000

5,495,000

2,485,000.

5,248,000
1,785,000
3,110,000
8,720,000
+8,595,000
1,715,000
7,135,000
3,785,000
2,950,000
8,770,000
5,205,000

8,680.000

3,600,000
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Notas

$515,000 issued 9/18/02; $63,402 to $69,229 due annually through 2012;
effecliveiinterest 4.5%

$100,000 issusd 10/16/02; $12,271 to $13,399 due annually through: 2012;
effective interest 4.5%

$485,000 issued 11/2/02; $22,647 to 524,728 dus annually through 2012;
effective intarest 4.58%

$150,000 Issusd 2/19/03; §18,138 to 519,805 dus annually through 2012;
gffectiveinterest 4.5%

$3,000,000 issued 4/23/03; $38,355 o $81,784 due annually through 2023;
effective interest 8%

$500,000 issued 4/23/03; $20,172 i $38,028 due annually through 2023;
effectiveinterest 5%

$270,000:issued 5/28/0%; $10,842 to $20,441 due anmually through 2023;
effective interes! 3%

$150,000 issuad 730103 '$5,974 to $11,262 due annuaily through 2023;
effactive inferest 5%

$264,000 issued'9/18/03; 517,674 10 $25,617 due annually through 2018;
effective interést 4.75%

$370,000 issued 10/1/03; 524,731 to $35,846 duz annually throtigh 2018;
effective interast 4,75%

$470,000 issued 10/22/03; $7,242 to $13,653 due annually throagh 2023;
effectiveinlerest 5% )

$800,000. issued 12/11/03; $34,281 o $62,658 due annually through 2023;
effective interest 4.75%

566,000 issted 3/30/04; $3,924 10 $5,958 due annually through 2019;
affective interest 4.75%

$414;000 issued 5/4/04; $16,118 10 §30,855 due annually through 2024;
gffective interest 4.76%

§110,000 issued 5/28/04: $4,207 to $8,326 due annually through 2024
effective inlerest 5,0%

§325,000 issued 7112/04; $32,497 10 $38,752 due annuslly through 2014;
effective interest 4.5%

$482,000 issued 9/3/04; $18,861 o §37,329 due annually throughy 2024;
effective interest 5.0%

500,000 issued 9110/04; $20,394 10 840,364 due annuslly through 2024;
effective interest 5.0% )

5238,000 tssued 12/7/04; §9,599 o $18,898 due annually through 2024;
affective interest 5.0%

$656,000 issued 12/7/04; $36,260 to $69,412 due annually thraugh 2024;
effective interest 4.75%

52,250,000 issued 1/11/05; 391,686 {o $167.579 due annually through 2024;
effective interest 4.76%

$283,000 issued J10/06; $11,277 10 $21,259 due annually through 2024;
effeclive inferest 5.00%

198,886
38,494
71,041
56,898

805,612

395,182

212,419

117,031

192,846

269,850

141,879

660,072
48,775

341,199
90,738

177,764

405,806

439,874

207033

767.556

1,940,238

243,229
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Notes (Cantinued)
$2,670,000 issued 5/19/05; $97,370 to $183,558 due annually through 2025;
efr_e_ct!ve interest 5.00% )
'5417,000 issued 9/15/05; $15,189 to §30,520 due annually through-2025;
offective Interest 5.00%
$250,000 iosued 9/20/05; 58,862 fo $18,024 due annually through 2025;
sifective interest 4.75%
$3,530,000 issued 12/15/08; $170.000 10:$2,990,000 due annually 2012 through
2015; effective interest 5.140%
$800,000 issued 4[20!06 $27,893 lo $60,869 due annually through 2026;
aﬁective interest 5.00%
'$9,837,280 issued 4/21506; $360,089 to $728,056 due annually through
2025; effective intorest 4.50%
$354,000 issued 9/27/07; $11,924.10 $29,616 due annually through
- 2027; effective interest 5.50%
$1,400,000 issued 8/27/07; §47,158 t0:8117,127 dus anmally thraugh
2027, effectiva iilorast 3.50% )
$231,900 Issuet 11/27/07: 87,745 10 $19;236 due annually through-
-2027; efiective inferest 5.50%
$164,100 issuet 2/5/08; $6427 to $13;478 dug annually through 2027:
effective interest 5.50%
51,400,000 issiad 6/5/08; £45,008.10 $103,025 dus anintally through 2028;
offective fiterost 4.75%
$300;000 issued 6/5/08; $9,664 o £22,270 due annually through 2028,
aifectiveinterest 4.75%
$H370,240 issuad 8/28/08; $3,59010:$29,368.due-annually through, 2028;
effectiveinterast4,75%
‘$750,000 issued 10/20 ‘8 $12,044 10 $59,104 due annually thraugh:- 2028
effectiverinterest4.75%
$6 970,915 issued 12/30/08; $144,867 ta $575,414. due-annually- thraugh 2028
-affective inlerest 5.50%
$1,220,760 issued 1/26/2009; $34,218 td $95,753 due annually through 2028;
affective Intatest4.75% o
$550,000 issusd 1/26/2009; -§15,304 10°542,825 dué annually through 3028;
effective interost 4.75%
$160,000 issued 3/17/2009; $5,413 to $12,381 due annually through 2028;
-effectve intérost 4.75%
$60,000 isstied 5/2912009; $2,406 to $4,459 dus-annually through.2029;
" gffective interest 4.75%
S169,000 issuad BAFTI2008; £8,404 to $12,432 due annually through 202%;
effective interést 4.75%
$125,000 fesusd H11/2009; $1,422 10-59,898 dus-annually 2011 through 2029;
effecliverinterest 4.75%
$820,000 issued 10/6/2009; 7,411 10 $68.512 due-annually 2011 through 2029,
-affective inforgst 5.50%:
$735,000 issued 10/6/2008; ' $55,468 10,598,504 due annuafly 2011 through 2019;
effectivainterast 4.50%
$86,000 issued 10/6/2009; $1,237 to $6,790 due annually 2091 through 2029;
-affective interest 4.75%

Tolal General Obligation Notes

Tatail General Obligation Dabt

2,302,384
382,811
228,514

3,530,000
730,378

4,905,111
351,293

1,389,294
228,189
159,870

1,342,685
287,718
370,240
750,000

6,970,915

1,228,760
550,000
160,000

60,000
168,000
125,000
820,000
735,000

86,000

PRV 4- LA+ S5

39,678,162
5 138,193,162
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Annual principal and interest malurities of the oulstanding general obligation debt of 138,193,162 on
Decembar 31, 2008 are as detziled below:

Year Ended | Gavernmental Activities ]
December 31 [ Principal | Interest | Total |
2010 8 12560314 § 6,235,150 $ 18,795,464
2011 12,607,815 5,610,746 18,218,561
_2012 12,016,763 5,069,026 17,075,789
2013, 10,233,391 4,581,101 14,814,492
2014 8,366,838 4,184,144 12,550,982
2015~ 2019 37,662,782 15,261,657 52,924,439
2020 - 2024 28,798,896 7,694,218 36,493,112
2025~ 2029 15,946,363 1,647,179 17,593,542

S 138193162 & 50273219 S 188.466.381

Legal Margin for New-Debt
The Cily'sJegal margin or creation of additional general ahligating: debt on December 31, 2009 was
$174,529,250 as follows:

Egualized valiation of ha City $  £,234,597,300
Statutosy fimitation percenfoge {x} 6%
Gensral obligation debtlimitation, per Section 67.03 of tha

Wisconsin Stalutes 311,728,865
Total ouistanding ganeral obligation debt § 138,193,162
Lass: Amounts.available for fipancing general abligation debt

Dabt service fund {992.547}
Net ouistanding general obligation debt apyilicable to debt limitation 137,200,815
Lega! Maigin for New Delit $ 1745,
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NOTE - BETAILED NOTES ON'ALL FUNDS (Continued) NOTE D - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)
Advangee. Refunding - Genearal Obligation. Debt .

During 2009, the City issued $3,600,000 of general. obligation- sefunding bonds ta.call a portion of the
autstanding 2001A cofporate purpose bonds. The advanca refunding reduced-future-debt service.paymerits ‘Capital Lease
by:$85,723 and: provides.an economic.gain (difference belween the present valtie of the debt service of the Th v of ¢
refunded bonds and the refunting riotes) of $119,676.

Loases

The -City of Green Bay is obligated for capilal leases thal were used to -finance the acquisition of
$1,024.428 of machinery ‘and. equipment. Presenied below is-a schedule of future minimum lzase

. . payments as of December 31,2009
Annexation Costs

$2,307,1744or sever inferciaptors due ta Green Bay Metro Sewerage District;

; S ) [Year Ending [ Amount |
agreemen! dated 8/22/80; annual payments of $76,908 due through 2011 3 153,811
$6,076,097 for Fox Rivier Crossing sewer-interceplor due to Green Bay Metro 2010 [ 172,437
Sewerage District; ahnual payménts of $304,498 due through-2017 2,435,984 2011 01,646
51,656,298 for West Fox River Crossing sewer inferceptor-due to-Green Bay 2012 64,716
Meatro-Sewerage Disirict; annual payments of $82,866:due through 2020 911,527 2013 64,716
$688, 787 for Wequiock Crask sewer Interceptor due to-Green Bay Metro 2013-2014 64,716
Sewerage District; annual payments of $50,197 due through 2025 872,181 Total Minimum Lease Payments 458,231
$2,181,367 for. East Tawer Drive sewar interceptor due to:Grean.Bay Melro Less; Amouni representing interest 34,503
Sewerage District annual payments of $189,367 due through 2025 1.818.560 Present Value of Fuiure Minimum
Lease Payments S 423,728
Tolal Annexation Costs e 0,890,063 ’ -

Annual principal malurities of the outstanding annaxation tosts are as follows: ] )
The City is obligaled under two leases with the Green Bay Redevelopment Authority (RDA] for developmenil

I Dut I Principal. ) projects financext. by the RDA, The lease agresments require. the City to make annual lease paymens i
: 5010 W B71.419 the ‘RDA equal 1o the annual principal and interest payments the RDA is required to make aon the debl
2011 575,713 incurred o finance the projects, Presented below is a schedule of fulure lease payments the Cily is
2012 503,599 required to make under the agreements as of Decembaer 31, 2009:
2013 508,597
5014 513810 . I Dua [ Prncipal | Interost | Total |
2015 - 501D 2,046,443 2010 $ 805000 $§ 418,634 § 1,023,634
2020504 969,857 : 2011 650,000 386,338 1,036,338
2005 3d0,925 ; 2012 695,000 350,658 1,045,658
T ESR oeE . 2013 745,000 311,026 1,056,028
Ok T Y 2014 745,000 267,340 1,062,340
2015 ~ 2049 3,695,000 558,726 4,253,726
2020 . 445,000 13,612 508,612

3. 7680000 § 2306334 S Y.O863I34
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Enlerarise Fund Revenue Bonds

Revenue'bond debt service requirements are financed:by income derived-from ihe acquired or:constnicted
agssets of the.enterprise funds.,

Detail of olltstanding-enterprise fund ravenye bonds:totaling $75,475,000 on December 31, 2009 foliows:

Qutstanding
Water Utility 12/31/09

$76,765,000 issued 2004;°$875,000 ta $2,660,000 due annually ihrough

~ Navarmber 1, 2029; interest2.06% to'6.25% $ 28,555,000
$49,310,000issued 2006 $125,000 to 8,055,000 due-annually through

November 1, 2029; infergsl 3.50% o 5:00% 48,920,000

$ . 75.475,000

Annual principal and interest maturilies of the above outstanding-enterprise fund debt of $75,475,000 .on
Dacember-31, 2009 are:shown befow:

[ Dug [ Principal ] Interest | Total |

2o $ 2215000 § 3314648 $§ 5529648
2011 2,315,000 3,216,398 5,531,398
2012 2,420,000 3,109,448 5,520,448
2013 2,530,000 3,001,948 5,531,948
2014 2,640,000 2,894,823 5,634,823
2015~ 2018 14,960,000 12,684,775 27,644,775
2020 - 2024 19,040,000 8,612,077 27,652,077
2025:+ 2029, 29,355,000 3905540 33,260,540

§..75475.000° 5 40739657 § 116,214.657

Other Post-Emplovment Benefits:

Plan Descriptior --The Cily provides health ¢are insurance coverage for employees who retire until they
reach the. age of 65, The retired efnploye coiitributes 100% of he prerniuny for family. coverage or 100%
of the premium forsingle coverage. There are 863 active and 189 tetired employees in the:plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and-Net OPEB. Obligation ~ The City- annual other pest-employment benefit (OPER)
cost (expense) is:calculaled based on the annual required contribution {ARC), and the amouni actuarialy
delermined:in.accordance with-the ‘parameters. of GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents & lovel of
funiding thal, if paid on an ongoing Basis, is projecied to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded- actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount aclually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the City's net OPES obligation,
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Arinual required:contribution $ 884,638
Intarest on net OPEB 21,299
Adjustmant o annual required contribltion {30.065)
Annual OPEE cost (axpense) 875,872
Coniributions made (307.119)
Ghanye in net OPEB.ohiigation 568,753
QPREB obligatian - beginning of year 473,303
-QPREB obligation - and of year 8 1,042,056

The annual required contritiution for the current year was determined as part of the January 1, 2009
actuarjal valuation using the projected unit credit methad. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 4.5%
discount rate, and (b} projecied salary increases st 3%.

The aclisarial methods and assumplions used include techniques that are dasigned 1o reduce the effect of
shori-term volafifity-in acluarial acorued liabiliies and the aciuarial value of assels, .consistont with a
long-term perspective of the calcutations. The unfunded actuanial accrued liability i$ baing aniortized as a
tavel dolfar amount of projected payroll, The remaining amontization period at December 31, 2009 is
29 years, ‘and the remaining amount is $7,731,549:

Trend Information - The Cily's annial OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB. cost contribited to
the plan, and {he net OPEB obligation for 2009 is as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percantage
Year OPEB of QPEB Cost Nel OPEB
Ended Cost Contributad Obligalioh
12/31/2000 § §75872 35,06% 3 1,042,056

Fundae Slatus and Funding Prograss - As of January 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation.date,
the City's unfunded actvarial aecrued habifity (UAAL) was $7.731,549, The annual payioll for active
employees.covered by the plan for the: 2009 fiscal year was 851,069,183 for a ratio -of the UAAL o
covered payroll.of 15.1%.

Actuartal’ valuations of an ongoing plan involve. estimates of the value of reporled amounts and
assumptions about e probability of neeurrence of events far into the fufure, such as assumptions about
future terminations, mortalily, and healthcars cost trends. Acluadally determined amounts are sutijeét to
continual. revision as actuarial results are compared wilh past experience and new estimates are made
about the foture,

Actuarial Methods and Assumgtions - Prajections of bensefits for financial reporling purposes are basad
on {he substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the
types of bonefits: provided al the time of each valuation and the histarical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs belween he émployer and plan ihembers lo that poinl.  The actuarial methods and assumptions
uséd include techniques thal are designed to reduce the efiect of shori-term votatility in acluarial accrued
liahilities and the actuarial value of assels, congistent with the long-lerm pecspective of the calculations,
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In the January 1, 2009 actuarial veluation, the projecled unit credit.method was used. The acluarial
assumptions Included a rate -of 4.5% to discount expacted liabilities to the valuation date. The iniial
healthcare trend rate was 8% for medical and 5% for dental, reduced by decrements to an ulimate rate of
7.5% for medical and 5% for dental after nine years. The UAAL is being amorlized as a level percentage
of projected payrolls. The remaining amortizalion period at December 31, 2009 was 29 years.

Eund Equity

Net assets of the. governmental aclivilies reporled oh tfie. government-wide statement of net assels at
December 31,.2008 incliides the following:

Invested In capital asséls, netof rélated debt

Land $ 39,275,789
Conslruction-in progress 8,049,555
Bujldings 598,884,832
Machiriery and equipment 36,364,168
Infrastructre 451,633,195
Less: ‘Accumuiated depreciation (233,032,187)
Less: Leases.payable (4,573,728}
Less: Related long-lerm debl oulstanding {114.336.787)
Total Invested in-Capital-Asséts,:Net of Related Debt 243,264,837
Reslricted
Dabl service 992,547
Unrestricted 25,308,683

Total Governmenlal Activities Net-Assets § _269.566,067

NOTE & - OTHER INFORMATION

1.

Retirement Commifroents _
All eligible City. emiployées participate‘in the Wisconsin Retiremant System (WRS), a cost-sharing, defined
bengfit, multiple-employer public employée refirement system. Al permaneat employees éxpecled to

work over 800 hours a year-dre-eligible to participate in the WRS: ‘Coverad employees. in the General

category are required by statute'to contribute 5.9% of their salary (3.0% for Executives. and Elected

Officials;, 5.0% for Protective ‘Occupations with Soctal Security, and 3.2% for Protective ‘Qccupations

without Social Securily) 1o the plan. Employers may make lhiese contributions to the plan on. behalf of
employeds. Employers are required’to: dontributeran. actuarlally detérmined amount necessary to fiind the
rémaining projected cost of fulure bensfits;

The payroll Tor City: employees cavergd by ths WRS fof the. yeat ended. December 31, 2009 was
$51,069;183; the employér's total/payroll was $54,391:494. The lotal requited and:actual .contribution for
the yéar ended Dedember 31,2009 was $6,971,927, which consisted of $4,415,308, o 8.1%:of covered
contribution for: émployees for the year ended December 31, 2009 was financed by the City. Tolal
contributions for the yeais ending. December 31, 2008 and 2007 were 56,275,186 and $6,026;207
respectively, equal {o the required contributions.for each year.
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o

Employases who retire at or after age 85 (62 for elected officials and 54 for proteclive occupation
employees with oss than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with maore than 25
years of service) are entilled fo receive a ratirement benefit, Employees may retire at age 55 (S0 for
protective occupation employees) and racelve actuarially reduced benefits. The faclors influencing the
benetit are: (1) final average earnings, (2} years of creditable service, and (3) a formula faclor, Final
average earnings is the average of the emiployee’s three highest year’s earnings. Employees terminating
covered employmeént and submifting an application before becoming efigible for a reticement beneiit may
withidraw their conlributiotis and, by doing so, forfelt alf rights o any subsequent bensfil. For employees
beginriing participation on or after January 1, 1990 and na longer aclively employad on or afler April 24,
1998, creditable service in each aof five years is required for eligibility for a relirement annuity.
Participants employed prior to 1990 ar afier April 24, 1598 are immediately vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all
benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Stalules. The WRS issues an annual financial
reporl which fay be cotained by writing to the Depanment of Employes Trust Funds, P.0O. Box 7931,
iadisan; Wi 53707-7931.

Risk Management

During- 1987, thie Chty, tdgather with certain other units of government within the State of Wisconsin,
created the Cities-and Villages Mutual insurance Company (CVYMICY {o provide Hability insurance services
{0 ifs members. At that lime, the Cily issued $4,812,360 in general obligation bionds for ils ‘sharg of the
initial cépitatization of CYMIC. The City is partially self-irsured for fiability insurance and pays premiums
o CYMIC for its excess hiability insurance coverage. The -actuary-for CUMIC determines pramium

charges to.its menibers required to pay the expected claims and loss adjustment expenses. CYMIC's

angoirg operafional expenses; other than losg adjusiment expenses, are appartioned pro rata to each
member.  CVMIC provides géneral lability; police and nurses professional liabifity, and public official's
liability and vehicle liability coverage for tha City. The City’s self-nsured retention imif is $175,000 for
any oné occurrence, $600,000 aggregate. The City also carries excess insurance, which covers the City
up to $10,000,000. Premiums paid to CVMIC for insurance covarage are recorded in a self-insurance
internal service fund. The selfinsurance internal service fund charges various City depariments and
operations for (heir portion of insurance coverage for (he year. A separate financial report is issusd
anrivally by GVMIC. Since the City considers it probable that its initial capitafization contribution in
CVMIC will be'returted upon either dissolidion of CYMIC or the approved withdrawal from CVMIC, the
iritial ‘capitelization: amount: of §4,812,360 has been recorded as a deposit in the liahility self-insurance
imernal service fund.

On December.31, 2009, a claims liability of $655,167 reported in the fund at December 31, 2009 is based
on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability. for claims be reporied if
Informatian peior to the issuance of ihé financial stalements indicates that it Is probable that a liability has
been incurred at the date:of the financial slatements and the' amount of ihe loss can be reasonably
estimated, Changes in the-fund's claim fiabiiity amount for 2008 2nd 2009 iolow;

Current-Year
Claims and
Liability Changss in Claim Liability
Jariuyary 1 ‘Estimates Payments December 31
2008 3 733438 & 246,708 & 482,134 § 498,010

2008 498,010 473,195 316,038 655,167




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to:Basic Financial- Statements’
December 31, 2009

NOTE E-- OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)
Health Self-Insurance,Fund

City employees, retirses and employse’ dependents are ellglble for medical and dental.benefils from a

health self-insurance fund. Funding is provided by charges {o City departmants, employegs and retirees..

Retirees are billed monthly premiums.for heallli ‘benefils based on astual costs for providing such
beneflls. The-program is- supplemented by stop loss: protection, which limils ‘the.City's. annual liabilily.
The limits. are $250,000 per-specific: ¢laim along with a°$65,000 risk corfidor, Furid expenses consist of
paymenis. fo consultants and .administrators, -midical and dental claims, and stop loss insurance
pramiums.  On December 31, 2009 lhe health self-idsurance furid Had established a reserve of
$4,746,700 -for fulure unreported -claims. The- claims: liability. of -$824,257 reported in the find &t
December 31, 2009, is based on {he réquiferents of GASB- Statement No. 10; which Tequires that a
liability for claims. be-teporied if infarmalion prior lo'the issuance of the financial statements indicates that
it'is probable that a fiability has beei incurred at the dale of the finandial statements and the amount of
the loss -can be reascnably eslimated. Changes in the fund's claims-liability-amount for 2007 and 2008

follow:
Current Year.
Claiins and
Liability Changes in Clainy Liabliity
danuary 1 Estimates Paymenls December 31
2008 § 1,133,732 § 12,839,744 § 13,229,288 § 744,187
2009 744,187 13,418,593 13,338,523 824,257

Waorkers Compensation Self-lnstratce Fuad
The. City-has establishet! a workers.compensation self-insurance fund to fimance workers comipensalion

awards -for Cily employges.. Fhe progrant is funded by charges fo-City degatlments. The program-also is:
suppleniented by stop 1055 protection, which limits 16& City's annual (iability to $350,000 for protective
employaés and-$300;000 for non-prolective employees, par.incident, per ocourrence: Fund expenses and
tlie - aceraal of elain: Habllities are acdounted for fn-the same manner as disaussed praviously. for the
health gelf-itisurance furid.-

Thee-claims liability of $680,128- in:the fund at December:31, 2009 Is based on Whe requirements of GASB
Slalement No. 10, which requiresithata liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuancs
of lhé finandial stalements:indicatas that il /5. probable that & liabilily has been. incurred at the date of the
financial stateménts and thie aniount of tha loss can ‘be reasdnably estimated.. Changes in the fund's
claims fiabilily.arhount or 2008 and 2009 follows:

Currernt Year
Claims.and
Liability Changas in Claitn  Liability
January 1 Estimates Paymonis December 31
2008 816,384 § 603578 § 724,801 § 695161
2009 695,161 734,884 750,017 680,128

The City has also purchased commercial insurance policies for various risks of loss related to torts; theft,
damage or destruction of assels; errors. or omissions; injuries 1o employees; or acls of God. Payments of
premiums for these policies are recorded. as.expendityres or expenses in various funds of the City:

For each of the-Cilys risk calegories, there have been no signiificant reductions in insurance coverage in
comparison to the prior yaar., Also, lhe amount of insurance settlements for. each of the City's risk
categoties has not exceaded insurance coverage for eash-of the pastihree fiscal years.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2009

NOTE E - OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)

3

Coridtilt Debl Obilgations

From time fo time, the Cily has Issued industrial. Revanue Bonds to provide financial assistance o
private.sector entities for the acquisitien and construction of-industrial and commercial facilitics deemed
to be in the pubtic interest. The bonds are secured by the properly financed and.are payable solely from
payments received on the underlying morigage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the
acquired fadiiities transfers to thie privale-saclor entity served by the bond issuanee. Neither the Cily, the
Stata, nor any. political subdivision lhereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the honds.
Accordingly, the bonds are riot reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2009, Where was oné series of Indusiiial Revenue Bonds oulstanding, wilh an
aggregate principal amount payable of $2,491,107.

The City has eslablished séparate capital projects:funds for iwelve Tax Incremiental’ Districts {Districi)
created by the City in accordance with Section 56.1105 of the Wisconsin Stalutes. Al the time the
Districts. were: created; the property tax base-within each Disltrict was “frozen” and increment taxes
resulting from liicreases o the propérty tax base are usad to finance District Improvements, including
principal and interest on fong-term .debt issued By the Ciiy to finance such improvemenis. Except for
cartaiit exceptions uhder Section 66.1105(8)(amj1, the Stafules allow up. 1o five years priof to lhe
terminalion dafe: for -a tax incremental district to incur projéct costs elfgible for financing from tax
increments;

Since creation of the above Districts, the City has provided various financing sources to each TID., The
foreigoing ameunts-dre not recorded as Habilities in the TID capilal project funds but can be recovered by
the Gity from any future excess lax increment reviinuss, Deldil of the amounts recoverable by the City as
of Dacembgr 31, 2009 from fulure excess tax increment ravenue follows:

[ Towt | TiDNo.3 | TIDNo.4 | YIDNo.5 | TDNo.6 |

Nat upreimbursed project costs SA0T43771 S (19.821) § 2,680,608 S 17,737,313 § {1,634}

[_TONo.7 | TiDNo.8 | TIONo.3 | TIDNa. 10 |

Ket unréimbursad project costs $.52¢8295 § 1785227 § 2,731,007 § (3,965).

[ 7iDNe: 3t | TIDNe: 12 | TID Ko. 13 | TID No. 14 |

Nel unreimbursed groject costs’ 5 4302 & 29617 § 521841 S 1.060




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Notes lo Basic Financial Statements Noles to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2009
NQOTE E - OTHER INFORMATION {Continued) NOTE E~ OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
The intent of the City is-to recover the above amounis from fulure TID surplus funds, -if any, prior to 7. Contsngenc'e°
terminalion of the respective Districts. Unless terminated by the Gity prior thersto, sach TID has a The Clly pafticipates in a numbér of fedéral and state assisted grant programs. These programs aré
slatutory termination year as follows: subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the City's
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some {fulure date. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the graniing agencies cannot be delermingd at
Year this fime although the City expecls such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
TID No: 4 2020
TiD No. 5 2022 b.. From time to time, the City is parly to olber various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although
TID No. 6 2024 the autcome of such matiers cannol be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of management and
TiD No. 7 2024 legal counsel that the all nil one af these cases will not have a major financial impact upon the City.
TiO No. 8 2024 :
TIO No. 9 2026 ¢ As of December 31, 2009, the Cily is polentially liables for $4,065,000 of debl issued by two not-for-
TID No. 10 2034 profit grganizations_ Ioca?ed w:thir} the City. The debl’relqles lo housing and development projecis.
~TID No: 11 2034 The City wauld be fiable in the unlikely avent the organizations would default on the dabt payments,
Tid No. 12 2027
TID No, 13 2034
TID No. 14 2035
TiD No. 15 2036
TID No. 18 2036

Wisconsin Senate Bill 305, which became Wisconsin law on January 20, 2004, makes it possible {a
exlend both the -expenditiire period and- the termination date of TID districts in the State. Thus, the
possibiiity exists that fhe current expenditure periods and the “termination dales of lhe Districts to
accumuiate increment taxes may be extended.

5. Subseguent Evenls. )
During 2010, the City issued the following debl:

52,685,000 of tax exempt.general obligation refunding bonds. isstied -3/23/2010 with principal amounts
f 845,000 1o $605,000 due annually through 2017. Interest rates on the issuerange from 2.0%
102.75%

515,320,000 of taxable general obligafien Buiid America bonds issued-5/25/2010 with principal
amounts of $545,000 to $900,000 due annually through 2030. Intérest rales on the issue range
from 85%:10 5.50%.

6. Propery Tax Laovy.Limit
Wisconsin Act 25, effective July. 27, 2005, imposed & limit.on the property tax levies for all Wisconsin

cilies, villages, towns and counties for a twa-year peried. Wisconsin State Budget. Bil S840 continues the
limit o the properly-tax lavies through 2011, The budgst il Hmils - the increase in the maximum
allowabie iax levy- io the greater of the percentage change in the" Cuys January 1 equalized value as a
result of net new:consiruction or. 2, 00% in the 2009 budgel and 4,6% inthe 2010 budget. The fimil for the
City. for the 2009 budget was_ 2.00%. The levy limitis apphed to both operations and deht service.
However, the Act allows the. fimit to be-increased for debi service authorized prior to July 1, 2005 and'in
certain other situations,




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
.Genaral Fund
Datailad Comparison of Revenuos and Qther Financing. Sources « Budget and Actual
Year Ended Deceriber 31, 2009

Variance
with: Final
Budget
Original Finat Pesitive
Budget Budgel Actual (Negaliva)
Taxes
General property § 22769480 $ 32,769,480 § 32771418 § 1,938
Payments in lisu of faxes
Green Bay Housing Authority 35,000 35,000 39,497 4,497
Villa West &)1 50,700 50,700 50,700 -
Oneitta Housing Authority 16,700 16,700 21.693 4,993
Forl Howard Apartmants 18,310 18,310 20,274 1,964
Millenhium Housing Foundation 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Wisconsin Housing Preservation 37,140 37,140 37,443 3
Neighborhood Housing Services 43,210 43,210 26,082 {17,128}
Dapartmant of Matural Resources 280 280 166 (114}
County buildings 480 480 511 31
Oneida Government Sepvices 190,000 190,000 211,137 21,137
, Belfio Hospital 30,280 30,280 34,738 +,458
Humane:Society 2410 2,410 2,486 76
Fire Stalion #4 ! 30 30 20 (10}
Einslain Project’ 1,960 1,860 2,025 65
Lambeau Figid Atdum 17,980 17,980 18,518 539
Qccuparicy 268,920 268,920 435,960 (42,450}
Oriitted taxes 5.620 5,620 5,485 (135}
Agficiilluire use conversion 2,120 2,120 - {2,120y
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION Grain and coal - 18,660 18560 18,659 )
L Railraad lorminatl tax 1,600 1,600 1,748 148
obile home fees 48,570 49,570 45,718 (3.852)
Retained sales tax: 940 940 930 (10}
Teital Taxes 33.586.390 33,586,390 33,569,909 (16,481}
‘Licanses and Permits
Licenses
Tavem/bartender 166,000 166,000 166,700 708
Cigarelle 20,000 20,000 14,200 {5,800}
Catsle TV 862,920 862,920 880,750 17,630
Dag 17.000 17,000 16,463 (537}
cat 2,500 2,500 2,420 (80)
Public vehicle | 9,200 9,200 10,880 1.680
Miscellaneoils 9,500 9,500 12,619 3,119
Permits
Bunglar alarms 62,250 62,250 53,873 (8,377}
Sezurity syslem 14,000 14,000 13,670 {350}
Firp-alarm 15000 15,000 26,660 11,660
Building and heating 848,700 948,700 593,915 (354,785}
Sireel excavating 30,000 30,000 44,182 14,182
Fireworks 1,500 1,500 300 1.200)
Special permits. 2,000 2.600 3.500 1.600
Total Licenses and.Pemmils 2,160,570 2.160.570 1,840,238 (320,332)

(Continttd)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
General Fund
Detafled Comparison of Revanues and Other Financing Sources ~Budget and Actual (Continued)
Year Ended Dacermber 31, 2009.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIR
General Fund
Detailed Comparison-of- Revenues and Ottier Finanting Sources - Budgst and Actual (Continued)
Yaar Ended December 31,.2009

Vanranca. Variance
with Final with Final
Builgst Butlget
Original Final. Positive Origlnal Final Positive
Budgst Budget Actual (Negativa} Budgat Budgst Actual {Negative)
Intergavemmantal Publie Chisrges for Services (Continuzd) ’ ]

State aids Wond sales 500 7,340 5,456 (1.684)
Fire insdrance fax 185,000 185,000 180,137 {4.863) Fess - Triargle Hil 23,580 23,580 22,320 (1,260}
Sharad taxes Concdsslons

Shared revenues ) 18,785,050 18,785,050 18,569,549 215,501) Triangie Hill 4,000 4,000 4,003 a
Medical assistance: payment - - 216,700 216,700 Regreation 1440 1,440 1,486 46
Expanditure restralht 2,148,380 2,148,380 2,147,638 (742) Bay Beach 528,810. 528,810 615,101 86,291
Exempt computer 417,630 417,630 424,525 6,845 Swimming pools 96,850 96,850 63,890 (32,960}
Bullding. servicas 636,100 636,100 639,488 3,368 Wildlife Sancluary 50,000 50,000 59,738 1,728
Transpartation 3,718,910 3,716,910 3THLTBT 847 Rozoring fdes | 15.000 15,000 10,450 (4.550)
Connacting sirest ald 664,300 564,300 643,824 (20,376) Inspections appeals: 5,000 5,000 5,400 400
Nifschke Bridga 310,000 310,000 414,468 104,489 Rainspections appeals 15,000 15,000 26,449 11,448
Tillerman Bridge 280,000 280,000 309,522 29,522 Equipmient: maintenance Jabior - DPW. “ - 28,076 28,076
Wiinut Street Bridge 280,000 280,000 306,604 25,604 Rescus-squad 2,060 000 2,080,000 2,160,040 100,040
Pollce 202,750 211,503 254,262 42659 Recycling of materals 5,000 5,000 8,230 3,230
Park and recreation - 14,493 14,493 - Weights and measures 80,000 80000 76,062 {3:838}
Reeycling grant 64,600 664,600 656,217 (8.383) Miscellaneous . 450 455 5
Elactions grant - 5,000 5.000 - Total Public Charges Tor Services 5.043.670 5.061,254 5.548,598 487,344

County aids. i
MEG: unit 214,500 214,500 217,138 2,538 Interdapartaiental Charges for Services
Trianyle spars area 18,600 18,000 18,000 - Adminlstralive ervites 663,310 668,310 715,835 47,325

Boaid of aducation Insurance services'| 1,486,630 1,486,630 1,361,201 (125,429)
Pollcy liaison 982,720 962,720 997 554 14,834 Information seivices 123,730 123730 173.003 49473

Tawn:of Scolt firg protection 3,000 3.000 3,000 - Tola! Interdaparimenial Charges for Services 2,278,670 2,278,670 2,250,039 (28.631)

Tatal Intargavernmental 29.508.940 29,537,286 29.734.977 197,691 :

Fings.and Forfeils
Pubilic Charges for Services Ordinance violations 1,478.000 1496435 1,381,891 (114,744}

Police feos 19,000 19,000 22,693 3,683

Polica dapartmeant ovartime 510,510 510,510 564,520 54,110 Interest

Fire dépariment fees - - 334 334 Termporary investments £80.630 880,630 474,744 (405,886}

Fire depariment ovartime 84,000 84,000 152,231 68,257 Delinquen{taxes 41,580 41,580 65,385 23,785

Farmsts market 42,540 32,540 34,485 1.948 Tatal Inferest 922,210 922,210 540,109 {382,101)

Enginearing - - 5,850 5,680

Wsed tulting 30,000 30,000 27823 (2,177) Miscellanaous
8nove ramoval 12,000 12,000 18,135 6,135 Rental-of fand 75,510 75,510" 49.281 (26:229)
Bulk rofuse fees 12,000 12,000 10,047 {1.983) Cel towar rental 90,030 94,030 94,289 (3.741)
Freon collectians 8,000 9,000 6,825 {2,465} Stadiur rental
Garbage bags 22,000 22,000 20463 {1.537) Graern Bay Packefs 705,770 705,770 742,768 36,998
Pavement Fapair. 160,000 180,600 198,214 18,274 Proceeds from Auction 16,000 16,000 5418 (10,582}
Bay Beatch admissions 770,000 770,000 1,008,222 236,222 Procaeds from insurarice “ 14,328 14,328 -
Swimming pool admissions 273,350 273,350 209.217 (64,133} PR &-Fdonations - 4588 4,588 .
Recraation feas 165,170 165,170 151,120 {14,050} Polict donatiens - - 28411 20411
Wildlif: Sanctuary admissions 31,280 31,280 23,504 {7,776} Sale of praperly 450,000 450,000° 5,080 (#44,.820)
WPRA ticket program - 17.584 17,584 - Sale ofscrap 111,500 113606 59,506 (54,100)
Foreslry 7,640 350 265 {85} Sale of equipment 2,500 2,500 173 (2.327)
Miscellaneous revanue 87,060 87,059 75,320 (11.739)
{Continuad)’ Total Miseelianeous 1.546,370 1567391 1,080,162 {487,222}
Totai General Fund Revenues $ 78524820 5 6610206 F. 75945723 § {064,483}

{Continuedy




GITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
General Fund Generat Fund
Detalled Comparison.of Revenues and Gthar Financing Sourcas - Budget and Actual (Coritinusd) Detailed Comparison of Expendilures and Transfers Out - Budget and Actual
Year Ended Decamber 33, 2009 © " YearEnded December 31, 2009 o

Variance s
with Firiat Variance
Budget with Final
Original. | Final Pasitive Budget
Budgul Budget Actual {Nadiative, Qriginal Finaf Positive
Othar Flnancing Sources Budget Budgeét Actual {Negative)
Translars In -

Special Revenue Funds : General G'ovemmem . . =
Parking Division § 332080 § 932980 S 239420 S (9A,500) Council § 212,990 § 212990 § 207,501 '$ 5.489
Community Development - - 101,427 104,427 Mayor. 304,820 304,993 302,903 2,000

Capital Projecis Funds Printing 196,880 196,880 182,254 14,626
Employes Racognition - 8,348 4,248 - Finance : 687,030 687,100 613,208 73,892

Water Enterprise Fund » Clerk/Treasurer 367,230 367,825 330,235 37,590
Paymant in liou of lax 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,678:556 28,556 Assessor 548,650 549,159 535,986 13,173

Tolal Transfers In 1,982,580 1,991,328 2,027,751 36,423 Purchasing 239:180 239,239 240,897 (1,658)
Tolat Other Financing Sources S 1082980 § 1891378 S 2027751 % 35,423 Sf:r‘:;freview 7;:(73;8 7;;;8 64'222 1222‘;

information technology 848,230 848,230 ‘887,508 (39,278}
Law 498,570 499,195 497 955 1,240
Human resources 722,060 730,408 729,099 1,309
Risk management 259,860 259,860 221,377 38,483
Municipal court 503,420 504,030 508,213 (4,183)
Engineer 1,337,580 1,338,494 1,077,290 261,204
City halt 494,860 531,860 499,183 32677
Misceflaneous 505,740 444 431 896,625 {452.194)
Total General Government 7,807,500 7,795,084 7,794,942 152

Public Safety
Police depariment: 23,626,590 23,632,943 22,799,533 832,410
Fire department 19,550,190 18,349,394 19,401,476 (52,082)
Palice and fire commission 22,580 22,580 27,932 {5.363)
Inspeclion 1,547,910 1,523,608 1,462,728 60,877
Humane offlcer 210,200 210,200 203,730 6,470
Total Public Safety 44,957,470 44,738,722 43,895,400 843,322

Public Works
Operations 13,350,870 13,411,710 13,013,615 " 398,195
Traffic 3,543,510 3,553,830 3,232,566 321,264
Total Public Works 16,894,380 16,965,540 16,246.081 719,459

Culture and Recreation
Park and recreation administration 2.170,640 2,170,640 2,228,185 (57,545)
Triangle sports area 33,030 31,530 39,324 (7,794}
Park deparmenl 3,499,540 3,486,118 3,339,477 146,641
Recrealion 445,630 467,423 430,679 36,744
Bay Beach 743,550 735,467 795,375 {59,908)
Swimming pools 561,610 579,597 500,682 78.915
Foresiry 806,850 829,977 787.805 42,172
Wildlife Sanctuary, 273,160 273,160 262,963 10,197

Tolal Culture and Recreation 8,534,010 8,573,912 8,384,490 189,422

{Continued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Ganeral Fund
Delailed Comparison of Expenditures-and Transfers Out - Budget and Actual (Conlinued).
Year Ended Dacamber 31, 2009

Variarnce
with Final
Budgel
Original Final Positiva
Budgef, Budget Aclual {Negative}
Conservation and davelopment
Economic devakepment 384,510 384,510 337.925 46,585
City planning commission 579,930 679,861 544,187 35774
Tetal Conservation and Developmient 1,064,440 1,084,471 982,112 82,359
Total General Fund Expendilures 3 79257800 5 79137738 8 77.303025 § 1,834,714
Transters Out - General Fund ITHIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK|
Gapital Projects Funds
Fire Equipment Replacement $ - 5 243009 S 243,009 S -
Police Equipment Replacement 234,000 368,100 358,160 -
Finance Capital Project - 5,000 5,000 -
TIF# - B 238,000 {238,000)
Ingpaction equipmant - 24,440 24,440 -
Parks Equipment Replacement 130,000 482,005 482,095 -
intarnal Sarvice Funds
Sick Pay Escrow - 200,000 200,000 -
Tatal Transiers Out - General Fund S 354,000 3 1.822.544 8 1.560.644 & £228.000)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balante Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Parking DPwW Storm Transit Transit Community EECBG
Division Eqguipment Sewer Operations Capital Development Grant Park Land
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 348,414 S 1,284,191 § 1,228,310 S - $ 103,176 § 708,791 5 - $ 9,358
Receivables.
Taxes - - - 1,132,490 - - - -
Accounis 4,602 718 3,172 - - 885 - -
Notes and loans - - - - - 8,895,095 - -

Special assessments - - . .
Due from other funds - - 997,864 1,343,111 - - - -
Inventories 22,802 - - . . - - .

TOTAL ASSETS 3 375818 S 1.264.909 § 2229346 S 2475601 $ 103,176 § 10604771 S - ) 9.358

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable 114,720 511 & 77,082 § = 5 - % 128,368 §

Bue to other funds - = - 461,137 - -

Deposits held in trust - - - - - 8,977 - -

Deferred revenue
Tax levy . - . 1,349,080 - - - .
Special assessments . - .- - - -
Notes and leans - - - - - 9,898,728 -

Totaﬁl Liabilities 114,720 511 77.082 1,810,217 - 10,037,073 1,650 -

A4
)

Fund Balances
‘Reserved
Encumbrances - - 82,407 - - . R
inventories 22,802 - - . - - - -
Due from other funds ‘ - - - - - . .
Unreserved (Deficit} 238,296 1,264,398 2,068,767 685,384 103,176 567,698 {1,650) 8,358
Total Fund Balances 261,098 1264398 2,152,264 665,384 103,176 567,698 {1,650) 9,358

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ;
FUND BALANCES $ 375818 § 1264909 '§2229346 $2475601 § 103176 § 10604771 § - $ 9,358

{Continued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Shaet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2009

Special Revenue Funds (Confinued)
Total
Police Fedaral Special
- Misc, Asset OWlVehicle| Lambeau Fire Police Revenue
» “Trees Donationg Forfeiture. Séirure Field Donations: Grants’ Funds
ASBSETS
Cash and invesimenls & 120088 & 22653 & 89387 $§ 47812 § 21,513 § 31,788 § - $ 3,996,382
Receivables
Taxes ~ - - - - - - 1,132,490
Accounts - - - - - - - 9,377
Notes and loans - - - - - - . 9,885,095
Special assessmenis - - - - - - - -
Due from olher funds - . - ~ - - - 2,340,975
nventorias - - - - - - - 22,802
TOTAL ASSETS S 120688 S 726583 3 BYO3BT S 47812 5§ 21513 § 31789 § - 5 17.397.121
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

‘ Accounts payable S - ] 412§ - g - s - & 138582 5 2319865 $ 558,920
Due to other funds - - - - - - 431,735 884,522
Deposits held in trust - - - - - . “ 9,977
Deferred revenug

Tax levy - - - - - - - 1,348,080
Special assessments - - -~ - - - - -
Notes and loans - - - - - - - 8,898,728
Total Liabilities « 412 - . - 13,862 663,700 12.719.227
Fund Balances
Reserved
Encumbrances 11,446 - - - - - - §3,943
Inventories - - - - - - - 22,802
Due from other funds - - - - . - . -
Unreserved (Deficit) 109,542 22,241 89,387 47,812 21,513 17,927 (663,700} 4,561,149
Total Fund Balances 120,088 22,241 89,387 47.812 21,513 17.8927 (663.700) 4,677,894
TOTAL UIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 120088 S 220653 § B9.387 S 47812 $ 21513 § 31789 S - S 17.397.121

(Continued)




CiTY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet {Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Decembear 31, 2008

Capital Projects Funds
' DPW
... Sanitary Building,
Street » - Sewers Capital Right of Boat
Censtruction Sidewalks Censiruction Jmprovements Way Watermains Ramp
ASBETS
Cash and invesiments $ 2,865,706 & 44974 § 1,852,428 & 152,040 $ 2,051,082 § 52,172 § 61,133
Regaivables
Taxes. . - - - - -
Aceounts 1,484 - - - - - .
Notes and Ipans - - - - - - -
Spacial assessments 1,695,518 83,782 580,390 - - 2,001 -
Due from other funds - - - - - - .
Inveniories + - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 5 4662708 8 128756 § 2442818 & 152.040 §  2,051.082 § 54173 & 81,133
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Ligbilities
Accounts payable 5 82,005 § 437§ &9 % - 8 1277 S - $ 864
Due to other funds - - - - . - -
Deposits held in trust 120,356 1,787 . - - - -
‘Oeferred revenue
Tax levy - - - - . - -
Special assessments 1,685,518 83,782 . 580,380 - - 2,001 -
Notes and loans - - - - - - .
Tolal Liabilities 1,897 879 86,016 580,449 - 1,277 2,001 864
Fund Balances
‘Reserved
Encumbrances 562,947 4,035 1,300 1,183 64,600 - 674
Inventories - - ~ - - - -
Due from other funds - < - - - - -
Unreserved {Deficit) 2,201,882 38,705 1,761,063 150,847 1,085,205 52,172 58,505
Total Fund Balances 2,764.829 42,740 1,852 339 - 152,040 2,049,805 52,172 £0.269
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES S 4662708 .8 1268756 S 2442818 § 152040 & 20581082 § 54,173 8§ 61,133

{Continued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheat {Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2008

{Capital Projects Funds (Continued)

Storm Fire City
Park Industrial Storm: Sewer Capital Hall
Acquisition Parks Sewers Management | Improvements | Remodeling Finance
ASSETS ‘ v
Cdsh-and investnients $ 1829175 § 10,243 'S 2230406 & 2803279 S . $ 75,128 § 77,398
Raceivables
Taxes - - - - . . R
Accounts - - 1477 - - - .
Notes and loans - - - . - - .
Special assgssmants - - 246,332 - - - -
Due from other funds - - - - - - .
inveniories ~ - ~ - - » -
TOTAL ASSETS S 1829175 $ 10243 § 2477915 $ 2803279 § - s 75128 § 77.398
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payabis s 7.894 § 22 s 4,814 S 22697 § - 3 1,712 § .
Due{o-otherfunds - - - - 1,122 - -
Deposits heid in trust - - 1,538 - - - .
Deferred revenue
Tax lavy - * - - - - .
Spucial assessments - - 246,332 . - . .
Notes and loans . - - - - - .
Total Liabiiities 7,884 2 252,784 22,897 1,122 1,712 .
Fund Balances
Resarved
Encumbrances 144,434 - 124,223 438,544 - - 3,281
Inveniories - . - - - - .
Due from other funds ~ - - - < . .
Unreserved {Deficit) 1.576.847 10,221 2,100,808 2,341,038 {1,122) 73,417 74117
Tolal Fund Balances 1,821,281 10,221 2225131 2,780,582 {1.122) 73417 77,398
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 1828175 & 10243 S 2477915 § 2803279 § - $ 75129 S 77.398

{Continued)



CiTY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet {Continued)
Nowmajor Governmental Funds
December 3%, 2008

Capital Projects Funds (Conlinued)

N | Police __Fire Inspection Parks Sanitary Sewer
Information Employee Equipment Equipmient Equipment Equipmérit Equipment
Services Recognition | Replacemert | Replacement | Replacement | Replacement | Replacement
ASSETS:
Cash and investments $ 317,582 5 9.643 § 111,627 $ 1,020 § 1,824 S 10,662 § 797,155
Receivables
Taxes: 143,798 - - - - - -
Accounts 16,972 - - - - - -
Notes and loans - - - - - - -
Special assessments - - . - - - -
Due from-other funds - - - - - - -
Inventories - - . . - . .
TOTAL ABSETS S 478,352 & 9,648 § 111627 $ 1.020 8 1,824 & 10.662 8 797.156
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities.
Actounis payable $ 78983 § - 3 . 3 - 3 - 5 - $ -
Due to othier funds: - - - . - - .
Deposits held in trust - - - - . - -
Deferred revenue
Tax:levy 171,300 - - - - - .
Special assessments - . . - - - - .
Notes-and loans - - - - . - -
Total Liabilities 250,293 - - . - - -
Fund Balances-
Reserved
Encumbrances 31,124 - - - - - 118,643
inventories - - . - - - -
Due from other funds . - . - - - .
Unraeserved (Deficit) 196,935 9.649 111,627 1,020 1,824 10,662 678,513
Tetal Fund Balances 228,059 9,649 111,627 1,020 1,824 10,662 797,156
TOTAL LIABHITIES AND .
FUND BALANCES s 478:352 8 9640 § 111827 § 1.020 S 1.824 § 10.662 3 797 156

(Continued).




ASSETS
Cash and investmenis
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Notes and loans
Special assessments
Due from other funds
Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due o other funds
Deposils held in frust
Deferred revenue
Tax fevy
Special assessments
Notes and loans
Totai Liabilities

Furid Balances
Reserved
Encumbrances
invenlories
Due from othey funds
Unreserved {Deficit)
Total Fund Balances

“TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued}
Nonmajor Govegrnmental Funds
December 31, 2000

Capital Projects Funds (Continued)

Storns Waler Parking Parking Redevelopment
Eguipment Division Division Property Pianning Neighborhood Brownfigld
Replacement Capital Vehicles Acquisition Depariment Properiy Grant
$ 166,060 3 239,268 § 134,055 § 127,892 § 12,780 8 323,081 % 152,329
- - - - - 125,918 -
. - 130,576 - 25,000 -
8 166,060 5 238264 8 134055 § 258468 § 12,790 & 473990 ¢ 152,329
3 - S 40,080 § - $ 323 & - s 17,642 5 -
- . - - - 300 -
“ - - - - 160,000 -
. . - 130,576 - 25,000 -
- 40,080 - 130,658 - 192,842 -
- 34,835 - - - 30,677 -
166,080 164,353 134,085 127.568 12,790 250,380 152,329
156,060 199,188 134,085 127,568 12,780 281,087 152,329
S 166,060 S 239.268 % 134,055 § 258468 S 12,760 § 473,999 § 152,329

(Conlinued)



CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheel (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2008

Capital Projects Funds (Conlinued}

Ri Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax
Convenlion incremental Incremental Incremental Incremental Incremental Incremental
Cenler District Disirict Dislrict District District District
Maintenance No. 4 No. 5 No. & No. 7 No. 8 No. 9
ASSETS
Cash and invesimenls $ 2215000 § 492,809 1537815 $ 78,134 & 993,577 & 514516 % .
Receivables
Taxes - 447 581 980,575 47 485 755,635 209,231 113,536
Accounts - - 1,870 - - - -
Notes and loans - 2,179,851 4,308,738 - - - -
Special assessmeanis - - - - - - -
Due from otherfunds - - 265,083 - - - -
inventcries - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2218000 5 3120241 7.084.191 8§ 126620 S 1749242 S 723747 $ 113,538
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGES
Liabijlities
Accounts payable & 76886 § 20,256 % - 3 - $ 223 8§ -
Due to other funds - - . - ~ 612,294
Deposiis held in trust - 5,000 - - - -
Deferred revenue
Tax levy - 533,182 1,188,111 58,578 00,1581 249,247 135,250
Special assassments - - - - - - .
Noles andloans - 2,179,851 308,738 - - - -
Total Liabilities 7.886 2.713.033 5,502,108 56,578 900,151 249,470 747 544
Fund Balances
Reserved
Encumbrances - - - - - -
Inventories - - - - - - -
Due o other funds - . . - - - -
Unreserved (Deficit) 2,207,114 407 208 1,592,086 70,051 249,061 474277 {634,008)
Total Fund Balances 2,207,114 407,208 1,552,086 70,051 8460681 474.277 {634,008)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES. S 2215000 & 3120241 7094191 § 126629 S 1740212 3 723,747 § 113,536

(Centinued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet {Continued)
Nonmajor Governmenial Funds
December 31, 2009

Lapital Projects Funds {Continued)

Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax
Incresmental Incremental Incremiental incremental Incremental incremental Incremental
Districl District District Dislrict Districl District District
No. 10 No. 13 No. 12 No. 13 No. 14 No. 15 No. 16
BSSETS
Cash and invesimenis $ 138375 § 4767 S 601,266 $ - $ - $. - 3 -
Receivables
Taxes 111.827 29.508 864,588 20,161 46,758 . -
Accounls + - . 43,583 - - .
Nates and loans “ - . - 2,942 685 - .
Special assessmenis - - - - - - .
Due from other funds - - 4,449,153 - - - -
inventories ~ - - - - - .
TOTAL ASSETS 3 251.002 & 334273 3 5915007 S 53,744 3 2880441 $ . S .
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 - $ 15,000 $ 186 $ 3,520 S - 3 - $ .
Due to other funds ~ - - 6,448 153 125,847 70,084 40,606
Deposits held in trust - 200 . 20,000 - - -
Delerred revenue.
Tax lavy 132,876 35,149 1,020,842 24,047 55,698 - .
Special assessments - - . . - - - .
Noles and loans - - - 43,583 2,942,685 - -
Tolal Liabilities 132,876 50,340 1,030,088 8.540,273 3,124,200 70,084 40,606
Fund Balances
Reserved
Encumbrances - > 27,710 - - - -
- Inventories - - - - - - -
Pue from other funds - - 4,449,153 - - - -
Unresarved (Deficit) 118,026 283,924 408,046 {3,476,529) (134,759} (70,084) {40,608)
Total Fund Balances 118,026 203,924 4,884,909 {6,476,529) {134,759) (70,084) (40,606)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES by 251002 § 334273 8 5_915&_@(]7 8 63744 § 2680441 3 - 5 .

{Continued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY,; WISCONSIN
Combining Balance.Sheet (Continued)
Nonmajor Gavernmental Funds
December 31,2008

Capital Projecis Funds (Continued}
Tax Total Totat
tncremental , Capital Nonmajor
District Younkers! City Sustainable Projects Governmentat
Ne. 17 Bosten Store Deck Green Bay Funds Funds-
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - 3 271,109 '$ - S 43 § 23,759671 $ 27,756,053
Receivables
Taxes 556G - - - 3,896,863 5,026,453
Accounts - - - - 65,086 74,463
Notes and loans - “ - - 8,586,850 19,481,945
Special assessments - - - - 2,618,023 2,618,023
Due from other funds - 2,000,000 - - 6,714,246 9,055,221
Inventories - - . - - 22,802
TOTAL ASSETS $ 556 § 2,271,108 & < $ 43 5 46840838 & 64,037,960
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Atcounts payable 3 - 3 66,088 S 284,964 % - 3 657.013 § 1,223,933
Bue o other funds 58,068 - 1,721,860 - 9,080,004 8,974,526
Beposits held in trust - - - - 149,191 159,168
Deferred rsvenue
Tax levy 862 - - - 4,642,263 5.0891,343
Special assessments - - . - - 2,618,023 2,618,023
Notes and loans - - - - 2,630,433 19,529,161
Total Liabilities 59,630 66.088 2,006,924 - 26,776,927 39,486,154
Fund Balances
‘Reserved
Encumbrances - - - - 1,679,226 1,773,169
inventories - - - - - 22,802
Due from other funds - 2,000,000 - - 6,449,153 6,449,153
Unreserved {Deficit) (59.074) 205,020 (2,006,924} 43 11,735,533 16,296,682
Total Fund Balances (59,074} 2,205,020 . {2,0086,924) 43 18,863,812 24 541,806

TOTAL UABILITIES AND .
FUND BALANCES $ 556 % 2271109 % - S 43 § 46640839 3 64,037,960




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statament of Revenues, Bxpendilures and Changes in Fund Balancos
Monmajor Covemnental Funds
Year Ended Oscember 31, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Parking - DPW Storm Transit Transil Community EECBG Park
Division Equipment Sewer Operations Capital Developmeni Grant Land

Revenugs ' _ ‘

Taxes $ - 3 $ - §1408450 §
Special assessments - -
intergovernmenial -
Public-chargas for services 2,297,083
interdeparimental chargaes for services -
Interest 4,558
Miscellangous

$ - 5 . S .
437,716

[ T T |
t

4,938,134
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<
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-
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+ 1

8,988 - 244
4. 385 145,551 ’

My
L] + + ] L]
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(651 o]
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Y

83,169
21,129

- 14
4051508 1,408,450 145551 1.8

3
n

Tolal Revenues 2,301,651

Expendilures
Current
General goverpment . . _ . .
Public safely . . - .
Public works 1,093,147 1,363,638 2,453,392 1,050,157 -
Cuiture and recreation - - - .
Conservation and developmani . - - . . 1,712,758 1,
Cabpital outlay
General government -
Public safely. -
Public works - 1,033,
Sanitation .
Cultyre and regreation -
Conservation and developmant -
Debt service
[ebt issuance cosls

LR T ]
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[}
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[92]
L
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o
=~}
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¥
[

Total Expanditures. 1,993 147 2427032 2.453,392 1,050,157 469,537 1,712,758 1,680 687

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 308,504 154.331 2.498 116 358,293 {323.986) 208.371 {1.650) 1.516

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
General obligation bonds issued -
State rust fund loan issued -
Transfers in .
Transfers out {206.420}

T A |

(2.083 511} {101,427}

(28 I )
[ 3 B
[ IO T

[ E

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (306.420) (2,083.511) (101,427} N
Net Change in Fund Balances 2,084 154,331 404,605 358,283 {323,986) 106,944 {1.650) 1,518
Fund Balanges (Deficit) - January 1 258,014 1.110.087 1.747.659 307.091 427,162 460,754 - 7.842
Fund Balances (Deficit) - Decembar 31 S 261098 § 1264308 6 2152264 & G65384 S 102176 & 667608 S {1,650\ 8 9.358

(Continued)




Revenues
Taxes
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Public charges for services
Interdeparimental charges for services
interest
Misceilaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
- Current
General government
Public-safety
Pablic- works
Gulture and regreation
Conservation and development
Gapital outlay
General government
Public-safety
Public works-
Sanitation ,
Culture and recreation
. Conservation and development
Debi service
‘Debt issuance costs
Total Expenditures

‘Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Qther Financing Sources (Uses)
(General obligation bonds issued
State frusi fund loan issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

~ Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances. (Deficil) < January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 31

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statemenl of Revenues, Expendilures and Chanyges in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Govermmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Special Revente Funds {Continued)
Total
Police Federal oWl Special
flisc. Asset Vehicle Lambeau Fire Police Revenue
Trees Donations Forfeiture Seizurg Field Donations Grants Funds
- $ - 3 - - 5 - $ - - $ 1,408,450
- - 9,047 - - 51 420,399 867,213
1,680 - - - 374,200 - - 7.613,610
- - - - . - . 2,497,141
- - 1,811 - 268 - - 15,870
- 21.486 - 1.577 - 29,494 - 1.769.885
1,680 21,486 10,958 1,577 374,469 29,545 420,383 14,172,269
- 22,098 - 616 - 50,043 798,814 871,668
- - . - - - - 6,890,334
13,787 - - - 380,064 - . 394,838
. - . - - - - 1,714,408
- B - - - 45.;97 234,731 280,é28
. - . - - . - 1,502,931
13.787 22,095 P B516 380,064 95,540 1,033,645 11,654,407
(12.107) (609) 10,858 861 {5.595) (65,995) (613,246)  2.517.862
- - - . - 9,584 - 9,584
. . - - . - - (2,501,358)
- - - - - 9,584 - (2.491,774)
{12,107) {609) 10,858 861 (5,585} (56,411) (613,246) 26,088
133,008 22.850 78429 46,851 27.108 74,338 {50,454) _ 4.651.806
988 S 7 47 S 513 7 5 4677

(Continued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued
Monminjor Covernmeniad Funds
Your Ended Dacember 31, 2009

Capilal Projscls :Fun g

Revenues
Taxes
‘Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Public charges for services
inlerdepartmental charges for services
inlerest
Miscéllaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General giovernmenl
Public salety
Publicworks
Culture and recreation
Conservalion and development
Capital cutlay
General gavarnment
Piiblic safety
Publicworks
Sanitation
Cultiire and racreation
Conservation and development
Deblservice
Debl issuance costs
Total Expendilures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Cther Financing Sources (Uses)
General obligation bonds issued
State trust fund loan issued
Transfers in
Transfers oul
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances (Deficit) - January 1

Fund Batances (Deficit) - December 31

Street
Construction

Sidewalks

Sadnitary
Sewers
Construttion

DPW
Building
Capital Imp.

Right of
Wavy

Watenaing

Boat
Ramp

675,996
351716

259

76,142

$

28,234

&

2,000

70.268

976

1.027.962

=4
192}
Ll L]
L
N

LI ST TS ST T S S |

71.244

41,323

[ ¥ 4 ¥ £

663,155

4852

[ 20N DR R Y T 1

809

[ T

[N R T N A |

59,139

L TR T T S ¥

3,886,153

149 553

673.008

94,348

17.027

(2.868.181)

{73411}

{644,774}

{94.348)

{17.027)

2,000

5,110,000

{1,860.000)

50,000

600,000
300,000

100,000

1,810,000

-

3.250.000

50,000

§00,000

100.000

1,810,000

[N O T T

381,808
2.383.020

{23411y
66,151

25

[ 541

22

©

=1

—

1.58

L0

)
o 1x¢

5852
146388

1,792,873
256,832

2,000

50,172

12,108
48,164

2764820 %

42.740

§ 1052360 5

152.040 § 2040805 §

82172 §

60,269

{Continued)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Compbining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and €hanges in Fund Balances (Continued)
Nonmajor Govammental Funds.
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues
Taxes .
Specialassessments
Intergoverimental
Pubilic.charges forservices _
Interdepartmental charges for'services
Interest ‘
Miscellaneous:
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Cumrenl
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
_ Conservatiori and developmerit
Capital outlay
General govéemment
Public safely
Public works:
“Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service
_ Debl issuance costs
Total Expendilures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General obligation bonds issued:
State {rust fund loan issued
Transfers in
Transiers out |
Total Other Financing Sourcés (Uses}
Nét Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances (Deficil) - January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 31

) Ratk
Acguisition

ndustrial
Patks:

Storm

Sewers

Capital Projects Funds (ContinuedQ

Storm
. Sewer
Management.

1-43
Business
.. Patk.....

Fire
Capital
improvements.

City
Hall
Remodeling

3 *
200,000

53,032

5

$

42,006

253,032

.25 I T N S S N S |

L% I S S N FEE B S |

L3 IE TR Y S A S R |

L2 S 2N T S R SN N |

42,096

1,526,445

218,550

5,580.

Yy
-
o

¥ LI | ' ) L1

LIRS S N |

1,203,849

2022

214,044

[EEF I N

LI T S I 1

] 4 ¥ ] ] r

15,772

€ + 1) ] i) 3

LI S I |

1.760.676

310

1,205.871

214.041

15,772

1,712

{1,497.543)

(310}

{1.205.871)

(208,041)

(15,772}

40,384

690,000
249,095

250,000

1,750,000
(2,883,000)

2,883,000

(6.967)

66.967

039.095

s 8y ¢« o o

(883.000}

2.883.000

(6,567)

H ) 1 1 ]

66,967

(558,448)
2.379.729.

{310}
10,531

{2,088,871)
4,314,002

2,674,959
105,623

(6,967}
5,967

(15.772)

14,650

107,351
{33,934)

{Contintied)




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Shlemanz of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances {Cantinuad)
Monsssior Covermmental Funds
Yoar Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues
Taxes
Special assessments
Imergovemmentm
Public charges for services
Interdeparimental charges lor services
interast
Miscellaneous
Tolal Revenues

-Expendilures
Current
General gavernment
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Conservalion and development
Capital ouilay-
Ganegral government
Public safely
Public warks.
Sanitalion
Culture and recreation
Conservalion and deveiopment
Debt sewice
Debt issuance cosis
Total Expendilures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General obligation bonds issued
State trust fund loan issued
Translers in
Transfers out
Tolat Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Batances {Deficil) - January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - Decembar 31

Capitsl Projects Funds (Continved)

Fina_nae

Information
Services

Employee
Recoqr&iﬁon

Police
Equipmend
Repiacament.

Fire
Equipmernt
Replacement

Inspection
Equipment
Replacement

Parks
Eguipmant
Replacement

—
s 9
W

$

213,600
53,615

-

S.

5

3

FIE S T I}

11,802

]

8

—
e ¥
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$ Y

2668.815

ht e
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2495
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1,526,461

[ S ]

[ I O )

316,557

-

LR S S )

1,020,208

-

27,806

€

¥

I S S |

[ I

+ 1

198,805

2,495

1,526,461

316,557

1,020,209

27.806°

198,805

{1,222}

{1,259.846)

4,274 .

{291,399}

{1.008.707}

{24,820}

(198.805)

5,000

820,000
3,825

(B.348}

368.100

735,000
229,500

24,440

173,000

5.000

823.925

£8.348)

368.100

§64.500

24,440

173,000

3,778
73.620

(435,823}
663,980

{4,074y
13.723

76,701
34,926

{44,207)
45,227

{38t
2.204

{25,805)
36,467

& 77,308 %

228089 3 9648 8§ 111827 8 1020 %

1824 &

10.662

{Continued)



CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)
Nonmajoi Governirigntal Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Capital Projects {Continued).

Sanitary Sewer | Stermy Water Parking Parking Redevelopment
Equipment Equipment Division Division Property Planning Neighborhaod
Replacement . | Replacement Gapital Vehicles Acguisilion Department. .| ... .Properly

$ $

Revenues
Taxes 8
Special assessments
intergovernmental
Public charges for services
interdeparimental charges for services
Interesl
Miscellaneous
Tolal Revenues

L [LIN T S R T B
LI S I

1
LN T T N A |

L35 IR R S R T Y]
\

PR S |

37
37

LI 2 TN T S R N B |

Expenditures
Current

General government - - -

Public-safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Conservation and development
Capital cullay

Gengral govermnment - - - . .

Public safety - -

Public works 84,943 - 36,086 25,726 - -

Sanitation , - .

‘Culture and recreation - - - - - - -
~Conservation and development - - - - - - 416,287
Debt-service

Beblissuance costs - e - . -
Tota! Expenditures 84,943 - 514.748 25,726 33,360 - 597.623

- 478,662

F R T T ¥
v
[ T S T |

178,336

[ Y A |
1

v
L} 1 1 1

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (84,843) - (514,748} {21,472 (29.223) - {558.330)

Othver Financing Sources {Uses)
General obligation bonds issued - - - -
State trust fund loan issued - < - -
Transfers in 176,830 56,540 39,000 28,000
Transfers-out ~ - - -
Total Other Finaneing Sources (Uses) 176,830 56,540 38.000 28,000

600,000

F3N AU Y B
LI I R I |

600.000

Net Change in Fund Balances 01,867 56,540 {475.748) 6,528 (28,223) - 41,670
Fund Balances (Deficil) - January 1 705.269 109.520 674936 127,627 156,792 12.780 239,387

Fund Balances (Deficil) - December 31 37156, ] 99,168 _§ 3. 12 5

(Continued)




Reveniues
Taxes
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Public ¢hames for services
inferdeparimental charges for services
livferest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
Genaerat government
Public safely
Public works
Culfure and recreation
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
General governmeni
Public safely
Pubidic works
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Conservalion and development
Debt service
Debt issuance costs
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over {Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General oblination bonds issued
State trust fuid loan issued
Transfers in
Trarisfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Batances {(Deficit) - January 1

Fund Balances {Deficil) - December 31

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Slatement of Ravenues, Expenditures and Changas in Fund Balances (Centinued)
tonmiser Gavemmaental Funds
Yaar Ended December 31, 2009

Capital Projects Funds (Conlinued)

K1
Conveantion Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax
Brownfield Cenler Incremental Incremental incremental Incremental Incremental
Grant Maintenange Disliict No_4 District No. 5 District No. 8 District No, 7 District No. 8
- 3 - & 519111 & 1154792 § 62,881 678,420 % 249,563
165 - 1.503 57,682 557 1,395 112
. - 8,214 34,722 1,480 10,055 11,629
50,000 142 600 153.000 264,338 - 132.923 -
50,185 142 800 581.828 1.511,538% 64,928 822,793 261.304
97,271 30,864 34972 187,220 26,604 549,807 52,655
a7.271 20,8061 34,972 197,220 26,604 549 807 52,665
(47,106) 111,738 846,856 1,314,315 38.324 272,986 208.639
- - {561,878} {1,283,848) {3,552) {245,8983 {192.937)
- 4 (561.878) {1,283 848) {3,552) (246,898} (192,937)
{47 106} 11,739 84,978 30,467 34,772 26,088 156,702
169,435 2,095,375 322.230 1.561.619 35,270 B22 973 A58 575
152320 § 2207444 & 407208 &  1.502.086 § 70051 8 _ 840061 § 474277

{Continued)




Revenugs
Taxes
Snecial assessments
Intergovernmental
Pubiic charges for sérvices
Interdepartmenta! charges for services
literest
Miscellaneous
TotalRevenues

Expendilures
Current
‘General governmeant
Public safety
Public works v
Cultyre and recreation
Conservation and development
Capifal outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Sanitalion _
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service
Debt issuarice Cosls
Tolat Expenditures

Excess of Revenugs Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Generat obligation bonds issued
State trust fund loanissued
Transfers in
Transfers out v
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balarces
Fund Balances (Deficit) ~ January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 31

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
‘Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances {Continued)

Naonmajor Govermental Funds
Year Eaded December 31, 2009

Capital Projects Funds (Continued)

Tax
Incrementat
District No..5:

Tax
Incremeantal
Dislrict No.. 10|

Tax
Incremental
- District No, 11

Tax
Incremental
District No. 12 .

Tax
Incremental
District No. 13

Tax
Inéremental
District No..14..

Tax
incrementat
.. Disfrict No.. 18

$ 86,002 § 70,048 $ 50,855 $  899.837 § -8 -8 -
1,667 3,157 20,089 174,688 7.800 33,777 688
. 2,654 7,865 80,609 . ) .
12,080 - - - 5923 108,876 -
$9,759 75.850 75,800 1355224 13.723 142.653 688
41,014 17,377 144,957 338,569 338,205 1,415,952 4,217
- - . 15,922 . - 937
. - - 15,607 - < -
31014 17377 144,957 370.098 338.905 1415.952 5154
58,745 58,482 (66.148) 785,126 (324.482)  (1.273.299) (4.466)
. . - 1,930,000 . - .
. - . ) . 1,778,760 .
238,000 . B - ) ) .
(270.401) . (29.586) {139.533) (319.744) (132,206) -
(32.401) - (28,586) 7.790.467 (319 744) 1.647.554 -
26,344 58,482 (95,734) 2,575,503 (644,226) 374,255 (4,466)
(660,352) 59544 379,658 2,300,316 (5.832,303) (509,014) (65,618)
$ (634008 § 118026 § 283004 § 4884000 § (64765200 & (134750) S (70.084)

{Conlinued)




Revenues
Taxes
Special assessments
intergovernmental
Public charges for Services
interdepartriiental charges for services
Inlerest
HMiscellaneous
Totat Revenues

Expenditures
Current
‘General government
Public safely
Public works
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Capital oullay
General govaernment.
Public safely
Public works
Sanitation ‘
Culture and reécreation
Consarvation and development
Debi service
{ebt issuance costs
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over {(Under) Expenditures:

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General oblinalion bonds issued
State trust fund loan issued
Transfers in’

Transfers out
Totat Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances (Deficit) - January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 31

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Slatemen! of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

o st
Yuar Ended

Dgeamber 31, 2008

Capilal Proiscis Funtjs (Continued)

Total Total
Tax Tax , Canpital Nonmaior
Incremental Incremental Younkers/ Sustainable Projects Governmental
_District Np. 16 | District No, 17 | Bosion Sipre City Deck Green Bay Funds Funds
% 41,424 3 - $ - % - % - $ 4025943 % 5,434,393
w . - - . 782,372 782,372
23,580 - - 1,065,984 - 2,041,653 2,808,866
. . . - - 76,268 7,689,878
. - - - - 2,497,141
423 - 8.547 - - 166,288 182,258
. 705 - 120.000 2.500 1,141.818 2.911,703
65,536 3,705 8.547 1,185,984 2.500 8,234,342 22.406.611
. - - - 2495 2,495
. - . . - 18,772 887.440
. - - - - 813,880 7,704,214
. . . - E 1,585,584 1,880,422
BO.016 37.261 260,040 - 2,457 3.881.471 5,595,879
- - . - . 1,526,461 1,526,461
. ; . - - 1,364,572 1,644,800
" - - - 5,346,088 6,848,010
. . - - - 668,156 668,156
. . - - . 417,355 417,355
. - 4,460,713 - 4,896,859 4.896,859
- N C . - - 70,193 70.193
80.018 37,261 260.040 4.460.713 2.457 20.588.886 32,243 283
{14,480} {33,556} (261.4893)  (3.274.728} 43 {12,354 544) (9,836.682)
. “ - - - 8,680,000 8,680,000
. - - - - 3,934,760 3,934,760
. . N - - 8,451,367 8,460,981
. . « - - (7.935.898) {10.440.256)
" - - - - 13,127,259 18,635,485
(14.480) {33,556} {251,493) {3.274.729) 43 772,715 798,803
(25.126) (25 518} 2,415(’;‘513 1,267.805 - 18.091.197 23,743,003
8 140.608) 8§ (500741 § 2006000 § (2006024 8 43 & 19.863.912 5 24541806
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CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Dabt Sefvice. Fund
Schedule.of Revenugs, Expenditures and Chianges in Fund Bafance ~
Budget and Aclual
Yedr Ended Recember 31, 2008

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Communily Development Special Révenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes:in Fund Balance -
Budget and-Actual
Yedr Ended December 31, 2009

Original and Variance -
gFinal Positive Original and Variance
Budgat Actual {Negative) Final Positive
Revanues ) Budgat Actual {Negative)

Property taxes $ 13,304300 $ 13,304,300 § . Revenues ) v ‘

interast 770,420 587,630 (182,790) Intergovernmental § 4damme § 437716 B -

Miscellangous 50,000 175,548 115.458 Miscelancous - 1483413 1483413

Total Revénues 14,134,810 14.067.478 (67,332 ofat Revenues 437,716 1,921,129 1,483,413
Expenditures Expenditures.

Dabt service Conservation and development 437,718 1,712,758 (1,275,042)

Priricipal retirement 12,119,880 12,116,291 3,589 §

Interest 6.005,920 5,740,512 265,408 Excass of Revenues Over Expenditures - 208,371 208,371
Lease payment 668,470 668,464 6 ) )

Dabt issuance costs and fiscal charges 10,000 56,341 (46,3413 Gther Finanging Sources {Uses)

Total Expandilures 18,804,270 18,581.608 222,862 Transfers out - (101,427 {101.427)
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendituras {4,669,460) {4,514,130) 155,430 Net Change in Fund Balance - 106,944 108,944
Othear Financing Sources (Uses) Fund Balance.- January 1 460,754 460,754 .

Refunding notes issuad - 3,600,000 3,600,000

Transfers in 4,169,460 4,133,696 (3}0,76-’5) Furwd Balance -~ December 31 $ 460,754 & GG7.608 S 106944

Payinan! to refunding escrow agent - {3,600:000) {3.600,000) T

Total Othsr Financing Soufces (Uses) 4,169,460 4,128,696 (30,764)

Net Changs in Fund Balance {500.,000) (375434} 124,508
Funt Batance - January 1 1,367,081 1,367.981 -
Fund Balance - Decembar 31 3 867,081 _§ 9925647 §  124.666




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Parking Division Special'Revenus Fund Internal Servica Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures-and Changes in Fund Balancs - Combining Statement of Net Assets
Budget and Actual December 31, 2008
Year Ended December 31, 2009
Health Workers Liability Health
Originzl and Variance Self- Compensalion Self- Insurance
Final Posltive. Insurgrice | Seli-insurance | Ingurance Estrow Total
Budgiet Actisal {Negafive} ASSETS
Revenues Current Assats
Public charges o seivices $ 2241900 § 2297083 § 55193 Cash and investments § 6179412 § 727446 S 372858 § 194,153 § 7473869
Inferast : 8,000 4,558 (3.442) Receivables - 692,249 455,140 503,672 1,651,081
Total Revenues 2,249,800 2,301,651 51,757 Total Ctirrent Assels 6,179,412 1,418,695 827,998 597,825 9,124,930
Nancurrent Assels
Expenditures Deposit with CVMIC - - 4,812,360 - 4,812,360
Public works : 1.849.920 1,093,147 {143.237)
TOTAL ASSETS 6,178,412 1,419,685 5,640,358 697.825 13,837,290
Excess of Reveriues Over Evpénditures 399,980 308,504 (91,476
: LIABILITIES
Other.Financing Sources (Uses) Cureenit Liabilities
Transfers out (399,980) {306,420y 93,560 Accounts payable 419,610 9,344 . - 428,954
Uneared revenue 158,845 806,630 530.000 600,000 2,125,475
Net Change in Fund Batance - 2,084 2,084 Insurance clalins payable 824,957 680,128 555,167 - 2,159,552
Taial Currant Lisbilities 1,432,712 1,486,102 1,185,167 GDO.G00 4,713,081
Fungd Balance - January 1 259,014 259,014 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,432,712 1,496,102 1.185,167 500.000 4,713.981
Fund Balance - Decamber. 31 3 2590148 251048 S 2084
: NET ASSETS

(76,207} $ 4455191 & 97825 § 9223309

&1

{nrestricied (deficit) % 4.746.700




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Internal Sernvice Funds

Combinirig Statement-of Revenuas, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended December31,:2009

Operating Revenues
Charges to City departments,
emplayeds and relirees

QOperating Expenses

Insurance elaims and estimate
changes

Stop loss insurance premiums
Transplant insurance pramiums
Administrative feas
Consulling fees
Tolal Operaling Expenses

Operating Income. {Loss}

Noroperating Revenues (Expenses)
interest revénue

Debt reimbursements from-CVMIC

Total Nonoperaiing Revenues
{Expenses)

Transfers in
Net:income {Loss)
Net Assets (Dalicit).- January 4

Net Assets (Defictt).- December 31

Health Workers Liability Health
Self- Compénsalion Self- Insurance
Insurance Self-insurarice Insutrdnce Escrow Total

§ 15,521,932 § 952,190 & 599,677 % 600,000 § 17,673,799
13,418,593 734,984 473,195 774,646 15,401,418
294,012 69,540 285,140 B 648,692
138,010 - - - 138,010
362,989 - - - 362,989
55,000 24,226 - ~ 79,226
14,268,604 828,750 768,335 774,646 16,630,335
1,253,328 123,440 {158,658) {174,646) 1,043,484
145,234 18,400 7,611 - 172,245
- - 99,189 - 99,189
145,234 19,400 106,300 = 271,434
- - - 200,000 200,000
1,398,562 142,840 {51,858) 25,354 1,514,898
3,348,138 (219,247 4,507,049 72471 7,708,411
5 4746700_% (76407) 8. 4455191 & 97,826 § 9,223.309

Cash Flows from Operaling Activities
Cash from interfund services providad
Cash from-insurance récovenes
Instrance payments.

Paymanis lo consuitants
Nei Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Internal Servicé Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended Decermber 31, 2009

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activilies

Transfers from other funds

Cash received from CYMIC

Nat Cash Provided by Noncapital
Firancing Activities

Cash Flows {rom Investing Activities
interast received

Increase In Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Décamber 31

Reconciliation of Opearating Income {Lass} 16 Net Cashi

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Opearating income (loss)

Adjuslnients to recancile operating income

{loss) lo'nét cash provided (used)
by operating aclivities
Cash provided {used) by changes
in assels and liabilities
Accaunts recelvable
Prepaid insurance
Accounls payable
Defemed revenue
Insucdnce claims payable
Mt Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Heaith Workers Liability Health
Salf- Compensalion Self- Insurance
Insurance | Sell-Insurarice| _insurance Escrow Totat
§ 15632284 § 971,266 § 608,636 S G13.984 & 17,826,170
(13,735,317) {830,092) {618,663) (774.646) (15,958,718)
{417,889) (24.226) - - (442,215)
1.478,978 116,948 {10,027} (160,662} 1,425,237
B - - 200,000 200,000
- - 99,185 - 99,189
- 98,189 200,000 299,139
145,234 19,400 7611 - 172,245
1,624,212 136,348 96,773 39,318 1,898,671
4,555,200 591,098 276,085 154,815 5,577,198
S 6.179412 § 727446 5 372858 5 194,153 8 7473869
§ 1,253,328 § 123440 8 (158.658) § (174,846) S 1,043,464
- {18.774) 8,959 13,984 4,169
- 3,226 - - 3,226
35228 (13.761) {17,485} - 3.982
110,352 37,850 - - 148,202
80,070 {15,033} 157,157 - 222,194
$..1.478.978 5 116,948 S (10,027} & (160.862) & 1.425237




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Comparative Schedule of Governmental Capital Assets - By Source

December 31, 2009 and 2008

overpmental Capital Assets
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Machinery.and eqaipment
Infrastruciure
Total Governmental Capital Assels

vestment in Governmental Capital Assets By Source
General fund
Special revenue funds
Federal:and state granls
Capital projects fubds
General obligation-debt
Total Investment in-Governmental Capilal Assets By Source

[ 2009 | 2008 }
$ 39275789 S 38,890,089
8,049,555 807,602
50,884,832 59,703,832

36,364,168 35,376,824
451,633,195 450,129,503

% 595207539 __S 584.907.850

$ 33,328,401 '§ 32,955,100
20,985,050 19,919,066

540,894,088 532,033,684

$ 595,207,539 % 584.907.850

Function and Activily

General governmant

Publie safaly
Policy protection
Fire protection
inspuction

Public works
Public works
Sanitation

Park and regreation

Conservalion and
developmani{

Total Govemmeral
Cagilal Axsels

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Scheduts of Governmental Capital Assais - By Funciion and Activity
December 31, 2008

Construction

tiachinery
and

40,223,895 13,438,758 7,241,853 13,312,648

22,604,290 16,388,250 - 5,738,040

6,230,535

Totat Land in Progross Buildings Equipment infraslruciure
§ 2709928 § 3608843 § - S 2814200 3 1,2863885 § -
6,858,691 286,000 - 3,028,507 3,544,184 -
10,121,505 335312 ~ 3,624,736 5,161,647 -
197,068 - - - 197,069 -
433,536,682 4,738,625 807,602 31,370,700 17,563,210 379,056,645
73,957,168 - - - 1,380,638 72,578,550

S _5O5207.539 & 39275783 8 8049555 § 50884837 §

36,304,168

451,533,195




; CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Changes in Governmental Capital:Assets - By Function anid Activity.
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Governmental. Governmental
Capital’ Capital
Assets Assets
1/1/09 Additions Retirements 12/31/09
Function-and Activily. ) )
General gov‘er'nm;ent $ 8,501,838 8 28,000 § 817,910 § 7,709,928
‘Public safaty : ) o
Police protection 6,450,578 722,205 316,002 6,856,691
Firerprotection 9:495,219 842,838 216,462 10,121,595
Inspection 193,533 27,806 24,270 197,069
Public works ) )
Public works : 431,681,639 2,695,904 840,661 433,536,882
Sanitation | 73,598,649 390,405 31,866 73,857,188 [THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
Park-and recreation 32,718,804 7,537,001 31,909 40,223,896
Conservation: ancj developgment 22,267,590 757,500 420,800 22,604,290

Total Governm_en;tal Capilal Assets $ 584907850 '8 12.999,659 § 2,699.970 & 595,207,538




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Summary of Outstanding Bonds and Notes

Principal and Inferest
December 31, 2008

Year Principal Interest
Due Total G.0.Bonds | G.O.Notes | BANSs G.0.8onds | G.O.Notes | BANs
2010 $ 18795464 & 11,175,000 § 1,385,314 § 5 4,243,421 § 1,861,729 §
2011 18,218,561 10,980,000 1,627,815 3,668,715 1,942,031
2012 17,075,789 10,105,000 1.911,763 3,235,278 1,823,748
2013 14,814,492 8,355,000 1,878,391 2,855,804 1,725,297
2014 12,550,082 6,395,000 1,971,838 2,551,729 1,632,415
2015 14,584,100 6,010,000 4,818,818 2,291,433 1,463,749
2016 10,405,376 5,140,000 1,915,451 2,048,954 1,300,971
2017 9,699,459 4,655,000 2,013,384 1,828,037 1,203,038
2018 9,352,048 4,520,000 2,112,623 1,615,626 1,103,768
2019 8,883,456 4,325,000 2,152,406 1,406,416 999,634
2020 7,809,153 3,550,000 2,146,954 1,216,396 895,803
2021 7,832,151 3,750,000 2,255,910 1,039,393 786,848
2022 7.849,199 3,955,000 2,367.862 851,441 674,896
2623 6,620,260 2,880,000 2,485,408 687,504 557,348
2024 6,382,349 3,030,000 2,367,762 549,474 435,113
2025 5,963,466 3,180,000 2,083,151 403,231 317,084
2026 4,917,624 2,540,000 1,866,909 265,924 214,791
2027 3,285,804 1,840,000 1,166,205 158,835 120,764
2028 2,506,875 1,330,000 1,038,006 79,235 59,634
2029 919,773 790,000 102,092 22,318 5,363
$ 188,466,381 $ 98515000 $§ 39.678.162 § $ 31019164 S 19254055 §




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Detsil of Quistanding General Obligation Bonds Detait of Outstanding Genaral Obligation Bonds {Continued)
Decenther 31, 2009 December 31, 2009
Effective Finai initiat Quistanding Effective Flnal Initial Quistanding
Interest Issus Malturity Issus Balance Interest Issue Maturity lssue Balance
Rale Dale Data Detail 12/31/09 Rale Date Date Detail 12/31/09
General Obiigation Refunding 19964 5.2494 04-01-1998  04-01-2012 General Obligation Refunding 20044 3.1554 01-06-2004  04-01-2012
Gorporale Purpose 1987 $  1.263.983 Cormporate Purpose 19954 § 2712760
Corparale Purpose 10894 579,317 Corporate Purpose 19958 3,497,240
Carporate Purpese 1850 631,982 5_ 6210000 2,485,000
Cosparata Purpose 1991 1,459,368 o E———
Corporate Purpose 1992A 7.615.380 General Obligation 20048 4.0793 05-03-2004  04-01-2019
Tolal Issue 5. 11560000 §  3.270,000 Pavement S 2,225,000
Starm Sewer 1,200,000
Corporale Purpose 20004 5.3487 05-01-2000 4.1.2015 Sanilary Sewer 1,300,000
Pavement 5 2,130,000 Parking Ramp Repairs 350,000
Park/Recreation 600,000 ParkiRecraation 650,000
Slorm Sewer 1,425,000 EEI5.000 5,245,000
Fire 270,000
Murnicipat Court 350,000 General Obligation Refunding 2004D 3.0347 11-08-2004  04-01-2012
TID No. 3 745,000 Comorate Purpose 1996C 5 2,288,460
TID No. 5. 995.000 Corparale. Pumose 1997A 1,980,440
Total lssue <2..0.516.000 690,000 & 4270000 1,785,000
Corporate Purpose 2001A 4.9592 05012001 04-012016 General Obligation Refunding 20054 3.5779 03-15-2005  04-01-2013
Pavement $ 3,370,000 Corporate Purpose 19938 8. 5160000 3,110,000
ParkiRecreation 505,000
Sjorm Sawer 1,545,000 General Obligation 20058 4.2604 06-01-2008 4-01-2025
Palice 250,000 Fire Engine $ 315,000
Municipal Garage 275,000 Pavemant 4,150,000
Tolal lssue 52,945,000 1,450,000 Slaini Sewer 1,110,000
Sanifary Sewer 2,230,000
Corporate Puipose 20028 4.44358 05-01-2002  ©4-01-2017 Parking Ramp Repairs 500,000
Pavament $ 2,980,000 Patk/Recreation 1,140,000
Park/Recreation 600,000
Storm Sewer 1,330,000 § 9455000 8,720.000
TiD Ne. 3, 475,080 R
Parking Ramys Repairs e 300,000 General Obligation 2006A 4.5474 05-01-2006  04-01-2026
Total Issua : B 5805000 4,320,000 Pavemsnt $ 2,440,000
. : Sanitary Sewer 1,000,000
Garieral Obligation Refunding 2003A 3.501 01-01-2003  04-01-2013 Park/Recreation 2,450,000
Comorate Puipose 19944 $ 2,750,000 Parking Utility 475,000
Corporate Piirpose 19948 4945000 ) TIDNg, & 115,000
&_.2.685000 1,635.000 TID No. 8 80,000
TID Ne..9 1,400,000
General Obligation Refunding 20038 54085 03-17.2003  10-1.2022 TID No. 12 265,000
Refunded Tax anticipation note 20038 % _11.718,00 9,375,000 TID Ne. 113 1,000,000
Corporate Purpose 2003C 39118 04222003  04-01-2018 $ _9.225.000 8,595,000
Bavement $ 2585000 _———
Storm Sawver 1,825,000 Gengral Qbligalion 20068 6.5796 05.01-2006  04-01-2026
Sanitary Sewer 1,000,000 Properly Purchase $§ 700,000
Datk Wall Rupalrs 326,040 TIDNe. 7 1,140,000
Parking Ramp Repairs 600,000
v TIDNo. 7 1,075,000 $ 1,840,000 1,715,000
Park/Recreation e 2501000 =
Total tssue 5 8.080,000 5,485,000 {Continued}
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CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Datail of Quistanding General Obligation Boads {Continued)

Becembar 31, 2003
Effective Final Toital ‘Outstanding
interest Issue Maturity Issue . Balance
Rate Date Date Detat ¢ 12/31/09.
. General Obligalion zooiA_. 430789  0B-05-2007  04-01-2027
" Fire Department Facilities Repair $ 420,000
Pavernant : 2,928,000
Park/Reersation 1,550,000
Parking Wtility 500,000,
TID No.'5 "335,000
TIDNo. 7 160,000
TiD No, 12 1,475,000
TiD No. 13 25.000
B 7.39 V] 7,135,000
! General Obligation Advanced Refunding 20078 3.99 10-01-2007  04-01-2015
Corporale Purpose 2000A 5__3.845.000 3,785,000
; General Obligalion Advanced Refunding 2007C 58005 10:01-2007  04:01-2015
Carporals Purpose 19868 £ 2345000 2950000 THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
! Genaral Obligation Advariced Refunding 2008A 3.6408 01-04-2008  04-01-2014
Corporate Plirpose 1998A $ 7,160,000
Corporate. Purpose 1999A 3:570,000
. : $_ 10,730,000 8,770,000
General Obligation ZQUQB 4.4945 08-04-2008-  04-G1-2020
Pavemant : § 2,700,000
Sariitary Sewer : 1,000.000
DPW Garage Repairs 130,000
ParkiRecraalion 780;000:
Parking Utility 250,000
TID Mo, 11 380.000
§..5240.000. 5,205,000
Gengral Obfigation 200§A ~ Build America Bonds 3.4440 §-9-2009 -4-01-2029
Pavement 5,110,000
Sanitary Sewer : 600,000
Starm Sevier 250,000
OPW Garage Repairs 100,000
Park/Recreation 690,000
TIO No. 12 1.938:000
$__8680.000 8,880,000
Genaral Obligation Advanced Refunding 20098 24107 112408 04-01-2016
Corparate Purposa 2001A° $ 3,608,000

3. . 2.600,000 3,600.000

_TOTAL OUTSTANDING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS S 98515000 )




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Detail of Quistanding General Obligation Motes
December 31, 2009

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Detall of Oulslanding General Obligation Nolzs (Confinued)
December 31, 2009

Effeclive Finaf {nitial Quislanding - - -
Intarest Issue Maturity Issun Balance Ettective ) Final Initial Outstanding
Rate Date Date Detail 12/31/09 Interest Issue WMaturity lssue Balance
Statis Trust Fund Rate Date Date Datall 1231409
ate Trust Fun
State Trust Fund - Draw 1 . .
Development note 45000 09-13-2002 03-15-2012 &__ 515000 $ 198,288 Development nole 5000 05282004 03152024 & 110000, 90,736
. State Trust Fund
State Trust Fund~ Draw 2 . ) ~
Developuient note 45000  10-16-2002° -03-15-2012 _§ __100.000 38,494 Desrelopmant note 4.50 07-12-2004 03-15-2014 8 325000 177,764
Stala Trust Fund
State Trust Fund ~ Draw 3 s
Development note 45000 11062002 03-15-2012 _§ 185000 71,041 Devefopmiant note 5000 09032004 03-15-2024  _§ 462,000 408,808
State Trust Fund State Trust-Fund
Developmsninole 4.5000 02.19-2003  03-15-2012 _§ 150,000 56.8u8 Davidepment nole 5.600 08-10-2004  02-15-2024 439,874
State Trust Fund Slate Tryst Fund
Development note 5000 04232003  03-15-2023 _§_ 1.000000 805,612 Devolapmert riote 5000 12-07-2004  03-15-2024 207.033
State Trust Fund State Trust Fund
Deveispment nole 5000  04-23-2063  03-152023 _S___500.000 305,182 Davelapment note 1750 12072004 03152024 5 RER000. 767,556
State Trust Fued State Trust Fund
v Development rote 5.000 05-28-2003  02-15:2023 _§ 270,000 212,418 Development nate 4.750 01-11-2005  03-15-2024  _§ 2.250.00 1,940,838
Stale Trust Fund, State Trust Fund )
Devalopment.nots 5000  GRA02003  03-152023 S 350,000 17,031 Development note G000 03102005 03-15-2024 G 283000 243,229
| State Trust Fund State Trust Fund v
Development note 4,750 00182005  03:15-2018 _§ 254000 192,348 Davelopment notg 5,000 05-18-2005  03-15-2025 :'_.’L__I_J“QZ_D,OOQ 2,302,384
! State Trisi Fund State Trust Fund )
Drvalopment note 2,750 10-01-2003  03:15-2048 37¢.000 269,850 Development note §.000 09-15-2005 03-15-2028 _§ 417.000 382,811
2 Staite Trust Fund Stale Trust Fund
© Devalopmentoole 5.000 10.22-2003  03.15-2023 _§ . 170.000 141,878 Davelopment note 4.750 09-20-2005  03-15-2025. _§ 260,000 228,514
State TrustFund Corporafe Putpose 2005C
¥ Devalopteni note 4.750 12112003 3152023 _§ 800,000 650,072 Taxable promissory note 51402 12-152005  04-01-2015 _$§ 3.830.000 3,630,000
Stale Trust-Fuid State Trust Fund
¢ Development nots 4750 0380:2004 03152019 _§. 66060 48775 Develophent note 5.000 04-20-2006  03-15.2026° _§ __800.000 720,378
! State Trst Fund State Trust Fund
Davelopmant note 4.750 05:04-2004  03-15-2029 & .414.000 341,199 Davelopment nota #.500 04-21-2006 03152026 _§__9,937.280 8,905,111
: State Teust Fund
" (Condinued) Development note 5.500 09-27-2007 03-15-2027 _§ 354,000 351,293
& State Trust Fund
Davelopment note 5.500 09.27-2007  03-15.2027 _$ 1,400,000 1,389,294
State Trust Fund
Developmant notg 5.500 11-27-2007  03-15-2027 _8§ 231,900 228,169
State Trust Fund
Davelopmint note 5.500 02-05-2008 03-15:2027 § 164,100 159,370

{Continugdy




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Detail of Outstanding General Obligation Notes {Continugd) Sahitary Sewer Debl due to GBMSD
Decernbér 31,7009 December 31, 2009
Effective Finat Initial Outstanding . o
Interest Issua Maturity fssue |  Belance West ) East Tower | Wequicock
Rate Dot Date Datof _ Oulstanding FoxRiver | Fox River Drive Greek
* Year Interceptor Crossing Metro | Interceptor | Intereeptor
State Trust Fund
Develapment nate 4750 06-05.-2008 03-15-2025 51,400,000 1,342,685 2010 $ 82866 $ 304498 § 78006 § 81255 § 25594
State Trust Fund 2014 82,866 304,498 76,905 84,749 26,694
ate Trust Fund 2012 82,860 304,498 - 88,303 27,842
Devalppment nole 4.750 06405-2008 03-15-2028 _S.___ 300000 287718 2013 82,866 304,498 . 92,194 29,039
o 2014 82,866 304,498 - 96,158 30,288
State Trust Fund ! y .
Developmentnots 4750 08-28-2008 (3-152028 _§ 070,240 370.240 2015 82,866 304,498 - 100,293 31,590
S 2016 82,866 304,498 - 104,606 32,849
State Trust Fund » » 2017 82,856 304,498 . 100,104 34,368
Devalopnient note 4.750 10-20-2008  03-15-2028 _§& 750,000 750,000 2018 82,866 - B 113,798 35,843
Stats Trust Fund 2019 82,866 - - 118,688 37,385
Stata Trusl Fund 2020 82,867 - - 123,792 38,992
2 = 5. 40 : -15-202 3 0,915 970,315 ' g y
Developmant note 5.500 12-30-2008 U3-15-2028 6.973.91 6;970.81 2021 . . N 129,115 40,669
State Trust Fund ) 2022 - N . 134,667 42417
Devalopment niote 4.750 1-26-2008  03-15-2028 _§  1.229.760 1,229,760 2023 . “ B 140,458 44,241
i 2024 - - - 146,496 46,143
Stato. Trust Fund ) 2025 - - - 152,797 48,129
Develcpment note 4.750 1262009 03-18-2028 & 550000 550,000

Bafance Due & 911,527 & 2435984 § 153811 § 1816860 & 572,181

State Trust Fund

Davelopmerit note 4.750° 317-2009  03-15-2028 _& 160,000 160,000
Stale Trist Fund

Devalopment nole 4.750 54202008  03-15-2029 _§ 80,000 60.000
State Trust Fund . .

Develapment nole 4.780 8<17-2008  03-15-2029 _§ 169,000 169,000
State Trust Fund ) )

Daveloprent nota 4.750 9112008  03-15-2029 _§ 125,000 125,008
State Trust Fund

Divelopmeaninote 5.500 10-6-2009  03-15:2028 _8& £20.000 820,00¢
State Trust Fund
;  Devslopment note 4.500 10-6-2000  03-15-2018  _§ 735,000 735000
Slate Trust Fund )

Develaginient nole 4.750 10-6-2009  03-15-2029 _$§ 46,000 36.000

3

TOTAL OUTSTANDING GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTES
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CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Capitat Leasss Green Bay Waler Utifity
December 31, 2009 Sumrmary of Outstanding Bonds and Notes
Principat and Interest
December 31, 2009

| Fire Truck Lease ! Phane System’ ] Total
Year | Principal [ Interest | Principal | Interest | Principal | Interest |  Total

l Year l [ principal interest |
2010 $ 54357 § 10,359 5 104160 $ 3561 § 158517 § 13920 § 172437 Due Total | GO.Bonds | GO Bonds |

2011 56,390 8,326 26,672 258 83,062 8,554 91,648
2012 58,500 6,216 - - 58,500 5216 54,716 210 § 5520648 § 2215000 § 3,314,648
2013 60,689 4,027 . . 80,689 4027 64,716 2011 5,531,398 2.315,000 3,216,398
2014 62,980 1,758 - - 62,960 1,756 84,716 2012 5,529,438 2,420,000 3,100,448
2013 5,531,048 2,530,000 3,001,948
Balance Due 5§ 292,800 S 30684 S 130832 § 3819 § 423728 S 34503 § 458,231 2014 5,534,823 2,640,000 2,894,823
2015 5,529,123 2,730,000 2,799,123
2016 5,528 838 2,850,000 2,678,838
2017 5,527,688 2,975,000 2,552,688
2018 5,530,188 3,125,000 2,405,188
2019 5,528,938 3,280,000 2,248,938
2020 5,530,838 3,445,000 2,085,838
2021 5,528,588 3,615,000 1,913,588
2022 5,527,838 3,795,000 1,732,838
2023 5,530,838 3,890,000 1,540,838
2024 5,533,975 4,198,000 1,338,075
2025 5,626,713 4,395,000 1,131,713
2026 5,529,868 4,565,000 934,888
2027 5,538,763 4,750,000 788,763
2028 5,535,363 4,430,000 605,363
2029 11,129,813 10,715,000 414,813

§ 116214657 § 75475000 § 40739657




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Camponent:Unt - Redevelopment Authority Component Unit - Redevelopment Authority
Comparative Balar:ce Sheels Comparative Stalements of Revenues, Expendifures-and Changes in Fund Balance
December 31,2009 and 2008 Years Ended December 31, 2009 aid 2008
[ 2pos 1 2008} [TZ00a | 3008 |
ASSETS . 000§ 20.370.000 ‘Revenuaes
Leases receivable S _19.650 ] 370 Laase Payments
Brown Counily S 652,786 3 633,755
: City of Grean Bay 1,012,820 1,009,199
UAB'IUT_ES_ Total Revenues 1,665,606 1,642 954
Liabilities
Bonds Payable Expensss
Gonvention center § 11970000 § 12,125,000 " Babt sarvi
Parking strusture 4,150,000 4,420,000 Dabt sarvice
i ! 3 1O Ve Interest and fiscal charges 1,665,608 1.642.954
Tundra Hotel and water park 3,530,000 3,895,000 anc fiseal eharg
Total Liabiities §  19.650,000 & 20,370,000 Net Change in Fund Balance i .

Fund Balance - January . R

Fund Balance - Decoember 31 S - & .




:CITY. OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN GITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

Comiionerit Unit - Redevelopment Authority Canmponent Unit - Radevelopmunt Authority
Principal-and-Intérast Detail of Oulstanding Bonds
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2009
Year: | Piincigal i Interest i Effective Final inifial Oulstanding
Due : Total [ Bonds [ Notes | Bonds |  Notes: Interost 1558 Maturity Jssu Balance
Rate Oate Date Dalail 12/31408

2010 ‘§ 1704883 $ 795000 § - % 909,883 § :

2071 1,740,564 870,000 - 870,564, .

2012 1,771,651 945-00,0: - ‘8255"851 - Graan Bay RDA Lease Revenue Rafunding Bonds

-2013 1,802,471 1.025,000 - 777,471 - Seriss 2006 4.19521% 212006 6-1-2020 S 12120000 § 11.870.000
2014 1,827,863 1,105,000 . 722,863 -

2015 1,862,560 1,200,000 - 662,560 - Greon Bay RDA Pine Slreet Ramp Bonds,
2016 2,485,840 1,910,000 - 575,840 - Saries 2000 Pina Street Ramp Expansion 53808%  11-3-2000  4-1-2020 _$ 6,000,000 $ 4,150,000
2017 1,336,178 835,000 - 501,178 -

2018 1,365,025 905,000 - 460,025 - Green Bay ROA Tundra Holel Bands, Serios 2002 61005%  ©12-2002  4-1-2016 4800000 S 3530000
2019 1,400,007 985,000 - 415,007 - ‘ i e
2020° 1,411:625 1,045,000 - 366,625 -

2021 933,895 605,000 - 328,805 -

2022 967,226 655,000 - 302,225 -

2023 1,012,720 740,000 - 272,720 -

12024 1,040,380 800,000 - 240,380 -

. 12025 1,085,100 ‘880,000 - 205,100 -

2026 1,121,088 955,000 - 186,088 g

12027 1,158,302 1,035,000 - 423,302 -

2028 1,196,970 1,120,000 - 76,970 -

2029 1,255,445 1.230:000 - 26,445 -

‘§ 28480882 § 19:650.000 - % 8830882 8 .




General Information

Green Bay, Wisconsin's oldest city, is rich in its heritags from the past, and yat moves steadily ahead
with its geals for he fuiure,

The French voyager, Jean Nicolet, discovered the area in 1634, The City was chartered as a village
in 1833, and bzcame a ity in 1854, It tater consalidated with ofd Fort Howard in 1898,

Geographically, the City is siwated a: the scutherly exwreme of Gresn Bay, which is an inland
extension of Lake Michigan. Tha Cily is 212 miles north of Chicage. 113 miles from Milwaukes, and
285 miles east of Minneapalis-St. Paul. Graen Bay is the county seat of Srowr County.

1n 2008, lhe cily street system tolaled 455 miles. There are 393 miles of underground storm sewars
and 484 miles of sanitary sewers. The Green Bay Matropolitan Sewerage District, inciuding 65 miles
of sewars, coliacis and treals wastes {or the Cily of Green Bay and suburban argas. A counlywide
langiill method is used by the City to dispase of trash.

With an-estimated population of 103,500, the population of Green Bay has increased 7% since the
2000 Census report of 102,767, Construction within the City hag continued ta show a sirong trend
withy building permiit valuations averaging $138.8 million dollars. annually over the past 10 years. 2,759
building permits were issued during 2009 valuing §71,327,201. Some of the larger projects included
in 2009 values include Enzymalic Therapy expansion of over $10 million, St Mary's iHospial
axpansion of $30 million, and Bellin Hospital expansion of $13 million.

Government and Comrmunity Services

The municipal government is under the administration of a Mayor who is elected atfarge fo a four-
year term, and Councll of 12 members elecled to tarms of two vears on the basis of ward
representation. Elected Brown Gounty Suparvisors from the City of Green Bay comprise 19% af the
entire County Board.

Administrative officials are appointed to thair respactive office for terms of two years each. They
include the Assessor, Building Inspector, City Atwarnay, Clerk, Comptroller, Dirsctor of Public Works,
Zoning Administrator, Treasurer, Uirestor of Parks and Recreation and the Director of Planning.

Services provided: by the City include police and fire depadmenis, separaie storm and sanitary
sewars, garbage and refuse collestion, = park and forestry system, a downtown sysiem of on-strast
ang ofi-stregt parking, a municipal transit systerm, and a water system. The Brown County Healih
Deaparttment provides a comprehensive public health program to the citizens of Green Bay. The
Austin Straubzl International. Alrpart is presenily served by four airlines and is the location of the
National Weather Service and Doppler radar.

Planning

The Brown County Regional Planning Comimission providgs a coordinated couniy-city approach io
regional plapning for the melropofitan arza. The Planning Commission's comprehensive approach
gives added assurance that the Gresn Bay area will conlinue to plan for the provision of essantial
regional services into-the future. In April of 2002, the City Councii 2dopted the Smari Growih 2022-
Grzen Bay Comprehensive Plan, which proposes szlective refinemenis and additions to the plan,
which had been.in place: As time passes, small adjustrents have been made to accommadate
gdditional needs not thoughi of when the Smart Growth Plan was passed in 2003

Commuity Life

Green Bay is a vigorous and athlelic community. Besides being the home of the Gresn Bay Packers,
tne City’s recreational facifties inciude numerous golf courses, parks, hockey rinks, ice-skating rinks.
2 ski and inner tube tow and several gymnasivims, swimming pools, {eanis courts and other faciliizs
offerad i conjunttion with the Gresn Bay Area Public Schoss,




The community life-of Green Bay is bread and: culfural. The National Raifrdad Museum and the
Wildlife Sarictuary aré popular iourist altractions.  Herifage: Hill ‘State Park offérs visiters an
opporturiity to ‘experience life as It was.in the Green Bay area from' 1672 through 1905. -Churchas
represénting all of the-Riajor faiths serve the religious needs of the community. Green Bay has had a
Civic Symphony. Orchestra for many ysars -and employs -a full-time conductor.  Browr County
established a'consalidated county library system as of January-2, 1968, This'was a-firstin Wisconsin.
Althotgh' separate coiinty libraries had previously existed mdepnnd=nt of city libraries in several
Wisconsin coutities, this was the first county library-to fake over the assels of existing municipat
librarigs. Dedication of & new. Brown County Musaum-iocated on the west bank of the. Fox River iook
place on Apfil 9, 1983. More delailed information-describing themuseum is-available in this repor. .

The:Gity school system seives an area of mare than 92 square miles, 47 square milas of which are.

ouisidé the City limits, The fatal enraliment as of Sepienibar, 2009 was 20,977, and:is servad by 25
elementary schools, four fiiddie schools, fouf high schools, and two K-S schools.  Special
departments include vistally impaired, hearing impaired, physically challenged, educable, trainable,
and severely/profoundly mentally handicapped, learning. disabled, emotionally disturbed, school-age
parent, homebound, miedically fragile, early childhood, @nd speech @nd language handicapped. A
Private Schaof System consisting. of 4 grades K-5 schools; 16 grades K-8, thieé grades K-12 schools;
and two private high schools witli-an enroliment of 4,371 supplements fhe publit schaols.. th addition
to the typical bricks and mortar schools; the school district is Heginnirig o see additional interest in

virtual £ charter, schools ‘as well ‘as ‘more parents apfing fo. home. school {heir children.  These-

aliernative methods of education. has bizen taking robl aver the course of the (ast several years and
doas-notaccount for.alarge percent.of the student population but Wil Be intetesting trend to waich,

Since 1867, Northeast Wisconsin Technical College: District 13, with its main campus focatad in Green
Bay, has served ail-of Brown, Marinette, Oconto, Fldrence, Door-and-Kewaunes counties, and parts of
Shawano, Manitowac and: Outagamie counities, NWTG has addifierial campuses.Iocated in Marinette
ahd Sturgeon Bay. The'main campus of the Uniiversity of Wisconsin-Gresn Bay operied-in 1989 and
is among Brown -County's: largest institutions. St Norbert College is & coseducational primarily
residential school located on the west bank of the Fox River in De Pere:

Otiver faciors estifying to the cosrhopolitan ife of Green Bay are the City's outstanding fransportation
and communications ‘netwarks. ‘Greer Bay's newspaper, talevision. and radio all provide' in-tlepth
coverage of national néws: and (ate-bréaking events, The Green. Bay Press-Gazette: is published
every moming-including, Saturday and.Sunday. There are seven television stations in the. Green Bay
area, Time Wamerand ‘A T & T provides cable television, Area radio stations provide the;perfect mix
of contemporary, rock and classical music. The Waitiner Centar for the: Performing Arts s located on
the University of Wisconsin-Gresn Bay's campus. This state-of-the-art. vacillty is known for iis
impeccable acoustivs and has received international acclaim as one of the best penormxng hiatls in‘the
United States. I February 2002, the histaric. Meyer Theater opened its doors ence again in downtown
Gresn Bay after completing 285 milllion doliar cenovation. The fhealer can seat nearly 1,000 people
and is:a valuable addition fo the Northeast Wisconsin's-arts and entertainment:scene.

Green Bay operates four full-service hospitals and dozens of medical clinics. The Curative Workshop-
Rehabilitstion Center provides services for the handicapped, severely disabled and eldzrdy, Exceljert
nutsing: hormes, heme care and- independent living options are available in Green Bay. The religious
needs of the commynity are served biy. dozens of churches represanting all of the major faiths.

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of ihe City of Green Bay's comprehensive annual financial: report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information In the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary-infornydtion says abotit Greeri:Bay's overall financial health.
Contents

Fitgnciat Trénds
These-schetules contain trénd information-to kielp the. readai understand how Gresn Bay's
financial parformatice and well-béing have changed over fime.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain informalion (o help he reader assess Green Bay's most
sigriificant focaltreverive sotroe, the praperty tax.

Debt Capacity
These 'schedufes present information lo help:the raader assess the. affordab:lzly of
Green Bay's'currant levels.of atitslandiny debt.and Gresh Bay's ability to-issue additional
debt in the future

Deniggraphic and Econaric informafion
These schedules offtr démographic-and economic indicators fo-help the reader understand
the environment ‘withinvihich Grien Bay's financial activities take ‘place.

" Operating Information

Thesa schetlules contain senvica-and infrastructurg data lo help the reader understand how
the information in Green Bay's financial report félates to the servicés Greeh Bay, provides
and live activities.it performs.
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Sources: Unless othierwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived.from the comprehensivg annual

financial reports for the relevant year.




Goverhmental activilies
Invesied in capilal assets, nel of related debl
Restricted
Unresiricted

Tolal governmenta! activities net assets

Business-lype activilies ‘
Invested in capital assets, nel of related debt
‘Restricted.
Unrestricted

Total busingss-type aclivilies net assels
Primary-government
‘fnvestad in capital assets, net of related debt

Rastricied
Unresiricled

Total primary govermment net assels

SCHEDULE 1
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

{amount expressed in $1,000's)
Last Eight Fiscal Years

December 31,.2009

. FISCAL YEAR
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 3602

§ 235215  $238633  $243715  $248,010  $238,893  $220976  $235204 5228038
993 368 2,343 1,371 628 290 93 62
33,358 17,782 13,120 10,088 15,149 16,731 10,964 9,135
§ 260,566 267,783 $250,178 _ $950,480  $254,670  5246,097 246061  §237.0395
§ 83987 5 78667 S VEES0 S 79775 8 79,715  § 76402 S 80424  § 77,196
3,693 3,943 4,481 4,958 5,607 6,360 1,483 1,518
12,432 14,492 13,478 10,153 7,427 9,619 8,631 8,392
§ 100312 § 07402 & 06600 § 04887 02749 § 92381 5 90,548 & 87,106
$ 319,202  $317,300  $322365  $327,786  $318,608  $306,378  $315628  $305.234
4,886 5,311 6,624 6,320 6,235 6,650 1,586 1,580
45,790 32,274 26,598 20,253 22,576 26,350 19,595 17,527
§ 300,878 5354885 5355787  $354,368 647,410 $330,378  $336,800 _ 50824,341




SCHEDULE 2
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Changes in Net Assels
Lasl Eight Fiscal Years
December 31, 2009

2009 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002
Expenses -
Governmental activities; _ ,
General government $ T7,785866 § 8249317 $§ 7728390 § B244443 $§ 7093776 § 6570004 § 7712323 § 7856522
Pubilc safety 45,273,210 44732843 44,620,288 44,463,267 39,836,160 39,993,564 40,930,366 38,780,618,
Public works 25,188,446 29,818,586 30,277 544 25,935,807 21,274,815, 26,359,186 25,396,511 23.893,431
Sariiation ‘ 12,273,905 12,058,346 11,975,484 11,975,484 14,295,165 14,302,240 12,682,667 12,674,261
Cultvre and recrealion 10,723,208 84971359 8,020,837 8,873,540 10,401,318 8,702,296 9,173,678 24,833,719
Conservation and davelopmient 9,913,189 14,889,437 8,791,634 6,375,183 8,289,083 10,273,263 7.264,729 8,977,221
{rilerést onvlong-term déb! 6,768,598 6,207,520 5,666,390 6,471,033 6,051,997 6,122,114 5,720,199 5,140,018
Total gevernmental-activities expenses 117896,432 125128408 119,080,687 113,338,667 107,242,313 112,322,757 108,889,473 122,165,790
Business-type activities: )
Water 15,189,128 15,746,354 14,436,122 13,550,048 12,868,721 10,685,040 10,270,478 9,277,435
Fransit 8,148,121 8,713,501 7;952,736 7,542,353 7,891,720 7,448,415 7,373,872 7.715,118
Total business-type aclivilies expenses 23,338,249 23,859,855 27,388,858 21,092,401 20,860,441 18,133,456 17,644,350 16,992,555
“Total primary . government expenses 141,284,681 148,988,283 147,969,425 134,432,068 128,102,754 130,456,213 126,533,823 138,158,345
Program Revenues
Governmental activilies:
Charges fur sgrvices ' _
Ganeral government 5,224,083 5,000,861 5,613,803 4,930,453 5,389,337 5.453,141 3,826,694 3,477,930
Public salety 5,029,485 5,003,580 4,862,988 3,731,601 3,748,928 4,305,046 3,802,860 3,014,374
Public works #,836,586 8,457,649 8177112 7,331,218 7.240,733 4,863,337 3,626,115 3,869,436
Sanilation 14,765,499 13,464,623 12,561,514 12,864,202 11,347,381 12,323,964 13,128,556 12,655,824
Culture and recreation 2,652,423 706,944 2,343,475 2,185,489 4,191,853 2,187,565 3,159,530 5,226,584
Conservatioh and development 5,360,628 2,354,815 1,463,008 2,899,234 2,165,186 865,444 1,111,526 1,031,429
‘Oparating grants and contributions 6,185,087 9127.000 6,346,149 8,302,969 8,425,443 10,038,009 11,175,488 9,463,209
Capital grants and contributions 3,535,884 2,514,856 3.250.890 3,734,382 3.682.834 3,931,176 8,672,547 6,108,120
“Total governimental activitigs program ravenue 51,689,645 45,830,235 44,008,029 46,979,628 48,181,795 44,067,682 48,603,316 44,946,906
Business-type activilies:
Charges for services v .
Water 17,328,531 17,032,699 17,670,743 14,978,342 13,086,343 12,582,012 12,432,752 13,053,423
Tranisit 1,281,805 1,293,296 1,217,287 1,193,068 1,122,324 1,054,144 1,025,334 938,292
Operaling grants and contributions 6,102,883 6,662,766 5,817,456 5,592,096 5,804,949 5,604,202 5,390,056 5,222,580
Capilal granis and contribufions 3,008,148 322,253 175,857 1,084,540 1,054,468 1,633,010 3,464,245 617,413
Totat business-type-agtivities program revenue 27,821,267 25,311,014 24,781,343 23,748,040 21,068,081 20,773,368 22,312,387 19,831,708

Total primary government program revenues 70 416,812 731,841,247 G8.790.57¢ 70,127,674 67,249,876 654,841,050 70,915,703 54,776,614




Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmentza! activities
Business-type activities

Tolal primary government net (expenseliravenus

General Revenues and Other Changes In Net Assels
Governmental activities:

Properly {axes

Unrestricied grants and conlributions

Interest earmnings

Translers

Total govermnmental activities

Business-type activiies:
Property taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
interest earnings
Gain ondisposal-of capilal assels
Transfers
Total business-type aclivilies

Total primary governmeant

CGhange in Net Assets
Gavernments! dclivities
Business-type activiies

Total primary government

SCHEDULE 2

Changes in Net Assels
Last Eight Fiscal Years
December 31,2003

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN

2009 2008 2007 2008 20056 2004 2003 2002
(66,356,787}  (7B.408,175)  (75.071.538)  (86,360,039)  {51.080,518) (68,255,078}  (60,286.157)  (77.218,884)
4.483.018 1,451,158 2,362 488 2855645 207,840 2,630,012 4,668,037 2,839,153
63873769 (F7.047018) (72879,053) (563704.304)  (G0.852,878)  (65,615,163)  (55,818,120)  (74,379,731)
52,308,601 50,498,058 47,685,348 45,558,210 43052042 44.640,339 42,770,237 40,921,038
22,638,976 22308243 22,42E7219 21,204,070 20,893,104 21,179,702 23,604,036 23,700,671
1,518,376 2575579 3,145,478 3,085,685 2,527,041 1,627,514 1,502,334 1,963,072
1,678,556 1,631,310 1,516,354 1,321,033 1,361,107 1,343,054 1,345,855 1,335,122
78,139,509 77 103,207 74,769,409 71,170,007 68,733,104 58,590,500 89,373,462 67,020,805
401,838, 673,048 845,339 803,731 1,521,504 536,101 120,119 200,499
4,30 - 0 0 3] 0 0
{1.678,556)  (1.631.310)  {1.518,384) {1.321,053) (1,361,107} (1,343,054) {1,345,855) (1,435,122
(1272417) (956,262) 671,025) {617,302) 160,097 (608,953) (1,225,730) (3.044,623)
76,667.002 76,144,939 74,098,384 70,652,705 68,894,501 68,183,656 68,086,728 66,676,181
31,782,722 (1,394,974) {302,129 4,809,968 TBI3H7H 735,534 9,026,305 (8,298,080)
3,210,001 402 807 1,721,460 2,138,343 366,037 1,832,959 3,442,301 1,784,530
3 14093323 5 (B02077) 14168331 S 5548311 §  B041L7TI3 5 2508483 5 12468806 S (7.503.550)




SCHEDULE 3
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Eight Fiscal Years
December 31, 2009

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
General Fund ‘ _
Reserved $ 1653086 § 1631881 § 1,662479 § 2,687,133 § 2016568 § 1,316,564 § 1,408,601 $ 1,254,301
Unreserved 11427079 12,438,449 13,180,261 10,303,663 12,402,535 10,985,640 10,189,086 12,125,581
Tolal gengral fund $ 13,080,135 8 13970,330 & 14,742,740 & 13,000,796 § 14419103 § 12,302,204 $ 11,597,687 & 13,379,882

All Other Governmentat Funds

Reserved $ 9262298 § 9863151 § 37500866 § 6819226 § 409,386 § 8528113 § 2,742,385 & 12,328,798
Unreservied, reported in: _
Special revenue funds 8,572,508 6,560,534 7,232,173 6,152,493 6,474,786 5,728,170 4,804,848 4,790,556
Capital projects funds 11,735,533 10,812,922 17,050,451 14,598,409 12,837,802 13,658,830 17,560,155 16,089,993
Debt service funds - . - - . - - -
Total-all other governmental funds 5 29590340 % 27336607 § 28032690 § 27570128 $ 23421974 § 27914813 $ 25197,388 $ 33,208.307
Total Fund Balances $ 42670475 $ 41306937 § 42775430 § 40,570,924 S 37.841,077 § 40,217.017 $ 36795075 $ 46,589,189




SCHEDULE 4
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WiSCONSIN
Changes in Fund Balances, Goveromental Funds
Last Eight Figes! Yaars

December 37, 2008
2009 2008 2007 ___ 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues
“Faves % 52308602 5 B0.495,069 § 47,585,348 $ 45,559,219 § 43852842 3 44,040,338 5 42,770,238 $ 42,256,161
Epeciat assessments: 782372 1,208,450 1,259,309 1,857,355 2,068,325 3,453,478 5,974,507 2.478,720
Licenses and permils 1.540.238 2,089,692 2,088,644 1,542,592 1457479 1,918,442 1612839 1,482,183
intergovernmentat 32,643,843 d2,065,012 38,220,181 31,471,067 30,335,589 32,030,784 33,355,067 38,087,841
Public charges for sewvices 28,065,208 26,023,723 24400838 24.294,384 22,499,043 20,820,366 21,284,046 21,878,574
interdepartimantal charges for services 4,747,180 4,106,112 4,313,292 4,426,823 3,487,082 3,382,636 2,755,500 2,194,291
Fines and forfeils 1,381,691 1,511,500 1,442,879 1.519,851 1,390,808 1,307,246 1,162,694 1,188,420
interest 1,344,130 2,367,004 2,969,308 2,840,508 1,799,142 1,137,185 988,523 1,308,208
Misceltangous 4,167 413 4,378,847 11,581,421 (5,207,785 8,201 287 8275082 7,950,871 4,398,288
Tolal revanuas 127 280872 125,228 508 128.850.216 120,219,573 135,782,717 117,065,548 117,854,385 115,285,666
Expendilires
Current
Gangral govemnment 7871505 B185,004 7.461,037 7,042,300 6,795,105 7,600,527 7,402,097 7.682,948
Public salaty 44 805,885 434831141 43,284,430 44,849,584 41,054,351 34,486,844 36,018,009 38,169,682
Public works 22,315,258 27,411,641 27074973 21,395555 20,542,310 10,870,124 18,124,907 20577510
Sanitation 12,160,275 13,868,330 11,691,894 12,073,233 13,849,421 12,205,802 12,276,075 11,796,614
Culture and recreation 10,487,218 8,833,040 7,594,495 7,980,378 7,774,372 7,690,832 8,924,916 11,336,184
Longervation and devalopment 13,717,350 15,061,721 11,873,805 5,189,180 165,425 7,155,895 3,556,637 3,680,239
Beargds and commissions - - - - . - 872,236
Cagital outlay
Gungral govorunent 1,451,583 - 42,207 678,014 470,606 120,308 230,152 353,987
Public.salety 1,820,685 Go8.028 442,146 1,601,580 1,521,612 G775 774,004 73,914
Public works 8,484,058 6,187,207 3,563,470 8,766,131 16,317,897 11,651,800 32,625,763 10,500,283
Sanitation 380,405 A4d,862 YB7.454 1,276,479 2156178, 3597317 2,480,846 1,799,167
Cullure. and recreation 205,048 330.873 3,579,832 3482814 2,149,920 918,556 833,807 1,419,663
Conservation and development 757,500 1,011,030 3071689 2,531,820 2,774,708 7075409 12,710,504 6,482,012
Cebt service ] L )
Frincipal retimment 12,416,291 11,372,202 9,824,423 0,542,031 10,684,488 8.508.025 18,786,142 7.218,370
interest 3,676,738 5018818 6,085,219 5,599,582 5125732 5,081,175 %.911,375 4,876,217
Prior service pension Habilly - - . . - - 12,714,787 -
Laasa payment 668,464 670,788 636,303 445,766 466,061 445,788 404,086 -
Dbt issuansce costs 126,534 145,853 148,054 77.736 145,449 217,201 338,698 249,213
Total expendifures 139,946,676 143,474 567 137,506,719 140,515,105 141,203,724 132,348,340 157,203,913 128,109,219

Excass of revenues over {undear)
expenditures {12,665.004) {18,2445,058}) (B.547,503) (20,205,532} {25,421.007) (15,282,792} (39,348,517} (12.823.553)




SCHEDULE 4
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Changes i Fund Balsnces, Govaemmental Funds
Last Eight Fiscal Years

Decembir 31, 2009
2009 2008 2007 2006 2006, . 2004 2003 2002
Other financing sourcos {uses)
General obligation bonds issuad 8,680,000 5,240,000 7.390,000 1,085,050 8,455,020 5,725,000 8,060,000 10,655,000
Genaral obligation nofes issued - . - - 3,530,000 11,966,648 4,640,835 11,800,000
General obligstion refunding bonds
issuel 3.600.000 1,650,000 §,990,000 - 5,160,000 10,480,000 19,375,000 5,375,000
Stals trust fund loanissued 3,834,760 4,955,255 1,885,900 10,737,280 5,870,000 3,001,000 3,674,000 800,000
Capital leases issued - - - 487,600 x . - -
GBMED annzxation dubl issuad - . - 184,466 2,705,688 - - 87.837
Payment o refunding bond ascrow .
agent {3,663,774) (10,699,000 {6.930.236) - (5,138,373} {13,935,838) (7.673.856) (6,985,791}
Fremium receivad on nots issuance - - - 101,845 124,668 133,269 -
Transfers in 14,677,628 12.800.580 10.038.573 18,608,257 5,569,309 10,719,347 6,781,983 7,095,528
Transfers out {13,199,069) (11,169,270) {8.622,209) {16,038.224) {4.508.202) (9.376.293) {5,436,108) {7.262.778)
Tatal other financing sources {uses) 14,029,542 16,777,565 10,852,008 23,025,378 23,045,067 18,704,734 29,555.103 21,664,796
Nel changes In fund balances S 1,363,538 S (1.468483) 8 2204505 § 2720847 $ (2375940) 5 3421842 S (8.794014) S 8,741,243
Dt service as a percentage v
of noricapital expenditures 14.64% 13.47% 13.47% 20.95% 14.03% 12.21% 27.74% 10.81%




SCGHEDULE 5
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 2009

Real Property Persanal Property

Ratio of Tolal

Estimated Eslimated Total Estimated Assessed 1o
Fiscal Assessed Actual Actual Assessed Tolal Direct Aciual Tolal Estimated
Year Vaiue Vatue Assassed Vaiue Value Tax Rate Value Actual Value
2000 $ 3,756,728,900 S 4,182,891,500 217,215,800 § 251,322,100 3,973,844,400 8.248 4,434,213,600 89.62
2001 3.831,071.600 4,453,577,700 214,915,400 250,721,200 4.045,987,000 9.575 4,704,298,900 86.01
2002 3,920,789,100 4,708,5098,900 211,566,532 255,440,500 4,132,355,632 9.943 4,964,950,400 83.23
2003 3,996,470,500 5,049.988,500 227,386,200 291,654,800 4,223,856.700 9.77¢9 5,341,643,300 79.07
2004 §,325,611,100 5,365.858,400 268,321,800 279,808,000 5,593,932,900 7.746 5,645,467,400 899.09
2005 5,408,350,800 5,645,307,300 284,783,300 280,225,800 5.674,134,200 7.899 5,825,533,200 95,76
2008 5.491.805,800 5,879,516,300 267,421,700 285,238,000 5,759,227,500 8.095 6,144,755,300 9373
2007 5,544,673,200 5,980,538,300 269,538,400 202,814,000 5,813,611,600 8.423 6,283,453,300 g2.582
2008 5,585,143,800 6,068,291,100 278,832,100 297,478,600 5,873,975.900 8.674 6,365,768,700 92.27
2008 5,648,485,200 5,935,306,800 287,532,300 299,280,560 5,836,017.500 8.857 6,234,597.300 95,21

Information obtained from Statistical Reporis of Property Values, Bureau of Property Tax, Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue, ‘Beginning in 1986, Wisconsin Stale
Stalute 70.05 requires assessed valuations fo be within 10% of full value at least once during a 4-year period consisting of the current year and the 3 preceding years.

In January 2001, a total revaluation of the entire City was implemenfed with completion accomplished by November 2004.




SCHEDULE 6
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
(Amounis Shown are Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)
Last Ten Fiscal Yedrs
December 31, 2009

Green'Bay

Fiscal City.of Araa Public Narthgast Wiseansin County of State of

Year Green Bay Schools Technical College Brown Wisconsin Total
2000 3 9.248 334% § 11.559 41.7% $ 1.446 52% § 5.260 18.0% $ 0.215 0:8% § 27,728  100.0%
2001 9.575 331% 11.888 41.1% 1.882 5.4% 5.681 19.6% 0.223 0.8% 28919 100.0%
2002 9.943 33:5% 11714 39.5% 1.885 6.3% 5916 19.9% 0.233 0.8% 26691  100.0%
2003 9.779  326% 11.938 39.5% 1.976 6.5% 6.058  20.6% 0.253 0.8% 30.004  100.0%
2004 1.746 33.0% 9.380 40.0% 1.543 6.6% 4.579 19.5% 0.202 0.9% 23450  100.0%
2005 7.858 341% 8.945 38.6% 1.565 6.8% 4,550 19.6% 0.196 0.8% 23455  100.0%
2006 8.095 34.8% B.851 38.1% 1,585 6.7% 4,532 19.5% 0.187 0.8% 23230 100.0%
2007 8.423 35.2% g.112 38,1% 1.582 8.6% 4.645 19.4% 0.183 0.8% 23.946  100.0%
2008 8.674 35.3% 9.316 38.1% 1.604 6.5% 4.758 19.4% 0.184 0.7% 24537 100.0%
2009 8.857 36.1% 9.524 38.0% 1.620 6.5% 4.651 18.7% 0.178 0.7% 24830 100.0%

Note: The 2004 property ax rales reflect the total revaluation of the entire City.

Tax Levies
2000 § 35,942 414 $ 44,821,488 § 5,621,413 $ 20,442,047 $ 835711 § 107,763,073
2001 38,051,161 47,243,756 6,167,731 22,577,939 886,843 114,927,430
2002 40,228,510 47.395,878 7625,999 ' 23,936,878 940,860 120,129,125
2003 40,400,878 48,902,993 8,028,275 25,450,233 992,800 123,775,369
2004 43,328,005 52,468,807 8,533,433 25,615,610 1,129,093 131,176,039
2005 44,821,601 50,755,254 8880,798 25,817,367 1,111,512 131,388,532
2006 46,620,506 50,974,096 9,012,788 26,089,847 1,079,087 133,786,324
2007 48,965,500 52,976,070 9,195,856, 27,008,576 1,066,341 138,210,343
2008 50,953,170 54,719,523 9,423,921 27,950,979 1,080,310 144,127,903

2008 52,577,314 56,534,016 9,589.611 27,608,861 1,058,049 147,367,851




Name

Baycare Aurora LLC
Georgia Pacilic (Fort James Wast)

Procter & Gainble Paper Producls, Inc.

Kos Halcheries

Onelda Tribe of Indians

Green Bay Plaza LLC

T Futures LLC/Robert Toonen
RHS:-Family Limited Partnership
Bayland Properties

RGL Real Estate

Packerland Packing

individual « Brzezinski, Anthony
Breen Bay Packaging

Leicht Transfer Warehouse
WOAiLM Real Eslate LTD
Boslen Store / Yourkers
Regency Suites

Bays Tundra Hospitality

Green Bay Holel Associates LLC

Totals

Assessed Valualion

SCHEDULE 7
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Principal Taxpayers
Curfenl Year and Nine Years Ago
December 31, 2009

5,936,017,500

3,973,944,400

2009 2000
Percentage of Percentage of
Assessed Total Assessed Assessed Total Assessed
Valualion Rank Valuation® Valuation Rank Valuation”
$ 175,702,600 1 3.02%

106,742 400 2 1.84% 69,787,200 1 1.76%
85,041,800 3 1.46% 45,048,600 2 1.13%
24,858,200 5 0.43% 10,419,900 10 0.26%
27,621,300 4 0.48% — — —
15,522,500 1" 0.27% ‘

19,683,200 7 0.34% 22,029,300 3 0.55%

17,500,200 10 0.30% - — —

13,880,500 i3 0.24% 11,406,200 9 0.29%

14,389,300 12 0.25% —— — —

18,884,400 5] 0.34% —_— — -—_

12,936,600 15 0.22% — — —

17,752,500 9 0.31% 15,625,700 6 0.36%

— — — 15,319,500 7 0.38%

- —- — 18,776,500 4 0.50%

- - — 12,990,300 8 0.33%

—— —— — 19,484 400 5 0.48%
19,599,300 8 0.34% — —
13,800,800 14 0.24% -— .

g 585,120,600 9.86% 241 .897.600 6.09%




SCHEDULE 8
CITY CF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Property Tax Levies‘and Collections
Last Ten Fiscat Years
December 31, 2009

Total Current Percent Current Year Total- - Current Year . Delinguent

Fiscal Tax Tax of Levy Collection of Tax Delinquent Tax at
Year Levy (A) Collections Collecled  Delinquent Tax  Collections Tax Year End
2000 $ 36,813,520 § 36,482,894 99.10% $ 284,206 & 36,767,100 § 330,626 173,261
2001 38,839,196 38,463,848 99.03% 395,205 38,859,153 375,248 153,304
2002 41,208,013 40,814,996 89.04% 336,287 41,151,283 394,017 211,034
2003 42,200,823 41,829,149 99.12% 390,041 42,219,190 371,674 192,667
2004 44,410,292 43,788,654 88.56% 654,313 44,422,967 641,638 178,092
2005 46,959,811 45,998,982 97.95% 594,670 46,593,652 960,829 546,151
2006 48,687,240 47,469,732 87,.50% 576,671 48,046,403 1,217,508 1,186,988
2007 50,641,716 50,025,381 98.78% 1,508,482 51,533,863 616,335 294,841
2008 51,336,391 50,713,640 98.79% 1,412,961 52,126,601 622,751 306,778
2009 54,999,958 54,037,367 98.25% 748,198 54,785,565 962,591 509,234

and the levy is collected in the fiscal period that is identified.

(A} Includes special assessments placed on the tax roll. For each fiscal period that appears the tax levy represents the year prior

Note: Real estate taxes may be paid in a single payment due January 31, orin installments, one-half on January 31, and the

balance July 31. The Cily Treasurer collects taxes until January 31, at which time the tax rolls are lurned over to the County for
collection of definquent taxes and second real estate instaliments. The Cily Treasurer receives full payment from the County for
all delingquent taxes turned over for collection.




SCHEDULE §

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Ratios of Cutstanding Debt by Type
Lag! Eight Fiscal Years
December 31, 2008
{doliars in thoussands, except per capiia)

Govemnmenial Activilies Business-Type Aclivities
Gengral General Bond GBMED Premium  Working Total Percentage

Fiscal cbligation  obligation  anticipation Compensated  annexation Revenug  ondebl capital  Compensated Primary of Personal Per
Year tonds notes fotes Leases absances costs pongs lssusd  advances  sbsences Government Income Capita
2002 § 101845 § 18374 & - $10605 % B398 S 6,751 318800 & - % 512 & 710 $ 173,785 5.76% 1,687
2003 104,153 13,323 - 10,400 16,789 6,287 17,740 - 512 778 169,883 5.48% 1.647
2004 100,803 10,730 14,100 10,722 16,019 5823 76,7685 3,400 512 757 240,831 7.56% 2,322
2003 103876 18,8389 11,430 10,238 13,412 8,064 76,765 3,264 512 951 246,851 T.44% 2,372
2006 106,650 27.855 ALY 13022 7,584 80,180 3,127 512 938 -250,024 T 42% 2.39%
2007 108,570 28.228 - 8,503 15,409 7,018 78,160 2,990 532 w58 247,847 7.08% 2,383
2008 100,720 36,820 - B.821 14,008 6,457 77630 2853 512 1,027 248,849 6.80% 2,394
2009 98,515 38,678 - 8,104 14,430 5,890 75,475 2718 512 1.061 248,371 6.42% 2,380

Note: Details regarding the city’s aulstanding debl can befound m the notes of the financisl statements




~ Schedule 10
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Ratios of Nel General Bonded Debt Ouistanging
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Decesiber 31, 2009°

Net General
Long-term Debt
Less Ratio to

Fiscal ' Assessed Debt Sinking Assessed Per

Year Popuiation Value Tolal Fund Net Value Capita
2000 102,313 § 3,973944,400 $ 99677935 § 814,373 § 98,863,562 2.49 3 966.29
2001 102,381 4,045,987,000 99,285,300 397,583 98,887,717 244 865.79
2002 103.018 4,132,355,632 108,574,090 10,625,383 97,948,707 2.34 950.79
2003 103,233 4,223,856,700 117,475,703 92,533 117,383,170 2.78 1,137.07
2004 103,653 5,593,932,900 111,632,959 289,573 111,343,386 1.99 1,074.19
2005 104,070 5,674,134,200 122,216,929 628,036 121,588,893 2.14 1,168.34
20006 104,230 5,789,227,500 134,545,123 1,370,674 133,174,448 2.31 1,277.70
2067 104,020 5,813,611,600 133,796,641 2,342,805 131,453,836 2.26 1,263.74
2008 103,950 5,873,975,900 137,538,693 1,367,981 136,171,712 2.32 1,309.97

2009 103,500 5,936;017,500 138,193,162 992,547 137,200,615 2.31 1,325.61




Schedule 11
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCGONSIN
Direcl and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

December 31, 2008
2009
Totai Applicable to City
Debt Percent |  Amount
Direct Debt:
City purpose 138,193,162
Less Sanilary Sewer purpose {5,910,808)
Less Storm Sewer purpose (3.220,000)
Less TIF purpose {39,144,692)
Net City Purpose 3 89,917,572 100.00% § 89,917,572
Total Net Direct Debt 89,917,572
Overlapping Debt
Green Bay Area Public School District 61,180,000 71.80% 43,927,240
Northeast Wisconsin Technical College 52.275.000 16.20% 8,468,550
Brown County 125,045,000 32.93% 41,177,319
GBM Sewerage District (B) 50,448,952 42.00% 21,188,560
Total Overlapping Debt 114.761.668

$ 204.679.240

(A)  Debt shown includes promissory notes. Excluded irom above are $75,475,000 Watenworks Mortgage Revenue
$18,650,000 Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds and Green Bay Melropolitan Sewerage District
worth $5,890,064.

Information of other taxing districts was obtained from their respective financial reports andior departments,




SCHEDULE 12
LITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Lego

Lastoines 3

3009 ooy 007 2008 204 2604 2003

2002 2001 2060
Exquiized Valug JBSENEOT A0S SLANETRG 7D SEOBRAEIANG  3Esie7AB GG  SOfosaNiae  SSEASJE7I0D  SSIIGINAGY  S4GnalToden  TA70Moseqnn  Tadddvyand
Dbt nevtation « % of bnuahzed vaiue 311,729,885 MAOEADE  BrI72608 307,252,765 10,275,560 WAITIINO 267,052,165 24B27,62 235,214,045 I8

Erabt applizativ by imitafies:
Totn witslanding penieal chligdlion dett

137,530,003 2602 111,832,859 117,475,703 108,574,640 £9,285,300 BG6TD3N
Less: Dobt servize funy {LIEY.AEY)

{B28.038) {256,573} [EERLARY] (10,628,383} {2:887. 712 4071360

Teétat gelt upphitalle th imilaticn

1S58 68 111340288 AR AR L) IR et BOLA 95.397.548 LB 58
Lagal Dot Margin 5 3 MBI % $ traskyyRy % S anEsau0y L ogenonmany 8 133E9TACT L 12E 0014l
Totat pel 6% Sppiatio (9 Mt as & perssnmge of gebtlns 35.01%, STTER S% §R% A35% (3571 AR A% 555 WA 0.65% LRI




Schedule 13
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Lasl Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 2008

Waler Revenue Bonds

Utility Less: Bond Net Debt Service
Fiscal Service Operaling Coverage Avaitable Principat Interest Coverage
Year Charges Expenses Revenue
20008 13,260,688 S 10,188,026 % 4,186,573 & 7,289,235 1,405000 §$ 1,389,346 2.61
2001 14,697,060 10,295,271 4,194,561 8,596,350 1,470,000 1,328,116 3.07
2002 13,889,465 10,622,286 4,392,830 7,660,009 1,540,000 1,219,538 2.78
2003 13,780,985 11,616,333 4,442,647 5,617,309 860,000 941,064 3.67
2004 14,014,712 12,062,327 5,060,858 7,013,243 0 1,587,468 4.42
2005 15,743,988 14,466,758 6,957,548 8,234.778 0 3,622,355 2.27
2006 17,808,504 15,008,011 7.804,481 10,605,874 360,000 3,591,583 2.68
2007 18,538,020 16,089,416 8,022,408 10,472,012 1,060,000 3,433,002 2.36
2008 18,062,029 16,914,594 8,282,719 9,440,154 1,530,000 3,408,088 1.91
2008 17,885,851 17,004,614 £.125.135 9,008,372 2,185,000 3,364,597 1.63




SCHEDULE 14
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Demographic and Econemic Statisfics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 2009

Personal Per
Income Capita

{thousands Personal Medign School Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Age Enroliment Rate
2000 102,313 § 7370 % 27,275 33.2 19,584 3.9%
2001 102,391 8,137 28,722 33.2 19,908 5.7%
2002 103,018 8,369 29,275 332 20,166 7.5%
2003 103,233 8,678 30,021 33.2 20,137 7.5%
2004 103,653 8,947 30,686 33.2 20,114 7.1%
2005 104,070 9,399 31,874 33.2 20,124 6.9%
2006 104,230 9,576 32,311 33.2 19,926 8.7%
2007 104,020 10,037 33,648 33.2 16,845 7.0%
2008 103,950 10,598 35,204 33.2 20,942 6.7%
2009 103,500 11,204 37,060 33,2 20,977 11.7%

Sources:
Census Bureau
Wisconsin Dep! of Administration
Wisconsin Dept of Workforce Development
Bureau of Economic Analysis
Green Bay Pubiic Schools

1. Parsonal Income and per Capita Income is based on prior calendar year due to the liming and availability
of source dala, '

2. Personal Income and. per Capita Income based'on Green Bay Metropolitan Statistical Area - defined as an
area consisling of a recognized population nucleus and adjacent communities that have a high degree of
integration with that nucleus. ‘

3. Unemployment rale is annual average nol seasonally adjusied,




Employer

Schneider National Inc
Georgia Pacific

Oneida Tribe of Indians of WI
Humana

Green Bay Public Schools
Bellin Memorial Hospital

St. Vincent Hospital

Shopko Stores, Inc.

Aurora BayCare Medical Center
WPS Resources

Packerland Packing Co.
Brown County

American Foods Group
United Health Group

Prevea Clinic

Proctor & Gamble

Paper Converling

Green Bay Packaging

Green Bay's Labor Force Estimates

SCHEDULE 15
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Principal Employers
Currert Year and Nine Years Ago
December 31, 2008

2008 2000
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total Cily
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
3,094 2 5.42% 3,346 2 5.73%
2,600 4 4,55% 3,900 1 6.67%
2,916 3 5.11% 3,023 4 5147%
3,146 1 5.51% 3170 3 5.43%
— e — 2480 5 4.26%
1,898 5 3.50% 1,922 7 3.28%
1,637 7 2.87% 1,867 8 3.20%
1,353 12 2.37% 2,035 6 3.48%
1,703 6 2.98% -~ e —
1,573 9 2.75% 1,404 13 2.40%
- e o 1,367 18 2.34%
- e o 1,645 10 2.82%
1,591 8 2.79% 1,384 14 2.37%
1,638 10 2.69% 1,840 g 3.15%
1,100 13 1,93%. — e —
969 16 1.70% 1,500 12 2.57%
800 21 1.40% 1,520 1 2.60%
953 19 1.67% 1,089 18 1.86%
57,988 58,433

Sources: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development
GB Chamber of Commerce




SCHEDULE 16
CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Full-time Equivalent City Government Emiployees by Funclion/Program
Last Eight Fiscal Years
December 31, 2009

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

General Government

Mayor's Office. 3.5 3.5 5.3 ' 5.3 5.5 5.5 55 58

Administrative:Services 352 - 35.2 37.5 37.5 37.5 375 37.0 38.5

Internal Services . 14.5 14,5 14,1 14.1 15.8 14.8 14.8 148

Municlpal Court 5.2 5.2 5.2 52 5.2 5.0 5.0 4.5

Economic Development 45 4.5 38 33 4.5 3.5 3.5 3.5

Community Services 40.0 40.0 41.8 44.0 43.5 46.0 44.5 46.0
Pubiic Safety

Police 235.5 235.5 235.5 235.5 231.5 233.5 232.5 232.5

Fire 200.0 200.0 198.0 198.0 188.0 168.0 199.0 199.0
Public Works 223,5 223.5 2323 232.2 231.5 2255 227.0 227.0
Parks and Recreation 90.5 90.5 g0.5 80.8 91.8 81.8 83.8 91.8

Total Full-lime Equivalent 852.4 852.4 863.8 866.0 864.8 861.1 862.6 863.1

Seurce: City Budget




Police
Physical arrests
Traffic Enforcemant Citstiony
Repuortable actidents

Fire
Emergancy responsas
Fire responses
Qiner

Reluse Collection
Refuse collected {averags tons per day)
Refuse colledted tolal tons per year
Comingled recyclable containers (lons)
Mixed paper (lons)
thixed paper and cordingled recyclables (ions)

Other public works
New street pavement (miles)
Strest resurfasitg {mdes)

inspagtion
Commercial construction - units
Commisreisl construction (thausands of dollars)
Residential conslruction - units
Rasidential constructiony (hausands of dollars)

Water
New construction (miles)
Vater main leaks
Average number of residential customers
Avarage annual usage per rasidantial customer {gallons)

Transit

Totat routemiles
Passengers {includes paralransi)

Sources: vanous departmenis

SCHEDULE 17
CITY OF GREEN 8AY, WISCONSIN

Oparating Indicators by Function/Pragram
Last Eight Fiscat Years

Decamber 31, 2009

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
21 124 21,220 notavailable not available not available 22,035 34,171 23,768
5,363 6.428 6,349 7.021 5,001 5.934 4,650 3777
1,280 1,333 1,236 1.272 1.508 3,080 3,361 3,538
7,251 7.273 6,993 6.688 6,613 6,156 6,377 6,765
5 36 371 397 376 385 359 362
2,198 2,438 1,918 1.885 1,766 1558 1,814 1,843
102 102 i 105 105 102 130 104
26,456 26,400 28,744 27438 29,774 30,715 33,657 27,042
0 2,400 2,419 2,385 2,340 2,248 2,294 2,066
0 5,000 5.008 5,206 5,320 5,531 5,643 5,807
6,788 - - - « o - .
0.0 1.0 1.8 11 4.2 G.4 3.8 +.8
6.1 8.0 8.6 4.9 4.8 4.4 3.8 6.2
13 3 17 13 13 25 21 26
138 8,357 . 29038 4,557 11,887 40,340 11,801 30,892
a7 58 82 86 165 240 253 205
11,180 10,208 22,860 18,387 38,744 48,870 53,269 47.273
1.2 24 1.04 2.94 8,49 6.8 8.8 4.3
‘ 201 185 194 130 175 187 247 179
31,732 31,698 31,721 31,845 31.821 30,880 30,709 30,768
53,707 52,053 £5.115 54,543 57,573 58,744 58,339 60,830
1 I22.206 0 1.288120 1203384 1335421 4,340,018 1,351,013 1,357,236 4,347.335
1,423,236 1,763,038 1897819 1,775.082 1,832,157 1,765,088 1.807.8B07 1,782.004




SCHEDULE 18
-CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Capital Assel Stalistics by Funslion/Program
Last Eight Fiscal Years
Dacamber 31, 2009

2008 2008 2007 2006 2006 2004 2003 2002

Police

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Comrhuniity Policing Offices 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1

Pairol units 46 48 45 47 49 50 47 47
Fire

Stations 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Refuse coliection

Cotigction trucks 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
Other public works

Streets (miles) 415.18 41537 41431 415.2 414.4 4122 409.0 407.7

Highways (miles) (does no! include interstale) 40.35 40.35 40.35 40.4 40.0 38.6 38.2 36.46

Strest lights 8560 9741 9663 B.972 7,816 7.841 7.710 7482

City traffic signals (inlersections) 107 116 116 116 116 115 112 112
Parks -and recreation

Acreage 2,100 2,100 2179 2,984 2,479 2,026 2,100 2,100

Playgrounds 50 80 &0 80 60 60 60 60

‘Baseballisoilball diamonds 48 49 49 49 49 50 50 50
Water

Watermains {miles) 518.8 521.1 519 456 .4 450.8 446.7 443.8 437.6

Average Daily Pumpage {thousands of gallons) 19,084 18,705 19,676 18,021 16,372 16,663 16,897 17,585
Wastewater

Sanitary sewers (miles) 464 464 464 464 462 460 456 452

Storm sewers {milas) 393 393 302 391 387 384 380 375
Transit

Buses 36 37 39 38 39 39 39 39

Sources: various ¢ity depariments




Economits

The Green Bay Metropofitan Statistical Area (MSA) is commprised of the City of Green Bay, the third largest city in the
State of Wiscensin, and the ramainder of Brown Counly. The cily accounts for approximataly 42.1 percent of the
county population. The 2009 estimated population of the Green Bay MSA was 245,428, an 8:3% petcent increase
over the 2000 census count of 226,658,

Graan Bay, located al the base of {he Bay of Green Bay at the point where the Fox River Hows into the Bay, is the
transportalion hub of northeastern Wisconsin: cannaeting truck, rail, air and ssaport facilities. Milivaukes is Jess than
o -hours away via Interstae 43, which pravidgs ‘a direct fink to Miwaukee and Chicago. U.S. Highway 41 provides
easy access tothe Fox Cilies and beyend. Siate Righways 29; 32, 54, and 57 also serve the ‘afea and are finkad by
Green Bay's beltiine. )

Mare than 40 carriers provide truck service, Rail servica, including frailer on a fiat-car {TOFGC) facilities, is available
in the &ity. The Port of Green Bay is an international seapart annually handling over 2 million tons of domigstic and
foreign trads,

Housing

The City is 85% rasidential by valuation. The median vaiue of cwner-cccupied, single-family housing at the 2000
Census was reported at $96.400. The range of homa values was as ioflows:

Valug Units Perceniage
Urider 50,000 ...c........ 818 2.9%
$50,000 tc $85.468 103,988 52.2%
$100,000 to $149,889 . ... 8418 360.B%
$150,000 1o 5199,899 1,850 3.8%
$200,000 to 5299099 858 4 1%
Over $300.000 ............ 286 1.4%
20,994 100.0%

income

Brown County's average anriual wage was $40,129 for 2008 o 2.5% greater than the averags Wisconsin annual
wage of $39.169 according :to. Wisconsin Workforce Developmant, Warkforce Training, QCEW, June 2009, This
spaaks directly {o Brown County's premium’ paid for gopds-producing jobs as construgtion and manufacturing which
approach $50.000 par year per worker compared o about $40,000 par vear overall:

Employment

The-average annual wage in Brown County is above the state average in five of the ten industry ssctors.  Wages in
the leisura and hospitalily sedlor wergiat 161.3 percent of ne sials average; however this sector alsc had dne of the
lawer annual wages of all ten sectors, Construction tas the highest average wags in Brown Counly al $49,830
which is just-slightly greater than the state’s average of 349,858, Manuiaciuring takes second plage as the highest
avarage annual salary at 847 697, which is:slightly below ihe state’s average wage for thal industry of $48,116. Ths
wages in financial acliviles other services and nalural resources. compares (e lfeast {avorably with the state
avarage. Wages in s seclor range betwaeen 83.5 - 94.6 percent of the state average.

BROWN COUNTY EMPLOYRMENT BY INDUSTRY FOR 2008

Numbar of Annuat Percent of St of Wi Annuat

Popuilation Employsas  AvgWage  Working Avg Wage
Construction 5,704 48,830 4,5% 49,5658
Education & Health 27,858 43,225 18.7% 41,222

. Finaingial Activilies 11,764 43,428 7.9% 52,008
Information 2,423 49,838 1.6% 49,838
Leisure & Hospitality 16,221 22,749 10.9% 14,102
Manufacturing 25,639 47 697 17.2% 48,118
Natural Resaurces 737 25,558 0.8% 34,227
Other Sarvices 4,85 18,361 3.1% 22,628
Proi & Business Services 15,281 44,980 10.3% 45,114
Public Administration 4,853 42,155 3.1% 41.04C
Trade, Transportation, Utilitiss 32,588 37,234 22.1% 33,804
Totals 148,837 100.0%

The unemployment rate in the Green Bay arza remains low while the size of the labor force confinues to grow,
according to not seasonally adjusted data from WDILHR.

January 2008 January 2008
Grezn Bay MSA

Labor Force 170,638 186,200
Unemployed 8,324 12,133
Unempioyad Rate 4.8% 7.3%
Employed 162,391 184,087
Wisconsin
Labor Force 3.085,530 3,071,300
Unempioyed 150,681 237,000
Unemployed Rate 4.9% 7.7%
Employed 2.914;849 2,834,300
U.S. {in Thousands)
tabor Force 152,828 154,140
Unemployed &.221 13,102
Unemployed Rate 5.4% B.8%
Employed 144,807 141,038

Source: Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue, Division of Resaarch and Analysis and Bureau of Labor Statistics




Business Development

The Green Bay area serves as a trade and: service center for Northeastern Wisconsin, providing 2 solid wholesale
trade sector, a growing.service seclor, and a broad retail base, which includes a haalthy central business district.

The base of the area’s strong econamy is revealed in the diversity 6f the major employers.

Name. Address. Phone

Schnalder National, Inc.
3101 Packerland Dr.,
Graen Bay, WI 54304
§20-582-2000

Humana

1100 Employers. Blvd.
Grean Bay, Wi 54344
920-336-1100

Green Bay Public Schools
200 S Broatway St

-Green Bay, Wi 54305
‘920-448-2000

Oneida Tribe of Indians of
‘Wiscaonsin

‘N7210 Seminary Road
Onelda, W 54155-0365
920-458-7900

Georgia Pacific

500 Day Strest,

Grean Bay, WI 54302
1919 S. Broadway,
Green Bay, W1 54304
920-435-8821

Bellin Memorial Hospital
7443, Webster Ave.
Green Bay, WI'54301
82G-468-4000

St. Vincent Hospital.
635 8. Van Buren
‘Green Bay, Wl 54307
920-433-0111

United Health Group
3100 AMS Blvd
Green Bay, WI'54305
g20-431-1111

MAJOR EMPLOYERS

#Employees  Type of Business

3,363 .One of the nation's.largest
truck load carrfer
organizations.

3,238 Health insurance ano
Related services.

2.940 Public school sysiem.

2,816 Tribal enterprise’s and
‘government of the Oneida
Trive of Indfans

2,700 Muitti-national manufacturer
of paper-and tissue products

for consumer & commercial
markets,

1,845 Acute care hospital
specializing i cardiac, neuro
&-critical care:

1,785 Acute.care hospital and
regional cerifer for trauma,
cancar reatment physical
rehabilitation, prenatal ¢are,
dialysis and specialty
surgary,

1.730 Markats and administers

health and life insurance
plans designed especially for
srnall businass.,

Name, Address, Phone

Aurora Health Care
2845 Graenbriar Road
Graen Bay, Wi 54311
9206-268-3008

Brown County

305 E Walnut Street
P.0. Box 23800,
Gresn Bay, W 54308
Q20-448-4067

Shopko Stores, inc.
700 Pilgrim VWay.
Green Bay, WI 54304
9204672211

Wisconsin Public Service
700 N. Adams

Green Bay, Wi 54301
920-433-1801

Packeriand Packing Co.
2580 University Ave.
Gresn Bay, Wi 54302
§20-458-4000

American Foods Group
544 Asme St

CGreen Bay. Wi 54308
920-437-6330

Assoc Banc:Gorp
200 N Adams Sirest
Green Bay, WI'54301
920-433-3200

#Employges Type of Business

1,628 Full service medical cars
{acifity with a 167 bed
capacity

1,584 Counly government
Senvices.

1,528 Disccunt mass-
merchandiser ratail

1.811 An elpctric and natural gas
ulifity company serving
Northeastern and Ceantral
Wisconsin.

1,500 Besl slaughterar and
processor,

1481 bieat distributors-
wholesaie/retaif

1.155 Banking Sendicss

Soursa: Wisconsin Department.of Workforce Development and Green Bay Chambar of Comnierce

Statistics fram' the U.S. Department of Commerce indicafe thal trends in thé Green Bay MSA (Brown .County)

compare faverably with those of its neighbors, Qutagamie and Winngbago Countis.




CENSUS OF RETAIL TRADE
CITY OF GREEN BAY

i of Establishments Employsss Salzgs (5000) Miscellanzous Daia
December 31, 2009
COUNTY 1997 2002 1997 2002 1897 2002
. Census Data
Brown 950 988 14,878 15,802 2,569,147 | 3,051,980
o—— Green Bay's population growth has heen steady. U.S. Cansus figures of population are as follows:
Ouagamie 712 750 11,218 12,982 1,886,334 | 2,555,214
o — . Year Population Increase % Increase
Winnehago 811 553 87112 8072 1485582 | 1,611,004
1900 18,684
1910 25,235 6.552 351
1920 31,107 5,871 232
CENSUS OF SELECTED SERVICES 1830 37.415 €308 20.3
_ 1940 46,235 8.820 23.3
# of Establishmanis Emplayess Salzs (3000} 1950 52,375 8,140 13.3
1960 62,535 10.181 18.4
G - 1 o 52 1970 87,808 12,676 39.6
COUNTY 1847 2002 897 2002 1887 209 1960 27599 20 g
g £ Corape 1990 96,500 B.601 2.8
y : 3 , .5 ]
Brown \‘{1'3 490 3,348 8] 270776 D 2000 102.313 6713 75
Outagamis 275 382 2371 b 199,934 2 “ An additional 12,597 added with annexation of Prable area:
Winnebago 202 235 1,830 o] 142,888 B
Building Permits
CENSUS OF WHOLESALE TRADE New Residential Total ot All Permits
Yeat Nummber Valug Nurmbsr Valug
# of Establishmants Employees Sales (Milllons)
2000 188 30.538,154 4,781 227,421,109
GOUNTY 1997 2002 9997 2002 1997 | 2002 2001 198 24,036,285 1422 305;309,900
) . 2002 205 47,272,821 1,072 131,977,031
Brown 481 443 8,480 8,995 T845 | 4,791 2003 263 53,043.258 1,670 110.822.515
. " 2004 240 49,870,035 2,043 144,661,724
Outagarmie 291 305 4,085 33 1,694 D 2005 165 38,744,047 2,114 124,804,100
- ; 2008 86 18,397,038 1,184 90,352,158
Winngbago 194 179 3,387 3,535 1,089 2,435 2007 &2 72,859,703 1,028 86,020,078
- 2008 58 10,208,453 890G 04,704,214
2008 87 11,180,298 2,759 71,327,201

D= withheld detail to avold disciosing data of individual cormpanias

Uttty Connections. Decembir 31

2000 2001 2062 2003 2004 2008 2005 3007 2008 2008
" Water 35800 36,531 35.251 372286 37.638 5,602 34,677 35,735 35,605 25,832
Eipetic 56,434 47.847 48.210 51,575 48,620 61,088 §9,070 58,976 £8.130 $3.431
Gas 37.078 37210 37.585 37.863 35,134 32121 38,203 38,210 36,241 38.4¢5




QFFICE OF THE MAYOR

The Mayor's Office pravides overall management for City government. The City of Grean Bay utifizes 2 Mayor-
Gouncit form ‘of govenmignt. and the Mayor of Green Bay serves as ihe.chief administrative officer for ths
runicipalcarporation. The Mayor's:Chief of Staff, Exééutive Secretary, and Administrative Assistant staif the
Mayar's Office:

In Apnl 2007, Jim Schmitt- was re-glacted to his-sstond folr-year térm as Mayor of Graen Bay: During his first
term. in office, Mayor *Schmitt apphed skills frém hig private sector: batkground as President of Famis
Manufacturingto make: his mark.in- the generahon of ‘new economic development for the Clty, particilarly with
the revitalization of Greely Bay's dowwritown business districts and Wwaterirant redevelopment. The Mayor has alss.
dirscted Substantial impravemants in. public sdfety, community infrastricture; 2nd neighborhood development
whife reduging Cily debt and preparing fiscally sound budgets within tight levy fimils.

Andually, the Mayor's Office reviews depanment budgei requesis -and forwards an sxeculive budgst
recommendation for review by the Finance Committee and Commean Councll. The WMayor's Office bas the
primaty responsibility for monitoring degisiation-at the stats and federal lavels and igbbying legislators and public
afficials on important Tity interests. The Mayor is responsible- for appointing membgrs of Council commitiess
and various boards and cemmissions, subject 6 final dpproval by the Common Counsil, Other significant
responsibiliiss include profmuoting -economic growth, maintaining affective relations with individuals and
arganizations in the community, providing administrative support for alf Clty departmients, assisting members of
the Comrmon Council as needad, and establishing an overall vision for thie community. )

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

The administrative services department is caomprisad of the {oflowing divisions, Assessor, Finance, Purchasing,
and information Services,

Assessor

The function of the. City. Assassor's Office is to discover, list-and value all real.and personal property within its
jurlsdietion, The Wiscansin Departmenrit of: Révenue. staff.i5 responsible for assessing manttfactiting prépery
statewide. Assessad valups are determined by using comparable sales, cost factors, and income capitalization
whian approphiate. Valties ehange for varidus reasons including additiofis.or remodsling, firg' dafatje repair, sale
of the propetty, or areqiest by theawner for a review.

The 2009 total equalized valugsinchuding manufactiring and persenal propeny was $6,234,597,300, a:decrsase
of $92,158.900 over 2008. Our-Bssessment ralio-wanit fiem 92.5% of market value:in 2008 1o 35.2% for 2008,
The ihgrease in the ratlo refiséts the bottorming out-of the housing sarket and increased propsity.foreclasures.
Residential values ‘coniprise approximaitely 64.7%. of the total, commarcial propedies make up 262%,
mantifactusing 5.2%, and 4:9% for personal propeny and ather lypes.

In &arly: 2007 the office 'was reorganized to betier adapt {o the current housing trands and take advaritage of
fabor saving techaology. Staff continues fo work:on a commercial class update, Our 2010 ratio is estimated to
care il al 100% of niarket,

Currant staff incluties: City Assessor, Property Appraiser fll, two Properly Appraiser Ii's, and a Property
Appraisar |. Wealso contracl out seasonally for part-ime professional help.

Finange

he mission of the division is 10 account for all financial transactions of the City of Green Bay in agcorg with
Slate of Wisconsin Stalutes, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, Government Finance Officers
Association Standards and recommendations from external City auditors.

The divisian is responsible for the accounts payable and payroll funclions. Gity employee payrolls are based on a
bi-weekly cycle with aneshalf of employses paid duting onz week and the femaining one-hall of employees paid
thefollowing week. The accounis payable process nuns on a weekly hasls,

The division provides accurate fi nancial information as required: 1o all city departments, officials, and outside
financial |nsmutxons The division-caordinates the preparatron of the annual budge, annuai bofrowmg needs, ths
Comprahensive Annuat Financial Report, and all Stale and Federat fi nancrai reporting reqmreman is. Tha Cry of
Grm.n _Bay has received the Goveroment Finance Omcers Association Ceriificate for Excellence in Financial

Reporting for 27 conseculive years, in large part due to the efforts of this division.

Additionally, thé division manages cash and investments and reconciles most City bank accounts. The schedule
of accounts receivable is also maintained by the office.

The division. is. comprised of seven full-time employees and holds: memberships in the national Government
Finance Officers Association, Wisconsin Governmeni Finance Officers Association, and American Payroll
Assogiation.

Purchasing

Thie, City of Green Hay (Cily) has a centralized purchasrng division.that is coirimitted to-promoting a responsiblz
procurement process.that:ensures integrity, quality, efficiency and increased competition.

The City-welcomes the opportunity 1o do business with all interested vendors, Beginning in mid 2008, all City bid
opportunifies from the Purchasing anartm:nl ware published on the bid distribution network DEMANDSTAR by
ONVIA, who-provides a nationwide service, This purchasing natwork brings together an extansive daiabase of
government agencies and'vendors on the intzrnel. This sarvice provides aujomalic bid notification znd instant
access to bid information via the web.

The. purchasing division is rasponsible for the procuremznt of a wide variety of purchasgs to inglude goods,
sefvices, ‘capital ‘assets and information {echnology. Purchasing works closely with the Palice, Fire, “Public
Works, Parks, Transit and other dv.panmun*s oragencigs. The compﬂtmve quotation process is a key factor in
obtaining. the overall best guality, service and price for the City and is used for incividual spot purchases and
annuat agraements

Signiicant savings have beery ebtainsd.through cooperative purzhasing of items used by the City-and otner area
governmantal agencies to abtain volume-discounts. The Purchasing deparimentis a member of the Wisconsin
Acsociation ‘of ‘Public Purchasers {WAPP), the National Instiute of Governmental Purchasing (NIGP). and the
Institute of Supply. Managament (ISM}, The City utilizes State and National cooperalive contracts whenever it is
most economu:al

The City Purchasmg Division is stafied with two full-time and two parl-fume employees in addiion to conducting
formal and informal. quotes, bids, or proposals, the department is responsible for dispesing of surplus City
equipment, maanals, and real estate property. The deparimen! also administers the procurement card
program,

‘Purchasing Activity - 2009
Compleiad 251 various types of purchases for-a total sward-amount of §11,141,318 as foflows:

- ¢ 98+-Quotes pos(ed on Qnvia, formal or inférmal for $5,069,298
- 122 -Additional. gliotes, faxesconsertium contracts for $5 646 498

-1 31~ Fuelquotes for $425,522

Infociation Technologdy

The mission of the Information Technology Divisien is to provide cost-efective information processing. office
automation, a¢sl and wide petworking, Interne! access and felephonic services to all city deparimsents through
tne use of slectronic data syslems.

The division provides purchasing, planning, iesting and implementation support for-over 500 personal compuiars
and Iaptops office autoimation’ soflware,. video™ systems, email, desk telephones, cellular phones, custom
applications,-départment specific softwarg, -and centralized servers.. The division supports municipal government
functions:at Gity Mall, Police; Fire, Water, Metro, Public Works, and Park & Recreation facilities throughout the
City. IT proyides networking service and support.for all city locations as well as connections to the Internet and
Brown-County,

The division consists of an Administrator, ‘three -fulldime ProgrammerfAnalysts, one contracted Network
Enginger, two Nefwork Techricians, and ong: PC/Net Tech Support Technician. The Programmer/Analysts work
to ‘datermine {he-computing needs for-gach department and provide custom rapons and applications. The PC
Suppert’ Technician installs, trouble shoots, and fixes parsonal computers printers, and lelephones for all
departments. :The Network Engineer plans, tesls. and implements new {echnology to the wide and local area




network. The Network Techiigians administérs the file, smail, vidso, phone and voleemall servers ag well as the
switches and:routers of the Jocal-and wide area neiwork:

Major accomplishments of the T Division for 2009-included the following:

»  Replacefinstall HP LefttHand Storage.Area Nefwork

- Upgrade VMware ESX on two hosts and Vidware Virtua! -Center

- Design hardware for disaster recovery site

« ~ Develop d large-number.of feports-in ADP for Payrofl, Finance, and HR, including Wisconsiri
Ratirement System:files, cortractback:pay. reconcifiation of: long term dusabxl;ty, direct deposi,
residengy, special asscssmenl deferred compensation, bank reconciiiation, mailing labels,
billing natices, heallh insurance, dental'insurance, benefits, longavity, and outstanding parking
fickets

- Install scitware for swipe card entry door farcity hail

- Install Microsoft Exchiange 2003 Front ~End servar and enabled Windaws Mobile device syne

- install, configure and deploy Blackberry Professional Sarver

«  Caonvert six physical servers to virtual servers

- .Upgrade Cardinal Tracking parking software

~ Deploy twe'vitudl:Server 2008 R2 servers and upgrade Active Directory 2008 R2

-~ Compleied hardware/software conversion of finanzial sofiware and asseciated custom written
programs

- - Replaced over 80 personal domptiters and laplops

- Worked on LocalUpdate of Census Address (LUCA) and resutimiited of LUCA datafor Census
2010 and Boundary Survey

- Cresled city housed web.servar and redesigned 911 polize call.sanitation; nmunigipal court
assegsor web sites

- Compleled .consiruction on 3 joint project with Brown Colinty and Green Bay Metropolitan
Sewage Disirict to natwork alf city buildings with fivar optics

- Cresled 8nd updated maps for Public Warks, Police, Fire, and Economic Davelapment,
including Fire grid- maps, forastry inventory, sawers, flood plain, community fiving, Zoning,-police
galls, grocery store losations, school boundaries, sanitation routes, vacant parcels, distressad
propertias, street fights, and Matro bus folfes’

- Beganimpleméntation of ArcGIS Server Workgroup for Sity and wab development of ArcGIS
Sarvarwab mapping . '

- Instaliéd new virus control software

CLERK

The Clerk’s Office refains all statulory duties and responsibilities as established:by Wissansin's state statue. The
Clerk’'s office also. has- the responsibility for collecting, recording ‘and: depositing ‘all governmental receipis. The
Clerk administers efactians, facilitates the annual Board of Raview, and servés as recording secratary (o the
Conmimon Colingil, The offite {ssuds. a wide v‘a‘nety' of licenses, d@rchives public rédords, bifls and maintains

speciat assessinent receivables, protesses.and signs plats:and certified survey maps, issues lellers of spesials,
and.alés acts as crabudsman to the public.

Additional Clerk functions include processing -and archiving legislative records of !he Common Council,
Ordinances, resolutions and ‘Council docyments.are:made’ part of the public recordand preserved. Publications
of public notices and heanngs are disseminated and public racord requests are filled:

A wide array of business-licénses is issuiad, iricluding alcoholic beverages, direct selier, public vehicle, and
various enteﬂammem hcensas Licénses requiring other deparimental approval are forwarded-for processing.

TheClerk is re'spons:ble for the atdministration of eléttions conducted In the Clty. The-office supplies and trains
slections offisials, maintains: the Voter registry of nearly 60,000 names, datermines appropriate: siles for polling
logations and:s t e filing offiget for local Campaign Finance Repoits.

The Office- 'coérdmar‘as the processes of plat znd ‘certifiet! survey map approval, biling of special asséssthaent
charges, foﬂow-up from “Commar -Counsil meatlings, and the placement of specials on the tax roll. Noticgs of
publfic hiéarings on special assessment work-as well as the notice upon adopticn.of the firal resofution dre mailed
to constitusnls. Developmant fees are billed ahd iracked. Letters of creditare approved and maintained. - After
Council adoption, piais and certified survay maps.dre signad giving final approvat for construction.

The office szrves. as the official répository for many City records. Examples-of the records maintained by this
office are legal coniracts, agreements, Council and subcommitiee documents, bond transéripts, public works
coniracts, specifications and bids as well as bidder's proofs of responsibility. Additionally, oaths, licensing
documents and materials, deeds-and absiracts, Board of Review documents, and Campaign Finance Reports
are.maintained.

Additianal functions: performad: by this -office include collscting delinquent personal property taxes and ganeral
receipls and revenues. Reteipts are deposited intacl «daily. into- a public depository and records of all
transactions are mainiained by thé offica. The office prints accounts payable checks. Additionally, the ofiice
issugs animal licenses, Transit passes, and Brown County Boat Launch; passes.

Tha Clerk's Qffice reports difectly to the Mayor and includes six full-ime positions. The office maintains
membership in the Wisconsin Municipal Clerk's Association.

LAW DEPARTMENT

The mission of ¢ Law Dapartment is fo vigorously represent aiid protect the interests of thé municipal corporation
throtigh the adyising and counseling of the Mayor, Common Counchl, and staff ofthie City.

The Law Depariment issues legal opinions, drafts ordinances and resolutions, performs all statiitory dutiss of the
office, prosecuies muhicipal- £hde violalitns, and handies fitigation bofh by e Cdy and against the City, including
collectichs, bankupicy, and insurance cialms. The Law Department’ advises in fabor and employee relations

riatiers and repressnts the City in coriractual and rzal estale mattefs.

The:Law Départiént fiandies the City's liabifity instirance foff gisneral and aito liability coverage. This insurarice is
admirisered through Cities-and Villages Mutual insurance Company* (CVIIO). In 2009, the, City's self-nsured
refeition was $175,000 for each occurrénca and $500,000 aggregate. CVMIC is responsible for payment of claims
ovest the Citys self-nsured retention of $175,000.up fo $5,000,000: The Insurance Company of Pennsylvaria
covers claims dver 55,000,000 up to $10,000;000. The 2009 claim information is as follows:

General Liability;

Wumber of Claims Filed: 47

Number of Claims.Clased (Paid or Denied): 43

Nuribgr of @pen Claims: 4

Amdunt Pgid-on 2009-Claims: 5 7.814.21
‘Amount Paid on-2008.Claims in 2008: §  456.79
Auto Liability:

Nurmber of Glaims: Filed: 35

Nuraber of Claims Closed (Paid or Denied); 22

Nurnber of Open Claims: 13

Amount Paid.on 2009 Claims: g 1568042
Amount Paid on 2008 Claims in 2008; $ 1845208




HUMAN RESQURCES DEPARTMENT

Human Resources. Division;

The purposa ‘of the Human Résources: Depanment isto’ provxde uniform -and centralized administration of human
resolrce policies that meet the social, legal, economic and program needs’ of the City consistent with tha
following prmcrpals Recrumng, selectlng and -advancing employees on the basis .of their rélative abifily,
knowiedge and skills; estabhshmg pay. fatés consistent-with the pringiple of providing equal pay for significantly
equal jod duliss; récagnizing job pefrorrnance and correctmg inadequate performance: ensuring fair treatment
of all applicants and eniployegs in alf aspetts of humarn resources .adminisiration; and complianca-with locaf;
State and Federal regulations, The:Human Resources Depariment provndas organizational support through the
performance of the following core funetiang: lahor contraci negotiation: labor contract and policy administration;
employment regulation compliance; recruiment ‘and “selection; wage and benefit administration; employes
relations; mployee training. The City. ‘eniploys’ approximiately’ 1,000 regular empioyees -vovered by 15 labor
agreements in addition 1o appfoximately 800 - 1,000 seasonal employeés:

Human Resources administers the City's benefit plans fo ensure effective and sffisient coordination of the
various plans. Behefit administration includes momtormg of performance of third party administrators and other
providers o eénsure compliance with plan raquicements and local, State and Federal ragulations and policies.
The bensfits stafi serves as a liaison betwsen plah administrators and emp!oynes ! refirees / COBRA
parlicipants ih working through banefit questions and concetits-and assists in cost conlainment efforis for the
plans by working with the City's Labor Management Commitiee, This. division also educates and informs
-emiployges [ reliress / COBRA participants aboiit the Cﬂys bengfils for the purpose of assisting them in. making
informed chices for themsélves and their familizs and-in.being good consumérs of thé plaris, City benéfit-plans
include ‘self-funded Hsalth and -Dental Insurance, fully insured Dental Insurance, Life' lnsurance,. Flexible
Spendihg Agoount plan, Long Term Disability plan, Sselion 457 Deferred Compensation pians, Wisconsin
-Reticamant System, FICA / Social Security Alternative Ratirament plan, Employes Assisiance Program, COSRA
Cantinuation, HIPAA Privacy, and FMLA: The Benefils staff also administars the Wellness Intentive Program for
amployzas..

The total plan costs in 2009:-for the self-funded health plans. were $13,270,791. The total plan costs in 2009 for
{he seli-funded dental plan were $928,305. Review.of the 2010 insufance forecast expected costs 1o increase,
however witli our declining trend: in ‘ol health and dental insurance plan costs, the Cily decreasad the premiums
in 2010 by 6:3%.

‘Risk Management Division

The primaty functions of the Risk Management Division include oversight and -administration of the Cily's
Qccupational Safely and Health Program, the Self-insured Warker's Compensation: Program and the Cily's
Praperly and Casuafly Insurance Programs. In administering these programs, the Division segks to provide tigh
-quality and impartial services to city- employees and ultimately reduce losses and nsks

The Risk Management Division, which acts under the Human Resource D:rackor, consists of 2 full-time
employees and 1 fulldime contracied employea.

» Occupationai Safety and Health Program;

During 2009, the Safety Manager oversaw the Occupational Safaty ang Health Program with the assistance of
the Occupational Healih Nurse and Risk Clerk. Major services provided include: safety and heaith iraining,
facility/worksite. audits, policy and program development, audiometric (hearing) evaluations, respirator fil-tests
and pulmonary function tasts, industrial hygiene evaluations, occupational vaccinations as well as othar related
occupational health servicas. "Staff ramains actively involved in pursuing safety measurss to control and reduss
injury and fiiness exposure.

« Self-insured Worker's Compensation Program:

The City remainad Self-Insured for Worker's Compensation in-2008. Self-insuring our Worker's Compensaiion
risk continues fo be a-much better value than purchasing this covarage from a private insurer. To'this and, the
‘City budgeted-$949,000 ($768,780.from fax levy and $180,330 charge back from utilities) in 2008 to cover the
cost of claims, state fees, clalm administration, and excess. insurance coverage.

The Cily confinued fo use Cilies and Villagas Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) for third party administration
{TPA} of Worker's Compensation Claims. The fee paid.to-CVMIG for thase services in 2008 was $21,000.

in"2009 we continuad to purchase.aur Excess Worker's Compensation Insurance from Midwast Employer's
Casualty Compam The audited premium paid to Midwest Employer's Casualty, Company in 2009 was $58,767.

o Property dnd Casualty. insurance Prograns!

Propary Insdrance:
During 12008, the Clly continued to' be insured by fhe Local Government Property Insurance Fund {LGPIF)

offerad by the State of Wisconsin. The.City's deductible remained at §25,000.

The coverage provided by the LGPIF includes broad coverage for buildings, persona| property, contractor's
equipment; business intérruption, buitder's risk, and accounts receivable. The fund remains as the Dest valug for
the City and the premiun paid for this insurance during 2009 was 5208,313. However, of this amount, the Gree
Bay Packers rﬂvnbursed 1he City $92.690 for the costof covering Lambeau Field.

Boiler aad Ma\.hmerv {nsurange:

During 2009, the Cily continued to fake advaniage ‘of the Boiler and Machinery Insurance program offered by
CVMIC, This insurance provides coverage for losses that are nol covered under our property policy. The
premiun paid for this insurance during 2009 was $7,738.

Automobile Physical Damaqe Insurance:

Duiing 2009, thé-Cily continued to take advaritage of the Alto-Physical Damage program; offered by: CVMIC.
This insurance provides covarfage for darmage lo City owned licensed vehicles. The premium paid for this
insurance:in 2009 was $80.120,

Crime. |nsurange;
During 2009, the Cily confinued to purchase crima insurance from Lhe Hanover Insurance Company. The
prarium for this insurancs in 2009 was $5,307.

Underaround Storaae Tarik Liability insurancs:
During 2009, the Cily -continued to purchase. underground: storage tank liability insurance covarage through

Zurich, The covnrage is required by the Statz of Wisconsin for underground storage tanks. The premium for
this insurance jn 2009 was $5:890:

MUNICIPAL COURT

Gresn Bay Municipal Court provides a forum forjustice regarding all City.ordinance mafters. Municipal Court
handies all cilations issusd by the Green Bay Police Deparimant, Fire Depariment, Inspection Depariment, and
Departmant of Pubtic Works for {raffic and non-traffic ordinance violations, as weli as contested parking citetions
The primary function of the Green Bay Municipal Courtis to administer justice and hold individuals accountabiz
for their actions whan found guilty of these ordinance violatiens. The Court imposes fines and costs and collects
those fines and costs. The Court aggrassively pursuss those who fail to pay their fines. 1n 2009, Gragn Bay
Municipal Court processed 18.848 new cases that were filed.

The total revenue collected in 2009 by Municipal Court was $2,124,888.67. The Court paid outthis revenue as
follows:

To City of Grean 2ay. $1,271,592.56
To Brown County: 238,520.50
To State of Wisconsin: 514,775.51




POLICE DEPARTMENT

Dale Established 18587
Years In existence 152
Full timie employess:

Sworn Officers 183

Civilians 58.2
:mployees per 10Q0 popuiation:

Green Bay 24

 State average . 333

Sworn officers per 1000 papulation:

GreenBay 1.7

State average 2.30

The overall police.dapariment hudget for 200¢'was, 523,832,843, This represents 30% of the overali city budget
of 578,843,800, Our budqat had ar increase af 8411 ?00. or 1.76% jram 2008, 2008 budgeted revenues,
totalzd $2,085,540,

The department received a $191,867 grant from the Siate of Wisconsin, Office of Justice Assistance which was
used towards 5 Beat Patrol Officers salaries and benefits during the tourse of 2009.

For the ninth year, thé U.8. Departmentof Justice: Office of Jusiice Programs awarded the Green Bay Police
Depariment a grant for the GREAT, (Gang Rasrstance Education and “['rammg} program, The gran{amount
was 895,853, and was used lawatds teaching the G.R.EA.T. program o 6 &' qraders in all.Graen Bay School
Districi Middle Sehools. The G.RE.A.T. program reinforces fife skills. ‘We were ons of 28 agencies nationwide
tobe awardzd @ GREAT grant.

The U.S. Depariment of Juslice also provided $585,138 in grant funding through the 2008 JAG (Justice
Assistance Grant) program ¢ and the American Recovery and Refnvesiment Act JAG grant pragram which will
allow us to purchase dmerent types of taw enforcemant equipment.

Wiscansin 8" District Congressman. Steve Kagen was able to secure two USTOIOJ 2009 COPS Techniology
Program grants for the Graen Bay Palice Department totaling $290,000. The funding will allow. our départriient
to credte a Regional Training Centar in the ofd Communications Center and purchase a neiy Critiie. Scene
Forensics Truek,

We were awarded a $698,896 2009-Poit Security grant.and & $422,068 American Recovery and Reinvastment
Act Port Secutity grant through the Department of Homefand Security-FEMA. These granls provide funds o train
Dive T2ams and-purchase equipment for our depariment and suiounding agencies.

The Wisconsin Departmen»oI‘Transponaixcn awerded the department jour patrolgranis totaling 364,000, The
four projécts ware Alcohal Enforcament, Speed Enforcament, Bicycle Safsty and Pedestiian Sarz.ty Funding
pmwd»d by nese grants covered overtinie cOSis for the pragrams and equipment purchased fo-enforce tha
progrars.,

For the tenth yearin a row, we were awarded $2,764 in Brown Couitty Ties grant funding through the'Bays and
Girls Club of Green'Bay. The funding aliowed us 1o purchiase miscellanzous erimg prevéntion $upplies.

Traific Enforcement Unit

The Traffic Enfarcement Unit {TEU) sidrted 2008 with five unifarined pofice officers under e supsrnvision of the
Traffic Operations Lisutenant; TEU offiesrs pafrol dutinig thie: Day Shift (8: 15am-2:45pm), orie- TEU officer is on
the &Rerhoon Shift {2:15prn- ~10:Bpm), and oné TEU officer is on'the Evening Shift {7:00pme-3:30am}. Dugto.
the reticsment of onie dayshift-officer; 2008 ended with & lotal'of 4 TEU officers with 2 an. the.day shilt. The TEU
relentiessly strives to 'gain volunidry compliance of all traffic faws in the Ciiy of Green Bay with the Gftimate goal
of reducing traffic crashies and making the roadway's in the City of Grisen Bay safe for all motorists.

Since the TEW's inception In-18986, tha City of Gréen Bay has ssen.a steady decrease in the number.of
teporiable crashes, As a rasult, lilsrally. millions of doflars have beén saved in personal and propany loss. From
1998-2003, the City of Gréen'Bay saw a 38% decling in reporiable traffic crashes while the surrounding area
communities saw a 4% inciease in reportable crashes. This notoriaty earned the TEU a Ceriificate of
Achigyement from ihe Wisconsin Departmentof Transportation. The-low nutmber of traffic crashes continued,
and.is attributed io the hard wark of the Traffic-Enforcemant Usit

Year Reportable Crashas
2002 3.538
2003 3,361
2004 3,080
2005 1,508
2008 1.272
2007 1,236
: 2008 1,333
2009 1.200

Even thoughthe TEU desires {o gain voluntary compliance in-traffic laws, this compliance may nead to be

atiained by strict enforeement of the traffic faws. Jn 2008, the' TEU fssued 5,363 traffic citations resulting in
5452 767.20 In:finzs. The total of 5,363 citations'is approx:mately 40% of all iraffic citations issusd by the Green
Bay Palice Department as a'whole.

In-addition to enforcament of Iraffic laws to make the:roadways safe, the TEU also focuses on quality of [ife
issties mcludmg {oud mufflers and Joud stereos, They also act upon traffic complaints received by schoo! bus
drivers, crossirig guards, city aldermen, and the general public. The TEU'is also involved in special projects and
public appearances to educate the public about traffic safety, reaching out to.high schoiol students and civic
groups.

Two membersof the TEU are.also Crash Reconstruction Specialists. The TEU does ifs best to prevent traffic
erashes, butwhen serious.of fatal crashes do ocour, the reconstruction officers are calfed.inin invesiigate, Their
waork: Is 1o examipe the evidence and reconsfruct the events thattzad up lo the'crash.. This assists the surviving
farnily members in bringing closure o these traumalic events and to.assist the prosecution in-developing a
strong case for court if the sifuation dictates.

Community Policing Unit:

Grzen Bay's. Communily Policing Unitwas formed in.May of 1995, Five officers set up offices in three
ne’ighborhoods In 1999, the Community Folicing Unit grew to eighteen community officers. However budget
constraints in 2004 forced the unit to renrganize from 18 CP officers to 12 CP officers. Additionally these 12 CP
officers ware now going to cover all nooghborhoods clywide. Slx CP's are ass«gned to the west side:of Green
Bay and 6 CP's are assigned o the eastside of Green Bay. The officers are not just “walking the beal”, but
sarve:as advocates for their neighborhoad. The officers, residants, businsss, ownars, other governiment badiss
and privats agencxes all work togsther on Jong-term solutions ta nelghborhocd problems. Applying the
philosaphy of the community.and police working tegether has produced impressive results. The communily
polic officars work with the community 1o solve problems and improve the quality of fife jor the. citizens of Graan
Bay. Tha prablam solving process requiras an officer to'use analytical skills, listening skills and be fiexible.te
meet the many needs of the community.

The Green'Bay.Palice Department continues to.he pragressive in community policing. The community police:
officers continue to push the limits of cammumty—onentated policing to;the next level, For example, officers have”
discovared:and: lmplamented programs o improve the quality-of fife for the community memoers. The afficers
are challeng:d to.assess the effectiveness of their programs and.improve the programs with the goat.of
engaging civic! responsnbmty as well as communily 1mprovement The community police. officers work with the
commiuriity‘in four major areas to improve quality of life issuss: The neighborhood associations; youih programs,
enforcament effcris and bulldmu partnerships.at all levels of the community.

Community polL.mg is @ problem solving effort betwaen the Grean Bay Police Department and the citizens of
Green. Bay. A& community police officer must have the ability to- solve problems in 2 way that improves the
environment (quamy of life} for the zifizens, This canbe done several ways:

Coo'dmanng services and agencies -~ The community police officers nust become involved with other
-oiganizations to assist with consistent énforcement and accountabilily. The officers create partnerships
with agencies such as: Integrated Commuinity Service, Homeless Shelter, Green Bay-Pubiic School
System, efc.

Involving other communily members (o assist - Community based policing is successful with two
slements: the officers and the citizens. The Green Bay Policé Departmeant encourages any citizen who
is interested with working towards a beiter community lo become involved with sniorcement effons.
Same of the basic fevals of involvemen are io.become mambers of the neighiborhood asseciations, call




the community police officers if thers is & re-occurfing prabiiem-in the naighborhond, and ¢ be modst
citizens for thie rest of the neighborhaod.

Visibility. and aceessibility is-impbriant to the community policing effort. The comimunity wants fo sée the ofiicers
out of the squads and on fool ar on the hike. By beirig visible-the public.fegls that you are more accessibie and
easiero.approach,

Gommunily poliging invalves creative-innovations-o link- community membérs with-comminiity organizations or
police officers positively inﬂuencxng the youth of the-cammunity: Comimunhity police officers are encauraged to
design and implement programs in their beat areas. Thase pragramb can be a ong-lime event, annually. bi-
annually, or as oftien as fiie officer chosses. ideally, if the program is a succass and the communily would fike it
io cantinue, the program should:be turnad-over 6 them'ss they.can continue i, By turaing the progran over to
thia community migmbiers 1o run, the officgr tan donlinus to b pragrassive and buiid on new ideas.

Comntunity pofice officers work with other agencies within the City of Green Bay. -assisting olhier agencies haips
bulld communicatian-fines for better enfarcemantiactions.

In 2005, the. Green Bay Community. Poficing Unit was rainstated {o full capacity of 18 communily police officers,
covenng the entire City of Grzen Bay. Being back ai full strength afiows the unit to address more neightiorhood
issues than it has ever handled hefore, including investigating and serving over 100 dnig. search warrants
ahnually in our naighborhoods. The Community Poilicing Unit locks forward 1o mors neighbathond activily in the
yaars tycome,

For the last several years, the Community Pafice: have bean assisted in iis duties by the Sommunily Service
Intarns. “Tis organization is made up of non-sworn ndividuals who are currently or tacently graduated from post
secondary education. These individuals ars interestzd ina police retaled or social services related carser. Once
hired, they assist with neighborhood walks with the variots rieighborncod associetions, issting 72 hour
ordinance violaifons far hsmas with quality-of lif2'issues, park patrols, police station tours! interact with students
al various grade schools:in the inngr city and assist with many other dulies tha! aliow officers 1o be more efficisnt
as they. do theirjobs. 1t i hopad that besidas helping to maintain the quality of life the citizens erjoy here, that
the CSU's are preparing themselves forafuture career inlaw enforcementin Green:Bay or 2 near-by community.

I 2008, the Community Police Division implemanted-a change in its makeup. The Communily Police Arzes
ware raduced from 12 {o-8 designated areas. Community Police Officers. (CP’s) assignad o thase areas was
reduced from 18 to 12, These GP's afe refefrad to 48 the Neighborhood Team {NT).. The.remaining CP's-will bs
assigned as a team calied the Response Team (RT). These officers will be assigned specific jobs to interdict

roblatns in any neighbortiood to overwheim a situation and bring about & swift resolution. In addilion, the RT
when not working on a specific problem will b2 assignzd a geographic area of the ity io impact with zero
tolarance, enforcement of city ordinances and siate statutes. In 2009, one of the RT's will e a handier of 2
passive K-9.drug-dog.

Profassipnal Standards Divisian

The Professional Standards Division (PSD) was eraated in August 2009 and oparates under the direct
supenvision of the Office of the Chiaf and the Assisiani Chief. The PSD was formed by combining the former
“Training Division and Office of Internal Affaits, The PSD is'staffed by otie-Captain, three Lisutenants dnd one
Range master, The five: members of the givision are all certified trainars and have years of expadience training
in several discipliries. Before the merger.of the Training Division and the Office of Intermal Affairs, the operatlans
and duties sometimes averlapped, which mada bath offices less éfficient. The intzgration of ihe two sifices
makes the aparation of both offices mane financially efficient and ogerationally effective, The merget has
brought all facets of recruitment; testing, hiring, field training. investigations, discipline and caresr developmant
under-ong umbrella.

Areas of respansibifity include;
Managing complaints against persennel and internal investigations
- Menitering of the Field Training Program
- Supervision and direnlidn of-the Training Team
»  Policy review and:management
- Developing training prototils and gstablishing In-service/in-house training
~  Weapons researsh; development and training
# r’_\‘_ﬂcru,ltmenﬁ tesling, backaround investigations and {raining of new persennal
+  Planning training for all department personnél and managing the fraining budgat
~  Press Information Offisers

‘Sirice tha PSD’has been in operation, it bas accomplished several high priority tasks and deveioped a-sirategic
plan specific to.the PSD for 2010. Several of the 2008 accomplishmants are as foliows:

- :Background investigation and offers of employmant to.8 new Officers

- Numerous in-house training sessions.presented at a low cost

. ‘Purchase:sf $20,000 worth of Eotech sights for patrol Tifles fo outfit every rifle with a superior lighting
system that had previously baen planned to ba phased in over several years

- Plrchase of a temporary rifle lighting system.to allow patrof rifles to he used at night or in low light
situations

- Re-established the Citizans Police Academy that has proven lo be very successiul

- Trained four new Field Training‘Officers in preparation of large staff turnover in the nexi five years

. Cuimplete audit of the internal affairs database

Suppon Senvicas

Support Services tontinues to be fully managed and staffed with civilian personnel. The Support Services
Budget Manager oversees the division, which includes Records, Front Diesk; Biilding Maintenance, budget
preparation snd administration, aswell as grant application and administration.

Records

The Green Bay Police-Deparimant Recards Section consists of 14.5 poesitions. Racords personnel supgont the
Operations ang Investigation Divisions by perforniing a varistyof functions and providing various services
including the following:

- Indexing crirhinal reports and citations

- Indexing ofdinanée violations and citations,

- Progessing lraffic violations

- Processing traffic accidents.

- Processing fingerprint cards

~  Progessing Circuit-and Municipal Court dispositions
- Maintaining records of stolen items

- Tallying Unifarm Crime Report data

- * Processing city license and registration applications
- Updating Master Name records

- Validating warrants

.

The Records Division is a primary resourca for information for Green Bay Police ofiicers and detectives, The
Division alse serves as'a resource for other faw enforcement agencies and the residants of Graen Bay.

The Depanmém had over £3,000 incidents in 2009. The Razords Division processed in excess of 18.400
reporis; 6,450 Municipal Citations and 43,700 Traffic Citations.

Front Desk

The Green Bay Police-Department is stafied with & full-time eamployzes al our iniain recepfion arez. The front
desk staff is 1asked with providing assisiance to the citizens of Green Bay, as well as our intarnal staff. The front
desk is.sfaffed:from 6:30 AM to 10:30:PM, 7 days a wask, 355 days a year.

The Crime Pravention Unit has the pritnary responsibility for developing and maintaining programs dasigned to
reduce crime through the education and heightenad awarengss of our citizens. Prevention programs currsntly in
place are Neighborhood Walch groups, Neighborhood Watch Walks, MeGruff House, Volunteers in Police
Service (VIPS), Neighbors-Against Drugs (NAD), Business Walch, Homie Security Survey Teams, Volunteer
Coordination, Victim Follow-Up Program, Shop-With-A-Cop, SpeedWatch and McGruff Fest. Law enforcement
agencies cannol control crime without community support and involvement. The Crime Prevention Unit staff,
both sworn an_d civilian, strive’s to encourage each citizan of our cily tu get involved and welcomes lhair requests
for any program or service offered by the Ciime Prevention Unit. The continuous call for Neighborhood Watch
presentations to establish Waithes in neighborhoods is testimonial thal our community prefers to prevent crime
from oceurring rather than realizing. the tremsndous cost of a crimie happening.




The Crime Prevention Unit works to develop and. pramote positive community refations,and interaction through
proactive policing techniques and organizations such-as Green Bay Area Crime Stoppers; Crime Prevention
Assoeistion of Brown Ceunly, Neighborhood Watch Goordinators Council, Mayor's Neighborhood. Leadership
Council, Mayor's Hisganic. Advisory Gourtcil, Asian‘Resource Center Board of Dirgetors, and TRIAD (Senior
citizens and law enforcemant Working together). Teen.Academy, & program allowing a diverse group of leens an
opportunity to exparience the inner workings of the GBPD, is now. initg eighth yéar. Qur staff listens and
responds to-cammunity.concerns, identifies problems and seeks solutions, atiends’ cammurity maetings, acts as
a ligison for cammunity agencies aind conducts special events lo foster and increase community parnerships
and cfime prevention practices.

The Crime Prevention Unit also oversees all burglary 7 hold-up 7 panic atarm permils and false afarm accounting.
In 3 cost reduction effort to bring alarm owners in compliance with the City of Green Bay Qrdinancs, an e-mail
notification system has been sticeessfully introducad in an effort to reduce the time and cost of conventional
mailing.

The Crime Prevantion Unii consists of Director, Officsr Waller Wickman, Coordinator, Mike Erickson,

LatinofHispanic Liaison, Natalia Sidon, and Soutneast Asian Liaison, Bee Xiong. The Unit is supervised by the
Community Pofice Supervisors,

Maior Crimes
In' 2008, there were 17 detecfives, 4 lieutenants, 1 commander and a Crime Analyst in the Deteclive Division,

The city expetienced 1 homicide in 2009, comparad 1o 2 in 2008. There was 2 decrease in burglaries,
aggravdted assaults, larceny thefts, vehicle thiafts and robberigs.

Juvenils Division

Thie Juverile Division spacializes in the processing-and haridiing of cases involving minors and alss operates the
School Resource Officer Program. The Juvenile Division is staffed with on lieutenant, 1 K-8 Officer and ten
‘School Resource Officers: {SRQ’s).

The SRO Program' is committed to the prevention of orime through education, eriforcement and mentoring.
SRO's offer a variety of critne prevention programs fromihe elementary schoof level to the high school level.

The:school district is divided into four quadrants with-twa SRO’s responsible for. sach quadrani. Each quadrant
has-a-high school; 8t laast one middls school and elementary séhools. The two-additional dfficers are assigned
sast and west and ars used where needed in the schoofs and.work primarily-with-Child Proteciive Services
invesiigating sexual assauits or child abuse cases-involving siudents in the schools.

Ths henchmark program of the SRQ P‘ro%ram is the GREAT {Gang Resistance Education and Training)
program. This course is faught fo 1500 87 gradea students-every schoof year.

EiRE DEPARTMENT
Thefire department-provides qualily life:safety-services 1o the community. These servicss include Fire
Suppression; Fire and Medizal Pravention, Fira and Msdical Education, Emergency Medical Respanse and

Reséue. ThelGreen Bay Fire Departmignt has-an 1SO Class 2 rating.

Breakdown of response by ingident lype:

{ 2008 2007 2008’ 2009 |
Fire 387 371 316 e 308
RupturelExplosion ; 15 [ 6 10
EMS/Resciie’ 6589 5993 7273 7251
Hazardous Condition ) 320 321 304 218 [
Service Call 558 543 551 660
Goad Intent . 592 609 1174 951
Faise Call ) : 383 424 366 ) 34
Severg Weather 1 3 2 2
Gther ) ) 18 ) 8 16 ) 14
TOTAL . 8981 8278: 10,008 8,754

Praperly darmage due to fire' was. estimatéd to-be:S2.617 million in 2009, There were 2 deaths due to fire and
only 6 civilian injuries were recorded as a result of structure and-vehicle fires during the year.

Fire Administration

The Division: includes the majority of suppatt functions within the Depariment. This ingludes the Firg Marshal's
office, Public Ediucation and Information, and Mainienanca Shop stafi. Other responsibilities of division persorinel
Include managing the department’s primary software platforms, employee haaith and safety, and equipment
maimenance and pracurement. The following summarizes the Division's activities and accomplishmaents in 2009.

Fire Marshal's Office

The Green Bay Firg Marshal's office duties and responsibilities include but are not imited lo fire inspections,
code enforcement, compliance inspections, fire supprassion systam tesling, fire investigation, public education,
public relations, plan review, issuing variances, and otner aclivilies aimed at reducing loss of life and property as
a rasult of firg, throughoot the City of Green Bay. During 2009, the Fire Marshal's office oversaw approximately
12,000 inspection visits. which include initial oztupancy inspeclions, reuting fire inspections, follow-up
Inspections, and cods enfprcement ingpestions. In addition to these inspactions. approximatzly 25 hydrostatic
fire sprinkisr tesis were witnessed and 50 buikiing site plans were raviswed with § variances being issusd by this
office. 2009 has brought about a software dafa management system change. This change has increased
efficiencies throughout the department and has opened the duor lo finishing the final steps to the Lean Office
pracess starisd in 2007, The sofiware change from FireRMS to image Trend will allow the Fire Marshal's Office
to effactivaly miove the inspsction process {o 2 papariess system. Thus far, fire crews are able lo enter and
change data locally at their respective siations, allowing far up to date and accurate information baing anterad in
the data base in a timely manner,

In:2008 the Fire Marshal's office, with assistance from fhe Law Departiment, rewrote the city Fire Code
Ordingnce adapting the {nterpational Fire Codz (IFC), replacing the previous fire code ordinance and the
Nationat Fire Prolection Administration Fire Cade, NFPA 1. By adopling the IFC, the city now has a firg code that
goes hand in hand with the buifding cods the city uses, the International Building Cods (IBC). This code change
will help:make the process of building in the cily of Green Eay easier fo navigate. in addition, this wili make the
cades enforced throughout the greater Grzen Bay araa more uniform.

The Fire Mars{\a!‘s office approved 12 Firewarks pzrmits in 2008, which includes site visits 1o sach dispiay
locatian prior to the issuing of a valid permit. A fitsworks permit is reguired, by code, in order (o have a legal
firewaorks display.in the ity of Green Bay,

Fire invesligation is anothar key responsibility of the Fire Marshal's ofiice. The office is required to oversee,
maintain records-of, and follow-up on all fire investigations condusted in the city of Green Bay. £ach month every
incident is electronically reported to the Uniled Siales Fire Administration (USFA). There are, on averags.
patween 700 and 900 ingidents reported avery month. As of Dacember 31, 2009 there were 194 firss
investigated in‘the city with a {otal dollar loss of greater than & million dofiars.
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Public Education and Information

The Public Education and Information office is a division of the Fire Marshal's office. In 2009, Public Education
was involved in numerous prajects and-educational.opparitinities: The office effectively. works: with local media,
schools, daycare facilities, and fire crews to deliver an effgclive public education and:fire prevention programt. in
foial, 35,484 contacts wera made during fire prevention talks, These talls inclirded fire safetyshouse
demonsifations, sthoof visits, health fairs, and fite-station towirs, all of which included fire safely education. in
addition to fhese contacts, a partnership between the Grean Bay Public School District and Time Warner Cable
was established during October, Fire Prevention Month This parinership helpad spread fire prevention
messages to an audience of more than 100,000 people in Northeast Wisconsih via a video sefies aired on Tims
Warner Cable. The Green Bay Fire Departmeiit was ong of only six departmants in-the United Stdtes tor
participate in this program. '

The following is a partiallist of activities and accomplishments the Public Education/inforiation staff participated
in tnis year:

- Successfully transitioned gur sehool based fire safety education from 3rd and 4th grade students to
1st.and 2nd-graders. This resulted:in a fecord numbar of elementary students réceiving hards-on
fire prevention education {4,039 sludanis).

- Refocused-our smoké alarm and carbon monexids (COj alarm program 1o assist. seniors and
disatled residents in'Green Bay. 27 smoke alarms @nd ten (10) CO alarms were instalisdin a
three-month period to-befier protect horhes in-Grean-Bay.

- Amanged @ Red Cross blood drive héld at fire station #8.

- Ow departiment was f2atured on *Good Marning America™ demonstisiing ice rescue techniques and
oni CNN for a story-about’light-weight: buiiding construction.

- Assumad full control.over the depariment's wehsite, which inclided the automation of scheduling
tours and requesting-apparsitus for events via the Iriternet,

~ 9B interviews weré conducted with jocal media. The majority of these interviews included a safaty
message for the public:

Goals fof 2010:
- Standardize station totirs-and presantations to assure a uniform message is defiveréd 1o the public.

- Expand the CO datector distribution program {0 100 residences.

- Continue the imptementation of the Safe-T-Element program. This fire praveniion pragram helps
reduce the numbar of cooking firas in our area. Cooking fires are the [eading cause of fires in Green
Bay,

- Implement a firz education program that can be delivered teo high schoo! students.

Maintenance Division
Megchanics Ror Mazota-and Rich Neuses maintained a fleet of 36 vehicles and a wide variaty of spscialized
equipmiani. Both mechanics have earned Emergency Vehicle Technician certifications. from the National Institute
of Automotive Service: Excallznce (ASE).

The fire depariment venicles range in age from 1882 to 2008 models and in size fram mid-size sedzans to 108-
foot aerial ladder trucks with a GYWR of 87,500 fbs. They perform routing praventive maintenance per each
manufacturer's specification. Most rapairs are petformed in-house, with the exception of warranty work-on small
vehicles and five-year agrial ladder iesting. Body repair is perfarmed within the fimitations of the fire dépariment
shop.

Small nqulp'nent includas hydraulic rescue tools, more commaniy known as “Jaws of Lifz", chain saws, John
Dasre Gator ATVs, mapile and fixed elsctrical qeneraxors outhoard and.inboard boat motors, and ventilation
fans, They alsa perform repairs on a wide variety of firefighting hand tools and fire hose. All ground ladders and
fire depantment pumpers are {estad annually per National Fire Protection Associalion Standards.

Grant Awards :

In 2009 the Department was awarded two grants that will assist us in improving the delivery of amargancy
services fo the community. in January we were awardad an Assistance To Firefighters Grant (AFG) from the
Federal Emgrgency Managemant Agency (FEMA) for the development of a computer-based simulation fab. This
project involved the acquisition of numerous compulers, sofiware, monilors, and radio adaptation equipment.
This Iab will create antificial environments that allow fire officers to practice a variety of scenarios and then
criligue thsir strategies. The Depariment reached an agreement with Brown County Emergency Managament lo
place this squipment in the new City/Cotinty Emergency. Oparations Center (EOC). This will allow the computer
eduipment to be used fof both training and emergency operations, as well as enrich the relationship between the
Emérgancy Management staff and our personnel. In 2010 we will be expanding the number of training séenarics
available to our staff.

In October we were awarded a Forest Fire Protection grant from the Wisconsin Deparimant of Natural
Resources (WDNRY). This grant-will be Used to partially fund'the pirchase of fire resistant caveralis, *soft"
backpack styie watar plimps, and a chainsaw. This equipment is tdesigned to be used to fight natural Vegatation
fites and is much more user-friendly. than Gur current structural firefighting clothing and “hard™ backpacks. This
will aflow for much less firefighter fatigue during wild land operations.

Technoidoy

The Department had. been using:FireRMS: for our records management negeds. Due'to some significant problems
with FireRMS the:| Departm=m began using ImageTrend to manage our informalion. This software organizes
reports sticht ak panent care racords, fire code enforcement information, as well 2s #ire and EMS training

records, The Depantment reached an agreament with.our ambulance billing vendor, EMS Medical Blilmg fo
partner.in thé implementation of JmageTrénd. One of ths advantagas. of this.internet-based software is i
encourages the use af laptop camputers for récording patient care information. This enabtes our
firefigtiter/paramedios 1o reduce the:time needed Yo create required reports. imageTrend had recently expanded
their software lo'better manage an organizalion's {olal records stofage.

in.2010'we'll be working with support staif from ImageTrend and TeleSiafl, our staffing softwars, 10 integrate ine
two platforms to-help:i impeove our overall efficizncy. This integration, along with tlia continuing customization of
the sofiware, will continue the trend of making data managament morg sfficient for our entire staff.

The Depariment algo purchased, with assistance from the City’s IT Depariment, new Mobile Data Compuiers
{MDC} for aurieimergency response vehicles. These computers will replace the Panasonic Toughbooks. that
were installad nearly five years ago-and were beginning to fait at an alarming rate, The new computers were
purchased from DaEtas11 and represant a new siyle of hardware fof-our vahicles. Instead of the componants
being:contaified in one.package; the Data911: unit's monitar, keyboard, and CPU are separata. This will enable
téchnicians to:work on.ofily the component that-rieeds work, as opposed-to the entire uriit. This will keep our




‘equipment in-service more consistently than inthe past, This MDC upgrade will be complete in the spring of Qperations Division
2010,
The Operations Division consists-of five sections. Strest, Sanitalion, Sewars and Bridgas, Motor Equipmsm and
Vehigle Purchase: Adminisiration,. The Division is responsible for the maintenance of all sirgats and afleys, ficod control dikes,
storm and samtary sBwer systems, bridges, {he collection and transporiation of solid waste and the mainierance
and rapair of all vehicles-and equiptent of ihe Department of Public Works, and the daily suparvision of the

The Department took delivery of two naw angsnes that had been approved for purchase:in 2008, EN411 and EN444 wers
Traffic Signs- and Wigrking Section of the Trafiic Division

updated to 2009 Custam Fire: Appara(us engines in Scptember “The new engings- replace vehiclesipurchased:jn 1994

and 1892 respechvnly These:angines represent: sngmrxbant improvements ever-other engines in the flest. I addition io
having a larger:pumping capacity {1500:gallons of waler per minute versus 1250), the engines have an integrated Class
Afoam: distribution systen:. This water/foam: solution enables the crew-io more efficiently place. and keep, water where it
neads o beito extinguish aire. The purp.and-cabinet areas of both enginas are also-constructzd with stamle:s steel, ©

The Street Section is responsible for thé maintenance of 465.miles of streats, 21 tiles of alleys and 4 miles of
flood eantral dikes. The' section condiicled 11 miajor snowplowing operations and 41 ice cantrol operations
ditting e wnm_er maonths of 2009, Processed 92,460 cubic yards of yard waste with the tub grinder.

This will greatfy reduce the:amount of corrasion issues it the years fo'come:
Personng!

The. Table of Organizafion was funded at 185 positions in 2009,

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

The Department of Public Works -has responsibility over all public works in the City of Green Bay. The
Department provides the basic municipal servicas lo the citizens -of the City of Graen Bay through ils various
Divisions,

The Depariment of Public Works consists of Engineering Division, Opzrations Division, Traffic Division,
Execufive Support Division:apd the Parking Syslem Division. The following is & brisf description of each.

Enaingaring Division;

The ‘Engingering Division designed, administared, and/or supervisad the construction of ovar 512,188,850 worth
of public works construction projects. This. work includes .43 miles of new street pavements at a cost of
$283.612; resunacmg of 3.4 miles of streets for $1,210,870; 1.84 miles of sidewalk canstruction for $299,198;
4.27 miles.of new sanitary sewer and-3.23 miles of storm sewers, and 1.87 miles of water mains jor a totalcost
of $4,331,075; -and other various niscellanieous projects.

The Enginesring: Division consists of three segtions: Projast Development, Special Projects, and Utility/Site
Development,

The Project Developmerit Section completed the reconstruction of Allard Avenue between Shawano:-Avente and
Dousman Street and-Henry Street betwesn Basten Street and Umversny Avenue. Incooperation with WisDOT,
{he Project Developmem Section continued with design eﬁor's in the Shawano Aventie{Taylor Street grea,
Lambeau Streel; Wes! Mason/USH 41 corridor, and; Ninth ‘Strest at USH 41, This work is being proposed in
conjunctian with the planned-upgrades of USH 41. The Section coatinugd fo:work on plans for the
raconstrugiion of Velp Avenue from Morwood to Willitary, the reconstruction:of Military Avenue. from Dousman o
Langlade and the exiension of East Mason Street from Erig Road to Northview Road.

The Special Projscts Section designed, adminisiered, and‘or supsrvisad over $281,852 worth of projects in
2009. This work included the razing of the builting af 508/910 Broadway for $45,000, Quingy Straet Pump
Station Addition for $52,600, West Side Murucnpal Garage Grader Shed Reroormg for $47.100; the Graen Bay
Water Utility Main Office Roof Replacement for'$54,500, the City Mall Entrance Replacem’nt for $38,182 and
various misceflaneous projects. In addition, staff worked on Park Improvemert Projects warth $1,362,348 which
ingluded $396,018 for the Litle League Complex. $273,366 for construclion and fepairing. lennis couris,
$243,055 for the East River: Trail #2, and other misceltanedus Park Projects. Work also continued on the first
phase of consiruction of ihe $12,000,000 CiiyDetk project which began in 2008 and is scheduled for completion
in April, 2010,

The Utility/Site Development Section administered the 2009 Sanitary. Sewér budget of $13.350,870 and the 2009
Storm Water Utility budget of $4,798,350. The Section completed various storm water quality projects,
performed inspactions related fo storm watgr pollution prevention plans, responded te licit discharges, and
reviews privaie site plans for conformiance with the Storm Water Ordinanca. In addition, the Section finished the
inspaction and :monitoring of Ihe -Cily's storm séwer ouffalls and continugd 1o jmplemant the inlet marking
pragram.

The Sanitation Section: colfects End transporis nearly all solid waste’ gengrated in the City and operates 10
coliection crews for pick-up, The coliegtion routes genérated an average > of 95 tons per day and d lotal of 2,460
tong of solid waste in 2008 The Sanitation Section also cperaies. 6 rﬂcyc{mg collestion crews for residential
pick-up. The reuyclmg program yielded B,7901ons of singlé siredm recycling in 2009..

The. Sewers and Bridges Section operales thrae drawbridges. the Don Tilléman Bridge, Walnut Street Bridge,
and the Ray Nitschike Bridge, maintaing the Ray Nitschke. Bridgs, 23 fixed span bridges and 4 pedcstnan
bridges, 464 milgs of sanitary. sewers, 393 miles of storm sewars and 34 sewer pump stations.

These mamtﬂnanc: responsibiiities include steaming and flushing culvert pipes, recording the readings at 17
sewarage metering siations, fiushing dead-end sewers and cleanmq sanitary sewers. During 2009, the seclion
cleaned 772,000 fee! of sanilary sswer, responded to 383 sawer calls, and located §,984 sewers in responss to
Diggers Honme notifications. During the 2008 shipping s¢ason, a total of 1,731 bridge lifts ware made for boat
traffic,

The Motor EQuipment Seclion i raspansibiz for the mainienance and repait of all Depanmem of Public Wotks
aquipment. “Mainteralice and reépair apérations. dre-canducied on 8 wide varizty of equipment rana:ng framn 8-
whesl drive trucks and large front end foaders 10 chain saiws and wead eaters. This includés repairs o zngines,
transnuissions, drive trains, elecirical, brake, cooling, and hydraulic systems. The sazlion maintains and repairs
ovar-400 pieces of public-werks equipment and vehicles fram other governmental agencies on a cost account
basis. During; 2009, the Section -dispensed 207,233 gallons of diesel fuel, 26,339 galicns of gasoline, 2,581
vallons of motor til and 1,393 gallons of iydraiic.fiid,

Trafiic Division
The Trafiic: Division is responsible for the enginsering design and maintenance of all traffic control Systsms

througheut the Cily-and the elesirical mainiznance and pavement markings for the Departiment of Public Works
and Parking-System Division faciliies. The division srected 1,800 new or replacament signs damaged in

. accidents, or by vandalism, instalied pavement markings en-315 miles of City stresis using 4, 250 gallons of paint

and 36,000 pounds of reflective glass beads.

Executive Suopoert Division

The Exscutive Support Division is responsible for organizing and typing studies, reposts, contracts, manuats,
letters, bills; resolufions, agendas, minutes, and miscellaneous. informatior, It is also responsibig for the
pripating and-issuing of a variely of vermits and working with and directing the pu.Jllc by phone and in person,
i individual ‘staff members to resolvs problems. The Execulive Support Division is accountable jor maintaining
all records and documants.

Parking Svstem Divisian

Thi Green Bay Parking System Division awns and opsrates hree parking ramps, containing a fotal of 3,225
sialls, and one off-sirget parking facifity conisin ng 133 sialls developed to accommadata traffic for the core of
the downtewn arsa. In addition, the Division operates 16 other parking facilities with a total of 874 stalls. Tha
revanues for 2009 for the above-describad faclhtloq are as fallows:

« Parking ramps $1,195,187
« Surface Iots $180,184
«  Metersd parking $194.422
+ Parking citafions $704.047
» Miscellansous $27 811
TOTAL: ¢ $2,301,651



PARKS, RECREATION AND FORESTRY.

The ‘Gity provides comprehensive and progressive recreational programming along with park and: forestry
systems-undar the administration of thé Graen Bay Paiks, Recreation and: Forestry Department.

The Department has jurisdiction over 60 park and park/schoof sifes With over 2,700 acres: Many other arsas,
involving over 500 aergs, are used:for programmlng #nd beautification. Sorme of them are owned by-the Gregn
Bay Araa Public School District, stch as.gymnasiums, auditoriums and meeting rooms; while dthers arg portions
of ity right-of-ways and conservancy afeas.used as urban opan.spate.

One of the outstanding facilities in the park system Is the 700-acre Wildlife Sanctliary, which'is located adjacant
to-the Bay Beach Amusement Park-and serves as a refuge for various species of wild fow! and native animals.
The 6.2 miles of nature:trail, groomed in winter for. cross—country skiing, provide access through forest, field and
watland habifats. Two hundrad and. fory-nine. spécias of birds have’ bssn observed in our refuge,. 3 of which are
rare {sighting thent 1-5:times from 1672-1998). In addition, we: have identified 54 kinds of animals including fish,
amphlbxans réptites and mammals, .Also-fo date, 251 speties of plants have been ideritiiiad. Agproximately
3,000 sigk; injuréd and orphaned‘animals are hrought in annualy for us to rehiabifitete, .Dus to extent or kind of
injury or imprinting on humans, the Sanctuary dxsplays 205 kinds-of animals represemxng a native Wisconsin
cofiection of over 325°individuals, The live animals. make excelfent ambassadors for our popular and well-
established Environmental Edueation Program, Live animals, whether displayed in tieir natural habitat or used
in fiands-on Contadt programs; .are- Used -extensively to reenforce concepts' and key ieaching points. Our
Enviranmenjal Education:Prograni serves schools from a 22:county area, oryanizations, and the general public
with 2 variety of nalure programs for alt ages.

The 23;000 sguare foof, thres-level Nalure Center offers hands-on exhibits, & multi-story walk-through diorama,
community. darkroom, gregnhouse/aviary, discovery rooms and naturg gift shop fo reinforcz our wildlite mission
and goals. The Woodlznd Blilding develops.a woodland habitat theme complete with nocturnal displays, cougar
canyon, ofter .grotto (with-undérground viewing) and welf pack: The deer Habitat offers a 33-foot.observation
towar. The Observatioh. Building prowdes a panofamic view of thiz. main feeding.fagoon with. over 5,000 native
freg-flying ducks and geese. This.lagoon is.part of the 85 acres of intarcoinedted lagoon system whers B0 tons
of shelled corn is fed-annlially to the hingry birds. Visitors-can also view hawks, owls, eagles and falcons along
ihe “Bird-of Prey Trail". The Sanctuary, open.385 days per yéar, is'a véry popular park for béth ity residenis'and
groups from-outside the city:

The Bay Beach Amusement Park is-one:-of Green Bay's most popiilar attractions. It includes: a pavilion, 17
exciting amuserment rides:and 3 ¢oncession arsas. The pavilion and picnic shelters areavailablé {or rental, and
the entire facilily. is self-sustaining. Bay Beach Amusemenit Park serves thousands of patrons:daily.

Other spacial fatilities in the park system include! a Family Aquatic Cantér in Joannes Park 'and in :Fisk Park
which features a zero depth wading and: swimming area; lot sand play ares, volleybalt courts, 2 water sfides -
160" and 148", 1. meter board and 1-drop.slide; 1 outdonr swimming pool; wading pools, splash pads and skatz
park; 42-saftball dismonds, 11 of which.are lighted; 7 baseball diamonds, which include Joannes Stadiur, which
is & completsly enclosed baseball stadium with 3 seating: capacily of approximately” 1,800 persans; one
completely enclosed lighted baseball diamond at Perkins Park, and. alighted baseball diamond et Edison; 57
tannis courts (28 lighted); numerous park shefiers; flower gardens; picnicking and hiking areas; 38 basketvall
courts, 2 of which afe lighted; 2 bocce ball courts; Triangle Spons Aréa, a winter sports area with chalst, 2 ski
and 1'inper tube rope tows; 5 regulation lighted hockey. rinks; 11 ice skating rinks; 3 cross-country trails; '@ 10-
lane boat faunch; ‘and various football and soccer figlds. The' Chappell School community vegetable garden is
paputar with vegatable gardenars who don't have efnoligh spate at home, Itis divided into 30 plots, and the Gify
tilis:{he land gnid rents the plots.

The Recreation Bivision offers.a comprehensive recreation program which includes an offering of a myriad of
programs for fols, kids, feens, adults and seniors in the following arsas — -aquatics, leagues[a‘htetlcs
insiructional, outdoornatire, cultural arts, open recreation and special 2vants. We partner with 170 cemmunity
groups, businegsses,; schaols and neighborhood associations o provids programs, The division is responsible for
the Summer Lunch Prograt, which serves 1,500 luncties per day at 21 park sites.

This division'is also responsible for facifitating mulliple pool, field, diamond and court.resegvations and refials to
various communily.user-groups.

The:division empioys and stipsrvises over 900 seasonal employaes on an.anngal basis.

The Forestry: Division is respensible for caring for an_ éstimated 100,000 trees that fine-the City's: stieets. and
beautlfy the parks-and other municipal propemes Green Bay is famotis for ifs trees, and the-Forestry Division
carrias:out a-comprehensive pragram {o care ‘for them with the-help of two professional foresters, 10 full-time
empioyess and 8 callege studenis in the summer. They plant, prune, remove, bol{-and Gable, muich, and root
cutthousands of trees each year.

The two foresters are alse responsible for aversseing efforts to control the spread of harmful free diseases-and
insect infestations on private praperly as well-as public property: Dutch Eim disease was the scourge of the
1960's and 70's, and oak Wilt and gypsy moth are a serious problem now and residenis are able o consull

‘personally with-olr foresters about private trees. Many tree-refated questions.can be handled by telephons. but

those (hat can't be dre answered by making a personial visit to the site.

At the south end ‘of Hartung Sireel by the East River, the City maintains a tree nursery. Small trees are
purchased and grown info a size suitable for strests and parks.

The Design and Development Division is responsible far the plénning, dasign, davelopment and rznovation of
park sites, waterfront parkways.and urban open spaces. Designs ate developed based on sefving the needs of
the commumty while at the same time ufilizing and -enhancing the natural féatures of our area. Plans are
réviswed and:rtefined by the Park Commitise and ultimately approved by the Common Council, The
implementation of the:plans involvés: cost estimating and budgiting through city budgel, bonding or special
granis. The- constrisction of the projects and costs are then monilored by the Landscape Architects of (he
division io assure a-guality:product within the assignzd budgst.

COMMUNITY.SERVICES AGENCY (PLANNINGY

The Community Services Agency is made-up of four divisions: Planning, Neighborhoads, Housing, and
inspection. Each of the divisions has access to clerical and GiS/graphics support staff.

Planfing Division

The Plahning Division provides staff for the City of Green Bay Plan Commission, which iz a ssvan-member
commission created and functioning: under State Statue66.23. In 2009, the Plannirig' Division developad a
zoning plan 1o deal with ‘areds of the City that are geing throtgh a iransition. from mainly fesideritial land uses to a
fore industrial type land use. This'was a two-step process that fifst fequired.the creation of the zoning district
and than the. sstual. rezoning ‘ef.an drez.. The proposed zoning district; the Speciatl Purpose-Residential Light
Industrial (S-RLIy District, is intend&d 10 simultanadusly remove a barrier {nonconformity) that is preventing
people from: continuing © use: progarties -as.they ekist loday (restdent;ally) while retaining tha. oppartunity to
redavelop the nanghborhooo in'the future. While thi zoning ¢hange along wilf nét turn the neighborhood around,
itwill remove an obstaclethat may be preventing positive change. Therezoning of the South Breadway area fo
the Special Purpose-Residential Light Industrial (8-RLI} District completed. the zoning plan. The proposed
zoning' district was carefully designed to presarve the ability to redevelop this neighborhood for commercial and
industrial uses should funding bacorne available in the future. Tha iritent of the proposed zoning district is to
providé an intermediate solution ¢ the detericration -of the existing housing-stock in the South Broadway. arza
without changing the City's-lung-range plan.and vision for the area.

The Planning Division also. worked with Beliin Hospital to amend their Planned Unit Developmant ordinance to
petimit the remodeling of the first floor-of their building and to add a. 5,000 square foot, ona-story Emergency
Room addition along the closed South Van Buren Street right-of-way. This was an effort to correct traffic issugs
that weré occurring due to the focation of the ofd entrance to'the emergency room:

The Planning Dwnsuon also worked to adopt the new Fedsral Flood Insurance Rale Maps and Flood insurance
Study for the City. The-City of Green Bay administers a fioodpiain zaning ordinance so that property swners in
the City are-efigible for fload:insurance under the Natiorial Flood Iisurance Program, Floodplain management is
also a wise praclice far prolectmg pubfic health and safety by reducing potential harm. to life and property in the
eventof 3 flood. The minimum standards for floodplain zoning are set by the Federal Emergency: Management
Agency (rEMA) and by the Wisconsin Depariment.of Natural Resources (WDNR). The Cily was directed by
thase agencies to-adopt the:new Flood Insurance Rate Maps by August 18, 2009, This is the cuimination of the
floodplain map modernization process that has been ongoing sinte 2002. The City was required fo adept the
new maps in arder to- maintain’ eligibifity in the National Flood fnsurance Program and to confinue fo meet the
minimum standards set by WDNR-and FEMA,




The Planning Division administers vatious programs. such 'as City Zoning, Area Development Planning,
‘Subdivision Regulations, and .other similar reguistions. Thé division alsy prepares special ‘project plans to
address. current and:fong-range planning issues.

The Planning Division provides staff for the City of Green Bay's Annexation Commission arid the Green Bay-
Town of Scott: Joint Plan Compmiission.  These commissions review and make recommendations. to the Gity
‘Councit on all annexation petitions and land use isstigs alongthe Town of Seolt-Green Bay harder, tespactivaty.

Nelghborhood Division

The Redevelopment Authority of the Clly of Green Bay, in accordance with stale stdlutes, is responsible for the
elimination -and prevention of slums and blighted arsas throUghout ihe City and is presantly invofVed in
redeveloping-portions of the: downtoiwn and central-City neighborhioods. Staff fof the Authority is provided mainly
through the depariment’s Neighborhood Division.

Downtown' redevelopment improvements continued as the Cly implementad downtown revitalization afions.
Consfruztinn contracts were completad for Phase | of tha riverfront CilyDeck.  On the west side, the: City
contiougs 1o work with On Broadway ine. to redevelop the 22-acre formier Larsen Canning pidpery. The
Authorlty execuied a contract with a consultant fo evaluaie opfions fof exsanding the size and functisrakity of the
Ki Canvention Cernter. More downtown initiatives are summarized in the Economic Update saction of this réport,

The Redevelopmanit Authority of the City of Green Bay's Neighboriieod Division is the administering agant for
the HOME Program and the Communily Davelopment Bloek Grant (CDBG) Program. The Authority's COBG
responsibilities include administering a 2008 grant of $965%,251 lo reduce the effests of slums and biight and to
phingipally beneftt iow- and midderate-income neighborhoods. Since inception of the program. COBG funds have
provided funding for 2 vatiety of projects! ingluding school-park site expansion, public wiorks activities, including
sidewalk and alley replacement, ecpnomic devalopmenti projecis, a seniar center, pedestrian bridge, housing
rehabilitation loans, nature fralls for the disabled, strzel and tree replacement program, public art program,
radevelopmient of areas designated as blightad; and assistance o service programs. These sevice pragrams
include the Fair Housing Center of Noriheast Wisconsin, My Brother's Keeper, NaighborWorks® Green. Bay, and
the Comimunity:Servine Intari plogram.

Approximately $288,251 from CDBG funds was designatad for neighborhood. revitalization efforts within selected
impact areas. Activities,include acquisition and clearance of blighted properties, in past years, funds have baen
used for park improvements, acquisition .of propery jor renabilitation and resaie, coordination of infrastructurs
improvaments, facliitating creation and- working “with neighboriinod associations and resource canters,
adminisiering a rehabilifation joan: program, and working with other public.and private organizations in farming
parinerships for healthy: naighbarhoods.

The City was granted $558,236 in 2009 under the HOME Program for a.variely of affordable housing aclivitizs,
including rehabifitation of affordable rental housing, down paymenticlosing cost assistance, and providing
defarred payment housihg rehabilitation loans:to fowar-income households.

Operating in its capacily as the central reiocation -agency for the Cy of Green Bay, the Aultority provides
relacation assistance whenavar public projecis cause: residential or commercial displacement.

Sihce 1999, the City has. allogated $7.615.000 for ihe Neighborhood Enhancement Fund Program., This is a
program set-up o eliminate problem properties and make neighborhood improvements. One hundred properties
have beenpurchased over the last 9 years. Blighted houses wers removed and the remaining land sold for new
home construction, sold to adjacent proparnyawners for sdditional vard, or used for public improvemenis; such
a5 park space or neighborhagd sign placement.  The RDA manages this funding with Comwnon Coungil
guidance. The RDA has been suceessiul indmproving Giesn Bay neighbarhoods,

Housing Divisien

The Housing Autharity of the City of Green Bay is responsible for developing housing to -assist low- and
moderatedncome househalds:thraughout the City and presenlly operales 153 unils of senior citizen housing in
ils Mason Manar Refiremant Community complex localed &t 1424 Admiral Cotrd. The Graen Bay Housing
Authority owns 42 scattered sits propsriies consisting of & two-family fiats and 34 single-family homes for & total
of 50 large-family. apaiiment units. The propsriies are administered as affordable rental units for low- to
moderaie-income families.  The Housing Divisidn of the Planning Department provides staff for the Housing
Authority and works with -investors and not-far-profit developers to meet the Cily's housing and rieighiborhood
ravitalization nesds, ’

In 2009, the Green Bay Housing Authorily recaived $248.624 in federal capital improvement grant funds for
madernization, including expansion of sterage space, replacement of the security system, and ramp repair at
Mason Manor, which have recenlly. gone underway. Improvements o the scaitered site family housing
properiies include roof, guiter; and siding replacement. cabinet and countertop replacement, and painting.

The Heusing Authorily portfolio insludes financing of 731 mixad-income rental units, utilizing tax-exemipt Housing
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, arid has assisted in the ‘development of 1,621 uhits of private and not-for-profit
tederally-assisied housing,

The Brown -County Housing Althority administers mofthly Housing Ghoice Voucher renfal assistance paymenis
{0 3,000 familigs, totaling $1,1006,000 per menth; and has provided over $198 million in rent-sulisidies since its
inception. Eath household is intorrie certified and the. reital unit they- sccupy is inspected and cértified to be
code comptiant upon initial application: and once annually. The program complates dver 4,700 housing
inspections annijally with ovat 150,000 inspections completed since its inceplion. The authority offars- & Family
Self-Sufficisncy Program, which focuses on guiding low-income families out of paverly, and & Housing Choice
Youcher Home Ownership Optidn, which has preparad and assisted 432 households to betemé homeowners.

The Brown County Housing Authority, through ité nof-for-profit partnérs NeighborWorks™ Green Bay and Catnolic
Charities, -adfministérs-homaownership counseling and down payment assistance lodns and a matching daferrad
payment Down Payment and Ciosing Cost loan- program -that assists homebuyers who purchase, own, and
cocupy duplexiproperties. The Brown County Housing Authority, through its statutory authority, has financed the
developrnent of 600+ mixed-income hausing unils through fax-exemp! bonding. The Housing Division of fhe
depariment provides staffing for the Brown. County Housing Authority, and provides coordination. of servicss and
guidance to public, private, and nol-for-profit agencies in the afferdable housing indusiry.

Inspection Division

The Inspectiin Division performs enforcament of a variety ‘of municipal ordinances and'staté and federal codes
as ihey relale lo construction. activity, housing and proparly maintenance, zoning and 'land-use regulations, and
consumer protection through its weights & measuras program. The past three years generated revenuss as
follows:

Summary of Revenue 2007 2008. 2009
Plan Reviaw, Permit & License Fees 839,191 §32.883 831280
Variance Applicalion Fees 5,700 4,800 5,400
Re-Inspaction Feas 22,855 22,880 26.450
Weights & Maasures Fess 65,005 (8,085 76,100
Total Revenue 932.551 28,408 739,200

- During 2009 = total of 2,756 projects wers approved for construction, for which revanues dropped by 24.1%.

whiie‘th-.': zstimated consteuction value of $71.327,801 was fealized. Projest plan reviews in 2008 included 413
site plans and 480 building plans.

When projects do.not conform to zoning codes, applicants may appeal lo the Zoning Board of Appeals for a
variance from the codes. Public hearings are then held o decide the merits of such variancs requesis, and
whare ordinances are found 10 impose unigue hardships making development impraciizal or unreascnably
difficult fo corform to, variances may be grantzd. in 2009, 75 variances were hagrd,

Citizers complainis -generated frony various situations ralating to building codes. housing conditions, 2oning and
land use issugs. and consumer protection issues make up a significant portion of the Inspection Division activity.
Inspaclors track complaints for code violations, and their actions and their cormmunications with property owners,
until sach case is resolved. In 20089, inspectors responded to 4,011 cases, in comparison lo 4,239 ¢casas in
2008.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The. Department of Ecohomic Development's mission is to gensrate and faciiitate business developmant,
retention and expansion that provides meaningful employment opportunities, generates a healthy tax base, and
offers a first-class quatity of life lo ‘all residents. The Department is guided by the Economic Development
Authority which is composed of six cifizen members-and one City Council Representative, all appoinied by the
Mayor, The Authorily is sommitted 1o shhancing the 2zanomic climate dnef fostering economic grawth,




The stability and grawth of Green Bay's economy can be attributed to several unique- factors that maks the Gity
an attractive place to-ive and do business. The Gty serves asa regional-hub of economic activity for all types of
businesses in northeast Wisconsin and: the Upper Peninisula.of Michigan. With a high quality of living hat
includes safe ne@hborhoods affordable housing cheices, and four-season outdoor recreational opportunities;
strong :public-and private K-12 schools systems; first class institutions-of higher. education; and entertainment
and -culfural amanities that range from local'io national acts, Green Bay continues to attract and retain qualified
‘professional employess, as-well as entreprangurs: and expenenced business:owners who <orifinue o lavest in
oif community.

‘The high quality of living Green Bay ofiers is only & part.of what madz. ihe Cily.a bright:spot during a difficult
natiohal economic clifmate in 2008. Amenities such as cointy, state, anhd fedéral highways; deep water port
access that connectsto the international economy; transportation infrastructure that move goods via rail and
truck to National markels; afd-Austin Straubel Internationaf Airport-sérviced by. major carriers make Green Bay a
great:place o:do-business. This:infrastructure, combined with a-growing and skilled: workforce attracts growing
compariies and retdins.. exustmg business with-natiohal hams racognition. These factors; and several others, will
ensure that economic growth in Green Bay will continue well-into-the futiire,

The City of ‘Green: Bay weathered.the récessian of 2009 remarkably well. While. many. ottier comniunities saw
‘major layoffs and plant closures, business. activity thraughaut Green Bay remained cauhously steady.: To hgip
maintain a stable.economy, staff increased ralention sfforls to support and encourage the business community.
In fail 2009, the: City. hosted a small business:conference: that:brought Sihall Business-Administration ($BA} and
jederal procurement officials to Green Bay. This-one day conferance covered. topics such as new SBA financing
pragrams, the bengfits of conducting business in a HUB Zone, as well as how to secure federal conifacts. This
first of its kind event did not go. unnpticed, and Gas since been rolled out nationwide by the BBA. Proactive
otireach such as this halped keep Green Bay's economy stable during 2 chaltenging ysar.

Iri ©ctober, Schwabe North America, parent company of Enzymatic Therapy, announced their invesimant of over
$10-million in ts:Greey Bay: operat:ons aid the creation of niorethan 125 new jobg. Tha-company established a
160;000. square: foot distribution :center ant -expanded manufacturing operation. by consolidating the Sehwabe
fagility i Springville, Utah- with the Green Bay opsrafion, Tha ventire will create: professional, .office and
operational:positions, as well as'retain more than 280 jobs alrgady located in Green Bay.

The City's Community Development: Revolving Loan Fund saw a. great-deal of aclivity in-2008. Three loans
totaling $427,000 wira awaitgd to. NorthCoast Productions, Mational Packaging. Services, [nc. and Kavarna,
LLC Yor equipment:and building improvemeants. Over $1;000,000 was leveraged for.the projects, while creating
28 full-fime jobs, with 14-designated for liw:to moderate income househalds.

Fostering entrepreneurial growth is a key. component towards advancing the Gity's economy. Localed at
Naortheast ‘Wisconsin Tethnical College, the: Advance Business Center ircubator offers a.place for budding
entrepreneurs o stan thair busingss. n 2008, the incubator added 11 ‘new tenants, and ended the year with.a
total of 19'physical-and 7 virfualtenants. -Buring the year, Legato Markenng & Communicafions, LLC, graduated
inito 2 larger office facility for thaii.growing staff. The 26 tenants provide 72:full time jobs and 44 part tire jobs.

In.Seplermber,:a celebration-was held 1o commemorate the 20th anniversary of {he <43, Business Center. The
Cily Council approved the purchase of 580 acres.located at.the intarsection of Interstatel 43.2nd Masen Street in
1989, Since than, the park-has:grown:io atotal size of 750 -acres and is-home to more than 30 businegsses and
over 3,400 employees. The estimated property value in 2008 was $302 million. The 1:43 Busingss Cent r.is
considersd-a premier. sddress in the City-due to its profective covenants, the types of businesses lozated in the
park and its visibility and accessibiiity.

Browtifield redevelopment is a growing aspect in the City's econoric development strategy. In 2007, the City
was aWwarded a $400,000 grant from the U.S. Environmigntal Protection” Agency ‘o, paiform assessments far
anvironmentally challenged land to help spur redevelopment. Four brownfield related projects were completed in
the City in 2009. Redevelopment on three of the four sites is already underway and is expected to leverage
$11.5 milflon:in new-development in-2010.

in parinarship with the federal Econornic Development Adminisiration and Wisconsjn Manufacturing Extension
Parinership; the Clty awarded $136,000 in Manufacturing. Improvement Assistance Grants to- 37 campaniss
focated in'the City-in 2008 and 2009. These grants ware used-to provide training: or technical assistance that
applied new technologies, identified naw products or markels, reduced manufaciuring cycle time, Improved
quality-gr reduced costs which was expected fo.result in increased competitiveness for the company, These
grants: leveraged $546,000 in funding from parhc:pa!mg companies for {raining: and process improvement
projécts.

Service sectorigrowth followed national trends and was not!ceably slower in 2009. However, diverse new retail
and hospitality:busingsses held ribbon cutting -ceremonies in Green Bay throughout the year. In the retail seclor,
the City saw. expansion and improvement activities in several argas of the cily. Interior and e&xisrior
improvements ‘were made to East Towne Mall, makmg it more aes(hetlcally appealing to custorners and more
attractive Jor. prospeciive businesses, The opshing of & Sonic' Drive-in in 2009 on an out-iot is bringing new
shoppers to this zastside shopping destination.

In 2008, the. City began planning for .a §12 -million infrastructurs and strestscape upgrade fo Military Avenus,
This: project will begin in early 2010, The businesses located' along the Military Avenue corridor formed a
business association that will create a new vision for the business district. Approximately 60 businesses joined
the Military-Averue Business-Association. Their work in 2008 fozused on developing a strategy fo promots the
business-district during the major road projéct.

Wai:Mart also:coniributed to the revitalization .of the wast side by campleting significant interior and exterior
pgradas iz thelr store on West Mason Street.  When that project ended, Wal-Mari began an addition an the
east side store on Main Siréet to upgrade the store o a Super Center. When finished, the project will-add a
complete grocery department and improved preduct fines.

fMomantum is continuing 1o build in Green Bay's.céniral business district. The completion of the first phasz of
the CityDack, 3 §12 million, 1,400 foof urban boardwalk, in 2009 is :expected io atiract more businasses and
residents downiown in 2010. Over 25 new events are planned for this riverfront park. Adding tc CityDeck’s
appeal.are ths Broadway and Downtown Farmers' markets. Thase events draw 200 particigating vendors and
attract over 10,000 people every week to.downtown. These successful events have become catalysts for new
business devsjopment in the downtown.

The City continued to experience 'substantial growth in its heallhcare sector. Ares hospitals continued to make
upgrades fo current facilities. These commitments ensure that Green Bay will remain a regional healthcare hub
and area residents: are offered the best. care and iatast technology in the industry. This sustained growih has
increased demand for educated firofessionals in the area.and helps Grezn Bay maintain median incomes that
excead state and national averagas.

St ‘Mary's Hoépital finishad construction of an approximaltely 37,000 square feet, $30 million expansien in 2003.
The addition is. home to the St. Mary's Cancer Center and’ features many.envirgnmentally: beneficial features,
intluding a green:rooftop park that is accessibieto.both employeses.and patients..

Bellin Hospital also completed renovations 1o their Emergency Depariment. The new 32.000-square-foot, $13

‘milion faciity: ehables: Beliin: Health- to provide worid-class gmergency care to -patienis: across Wortheast

Wisconsin. The: new Emérgency Deparimeni feafures 16 individual patient fooms, @ diagnostic suite, and
entarged ambulance bays offer easier acsess for emergsncy vehicles and patlents, Investments such as thes
will ensure that three of Green Bay's four hospitals will remain the three. largest (based on févenues) hospitals i m
all of northeast Wisconsin.

The mostexciling event in 2009 was the annauncament.that-the federal Veterans Administration selected Graen

-Bay as the new home for.a faxable, 545 million VA Outpatient Clinic that will: serve over 20,000 veterans

annually. -Construgtion of the ¢linit will begin. in the fall of 2010. This investment will create more than 200:high
paying heafthcare jobs. 1ty anticipated the project will also spur ngw development in the’ University Avenue
busingss corridor in the: commg yaars.

Gipwing an ecoriamy takes more than adding infrastructure and pttting tools in plage to help new and expanding
businesses. It requires: providing a high quality of fife and great amienities fo retain and attract talented
employees {o the region: To help: promote Green Bay's first-class quality of life, the City. along with’ neighboring
municipalities and private sector busingsses, continued {o support the Greater Green Bay Branding Initiative.
“Batter by thie Bay”, gs it is known, is @ mulli-year, $1 million effort t& make business ownars, entrepransurs.
families. and eniployess aware of all that Greater Green Bay has to offer. Strategically placed print ads and
cormmercials in other Midwest markets boost Green Bay's already national reputation. This effort, combingd wilh
infrastructure expansion ensures that Gresn Bay is in the best possible position to benefit from a national
economic rebound.

TRANSIT DEPARTMENT

The Gity of Green Bay's Transit Department, Grean Bay Matro, provides convenient public transporiation service

+4n:the City of:Green Bay as well as Allpuez, Ashwaubenon, Bellevue, DePere, and. the Ongida Natian. The




transit system receives .operating assistance from ihe statz and federal govamments and each partic jpating
municipality pays afocal share of the opsrating budget.

The mission of Green Bay Metro is fo become the premisr provider of putlic fransportation in Northeastern
Wisconsin providing its ‘cusiomers with efficient and cost effective services that slimulate econemic growth and
contribute to the overall-quality oflife in metropolitan Grean Bay.

Green Bay Metro operates fixed route bus service on 13 full-service roules as weli'as 11 limiieg-sérvice routss.
Bervice is provided Monday: through Saturday. In. cornphance with the Americans with D:sabmues Act, Grean
Eay Metro provides a demand response: paratransil service for eligible cilizens within % mite of the fixed bus
routes. The paratransitservice is provided through a contract with a private carrier,

WATER UTILITY

Betw '\ 1860 and 1957, the Cily of Sreen Bay relizd on ground water as its principal potable water supply
sou A declining waler table and an increased water demand forced the Cily lo relegale its well te a reserve
stafu s anc to extznd a pipeline 27 miles io transport high quality Lake Michigan water lo the City,

Water is obiained from Lake Michigan through two 42" diameler intake pipes locaied four miles north of
Kewaunee, Wisconsin, One intake extends 3.000 feet, and the second extends 6,000 feet out into the lake. The
iniet of the 3,000-foot intake is s2tin 27 feet of water. The inie! for the 6,000-foct intake is sel in 60 fes! of water.
The iniets are designed fo. minimize the veloclly of waier entering the intakes and thus reduce the amount
debris cartied into the pumping station. Chisring is-added threugh diffuser rings mounted on gach inlet lo kil any
2zsbra mussels gntering ihe inlefs and intake pipes.

‘Water flows by gravity through the two intake pipes fying on the lake battom. The watar passes through 1" bar
screens at'the pumping station belore it enters one ol the six veriically driven centrifugal pumps. Thrae af the
pumps are-capable of pumping-at 5.8 million gallons per day (MGD}, one al 6:8 MGD, one at 5.0 MGD, and one
at3.8'MGD.

As the water leaves the pumping Station, chlorine is-added as 2 disinfectant to ki diseasg-causing prganisms
that may be present. The water is-pumped through 42" and 34" diaméter pipelines to the treatment plant.located
15 miles west of the Lake, The plant is located at the ighest point between.the City of Green Bay and the Lake,
approximalely 360 fasi abiove lake lavel.

Midway between . the pumping station and the treatment.plant is the raw waler booster station. This station is
used only when the: City s demand-exceeds the capacity of the lake pumping sfation. Toincrease.the flow fo the
iraatment plarit, watgr is. diverted into a1 mitlion gallon ressrvoir at the hooster station. Twe 33 MGD punigs
deaw: water from the reservolr and boost it at a festér rate fo the treaimant plenit, The staion is unatiended and
is operatad remotaly from the treatment plant.

Al the treatment plant chemicals are mbed with the water, which help remove any suspendsd solids 2nd
objectionable tastes and odors. Ozone is also introducad at this fime, which reduces possible tasie and odor
prablams and kills misrobrganisims. such as eryplosporidium. Foliawing this mixing period; the witer enters ong
of five: s&ifling basing whers it remains until the suspended particles have seltied.out. The water than passes
through 48" {Hick filters cansisting -of iayers of washed coal, sand, and stone.  Following filtration, sodium
hypachiorits is introduced as @ disinfectant since-all chloring praviously added has been consdumed. Fluoride is
aiso-added st this time iof protection against denial cavities.

Filtered water is slored af the filtration plent in underground reserviirs, having g combined capacity of 8 milion
gallons. The water then flows by gravity through two 3" pipes-into the Cily. Ning of the-original City- walls have
bean maintained 1o supplement the lake supply system when neaded,

The Water Ulility is headquariered at-631 Soulh‘Adams Street and corenfly-zmploys 57 fullime workers. As of:
Dacember 31, 2009, it owns and mainiains 34,638 water Iakcra)s 35,532 water melers, 3,806 fitg hydrarts,
453.9 miles of distribution main, 62.9 miles of supply main, 7 underground reservpirs, 9 -wells, and 7 elevaled
storage tanks..

NEVILLE PUBLIC MUSEUM OF BROWN.COUNTY

The Neville Public Museum of Brown' Counly is-ong:of the largest musaums-in Wisconsin. 1t features two ﬁoors

of galigries for history, ari; and scignce exhibits; a chﬂdren 's Discovery Room with hands-on agtivities; working:

space for anists; curriculum-based educationai units plus other sducational programming and activities for
childran and aduits; mesting rooms which are availabie for use by the Museum and oulside organizations; the
Meville Theater, with stage and-full-range of AV equipment; and a Gift Shop which is well-stocked with unique
merchandise. ~ Most .of the third.floor of the Museum Ts devoted io office space and the environmentally
controlled storage of the permanent cofiection, which. includes avera million artifacts.

The Mussum was founded in 1915 by the members of the Green Bay Art Club. The present Muszum is named
atier Arlhur and Ella Hoes Neville, whose son-in-law was instrumantal in the construction of the firs! Musaum
facility, located on the corner of Doty and Jefferson Streets. The current Museum building, on the cornsr of
Dousman Street and iuseum Place on the cily's west side, opened {o the public in 1983. Built because of an
overwhelmingly positive public refarendumm, the Museum is now a County Depariment. The not-for-profit Meville
Public Museum Foundation annually raises private funds ic pay for all exhibils and refated activities at the
hduszum, and Brown County covers its operational costs, including curatorial and suppori siafl. The Couniy
owns the permanant collection. The Mussum collests, praserves, and interprels histary, science, and art
rafevant to northeastern Wiscansin through exhibitions, spacial programming, research, and publications. The
Maville Public Mussum of Brown County is fully acoreditzd by the American Assasialion of Musaums.

The first fioor of tha Nevitle is dominated by the 3,100 sq. | Walter Gaflery, which is used for large in-house and
traveling exhibits. A Discovery Room centains hands-on and interaciive educationa! stations for chiidren ang
femilies. Studic 210; Working Regional Artists providas studio spaca whera visitars can {alk to the artisis or
sitply observe them at work (mcludec aclivities for kids). The Gift Shop offers items for every lasts and budgst
it features fine works of art, books, original Jx.Weh'V and pattery, educational games and tays, and souvenirs Tar all
sges.  The fist floor also includes magling rooms—used for various leciures, wolkshops,
c’mo“s'ral‘ons and special Museum avenis—and the 132 seat Naville Theater. Tha Thaater is us
{notably the popular international Film Saries co-sponsored with the Graen Bay Film Sociely), pressniations,
tectures, seminars, and special avenls.

On the second floor is the Fort Howard Paper Foundation Gallery, which holds the permanent exhibition On the
Edge of the Ihand Sea—an exhibit that takes visitors on a trip through the history of Northgastern Wisconsin
from thie end of the last lce Age te the mid-20th-century. Visitors travel through time as they explore the gzology
of the region; the life slyles ‘of the first inhabitants of the area; the arrival of the French, British, and Yankez
salilers: Wisconsin's move from & {errilory to statehood; Eurapzan :mmtgralton and the developtment of e
region ‘as an agricultural and. industrial center., Popular dioramas in this 7,200 sq, . exhibit include an
authéntically construcied Woodland Indian wigwam: a traners post-and general store; and a strest scene in oid
‘Gregn' Bay. The route through the- exhibit portrays gvents important to the region’s past——the development of the
land, the forests, the communities, lumbering, railroading, and papermaking—all of which make Northeastern
Wisconsin ‘and -Green.Bay what thay are loday, The nawest additiolr fo this extensive exhibit is a video theater;
Hometown Advantage: the. Community and the Packers, which contains gight, approximately five minute videos,
exploring this unique, re}ahonshum The permanent exhibit is an excellent educational tool for hejping children and
adults undarstand this region's history, and the exhibit utilizes thousands of artifacts, film, phoios, and text ta telf

its story.

Other exhibition galienes are located on this ficor, The Frankentha) Gallery, offering a panoramic view of e
historic. and beautifi Fox River and northern Graen. Bay skyline, showcasss "Highlights from the Nevilie's
Photograph Collection,” "Highlights from the Collection,” and an exhibit case changed periodically by the Neville
sponsored Geology Club, This area is also used for axhibit opening raceptions and other events. The Photo
Wall fzzitres 2 selection of historic images from the permanent cofiection, focusing on historic Grezn Bay {ang
the surfounding drea}, and the Graen Ba/ Packers. Reproductions.of tese irmages (or any other imagss in fhe
Mussim's collection] can be ardared for 2 very reasonable cost. The largsr WPS Gailery and the Syram-
fangsr Galiery bisth featura changing an, history, or science exhibifs, as dogs the much smaller Mezzanine.

In addition to gxhibits, a: sampiing of some of the popular spasial events and programs at the Museum includs:
Christmas on dhe Fox. Arfifact ID Days, Explorer Saturdays. Natural History Lecture Series. International Film
Saties (co-spdnsorad with the Graen Bay Film Society), Geology Club and Astronomical Sociely programs and
meetings, chiltlran’s crafl programs, and more,

The Museum‘;ex&ensive. photo coliection (both. siilf and moving images), permanent collection, and small
resource“nbrary arg‘openia tha public by appointment.

The Neviile Publu: Museum is open seven days a week: Sundays irom 12 Noon fo § PI; Mondays, Tuasdays,
Thursdays, Frldays and Saturdays_from & AM to 5-PW; and Wednesday from 9ANM to 8 PM.




Admission fees are:

Adult {age 16 and up} $4
Chiid {age &'to 15) 32
Age 8§ and under Free

Alt sehool and youthgroups (including teachers and chaperones), reégardiess of whan they visit, $1 per
persor

Free admission for the general public from 6 PM to 8 PM on Wadnesday

Fre¢-.admission for members.of Friends of the Neville at any time

Free admission for people only visiting the Gift S8hop or only attending most programs/special evenis (no
aceess to exhibits in either case)

# parking lot is located in front of the Museum, and bus parking is avaiiable on the zdjacent stresl. The Mussum
is equipped for those with spacial needs, The Mussum's menkmg rooms and the Neville Theater are available
for Jecturas, recitals, workshops, ste. pending availability; there is.a modest charge for use of the facility.

Visit the Museum's website at www nevillepublicmuseym.org. The general e-mait addrass is

be_museum®@eco. brownwius.

AUSTIN STRAUBEL INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Operdting as a self-funded. entsrprise fund, the purpose of Austin Straube! International Airport is to provide a
cost efieclive, convenient,. and safe environment for air travel, lo. the cifizens and business community of
Wortheast Wiscansin, at no dirget cost to the local tax base, while supporling and enhiancing the ‘sconomic
viability of Brown County.

A total 718,268 passengers Uilized the third largest airport e the Stale of Wisconsin dufing 2009, Austin
Straubel [nternational Airport dperates.a 24 hour, 365 day a ysar operation.. As'such, the airport is a key
ingredient’ fo: northeastern, Wisconsiri’s economic growth and quallly of Ilife. The airport prowdns fob
apportunifies for gver 2,000: people in.northeast Wisconsin and contributes over $120 million into the region's
economy. The-Alrporlis striclly ‘a self-funded enterprise fund with an-$11 million operating budgat that has no
impact on the-tax levy of Brown Couniy.

Austin Straube! Internationial Airport servies.the citizens and business commiunity of Brown County and Northeast
Wisgonsin by operating the {acilities necessary fo support commeycial and general ‘aviation activities: The
Ajrport 5 currnmly sarved by four major airfines with-direct service lo eighisen cities and connections availabls to
any desiination in the world. In addition, the airport is host-fo a multitude of support buginesses such as a
parking: facility, car renfal agencigs, restaurant/lounge, fixed based operalors. gift shops. airfreight companies,
and cusioms house brokerage:

Austin Straubal International Airport s, alse a regional base: of operations for the Transporation Security

Administraltion serving. all’ of noriheastern Wisconsin, Additionally, the ‘airport has a U.S. Customs office
stationed within the main terminal for those who wish'to enter or exit the United States:

PORT AND SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT

The Waliand-Canal, which has been in-opzration since 1932, rermainzd open o navigation uniit Desember 30in,
as thie CSL Tadoussac transited Lock 1 at 3:04 p.m..and clearid Pert Weller entering: Lake Ontario at 3:22 p.m.

Total Seaway. cargo volume: for 2009°is estimated'ta amount to 30:5. million tons, the fowest volume witnessed
since; the early 1660's. - The 25% decrease in’cargo volume compared:16 2008 can be aitributed fo. the depth of
the recassion, which sharply curtailed movemnents of iron.ore and steél on the waterway.

“Giver: the Seaway's- reflance:upon the steel industry for a:substantial portion of ‘our business; the gcondmic-

downturn ‘during: the last yeair Has: cartainly imipacted our traffic level” commentéd:Richard Gotfe; President and
CED of The St Lawrence Sgaway Managemert Corporation (SLSME). “The depth of this' downtum
underscores the importance of the SUSME's efiorts to diversify our ¢arga base, and we are working diligently.en
a number of fronts fo altain this goal", “While our core market will. remain centered upon. the transport of bulk
cammodities, we arg werking towards afuture in.which the Seaway will becoma ‘more adaptive in nature, and
abie to welcomera wider variely: of vessels: carrying niche cargoes” continuad Corfe. “Cur efforts. {o' this. end
focus on.the: development of Hands Free Mooring, which will-eliminate the need for a vessel-owner to invest in-

equipment it only requires when navigating through the Seaway. reduce vessel crawing requirements for iock
tfansits,-and enhance productivity and safety”.

Despite the econoric downlurn, the Seaway and its Highway H20 pariners have not relented in their efforts to
altract new cargo volumes. A series of business incentives were crediled with bringing in 1.8 million fons of new
cargo contributing over §2 million in toli revenue for 2009. A pilot project sponsored by the Part of Harn: iton
demonsirated the uiility of transporting specialized containers between Hamilton and Monireal via tug and barge,
providing an aitarnative to busy road and rail finks,

Notable progress was also made in-ballast water management.and efforts to prevent any new introdustions of

aquatic invasive spacies {AIS) via ocean going vessels entering Seaway waters. Recanl studies by leading
academics including Dr. Sarah Bailey from she Department of Fishsries and Qceans and Dr. Hugh Macisazc
from the University. of Windsor reveal that no new species have besn reported since 2008, the first time since
1865-1967 thal there has been & three-year period without new AlS discoveriss. “The application of salt water
flushing. while nat 2 final solution, is clearly having the desired effect. giving vessels the ability to transit the
Seaway without posing undue: risks to the ecology of our waters™ emphasized Terry Johnson, Administrator of
the U.S. Saint Lawrence:Ssaway Developmeni Corporation. “Dur present efforts combined with the forthcoming
introduction of U.S. Coast Guard ballast water treatment stendards will ensure an orderiy progression in the
steps required to protect our system from ship borne threats”,

The Govarnment of Canada’s recent announcement of its.intention to remove the 25% duty on certain vessels
brought into Canada also bodes well for the Seaway's fulure. The ability of ship operators {o cost effectively
acquire vessels. able to maximize the usz of the Szaway's existing locks will bolstar the system's
competitiveness. New vassels, equipped with modern -engines capable of burning low suiphur fuels and
advanced:ballast water managemeant technology. will reinforee the existing bulk fleet and provide fresh options o
further. expand short-s2a shipping initiatives. “Lel's not lose sight of the promise that marine transportation hoids
as the lowest emitter of greenhouse gases per ton mile, an advantage not to be taken lightly as our naiions
collactively face great préssure to reduce North Amarica's carbon foolprint* concluded Canadian CEQ Corfe.

GREEN BAY AREA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Green Bay Area Public Schools (GBAPS) operates as a unified school district that serves an area of more than
92 square miles, 47 square miles of which are outside the city fimils. The district covers the City of Green Bay,
the Village of Alldbaz, the Town of Scott, part of the Village of Believue, and pan of the Towns of Ledgeview.
Eaton, Green Bay and ‘Humboldt, 'The disirict has an aqualxz;d valuaiion of 8.4 billion dollars {including the tax
mcremnnz financing valuation), 71.8% of which is in tha City of Green Bay. In compliance with state stafuies, the
school district; clerk apporiions school costs, including debt service, among the participating political units
according to thelr share:of the-equalized valuation.

GBAPS ope,ra:e under a Board of Education, which consisis of seven cilizens elected ai large by hs volers of

. the district

The Board appoints the suparintendent, who is-responsible for administrative supervision-af all public schools in.
the. distfict. The superintendent administers @ comprehensive program covering kindergarten threugh grade 12
and bath vocational and college-prgparatory Sequences. GBAPS also offars ong of Wisconsin's most complele
programs for the exceptional studant, incuding the visually impaired; hearing impaired; physically challenged,
educable, traifiable, -and severely/profoundly mentally handicapped; leaming disabled; -emationally disturbed;
school-age parent; homebound: medically fragile, early childhood, and speech and language handicapped.

The Gresn Bay Area Public School District has the fifth largest enrbliment in the state (behind Milwaukee,
Madistn, Racing and Kenosha), The 2089 third-Friday-in-Seplerisber count, exclusive of Head Start pupils, was
20,977, anincrease of 71 studeris from ihe year before.

Enrollment
2000-01 1 2001-02 2002-D3 2003-04 | 2004-05 | 2005-06 | 2005:07
19:584 | 18,908 20,166 20,137 | 20114 | 20,124 | 19,926
‘Projected
2007-08 | '2008-08 2008-10 2010-11 2011-12_{ 2012-13 | 2013-14
16,845 ¢ 20,908 20,977 21,031 21,078 21110 [ 21135

The school district has four high schools, four middle schools, 25 elementary schools, ‘and two K-8 schaols.




The staff includes about 2,528 employess on a jull-fimé éouivalency basis.

The City of Green Bay alsd has a Private School system cansisling: of: 1 grades K-5 school, 18 gradss K-§
schiools, 3 grades K12 schoals, and two high schools with an estimated enraliment of 4,371 studants.

-NDRTHE‘AST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Northeast Wlsconsm Techmcal Co!lege s a publlc two-year college. traihing ‘current and fulure workers in
tradifional; new and smerging !echnologms NWTG:is committed to providing alf learngrs with the highest-quamy
high. tec?nology education that is what thay want; offered whéle, when and how they wan it, to improve:their
quality of life

NWTEC's campuses in Green-Bay, Marineite and Sturgzan Bay staried as ity vocational schools. Since 1813,
residelits and businesses in Noftheast Wisconsin hava furned {0 these.campuses for high-qualily career-réfates
education. They united in 1867 to form: Narthsast Wiscensin Technigal Collegs, District 13 of the Wiszonsin
Technical College Systern. The Diskict includes all of Brown, Door, Kewaunge, Maringtte, Fiorence and Oconio
Countiss, plus parts.of Shawano, Manitowag and-Outaganiig Counties.

The College is Jead by NWTC President Dr. H, Jeffrey Rafiy. It offers classes through three campuses, five
oufreath centers, communily-based and worksile-based education centers, and vig technology such as
interactive lelevas;on and the internet. Thiz College offers.about 70 Associate Dégreas and Tachnical Diplomas,
plus certificales, individual classes, contracted courses.and a wids range of sarvices.

NWTC aperaies within policies set down by its District Board. The Board Is ah-autonomous unil with appropriate
authority and: taxing powers established by Wisconsin State Statutes. It consists of nine individuals who-serve
vohintarity and whe- are appoinied by the County Scard chairpersons of each county in NWTC's District. The
Board consists of two amployer representatives, two emplover representatives; an elecizd official, a schoal
superintendent, and threg members-at-large.

The learners al NWTC inciudz: sludents taking post-sesondary coursas that lsad to associale degrees, tzchnical
diplomas and. cerfificales; warkers itaking coniracted courses and: adult vocaiional courses, which provide
jocused training in:specific 10b~reldted skills.such as using campuler software, reading blueprinis, using. Spanish
on theJoly and working effectively inteams; students taking basic education courses for iimpraved math, reading,
writing,- Enghsh-speakmg and sfudy skills, eitharfor personal enrichment-or in preparation for eollege; fearners in
commilpity service courses, gaining: skilis for iving.and enjoying life; such as.exercise, photography and Internet
use:

NWTC's - fullfima-aquivalent enrolliments ‘have risen 42% since 2001, when volers in Norlheast Wiszansin
approved :a $46.5 ‘million referendum lo- enhance services, expand feciliies: and increase the number of
graduates, Thanks fo that invesiment, Collepe admits mare studants, offers more hands-on training, graduates
maore needed health-care workers antd: provides-other .economic support i the region, One new facility; the
Manufacturing Technology Center; offers.on-demand {raining in integrated manufacturing systems. Another; the
Business Agsistance Center. houses public and private resources far new and growing businesses including ths
Advance ‘Business Insubator. Warkplace Laarning ‘Services brings-{achnizal education to every commurnity and
business through customized training-on any lopic ofiered anylime, anywhere, any way.

NWTC. currently has 626 henefit-gligible employees and a fiexible number of part-time support siaff, student
waorkers and-agjunct faculty who wark during the given year, for a total of about 2,100 employees.

Revenues forthe College come frum thess sources:

-Associate Degree and Technjcal Diploma Programs

Accouniing

Administiative Professional

Apprenticestip
Architéctural Tachriology

Auito. Collision Repairand Refinishing
Tachnician’

Auto.Coffision Repair:and Refinish
Technology

Automation Engme=nng Technolo"y

Autombtive Technician

Automotive Technology

Business Management

Lasino Mariagement

Cairtified Médication Assislant

Civil Engineering Technology.

Clinical Laboratory Technizian

Computer Suppon Specialist - 1T

‘Computer Support Technician « 1T

Credit Business-Management

Criminal.Justice - Carreclions

Criminal Jusfice - Law Enforcement

Criminal Justice - L.aw Enforeement Academy

Dental Assistant

Dental Hygienist:

Diagnostic Medical Sonegraphy

Diesel and Heavy Equigment Technician

Diesel Equipment Technology

Digital Media Technology

Early Childhood Education

Electrical Engineering Technology

Electiical: Powar Distribution

Electriclty

Eleciro-Mechanical Teshnology

Elactronics {with optional Biomedical
specialty}

Emargency Medical Teshnician-Basic

EMT intermediate Technician:

'Farm_Busmess and Production Management

Financial Instifutions Management:

Fire Protection Erigineering Technology

Gas Utility Consfruction and Service

General Stydies Transfer

Health Care Business Services

Health Information Technology

Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning, and
Refrigeration: Te¢hnology

Hotel and Rastaurant Management

Individualized Technicai Studies

Individualized Technical Studies -
Journey wérker

Industfial Mechanic

Instructional Assistant

Jewelry Repair and Fabrication
l.andscape FHoriculture Technician
Leadership Development

Machina Tool - CNC Technician
Machine Toal Operation

Machine Tool Techniques (Tool & Die Making)
Manufaztoring Engineering Technology
Marksting

Marketing and. Graphic Communications
Mechanical Dasign Technology

Madical Assistant

Natwork Spzcialist - [T

Nursing Assistant

Nursing-Associate Degres

Office Professional

Parafegal

Paramedic - Emergency Medicel Technician
Physical Therapist Assistant

Povear Engingering and Boiler Opzrator
Practical Nursing
Print: Te¢hnology

Protolype and Design
Radiography

Respiratory Therapist
Solar Engargy Technology
Supply Chain Managament

Surgical Technologist

Utifities. Engineering Technology
Web Develapment

Welding

Wood Tech




Wortheast Wisconsin Technical Collage is-accradited by The Highsr Learning Commission and is @ membar of
the -North Cenfral Association, www.neahic.org. Many individial NWTC degree. and -diploma programs ars
accredited through relevant professional organizations.

ST. NORBERT COLLEGE

St. Norbert College, a Tathofi; liberal arts institution known-for its ‘academic ‘excelfence, focus on iniernational
awareness, and leadership and -service apparlunities, is- the only collzge in the world sponsoréd by ‘the
Narbgrtings, & Catholic order devotad to community, education, and sarving {the negds of others. Father Bernard
Pennirigs, ‘8 Norbérline prigst,-founded Sk :Norbert College in 1898 with the mission of providing a supefior
education that provides academic, social, and spifitual nourishment and development. After World War |1,
enrollments increased dramatically, and in 1952 the college became coeducational, Abbot Pennings' basic
philosophy of education "to perfect the parsonal, moral, and inteliectual development of each -student’ remains
vnchanged!

St. Norbirt is recognized by U.S. News & World Report &s one of "America’s Best Liberal Arts Collegss.” Ths
collage has also been named to the Templeion Honor Roll for Character-Building Colleges, is regarded as ona
of “The Best in the Midwest® by the Princelon Review, and was recently ranked among the best colleges in the
country by Forbes.com. ’

St. Norberl College is selective in adimissions, enrolling 2,113 andergraduate students and 62 graduate students.
The average ACT score for all students'is: 24,

With-a 141 sfuderit-ta-faculty ratio, class sizes provide for individualized aitention. Students can choose from 30
miajars or create their own program te achieve dngir unique aspirations.

Innovative partnéréhips broaden opporlunities‘ for St. Norbert students. One with Bellin-College of Wursing aliows
siudents to.pursug'a BS in nursing: while- énjoying St. Norbert's liberal arts-fouidation and living -experence:
Another, with: Michigan Tech, combines. pre-engineering courses at St. Norbert with iwo: final years of
enginsaring courseivork at Michigan Tech; & third, with Marquatie University, offers & fivg-year BA/MS pragram
in applied 2conomics. )

In 2808, Wr. Thomas Kunkel.became the seventh president of St. Norbert College. He is.focused on niaking St.
Norbert accessible to qualified students regardless of their financial means. and on achiaving excellence in all
fasels of the-college.

The faculty is-composed of lay professors and Norberting priests, 87 percant of the fulltime- faculty has a Ph.D.
or terminial degree in their.area-of specialization.

Through the St. Norbert Coflaborative, many siudents are offered the opporiunily to work on reszarch projacis
with professors, as early as freshiman year. The college Honors Program gives gified students the chance w©
engage wilh faculty and other talented students in small, academically challenging classes. Many. of the collzge’s
academic ¢lassas incorporate practical community service experiences such as marketing projects for leading
area businesses and nen-profit arganizations.

Most studanis at St. Nerber Collegs graduats in four years. The college’s four-yzar guarantes walivas luition for
additional semestars if & student does nat graduate in four years through ne fault of his/her own. (Fizlds of study
requmng five years for graduation are exempt) More than 94 percent of Si. Norberi graduates omam
professional employment or admission-lo a graduate and professional school education within nine months of
graduation.

The General Education program seeks fo provide all students with core sKills, knowledge and experience that
will enable them to function in @ complex and rapidly changing world. Students currently take twelve courses
from areas of study.inciuding human nature, the:natural world, creative experiences, diverse heritages, essential
skifls and refigious heritage.

St. Nerbert Coilege siresses global awareriess, service, leadership and professional u=ve!opm»=m within the
liberal arts.and sciences. St, Norbert is one of only a small number of colleges and universities in the United
States offering -an academic/cocurricular program in' leadership, The College’s Women Ceriter is student-led
and students also play a large Tole in an active Peace and Justice Center.

St. Norbent College's well-groomied 93-acre:campus Houses over 40 major buildings, including the F. K. Bafmis
international Center, the Ray Van Den Heuvel Family Campus Center;,. Austin E. Cofiin Halt, the Kress Inn, the

Carol and Robert Bush Arl Center, the new Minar: Mulva Library. and & new apanment-style dormifory, Fr.
Eugane E Gries Hall. The college's new Donald J. Schneider Athizlics Complex is schiduled for completion in
fall 2010,

Major interior r‘:modehng for Main Hall, bullt in 1803 and named to the National Register of Hisioric Places in
1088, was compieted in August 1890, The historic presarvation project receivad lacal and state awarcs.

An ongoing ¢orrective maintenarice program of alt buildings and systems is-parl of the coliege’s six-point energy
conser.vatiohwsj;stem

Todd Wehr Hall ence the college library, has been extensively remiodeled and now houses many of the college’s
student services offices, inclbding the registrar, bursar, financial aid office, campus ministry and bookstore.

The F. K Bemis [nternafional Center is a staie-of-ihe-arl conferance facilily. The building offers wwo-way
interactive voice and vides tsleconierencing services which may be rentsd by the community for business
maetings, weddings and other events,

The Krass tnn, an all-suite holel, is opan to the public and offers 46 spacious and inviting suiles, along with
distincliva service. Localed on the scenic St Norber Coliege campus, the Krgss inn is within watking distance of
many area rasiauranis, atiraciions and shopping. It is just minutas from downtown Green Bay. The inn racsived
2 Platinunt Hospitality Award from Choice Hotals international in 2010

The Center for Iniernational Education (CIE} offers programs including: Language Servi
{translating/interpreting and customized foreign lanpudge training); the English as & Secont Language insti
{which oFérs 3 multideval, nan-cregit progrem for personal, professional or .acadeniic advancement)
inigmational and student prograrming; and study-abroad programs, Many CIE events, such as the Great
Decisions iéciure series,-are opan to.the public.

The Center for Norbertine Siudies strives to explore how the Norberting heritage, so rich in its cullural expression
and infivence down-through the canturies and in.today's. diverse global community, ¢an inform and help shape
spiritual, intsllectual and cultural lifa on and off campus. The Cenlgr-also. servss as a resource to scholars
Worldwide:

The Miriam Mulva Library.at St. Norbert College is a state-of-the-art facility available 23 a commurity resource,
with borroWwing privileges réadily. négofiable. Completsd in 2009, g library housés nearly 250,000 volumes and
700 current journals. The newspaper colleclion inclides focal and. siate fithes, as well as several national
newspapers of record and international nawspapers of world ‘,apitals There are more than fwo dozan indexing
and abstracting services which guide ussrs to thousands of cifations in journal Marature, approximalely 9.000 of
which are available in fill {ext onling. Public worksigtions provide elecironic access 16 resources availabiz over
the Infernet and io the MNalivnal Trade Database. Computer-based resource. capabiiities include CO-ROM
databases, elzcironic resarve seivices and electronic interlibrary loans. The library's electronic resources can be
accessed from alf campus labs and residence halls, commuler students can access these senvives through the
campus computer acaount. The fibrary also features several mullimedia-equipped mestings rooms, as well as a
calfé&.

The Si. Norberi Collage Survay Cenier is a social science resaarch Jacility thal provides research and consuiting
sarvizes to the collzge as well as o lhe axternal community, The center conducts “The Wiscansin Survey” {(a
siatewide pubicc—opmmn survay] and the annual "Srown County Quality of Life Survey.” It also contracts fo
sonduct surveys for various org tions and governmantal agencigs. Specalizing w cuslom-ds t
research 1o meal the needs of the client, the survay center oifers @ range of seqvices, whaether it be cong
completz research projest or helping with-only one phase of a projst.

The college contributes 1o the intefiactual and cultural ciimate of greater Grean Bay and northeast Wisconsin.
The camruonity can take advantage of a variety of speaker series, including the CED Breakfast, Greai Dazisions
and Women's Enrichment serigs. Perforiming arts programs inchide Music Thealre. the St. Norbert Community
Band, the Green Bay Chamhber Singers, the Duxiley Birder Chorale, chioral and jazz perfarmances, the Knighis
on the Fox free summer concert series and pragrams from tha Center for [nternational Education, as well as St.
Norbert Colleye student and facully productions, concerls and recitals. Other programs include Upward Bound
and:Girls Leadarshipand Developmant summmer camp.

St Norbert College draws-ils mission from the Norbertine Order and, in parlicular, the Norbertine principle of
“self-emplying: service.” Many of the student-housing opticns and social groups. include & communily service
companent; additionally, the college’s Center for Community Service and Learning helps students and others on
camipus. partngr with the Brown County communily in working to pronicie:the comnion good. The priesis and




brothers of St. Norbert Abbey have also formed a Norberiine: Volunteer Community: for students who are jusfice-
and service-minded.

The college offers a safe, supporiive communily committed to providing .an .educational: environment that s

intellectbally, spifitually and personally challenging. St. Norberi College is a place that students love so.much that
they call it "home;”

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-GREEN BAY'

In 2009 the University:of Wisconsin-Green Bay achieved: a: major milestone in capping ils single-largest capital
campaign; The Campaign for UN-Green Bay.

The $30"million campaign.re-made the campus with new faciiities, approximately §0 new student scholarships,
ang an:-array of new:professorships, named chairs-and:academic enhancements.

Campus and community leaders celebrated the drive's conclusion at a December reg =pt|on al the’ Weidnar
Center far-the Performing Arfs. Chancelior Thomas Hardan offared thank-you's on behalf of the University to ca-
chairs Ginny Riopelle and. Tom:Qlson and principal voluntear Mike Mesuwsen. Donor genarosity resulted in:

+ Six separala gifts.of $1 miilion-or more
+ Two-dozen.gifts of $100,000 ormore
» ‘Many, many gifts thal representsd the donars’ fargest, or capstone gifts to charity.

*The communily response was remarkable,” Chancelfor Harden commented. “Other -universities may. lean
heavily upon. alumni but with.our moderate size and youth, that alone won't get.us where we nead to ba. That's
why we are fortunate o have. such @ generbus community, with donors whe appreciate UVW-Gresn Bay.and the
value of 2 strong public university,”

The $30 millian.Campaign for UW-Green Bay netled approximataly 519 million-for academic purposes and $11
milion 1o support consiruction of a new student events canter. In total there were more than 2,500 gifts from
indiviguals, families. companies-and foundations; alumni and nef-alumni: UW-Green Bay employess, refirges
and community suppartars.

Campaign achieverents include:
« Creation:of more than 50:new narned scholarships, more-than doubling-the scholarship endowment
» Estatlishment of UW-Green Bay's:first endowed chair, the'Jéhn P: Blair Endowed Chair jn Communication;
- Establishment of @ secand endowed chair, the Austin E. Cofrin:Chalr in Business;

+ Crzation or gxpansion of four named profeascrshlps withi the Fraderick E. Basr Profassorship in Susingss,
the Patticia Waod Baer Professorshlp in.Education, the Austin.E, -Cofrin Prof=ssorshup in Manageiant, and
the enhanced thp J.-and Elizabeth B. Hendrickson Professership for Busingss;

« Restoration and remagdéling of Lambeau Cotldge on the campus-bayshore;
+ Addition of a campus bell tower, the- Waldner Memorial Carifion;

- A remade cdmpus Iandscape with {2 Kress Events.Center — funded.one-third by Campaign contributions
in partnershnp with slaté funds-and stiident fees —and the compamon project to the ‘Kress, the $6:2 million
remodelmg and expansion of the Umversity Union funded by student fees and: Union reveriug
« Anincrease in the value of the Unwersﬂy s:total endowment from a beginning book value of roughly 87
miiflion to a cutrent bosk vafue of more than $18 milllion.

The Campaign’s largest gift for academics was $5.5 million, by Dr. David A,-Cofrin in August 2009, for an
endowed chair and academic-excélience endowment. The. Campaign's Iargesl gift for faciities was a multi-
miffion-doliar contribution. by the Kress Family-and Kress Family Foundation in Decembar 2004, for the siugant
ayents.canter, The Campaign's-largest gift for student-scholarships was:a $1 million-bequest:from the late Craig
Muellar in September 2008, Muelier's:gift {or scholarships.in communiications and the fine .arts also represented
e largest gift evarby a UW-Green Bay-alumnus.

Other notadle achieverents during 2009:
Enroliment retord and serving the tegion during tough fimes.
Demand for UW-Green' By sefvices and.codrses oy grows during a recession, even-while: budget and salary

cuts hit home with. the imposition of unpaid furloughs {elght days per year for most employees) that raguced
{aculty and staff-availability.

Despite.the severe rgcession, the University was able to serve-a total enroliment of 5,848 students in Fali 2008,
an all-time record, UW-Green Bay's growth was lad by the Adult Degree Program which serves primarily place
bound and worklng -adults. Most notable; the Universify kept its application period open for local students, hit
hard by recession.and’in many cases changing their college plans, to 2pply late.fo their local University. Record
enroliment was also: boested- by the insfifution’s  increasing success in  refaining  studenis.

‘Sustainabifity, efvironmental education:

UW-Green Ba)’?to‘ok real steps in 2009 joward.reclaiming the titie “Eco: U," a pickname {rontits early days in {he
189605:and '70s,:and reaffirming its commitment o environmerital education. for the: 21st century.

Thé University launchied ENIBY, the Environmental Management and Business Institute, o promoie sustainable
business pragtices and brmg together experts. in business, public policy and environmental afiairs. *Green
business is-good business® Is an underlying concept, Among EMBI's first-year achievements was a major public
symposium on "Graen. Innovations” held on the 40th Earth Day in April 2009, EMBI aiso faunched a new
cerlificale: program for undergraduate stiudents at UW-Green:Bay.

Students launched the “U:Pass” inifiative promoting bus rdership. Through a vpluntary. increase:in student fees
and additional funding. the University mads free bus ridarship-available via Green Bay Transit o all holders.of'a
University ID card.

The institutien’s Facilities: Management piloted a tast run of biodiesel in the campus. boilers; the tests ware
sticcassful, and could be revisited if economics make the fiiel mare viable i the future, Staff mambers took the
lzad in everyday recyaling and instituted ngw campaigns, to create central collection points for both batteries and
toner cartridges.

Camous infrastructure;

UW-Green Bay continued to- davelop and enhance its siate-oi-the-art campus dusing 2009, Amorg the
milestones:

* The 200809 academic year was the first for the newly remodsfed University Union. Expansion of the
University dining room, food service options and a new location for the Phoenix Bookstore were among the
highlights 6f the $6.2 milliors project, funded by siudent lees and program revanue. Downsiairs, & completaly
remodeled and' updated Phosnix Clud offers more sealing space and entertainment options for students.
Student Life and Student Government Association offices were relozated to more accommodating offices.
and the American Jntercuitural Center was movad to the-Union from a space In the Cofrin Library,

« The University received a long-lerm Capital Budget commitment from the state for much-needed
Rose/Wood Hall remodeiing.

« Shorewcod Golff Course voled the top ninehole  course  in the  state.
* The Krass Events Center won. 2-national innovation in Archilecture. Award.,

+ Finally, in e words; of the late Edward ‘Weidner, founding ¢hancelior, “Every Graat University has =
Carilion.” UW-Grean Bay now has one, the Edward W. Weidner Memotial Carillon,-which-was built with
private donations and-dedicated in June 2008. It is localed just outside the University Union,

iniernational Education:

UW-Gresn Bay continued to record.progress, in numerous ways, farge and small, in furiher intemnationalizing its
curriculum.

During the 2008-09 academic year, the number of study-abroad tours increased 39%. Student enrallment in
those tours ingrzased an.idenfical 38%, The University commitied new dollars to create an International Scholar-
in-Residance program, and also renswad its successiul, decads-old International Visiting Scholars Program, z
joint efforf with 5¢. Norberi Coflege.

During the 2009 academic year, UW-Grean Bay comimitted new furiding for site visits to other countries by 15
faculty’ membars, Site. Visits are ciucial in orgamzlng new study-abroad opporiunities. And the 15 faculty
members doing international-travel trips are an impressive number at an institution with fewar than 200 full-iime
facuity m=mbers




Diversity:

2009 was. a year of significant gains ‘in diversity. and mullicultural education. at UW-Green Bay. Among: the
developments:

» UW-Green Bay announiced creation of a new "Center for First Nation Studigs” ~— a collaboration of the
Educatior-and First Natioris programs in partnershlp with local tribes — to'improve K-12 instruction in. indian
history and sovereignty lts canterpxace is 2 pairing, of UW-Cregn Bay studeni teachers with Tribal Elders,
¢ UW-Graen Bay topped 500 for first time with regard to the nimber of students of color.

+ Thé institution expanded its Spanish for Professionals community: offerings.

« The ‘Amsfican Intefcultural Center was relocated to the heart of Student Life-area (& high-traffic location),
with the remodefing of the University Union.

= With regard to LGBTQ issues and awareness, the UW System’s adoption of partner benefits addressed a
fong-exprassed nesd in facully and staff recruiting. {Proponents often noted that the System's flagship
institition, UW-Nadison, was previously the only Big Ten schoot without healilv and other benefils extended
o same-sex couples Ths Women's Studies program became Women's and. Gender Studies. The program
was primary host for an “Ally Conference” addressing LGBTQ issues.

Commen Theme; Waging War, Waaing Peace’:

n 2008-09, UW—Green Bay embraced a campus’ wide inifiative done previously at some liberal-arts institutions
but never before attempted on this.campus: a “common thefme" for the year. The theme provides a focus for
special events, lecturés and activilies,

The thems selecled was “Waging War, Waging Peace.” Giiest speaksrs, commbon book readings, student
concerts, art exhibits and theatre productions all, in some way, related to the thema, The Pprovocalive ripped-
from-thg-héadlines drama; “The Balkan Woman,” chaflenged student actors and audiencse alike with its arity
portrayal of etfinit cleansing in the former Yugosiavia. lts-excellence also won selection to the regional coliege
theatre competition.

“Realizing our Suslainable Fiture” Wwas chosen'the 2009-10 conimon theme to coincide with the 40th.anniversary
of Earthi Day in-spring 2010.

£ing aris:

The firlg arls achieverents weré highlighted by the Thealre program-teceiving in Jahdary 2009 an-invitation o
perforrn *Balkan:Women™ atithe Gredt Lakes coflege theatie fastival. For UW-Green Bay, it was the fiith tripira
decade 16 the prestigious fastival. The Theatfe program won the team ‘awdrd for-backstage work, setup and
technical excellence. and a facully. award for technical ditention.

Other hlghhghts included a production of Handel's Messiah al.the Weidner'Center, the Lawion Gallery's
acqussmon of the Andy’ Warhol collection, and: & January-2009 JJaz2. Fest concert widely judged to have baen the
best ever in the'event's and institution's 40-ygar history, with a "Tribute to Lovall lves™ alumri-concért honoring
the retired foundet of the jazz studies program.

Phosnix Athistics:

intercoliegiate Athistics-and Phoenix student-athletss sarned many siudent academic hanors, st both the
conference (Hofzon League) and nationallevals.

{n competition, the women's basketball team concluded anotfier tremendous year in spring 2009, earning the
team’s eighth:bid to'the NGAA Totrnament in 171 years, The 2009 Horizon League championship was ihe
program's 10th straight. in men's basketball, the Phoenix-won 20 games and advanced to a post-season
tournament for-the- first time-n a decade, losing in the first round of tha College Basketball Invitational at homs to
Yerment. Terry Evans was selected for a national slam-gunk competifion. The year 2009'saw a record fiffh
straight Harlzon League swimming/diving championship for the women's program.

Off the court, the program conlinued to make fundraising strides. Sergio Garcia, No. 5 golfer in the worid,
donatad his, time for & successful fundraising event. And the Athietics program received national publicily for
*going green’.., becoming one.of the first NCAA Division | schiogls: to disconfinue printed media guides and put
everylhingon Web,

‘Mititary Frienghy’

in-August 2009, UW-Green Bay announced it had recaived 2 ‘mifitary frizndly’ rafing from the national magazine,
G.l. Jobs. The rating recognized U\W-Green Bay's success on a number of fronts:

« UW-Grzen Bay had recenfly created a new position: Financial Aid Adviszr/Veieran's Serviges
Goordinator, )

»The annual Veterans Day reception has grown into a major annual event.

The :military “care packages” effort, with items donated by students, and employess, conlinued 1o
expand.

*Students arranged an April 2009 show at the Weidner Center — free to the public —— by the Air Forea
Concert Band.

+A student wnifitary veteran was in the spotlight at May 2009 Commencement, when a recent Marine
Corps vet-and new summa cum faude grad. was the student speaker

Hzalth and safety:

University administration continuad io emphasize emergency preparedness, where the institution has traditionally
been viewsd as a Jeader among peer institutions. The University inaugurated use of GB Aler{ ~ lex{ messaging
— as an emergency warning tool. The institution also experiznced:-a professional response to the Building 109
fire, Which destroyeu a'then-unaccupizd apanment building on campus, in June 200%; staff, student workers,
and individuals from Public Safety, Residence Life. Summer Camps responded with prompt and professional
actions.

Faculty members as public intsllectuals:and researchars:

During the 200809 academic year, UWW-Green Bay had faculty members appearing on PBS and NPR writing
copy for the New York Times, doing Q&A’s with Harper's Magazine, supplying op-eds for a major newspaper
syndicate, traveling to Washmgton D.C.{o present at a State Department sympasium, and, of coursg, doing alt
sorts of logalang stale interviews, appgarances, lzciures, conferense presentations and the like, publishing
widely, winning henorsin national design. compeiitions, serving as Wisconsin poel laureate, as leaders of
national professional organizations, as. local presenters and lecturers on topics of current interest.

Faculty members -secured important. grant support as well. individuals received grants for Improving K-12
Science Teachmg (5330 000), testing. peflelized fuel {550,000}, researching grasstand bio-fuets-($160,000), for a
very important confainer-shipping study for the Port of Green Bay (S50, 000), for studying phosphorous poliution
on the Graat Lakes {$280,000), for studying the bedrock undér Brown County:{$140,000), and much more,

Partnerships wnh other insfitutions, community service

» Afirst. UW-Grieen Bay hosted.atour, day for CEOs {deans) of region’s twa-year UW Colleges. They
et u'npressad and excited about steering transfers lo UWGB.

» This University s:gned a'new transfer agreement with UW-tarinatia,

« The: University signed Master's of Manag&ment partnership with Bordeauy. Management
School(Francs)

»The institution received a Space Grant {N&SA} award o $150,000 for rocket work wilh Collzge of
tienorhingé Nation.

+ lwas another hugs year for Phuture Phozsnix: honored as & Wisconsin “Program of Distinetion™; with
the progrant's first major scholarship gifis; major grants to replicate our progeam. at UW-Eall Claire;
additionat granls to exténd our juloring services and reach out to families

» The Historical Perspestives Lecture Serfes had another strong year.

+ Therg was a record furnott for summer Clerks and Treasurers Instiite:

+» The University expanded the Camp Lioyd summer-retféat experienge for grieving children.

+ Another record National History. Day was leld on campus, with-hundreds of {eenage historians coming
to UW-Green Bay to display their projects.
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
" FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




REPORT ON.INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND.ON
COMPLIANGE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN.AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANGE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and City Councit
City of Green Bay, Wisconsin

We have audited the financial statemonts. of the: governmental activities, tha business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and! the aggregate remaining fund information ¢f the City of Green Bay,
Wisconsin, as of and for the year-ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of Green Bay's
basic. financial siatements.and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2010, We conducied our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted: in the United States of America and the standards
applicable.to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroffer Generat of
the United States.

Internal Conrol Qver Finangial Reporting

In planning and performing our audil, we considered the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin's' internal control over
financiaf reporting in order to detarmine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
finanaial statements, but net for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the City of
Green Bay, Wxsconsm:. Tternal controf over financial reporting. Accordingly, we-do nol express an opinion-on
the cfracnvnncss of the Cily of Green Bay, Wisconsin's internal controf-aver financial reportiag.

A eonirol-defi cnency exisis when fhe design o operalion.of a control does not-allow-managernert or ermployees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, {o prevent or detect misstatements-on @ timely basis. A
significant deficlency is a control deficiency, or comblnahon of conlrol deficiencies, thal adversely affects the

enlity's -ability to ‘initiate, authorize, record, process, or reporl financial -data reliably in accordance with generally:

accepted accounting pnncxples sueh that there ts more than remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity's
financial statemanis that is more than inconsequential will not be pravented or detected by the entity’s internal
sontrol over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a ramole hkuhhood that a malerial misstatement of the financial statements will not'be prevented or delected by
tive entity's internal conirof.

Our consideratian of internal control over financial reporling was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraphi of this seclion and vwouid nol necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal controf that might be
significarit- deficiencies o material weaknesses, We did not idenlify any deficiencies in iniernal control over
financial reporting that we-consider lo be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance-and:Other Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin's financial statements
are free of material risstaternent, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of faws,
feguiations, contratls and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determinalion of basic financial statemient amounts. However, providing an opinion.on compliance with those
provisions was not @n objective of our audil, and accordingly, we do riot express such an opinion. The resulls of
our fesis disclosed np instances of noncompliance .or otber matters that are required to be reporied .under
Government Audiling Standards.
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We.noted certain matters-that we reporled te management of City of Green Bay, Wisconsin in a separate letter
dated June 24, 2010,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council, and is not imtended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

SLfe e

Certified Public Accountants
Grean Bay, Wisconsin
June 24, 2010
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FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL.OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
| WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND STATE SINGLE AUDIT GUIDELINES

To the Mayor and City Gouncil
City of Green Ba_y. Wisconsin

Compliance’

We'have audlted he campliance of the: City of Green Bay, Wisconsin with- the types of compliance requirements:
described in the U.S. Office of Maniagemen! and Butgel (OMB) Circular A-133 ‘Compliance Supplement and the;
State Single Audit Guidelines issued bythe State of- Wisconsin-hal are applicable-to gach of its major federal and
slate programs-for fhe year ended Dacember 31, 2009 The Cily of Green Bay. Wisconsin's major {ederal ‘and
‘glata programs arg identified in the stmmary-of auditors’ results section of ihe accompanying, schedule of findings
-and questioniad gosts: Gompliance with e requiremenits of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable.to
-zach: of ils. majar federal and siate programs is the responsibility of the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin's
management. Our-responsibility is-to express an: opinion-on the City of Green Bay, Wisconsii's compliance based
on-eur audit.

We: conducied our audit-of-compliance in accordance, with auditing standards generally: accapted in the Uniled
States of America; lhe shndards applicable 1 ﬁnanctal audils contained ‘in: Governmenl Auditing Standards,
jssued by the: omplroller Gengral o 1he ‘United Stales; and OMB: Gircular - Audits of Statss, Lacal
Governments, and : Non-ProI'I ‘Organizations ard-the Slate Single Audit Guid nes. issued: by: the Wisconsin
Dapartment-of Admtmstrauon Those standdrds gmd nes and. OMB! Cireular A<133 require: hal we:plan and

¢ ih the types of comphance

S aboul the- Cniy of Green Bay Wxsconsms
other pmccdures S we' cons:dered necessary in‘the

a legal determmalmn of theCity-of Green: Bay. Wxscenam § wmphanﬁe with:those réquiremerits.

Ivour oplmon the City of Green Bay, Wiscensin complied, in all.maierial respecis; wilh-the requirements referred
10 above that are. applicable:to. each ofsits major federal and sidte programs-for the year ended December: 31,
2009,

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of the City:of Green Bay, Wisconsin.is responsible for establishing.and maintaining effective
internal control bver compliance: with the: requirements of Taws; regulations, centracts, 'and grants applicable to
{edsral. and stale programs. ln. planning and. performing’ our atdit, we. considered the :City: of Green Bay,
Wisconsin's. infernal control over compliance with the: requirements that could have a direct and maleriai effect on.
amayj rfetleral ant stale program in order to"determine.our auditing procedures for the purpose.of expressing our
opirdon-on compliance, but.riot for the purpese of expressing an ‘opinion on the-effecliveness of internal .control
over -compliance. Accordingly, we do ot express an opinion on. Ihe effectiveness of the: City:of Green Bay.
Wisconsin's internal contrel over compliance.

' Appieton . Fonit:gu Loc.» Green Bay - M + Qyhhogh - 5

8O0 43&2?«6 seheraton.sum

fie Stervens Poird

VS

a reasonable ‘bagis for our:opinios, Our audit.does not prowde-

Bentnok 40

A contral deficiency.in an entity's internal conlrol over compliance exisls when the design or opération of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect noncomphance wilh a type of compliance requirement of a'{federal and state program on a timely basis.,
A significant deficiency 1. a coritrol deficiency, or combination of contro! deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entily's ability ta adrinistér a federal and stale program such that there is more than a remote likelilood that
noncompliance with a type ‘of compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented ar-detected by the Cily of Green Bay, Wisconsin's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihaod that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state
program will not be prevented or defected by the entity's internal control.

Qur consideration of internal conlrol over compliance was for e limiled purpose described in the first paragraph
of this seclion and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the entily’s internal control {hat might be
significant daficiencies or material weaknesses as defined above. We did not identify any deficiencies in inlernal
control over compliance that we consider lo be material weaknesses as tefined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of, management, the City Council, oihers within the
enfity, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-ihrough enfitiss and is not inlenided to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these spetified parties.

S el f S

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
June 24, 2010
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CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Schedute of Expenditures of Federa!l Awards and State Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

{Continued)

Accrued Accrued
(Deferred) Cash {Deferred)
CFDA Revenue Receaived Raevenue Total Total
— Grantor-Agency and Program Tille Pass-through Agency Number 31109 (Refundad) 12/31/08 Revenues | Expendilures
.S, DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Coastal Zone Management Direct program 11.419 $ - $ - $ 100000 § 100,000 S 100,000
LL.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND-URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Community Development Block Grant Direct program 14.218
Grant MC-55-0002 B 226,013 - 226,013 226,013
HOME Program Direct prograrm 14.239
Grant MC-55-0200 - 211,703 - 241,703 211,703
Econoinic Development Initiative - Special
Projec!, Neighborhood nitiative Birect program 14.251 - 102,300 - 102,300 102,300
Total U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development - 540,016 - 540,016 540,016
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPQRTATION
“Urban Mass Transit Capital Assistance WI Dept: of Transperiation 20.500 24,981 1312433 . 1.287.452 1,287,452
Urban Mass Transit Capital Assistance - ARRA Wl Dept. of Transportation 20.500 - 1,387,602 151,531 1,539,133 1,538,133
Urban Mass Tranisit Opgrating Assistance Direct program
2008 contract (1) ' 20.507 - 2,647,271 44,461 2,691,732 2,691,732
Highway Safety Program W1 Dapt. of Transportation 20,600
Project #0939-09-15 - 1,955 - 1,955 1,955
Preject #0939-09-12 - 1,966 - 1,066 1,966
Project #0939-41-48 “ 48,709 - 48,709 48,709
Project #0839-04-33 - 22,898 - 22,898 22,898
Project #0850-40-42 - - 1,382 1,382 1,382
Total U.8. Depariment of Transportation 24 981 5.422,834 197.374 5,595,227 5,595,227
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
-Juvenile Accountability Block Grant. Wi Dept. of Administration 16.523
#2008-J8-13:3915 v 50,522 37.160 87,682 87.682
STOP Violence Against Women Y Dept. of Administration 16.588
#2008-VAD2A-3250 25,81 25,511 41,402 41,402 41,402
#2009-VA-02A-6432 ) - - 14,432 14,432 14,432
Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing Direct program 16.710
#2008CKWO570 - 8,626 84,008 92,534 92,534
#2008CKW0551 - 24,153 29,749 53,902 53,902
#2008CKWO0535 - 133,905 3,380 137.285 137,285




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Expandilures of Foderal Awards and Siate Financial Assigtance {Continuad)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

{1} Represents federal share of expendilures under Federal Transit Administration contract.

Accrued Accruad
{Deferrad) Cash {Daferred)
State 1D Revenus Received Revenug Total Total
Granlor Agency and Program Titfe Number 11709 (Refunded) 12/31/09 Revenues | Expendilures
Gang Resistance Education and Training Direct pragraimn 16.737
#2007IVFX0246 11,602 11,602 . - w
#2009JVFX0D18 v - - 4,529 4,529 4,529
Local Law Enforcement Assistance Direct program 16.738 »
#2007DJBX1230 32,857 32,857 s - .
#2008DJBX0458 - - 29,675 28,675 24,675
#20000JBX1414 . - 33,930 33,930 33,930
Coverdell Forensic Selence improvement Direct program 16.742
#2008CDBX0081 - - 85,040 85,049 85,040
Recovery Act Edward Byme Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Direct progrem 16.804
#2009588B90711 . - 295,088 295,088 295,088
Total U.S. Depariment of Justice 68,970 287078 658,393 B75.4€9 875499
*LJ‘;_S_‘_QEE_ARTMENTOF HOMELAND SECURITY
Assistance o Firefighters Direct program g7.044
HENMW-2008-FO-11056 - - 24,853 24,853 24 853
Puart Saecurlly Program: Dirget program 47.056 ‘
#2007GBT70129 102,187 145,612 “ 43,425 43,425
Homeland Sacurity/ SWAT Equipment W1 Dapt, of Adminisiration 97.067
#2005-HS-100-577% ~ 24,000 - 24,000 24,000
Total U.S, Department of Homeland Security 102,187 182,612 24,853 92,278 92.278
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE £ 197138 5 8419538 $ 980620 & 7.203.020 §  7.203.070




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Accrued Accrued
{Deferred) Cash {Deferred)
State ID Reyenue Received Revenue Total Total
Granlor Agency and Program Tille Number 1/1/09 {Refunded) 12/31/09 Revenues | Expenditures

WISCONSIN DEPARTIMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
Office of Juslice Assistance ,

Additional Beal Patroi Officers 505603 _§ - § 143760 & - B 143,750 § 143,750

WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES .

‘Site Assessment Grant - SAG-584 370.687 - 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
Urban Forastry - UF-873 3700 - 14,492 - 14,492 14,492
Recreational Boating Facililies - RBF-11267 370.%xx - 90,000 - 90,600 90,000

Total Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources - 134,492 - 134,492 134,492

WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Tralfit Sighing and Marking Entiancament 3950 50,434 - 50,434 - -
Urban Mass Transit Oparating Assistance 395.104

Prior year contracts 213,637 - 213,637 - -
2009 contract {2) - 1,855,206 (87.853) 1,757,353 1,757,353

Total WisconsinDepartiient of Transportation 264,071 1,855,206 166,218 1,757,353 1,757,353

TOTAL STATE FINANGIAL ASSISTANCE § 264071 & 2133448 § 166218 § 2035805 & 2035595

(2) Represents state share of expenditures under WDOT contracl.

The notes to the schedule of expendilures.of federal awards and slate financial assistance are '
an integral-part of this schedule,




GITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to the Schiedute of Expendiiures of Federal Awards and Slale Financial Assistance GITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
December 31; 2009 Schedule of Findings and Quiestioried Costs
For tha Year.Ended December 31, 2009

NOTE A -BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Resulls
in accordance with the-audit requirenients issued by the Office-of mariagement and Buiigel (OMB) Circular A-

133 and the State Single Audit Guldelines issued by the Wiscansin Depariment of Admiristration; supplémantal Basic Financial Statements

infarmation is-presenled by the City in regiart) o federal and state financial assistance programs administeréd by Type of audilors® report issued: Ungualified:
the City. internal eontrol-over financiat réporting:
) ¢ Material weakness{es) identified? No
«  Significant deficiencles identifled that fs not
& - ; - consldered to-be a matarial weakness?: Nane Reparfed
NOTE B - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES Norigompliance material fo basie financial statemenis noted? No

Revanues and expenditures in the schedule are prasented in accordance with (he modified accrial basis of

acceunting and are generally-in:agreemant with revenues and expenditures reparted In tha City's 2009 financial Federal Awards Programs

Internal conirol over major progran:

statements. Accrusd revenug af year end consists of federal and siate prograny.expenditures scneduled for A ) S i
reimbursement:fo the Cily in the succeeding year while deferred revenue represents. advances for {ederal and : ggﬁgﬁ;xﬁ:& ?:flf_?;;('gﬁ:’;éﬁ%e d thal are not considerad No
state programs-that exceed recorded City expenditures.. 16 b material \A}eak}mesﬁ(és)? None Reporled
Fedural Programs: The Cily of Green Bay quehﬁes as.a low risk auditee in accordance with paragraph 530 of ‘,r\meagfdﬁtfl‘s‘lmgsr ?ﬁ}ijsoc‘:'lic:::ﬁgzﬁ?;: EF;L?;?&?L: fé:ro,r:t:t? s Hnaualficd
OMB Circular A-133. Therefore major programs,.as lidentified in Section |-of the Schedule-of Findings and in accordance with-Section 510(z) of Circutar A-1337 No
Questioned Costs, represent (hose with combined expenditures exceading 25% of tolal fadaral awards that also Identification of maior fediral program:
were deemed nmjor programs based on the auditors’ risk assessment. All other federal. programs are
considered non-nyajor programs. | CEDA Number | Name of Fedsral Pragram |

) 20.500 Urban Mass Transit Capifal Assistance
Siale Programs: Major programs represen! slale:assistance programs with-expentitures of §100,000 or more 20:500 Urban Mass Transit Capital Assistance - ARRA
and-ather state programs classified. as major in the State Single Audit Guidelines, All: olher state assistance '
programs required to be ingluded in the Schedule of State Financial Assistance in accordance with Appendix H Audit threshold used 1o determine betwean Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
ol the Stale Single Audit Glidelines are non«major programs. Audilee quahr ed-as low-risk-auditee Yes

] Identification of major state program;
NOTE.C + OVERSIGHT AGENCY

| " Siaie 1D Number I Name of State Program
The federal oversight ageney for the City Is the U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development, The state 395.104 Urban Mass: Transit Oparating Assistarice
cagnizant agency lsihe Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue,

Section il - Finanigial Statement Findings

Thére ‘are no findings relaied 1o the basie finanvial statemerits reéquired to be reporied;under ‘governmental auditing
slandards generally accepted in the.United Stales.of America for the year ended-December 31, 2009;

Section [l « Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are:no audit findings énd quéstioned costs: required to tie:feported under OMB Circilar A-133 "Audils of
Stales, Lecal Govarnments, and Non-Profit Organizalions™ and the State Single Audil Guidefines.for the year ended
December 31; 2009 '




CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Scheduite of Prior Year Audit Findings-and Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Prior Year Audit Findings

There wera nofindings or questioned costs for federal awards for the year ended December 31, 2008,

No corrective action plari is required.

[THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]




APPENDIX B

FORM OF
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2011 (this
“Disclosure Agreement”), is executed and delivered by the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the
“Issuer”), a municipal securities issuer and a governmental entity located in the State of
Wisconsin. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Definitions.
The following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Annual Financial Information” means the Issuer’s financial information or
operating data, for the preceding fiscal year, of the type included in the Final Official Statement
as further described in Section 3(b) hereof.

“Commission” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Dissemination Agent” means any agent responsible for assisting the Issuer in
carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, which has been designated as a
dissemination agent in writing by the Issuer, and has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of
such designation, and the successors and assigns of such dissemination agent.

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal
securities disclosures, a Commission-approved electronic database established and operated by
the MSRB to accommodate the collection and availability of required filings of secondary
market disclosures under the Rule.

“Event Notice” means a notice of occurrence of a Listed Event provided under
Section 4(b) hereof or a notice provided under Sections 3(d), 4(c), or 8 hereof, each of which
shall be transmitted as described in Section 5 hereof.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from
time to time.

“Final Official Statement” means the offering document prepared and
distributed to a Participating Underwriter in connection with the primary offering of the
Obligations.

“Issuer” means the municipal securities issuer named.

“Listed Event” means any of the events listed in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which serves as the
sole repository for all required filings of all secondary market disclosures under the Rule.

“Obligations” means the Issuer’s $4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A, dated July 12, 2011.

MILW_11243104.1



“Owners” means the beneficial owners from time to time of the Obligations.

“Participating Underwriter” means any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer that is required to comply with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary
offering of the Obligations.

“Resolution” means collectively, the resolutions adopted by the governing body
of the Issuer on May 3, 2011 and on June 21, 2011, pursuant to which the Obligations are issued.

“Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Commission under the
Exchange Act.

Section 2. Purpose of this Disclosure Agreement.

The purpose of this Disclosure Agreement is to assist Participating Underwriters
in complying with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary offering of the
Obligations.

Section 3. Annual Financial Information.

@ The Issuer shall, not later than 360 days following the close of the
Issuer’s fiscal year, submit its Annual Financial Information to the
MSRB.

(b) The Annual Financial Information will consist of (i) the Issuer’s
audited annual financial statements prepared using generally
accepted accounting principles, and (ii) the following operating
data:

1. direct debt,

2. equalized value/assessed value,
3. other obligations,
4. debt limit,
5. tax levies and collections.
(© If the Issuer’s audited annual financial statements are not available

at the time the Annual Financial Information is submitted, then the
Issuer shall submit the statements to the MSRB within ten business
days after they are publicly available.

(d) If the Issuer fails to submit its Annual Financial Information to the
MSRB by the date required in subsection (a) above, then the Issuer
shall promptly send an Event Notice of such failure to the MSRB.

MILW_11243104.1
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Section 4.

(a)

Reporting of Listed Events; Event Notices.

This Section 4 shall govern the submission of an Event Notice
after the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with
respect to the Obligations:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

Principal and interest payment delinquencies.
Non-payment related defaults, if material under the Exchange Act.

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties.

Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties.

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to
perform.

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service
of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or
other material events affecting the tax status of the Obligations.

Modifications to rights of Owners, if material under the Exchange
Act.

Redemptions of the Obligations, if material under the Exchange
Act, and tender offers.

Defeasances.

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Obligations, if material under the Exchange Act.

Rating changes.

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer
(for the purposes of this event, the event is considered to occur
when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver,
fiscal agent, or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state
or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business
of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving
the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or
governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan

-3-



of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all the assets or business of the Issuer).

13.  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all the assets
of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary course of business, the
entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions,
other than pursuant to its terms, if material under the Exchange
Act.

14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of
name of a trustee, if material under the Exchange Act.

(b) The Issuer shall submit an Event Notice to the MSRB not in excess
of ten business days after the occurrence of the particular Listed
Event.

(© If the Issuer determines that it failed to submit an Event Notice of
an occurrence of a Listed Event as required by this section, then it
shall promptly submit an Event Notice with respect to such
occurrence to the MSRB.

Section 5. Transmittal of Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices.

Annual Financial Information and Event Notices shall be submitted to the MSRB
in an electronic format, and accompanied by identifying information, as prescribed by the
MSRB. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, the MSRB requires that all submissions of
secondary disclosure be made through EMMA. The Annual Financial Information may be
submitted as a single document or as a package comprising separate documents. Any or all of
the items constituting the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated by reference from
other documents available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Website or filed with the
Commission. The Issuer shall clearly identify each document so incorporated by reference.

Section 6. Duty to Confirm MSRB’s Filing Format and Procedure.

Each time the Issuer submits information to the MSRB in accordance with this
Disclosure Agreement, it shall confirm, in the manner it deems appropriate, the MSRB’s
prescriptions concerning the electronic format and accompanying identifying information for
submissions. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, information on the MSRB’s required
electronic format and submission procedures through EMMA can be found on the MSRB’s
Internet Web site at www.emma.msrb.org.

MILW_11243104.1



Section 7. Termination of Disclosure Agreement and Reporting
Obligation.

This Disclosure Agreement and the Issuer’s disclosure obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement with respect to the Obligations shall terminate upon the legal defeasance,
prior redemption, or payment in full of all the Obligations or if the Rule shall be revoked or
rescinded by the Commission or declared invalid by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer
may amend this Disclosure Agreement, and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be
waived, if the following conditions are met:

@ The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the
Issuer or an obligated person, or the type of business conducted,;

(b) This Disclosure Agreement, as amended or waived, would have
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the
primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances;
and

(© The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests
of Owners, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with the
Issuer or obligated person (such as the fiscal agent, trustee, or bond
counsel), or by approving vote of the Owners pursuant to the terms
of the Resolution at the time of the amendment.

In the event this Disclosure Agreement is amended for any reason other than to
cure any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the
Issuer agrees the next Annual Financial Information it submits after such event shall include an
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of
financial statements or operating data being provided.

If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing
financial statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an Event Notice and that the next
Annual Financial Information it submits after such event will include a comparison between
financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Section 9. Dissemination Agent.

The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent and
may discharge any Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent.

MILW_11243104.1



Section 10. Additional Information.

The Issuer may from time to time choose to disseminate other information, using
the means of transmittal set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication, or to include other information with its Annual Financial Information or Event
Notice, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses
to include any information with its Annual Financial Information or Event Notice in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, then the Issuer shall have no
obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future
Annual Financial Information or Event Notice.

Section 11.  Default.

A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of
Default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy of the Owners under this Disclosure
Agreement in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Agreement
shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 12.  Beneficiaries.

The Issuer intends to be contractually bound by this Disclosure Agreement. This
Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the Participating
Underwriters, and the Owners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Section 13. Recordkeeping.

The Issuer shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices submitted to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, including the content
and the date of filing of such submissions.

Section 14. Responsible Officer.

The Issuer’s Finance Director shall be the officer, representative, agency, or agent
of the Issuer ultimately responsible for submitting Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices to the MSRB, to the extent required hereunder, regardless of whether a Dissemination
Agent has been appointed, and any inquiries regarding this Disclosure Agreement should be
directed to:

Finance Director

City of Green Bay

100 North Jefferson Street

Green Bay, Wisconsin 54301

Telephone:  (920) 448-3026

Fax: (920) 448-3022

Email: dawnfo@ci.green-bay.wi.us

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Disclosure Agreement to be
executed by its duly authorized officer or representative as of the date written above.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Issuer

By:

Title: Finance Director

[Signature Page to 2011A Continuing Disclosure Agreement]
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2011 (this
“Disclosure Agreement”), is executed and delivered by the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the
“Issuer”), a municipal securities issuer and a governmental entity located in the State of
Wisconsin. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Definitions.
The following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Annual Financial Information” means the Issuer’s financial information or
operating data, for the preceding fiscal year, of the type included in the Final Official Statement
as further described in Section 3(b) hereof.

“Commission” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Dissemination Agent” means any agent responsible for assisting the Issuer in
carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, which has been designated as a
dissemination agent in writing by the Issuer, and has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of
such designation, and the successors and assigns of such dissemination agent.

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal
securities disclosures, a Commission-approved electronic database established and operated by
the MSRB to accommodate the collection and availability of required filings of secondary
market disclosures under the Rule.

“Event Notice” means a notice of occurrence of a Listed Event provided under
Section 4(b) hereof or a notice provided under Sections 3(d), 4(c), or 8 hereof, each of which
shall be transmitted as described in Section 5 hereof.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from
time to time.

“Final Official Statement” means the offering document prepared and
distributed to a Participating Underwriter in connection with the primary offering of the
Obligations.

“Issuer” means the municipal securities issuer named.

“Listed Event” means any of the events listed in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which serves as the
sole repository for all required filings of all secondary market disclosures under the Rule.

“Obligations” means the Issuer’s $950,000 General Obligation Promissory
Notes, Series 2011B, dated July 12, 2011.
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“Owners” means the beneficial owners from time to time of the Obligations.

“Participating Underwriter” means any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer that is required to comply with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary
offering of the Obligations.

“Resolution” means collectively, the resolutions adopted by the governing body
of the Issuer on May 3, 2011 and on June 21, 2011, pursuant to which the Obligations are issued.

“Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Commission under the
Exchange Act.

Section 2. Purpose of this Disclosure Agreement.

The purpose of this Disclosure Agreement is to assist Participating Underwriters
in complying with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary offering of the
Obligations.

Section 3. Annual Financial Information.

@ The Issuer shall, not later than 360 days following the close of the
Issuer’s fiscal year, submit its Annual Financial Information to the
MSRB.

(b) The Annual Financial Information will consist of (i) the Issuer’s
audited annual financial statements prepared using generally
accepted accounting principles, and (ii) the following operating
data:

1. direct debt,

2. equalized value/assessed value,
3. other obligations,
4. debt limit,
5. tax levies and collections.
(© If the Issuer’s audited annual financial statements are not available

at the time the Annual Financial Information is submitted, then the
Issuer shall submit the statements to the MSRB within ten business
days after they are publicly available.

(d) If the Issuer fails to submit its Annual Financial Information to the
MSRB by the date required in subsection (a) above, then the Issuer
shall promptly send an Event Notice of such failure to the MSRB.

MILW_11243136.1
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Section 4.

(a)

Reporting of Listed Events; Event Notices.

This Section 4 shall govern the submission of an Event Notice
after the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with
respect to the Obligations:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

Principal and interest payment delinquencies.
Non-payment related defaults, if material under the Exchange Act.

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties.

Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties.

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to
perform.

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service
of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or
other material events affecting the tax status of the Obligations.

Modifications to rights of Owners, if material under the Exchange
Act.

Redemptions of the Obligations, if material under the Exchange
Act, and tender offers.

Defeasances.

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Obligations, if material under the Exchange Act.

Rating changes.

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer
(for the purposes of this event, the event is considered to occur
when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver,
fiscal agent, or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state
or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business
of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving
the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or
governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan
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of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all the assets or business of the Issuer).

13.  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all the assets
of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary course of business, the
entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions,
other than pursuant to its terms, if material under the Exchange
Act.

14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of
name of a trustee, if material under the Exchange Act.

(b) The Issuer shall submit an Event Notice to the MSRB not in excess
of ten business days after the occurrence of the particular Listed
Event.

(© If the Issuer determines that it failed to submit an Event Notice of
an occurrence of a Listed Event as required by this section, then it
shall promptly submit an Event Notice with respect to such
occurrence to the MSRB.

Section 5. Transmittal of Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices.

Annual Financial Information and Event Notices shall be submitted to the MSRB
in an electronic format, and accompanied by identifying information, as prescribed by the
MSRB. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, the MSRB requires that all submissions of
secondary disclosure be made through EMMA. The Annual Financial Information may be
submitted as a single document or as a package comprising separate documents. Any or all of
the items constituting the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated by reference from
other documents available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Website or filed with the
Commission. The Issuer shall clearly identify each document so incorporated by reference.

Section 6. Duty to Confirm MSRB’s Filing Format and Procedure.

Each time the Issuer submits information to the MSRB in accordance with this
Disclosure Agreement, it shall confirm, in the manner it deems appropriate, the MSRB’s
prescriptions concerning the electronic format and accompanying identifying information for
submissions. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, information on the MSRB’s required
electronic format and submission procedures through EMMA can be found on the MSRB’s
Internet Web site at www.emma.msrb.org.
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Section 7. Termination of Disclosure Agreement and Reporting
Obligation.

This Disclosure Agreement and the Issuer’s disclosure obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement with respect to the Obligations shall terminate upon the legal defeasance,
prior redemption, or payment in full of all the Obligations or if the Rule shall be revoked or
rescinded by the Commission or declared invalid by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer
may amend this Disclosure Agreement, and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be
waived, if the following conditions are met:

@ The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the
Issuer or an obligated person, or the type of business conducted,;

(b) This Disclosure Agreement, as amended or waived, would have
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the
primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances;
and

(© The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests
of Owners, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with the
Issuer or obligated person (such as the fiscal agent, trustee, or bond
counsel), or by approving vote of the Owners pursuant to the terms
of the Resolution at the time of the amendment.

In the event this Disclosure Agreement is amended for any reason other than to
cure any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the
Issuer agrees the next Annual Financial Information it submits after such event shall include an
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of
financial statements or operating data being provided.

If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing
financial statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an Event Notice and that the next
Annual Financial Information it submits after such event will include a comparison between
financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Section 9. Dissemination Agent.

The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent and
may discharge any Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent.
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Section 10. Additional Information.

The Issuer may from time to time choose to disseminate other information, using
the means of transmittal set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication, or to include other information with its Annual Financial Information or Event
Notice, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses
to include any information with its Annual Financial Information or Event Notice in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, then the Issuer shall have no
obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future
Annual Financial Information or Event Notice.

Section 11.  Default.

A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of
Default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy of the Owners under this Disclosure
Agreement in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Agreement
shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 12.  Beneficiaries.

The Issuer intends to be contractually bound by this Disclosure Agreement. This
Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the Participating
Underwriters, and the Owners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Section 13. Recordkeeping.

The Issuer shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices submitted to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, including the content
and the date of filing of such submissions.

Section 14. Responsible Officer.

The Issuer’s Finance Director shall be the officer, representative, agency, or agent
of the Issuer ultimately responsible for submitting Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices to the MSRB, to the extent required hereunder, regardless of whether a Dissemination
Agent has been appointed, and any inquiries regarding this Disclosure Agreement should be
directed to:

Finance Director

City of Green Bay

100 North Jefferson Street

Green Bay, Wisconsin 54301

Telephone:  (920) 448-3026

Fax: (920) 448-3022

Email: dawnfo@ci.green-bay.wi.us

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Disclosure Agreement to be
executed by its duly authorized officer or representative as of the date written above.

CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN
Issuer

By:

Title: Finance Director

[Signature Page to 2011B Continuing Disclosure Agreement]
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APPENDIX C

FORM OF LEGAL OPINIONS



ATTORNEYS AT LAW

777 EAST WISCONSIN AVENUE
MILWAUKEE, WI 53202 -5306
414.271.2400 TEL

July 12, 2011 414.297.4900 FAX
foley.com
City of Green Bay
100 North Jefferson Street
Green Bay, Wisconsin 54301
Subject: $4,750,000

City of Green Bay, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2011A

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”) in
connection with the issuance of its $4,750,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series
2011A, dated July 12, 2011 (the “Obligations”).

We examined the law, a certified copy of the proceedings relating to the issuance of
the Obligations, and certifications of public officials and others. As to questions of fact material to
our opinion, we relied upon the certified proceedings and certifications without independently
undertaking to verify them.

Based upon this examination, it is our opinion that, under existing law:
1. The Obligations are valid and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All taxable property in the Issuer’s territory is subject to ad valorem taxation
without any limit as to rate or amount to pay the principal and interest coming due on the
Obligations. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest
coming due on the Obligations except to the extent that the Issuer has deposited other funds, or there
is otherwise surplus money, in the debt service fund created for the Obligations under Wisconsin
law.

3. Interest on the Obligations is excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Obligations is taken into account in
determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on certain corporations. The Issuer must comply with all requirements of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied after the Obligations are
issued for interest on the Obligations to be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has agreed to comply with those requirements. Its failure to
do so may cause interest on the Obligations to be included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes, in some cases retroactively to the date the Obligations were issued. The Issuer has

BOSTON JACKSONVILLE MILWAUKEE SAN DIEGO SILICON VALLEY
BRUSSELS LOS ANGELES NEW YORK SAN DIEGO/DEL MAR TALLAHASSEE
CHICAGO MADISON ORLANDO SAN FRANCISCO TAMPA
DETROIT MIAMI SACRAMENTO SHANGHAI TOKYO

WASHINGTON, D.C.
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sFOLEY

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP

July 12, 2011
Page 2

designated the Obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)
of the Code. We express no opinion about other federal tax law consequences relating to the
Obligations.

The rights of the owners of the Obligations and the enforceability of the Obligations
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in either a legal or an
equitable proceeding).

We express no opinion as to the truth or completeness of any official statement or
other disclosure document used in connection with the offer and sale of the Obligations.

Our opinion is given as of the date of this letter. We assume no duty to update our
opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that later come to our attention or any subsequent
changes in law. In serving as bond counsel, we have established an attorney-client relationship only
with the Issuer.

Very truly yours,
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW

777 EAST WISCONSIN AVENUE
MILWAUKEE, WI 53202 -5306
414.271.2400 TEL

July 12, 2011 414.297.4900 FAX
foley.com
City of Green Bay
100 North Jefferson Street
Green Bay, Wisconsin 54301
Subject: $950,000

City of Green Bay, Wisconsin
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2011B

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”) in
connection with the issuance of its $950,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2011B,
dated July 12, 2011 (the “Obligations™).

We examined the law, a certified copy of the proceedings relating to the issuance of
the Obligations, and certifications of public officials and others. As to questions of fact material to
our opinion, we relied upon the certified proceedings and certifications without independently
undertaking to verify them.

Based upon this examination, it is our opinion that, under existing law:
1. The Obligations are valid and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All taxable property in the Issuer’s territory is subject to ad valorem taxation
without any limit as to rate or amount to pay the principal and interest coming due on the
Obligations. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest
coming due on the Obligations except to the extent that the Issuer has deposited other funds, or there
is otherwise surplus money, in the debt service fund created for the Obligations under Wisconsin
law.

3. Interest on the Obligations is excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Obligations is taken into account in
determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on certain corporations. The Issuer must comply with all requirements of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied after the Obligations are
issued for interest on the Obligations to be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has agreed to comply with those requirements. Its failure to
do so may cause interest on the Obligations to be included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes, in some cases retroactively to the date the Obligations were issued. The Issuer has
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sFOLEY

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP

July 12, 2011
Page 2

designated the Obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)
of the Code. We express no opinion about other federal tax law consequences relating to the
Obligations.

The rights of the owners of the Obligations and the enforceability of the Obligations
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in either a legal or an
equitable proceeding).

We express no opinion as to the truth or completeness of any official statement or
other disclosure document used in connection with the offer and sale of the Obligations.

Our opinion is given as of the date of this letter. We assume no duty to update our
opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that later come to our attention or any subsequent
changes in law. In acting as bond counsel, we have established an attorney-client relationship with
the Issuer.

Very truly yours,
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